
 
1 
 

  
Notice of a meeting of 

Cabinet 
 

Tuesday, 19 June 2012 
6.00 pm 

Municipal Offices, Promenade, Cheltenham, GL50 9SA 
 

Membership 
Councillors: Steve Jordan, John Rawson, Rowena Hay, Peter Jeffries, 

Andrew McKinlay, Jon Walklett and Roger Whyborn 
 

Agenda  
    

  SECTION 1 : PROCEDURAL MATTERS  
    
1.   APOLOGIES  
    
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
    
3.   MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING (Pages 

1 - 4) 
    
4.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  
    
  SECTION 2 :THE COUNCIL   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by the Council 

on this occasion 
 

    
  SECTION 3 : OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by Scrutiny 

Committees on this occasion 
 

 

    
  SECTION 4 : OTHER COMMITTEES   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by other 

Committees on this occasion 
 

 

    
  SECTION 5 : REPORTS FROM CABINET MEMBERS 

AND/OR OFFICERS 
 

    
5.   FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2011/12 AND QUARTERLY 

BUDGET MONITORING TO MAY 2012- 
Report of the Cabinet Member Finance (to follow – please 
note hard copies of the report will be circulated with the 

(Pages 
5 - 78) 



    

 
2 
 

Council papers so please bring those to the meeting)  
    
6.   ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 

Report of the Cabinet Member Corporate Services 
(Pages 

79 - 
102) 

    
7.   RIGHT TO BUY - SCHEME CHANGES AND 

AGREEMENT TO RETAIN RECEIPTS 
Report of the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 

(Pages 
103 - 
118) 

    
8.   APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 

Report of the Leader 
(Pages 
119 - 
128) 

    
9.   GAMBLING ACT 2005 – REVIEW OF LICENSING 

POLICY STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 
Report of the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety  

(Pages 
129 - 
168) 

    
10.   REGULATING DIRECT DEBIT “FACE TO FACE” 

FUNDRAISING IN CHELTENHAM 
Report of the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 

(Pages 
169 - 
206) 

    
11.   LICENSING OF RICKSHAWS IN CHELTENHAM 

Report of the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 
(Pages 
207 - 
234) 

    
  SECTION 6 : BRIEFING SESSION   
  • Leader and Cabinet Members  
    

12.   BRIEFING FROM CABINET MEMBERS  
    
  SECTION 7 : DECISIONS OF CABINET MEMBERS AND 

OFFICERS  
 

  Member decisions taken since the last Cabinet meeting  
    
  SECTION 8 : ANY OTHER ITEM(S) THAT THE LEADER 

DETERMINES TO BE URGENT AND REQUIRES A 
DECISION 

 

    
  Section 10: BRIEFING NOTES   
  Briefing notes are circulated for information with the Cabinet 

papers but are not on the agenda 
 

    
 
Contact Officer:  Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager, 01242 774937 

Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 

 
- 1 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on. Tuesday, 19 June 2012 
 

Cabinet 
 

Tuesday, 29th May, 2012 
6.00 - 6.20 pm 

 
Attendees 

Councillors:  Steve Jordan (Leader of the Council), John Rawson (Cabinet 
Member Finance), Rowena Hay (Cabinet Member Sport and 
Culture), Peter Jeffries (Cabinet Member Housing and Safety), 
Andrew McKinlay (Cabinet Member Built Environment), 
Jon Walklett (Cabinet Member Corporate Services) and 
Roger Whyborn (Cabinet Member Sustainability) 

 
 

Minutes 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
There were no apologies.  
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
No interests were declared.  
 

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
The minutes of the last meeting had been circulated with the agenda.  
 
Upon a vote, those that had been present at the last meeting unanimously 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 17 April 2012 be 
approved and signed as an accurate record.  
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
No public questions or petitions had been received.  
 

5. FOOD SAFETY DELIVERY PLAN 2012-13 
The Cabinet Member Housing and Safety introduced the annual plan which 
provided details of how Cheltenham Borough Council would execute its 
statutory food safety functions.   
 
In response to a question from another member, the Cabinet Member Housing 
and Safety confirmed that a risk based approach was taken which measured 
risk based on type of food and number of users.  
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously 
 
RESOLVED that the Food Service Delivery Plan for 2012-2013 be 
approved.  
 

6. HEALTH AND SAFETY DELIVERY PLAN 2012-13 

Agenda Item 3
Page 1



 
 
 

 

 
- 2 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 19 June 2012 
 

The Cabinet Member Housing and Safety introduced the statutory annual health 
and safety delivery plan which focussed resources on high risk services.   
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet approve the attached service plan for 2012-2013. 
 

7. PROPOSED LEASE OF THE STANTON ROOMS AND CHURCH PIECE 
PUBLIC TOILETS TO CHARLTON KINGS PARISH COUNCIL-
CONSIDERATION OF REVISED TERMS 
The Cabinet Member Finance introduced the report as circulated with the 
agenda.  He explained that the matter of leasing the Stanton Rooms and 
Church Piece public toilets to Charlton Kings Parish Council had been 
previously considered by Cabinet on the 26 July 2011 and agreed.  Since this 
time it had been established that the proposed extensions fell outside of the 
area as was previously reported and the terms had been amended slightly to 
provide CKPC with more flexibility with regard to use of the building.  He 
considered that this was a good news story for Cheltenham Borough Council, 
enabling a budget saving whilst empowering the local community and CKPC. 
 
Councillor McCloskey was invited to speak as a representative of the Charlton 
Kings.  She confirmed that a planning application had been approved by officers 
and subject to the agreement of the recommendations set out in the report, 
CKPC would commence applications for funding.   
 
The Leader concurred that this arrangement would collectively benefit everyone 
in the area.  
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously 
 
RESOLVED that; 
 

1. The land and buildings as shown edged in red on the plan 
(Appendix 1) be let to the Charlton Kings Parish Council. 

 
2. Authority be delegated to the Head of Property and Asset 

Management in consultation with the Head of Legal Services to 
agree the terms of the new lease and the Head of Property Services 
and Asset Management to conclude the letting. 

 
8. BRIEFING FROM CABINET MEMBERS 

The Cabinet Member Sustainability referred Cabinet members to copies of his 
letter dated the 4 May to the Gloucestershire County Council Planning 
department regarding the proposed residual waste incinerator at Javelin Park.  
Having discussed the issue with his Cabinet colleagues at the time he had 
considered it appropriate to apply his comments to two areas of objection, firstly 
the attempt to prematurely approve the application ahead of the Inspector’s 
report and secondly the issues voiced in the debate at Council surrounding the 
motion passed on the 10 October 2011.  He felt that it may be that other 
members of the Cabinet may like to endorse the letter and invited them to do 
so.   
 

Page 2



 
 
 

 

 
- 3 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 19 June 2012 
 

Whilst the Leader appreciated that Councillor Whyborn had personally drafted 
the letter, he endorsed it as it echoed the comments made at Council on the 10 
October 2011.   
 
The Cabinet Member Finance suggested that all Members were supportive of 
the letter as it reflected the corporate view of environmental and waste matters 
generally.  
 
Cabinet Member Built Environment noted that the Gloucestershire County 
Council Sustainable Transport Fund bid had been successful and would now 
allow for the development of Boots Corner to progress to the next stage.  This 
formed part of a much bigger picture for the redevelopment of the town centre 
and the wider support that this accomplishment demonstrated should offer 
confidence that the plans could be delivered.   
 
Cabinet Member Sport and Culture highlighted recent events.  On Sunday 
people had lined the streets in support of Cheltenham Football Club on their 
journey to Wembley, though sadly they didn’t win.  The Cheltenham Torch 
Relay event had been a huge success with the Police estimating that 35,000 
people had been at the racecourse, suggesting that the delayed arrival of the 
torch at the racecourse was due to the scale of the turn out along the route.  
She thanked all officers and volunteers that had made it possible, particularly 
Craig Mortiboys for his invaluable efforts.  A taster session for the latest 
dance/exercise craze to hit the country, BOKWA, was held in Pittville Park over 
the weekend.  Based on African dance, kick boxing and shadow boxing, 
BOKWA offered a cardio workout whilst being fun at the same time.  
 
The Leader announced three decisions he had recently taken.  Following his 
election as Leader of the Council on the 14 May he had formally allocated 
executive functions and this now formed part of the constitution.  The attached 
summary set out the lead member and officer for each function, which he felt 
would be useful to members and officers as well as the public.   
The second decision related to the Cheltenham Borough Homes Board on 
which Councillors Driver, Smith, C. Hay, Lansley and Williams had been 
appointed as Councillor Board Members.  The third decision, taken only today 
(29 May) had been the appointment of Cabinet Members to those outside 
bodies which formed part of the Cabinet Member portfolios.  He noted the 
bodies on which more than one Member had been appointed: in order to 
maintain cross party participation, Councillor Garnham would replace Councillor 
Cooper on the Cheltenham Development Task Force.  The relevant Cabinet 
Member had been appointed to the Cheltenham Parking Board and 
Gloucestershire Shadow Joint Waste Board, but with the addition of Councillor 
Jordan, the Leader of the Council.  There had been no objections from the 
Group Leaders and the decision was subject to a 5 day call-in period.  
 
Cabinet Member Finance, in his previous role as the Cabinet Member Built 
Environment, had authorised the installation of a notice board in the Norwood 
Triangle as part of the streetscape improvements.   
 
 
 

 Councillor Jordan 
Chairman 

Page 3



Page 4
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 1 of 12 Last updated 12 June 2012 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 19 June 2012 
Council – 25 June 2012 

Financial outturn 2011/12 and budget monitoring to May 2012 
Accountable member Councillor John Rawson, Cabinet Member for Finance 
Accountable officer Mark Sheldon, Director Resources 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

All 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No 
Executive summary In accordance with financial rule A11.3, the Section 151 Officer is 

responsible for providing regular reports to the Cabinet on the Council’s 
finances and financial performance. This report highlights the Council’s 
financial performance for the previous year which sets out the General Fund 
and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) revenue and capital outturn position 
for 2011/12. The information contained within this report has been used to 
prepare the Council’s Statement of Accounts for 2011/12. 
 
Financial rule B10.1 states that carry forward of planned underspend of 
revenue budgets into the following financial year will only be allowed with 
the agreement of the Section 151 Officer, in order to meet the needs of 
approved service delivery. Financial rule B10.3 states that all other carry 
forward requests, including budget underspends that have been carried 
forward in previous financial years, will be subject to full Council approval at 
the financial outturn meeting held after the year end. 
 
The Council’s Treasury Management Policy requires the Section 151 Officer 
to report to members annually, by the 30th September, on the treasury 
management activities and prudential indicators for the previous financial 
year. This report also seeks to meet this requirement. 

Recommendations We therefore recommend that Cabinet approve the following 
recommendations to Council: 

1. Receive the financial outturn performance position for the 
General Fund, summarised at Appendix 2, and note that 
services have been delivered within the revised budget for 
2011/12 resulting in a saving (after carry forward requests) of 
£149,777.   

2. Recommend that Council approve the following: 
     2.1  £214,700 of carry forward requests (requiring member approval) 

at Appendix 7. 
     2.2  The budget saving of £149,777 be used as follows: 

Agenda Item 5
Page 5



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 2 of 12 Last updated 12 June 2012 
 

• £43,600 to fund a grant to CHAC as outlined in para 3.3 
• £43,900 for providing recycling boxes and bins as 

outlined in para 3.6 
• £62,277 to strengthen the Planning Appeals reserve as 

outlined in para 3.7 
3. Note the treasury management outturn at Appendix 9. 
4. Approve the allocation of the High Street Innovation Fund 

award grant as set out in section 6. 
5. Note the capital programme outturn position as detailed in 

Appendix 11 and approve the carry forward of unspent budgets 
into 2012/13 (section 8). 

6. Note the position in respect of section 106 agreements and 
partnership funding agreements at Appendix 12 (section 9). 

7. Note the outturn position in respect of collection rates for 
council tax and non domestic rates for 2011/12 in Appendix 13 
(section 10). 

8. Note the outturn position in respect of collection rates for 
sundry debts for 2011/12 in Appendix 14 (section 11). 

9. Receive the financial outturn performance position for the 
Housing Revenue Account for 2011/12 in Appendices 15 to 17 
(section 12). 

10. Note the outturn prudential indicators Appendix 18 and 
recommend that Council approve the revised prudential 
indicators for 2011/12, marked with an asterisk (section 13). 

11. Note the budget monitoring position to the end of May 2012 
(section 14). 

  
 
Financial implications As detailed throughout this report. 

Contact officer: Paul Jones,  paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk,     
01242 775154 

Legal implications None directly arising from this report. 
Contact officer: Peter Lewis,   Peter.Lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk,     
01684 272695 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None directly arising from this report.    
Contact officer:   Julie McCarthy ,   
 julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264355 

Page 6



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 3 of 12 Last updated 12 June 2012 
 

Key risks As outlined in Appendix 1. 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Key elements of the budget are aimed at delivering the corporate 
objectives in the Corporate Business Plan. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None. 

 
1. Background 
1.1 This report draws together the financial outturn position for 2011/12 for the General Fund and 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) revenue and capital budgets, details reserve movements, 
summarises requests for carry forward of budgets approved by the Section 151 Officer under 
delegated powers and those requiring member approval and makes recommendations in respect 
of the use of the underspend.  

1.2 In accordance with financial rule A11.3, the Section 151 Officer is responsible for providing 
regular reports to the Cabinet on the Council’s finances and financial performance. 

1.3 A summary of the actual General Fund outturn position by service, including the business change 
and planned maintenance programmes, is contained in Appendix 2.  

1.4 A summary of the outturn position by cost centre within each service is contained in Appendix 3. 
Information is presented both in the format normally used in cabinet and council papers and also 
in Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) format used in the preparation of the final 
accounts which requires under / overspends on support services cost centres to be charged to 
end user cost centres. 

1.5 Details of the transactions in respect of capital charges are contained in Appendix 4. 
2. General Fund Revenue Outturn 2011/12 
2.1 The budget monitoring report to the end of August 2011 projected an overspend for the year of 

£476,400. As a result of that projection, officers were instructed to reduce spend on supplies and 
services to essentials for the remainder of the financial year. 

2.2 This measure enabled the Council to address the potential in year budget deficit and deliver a 
revised balanced budget which did not require a contribution from general balances.  

2.3 At a meeting of Cabinet on 17th April 2012, members noted the provisional revenue outturn 
position for 2011/12 which highlighted a number of areas of potential budget savings. Projections 
at the time suggested that, after allowing for expected carry forwards, services were likely to be 
delivered within budget, resulting in a potential net budget saving of £302,700 against the revised 
budget for 2011/12. 

2.4 It is pleasing to report that despite an exceptionally difficult economic climate, the Council has 
delivered services within the resources available, resulting in a budget saving, after carry forward 
request, of £149,777.  This figure represents roughly quarter of one percent of the Council’s total 
gross budget, showing how robust the Council’s financial management is. The savings and under 
spends have been transferred to the ‘Carry Forward’ reserve pending decisions over its use in 
2012/13.   

Page 7



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 4 of 12 Last updated 12 June 2012 
 

2.5 A number of savings are the result of delays or slippage in carrying out particular tasks which are 
still necessary and will need to be completed in the 2012/13 financial year. Where this applies, 
requests for carry forwards are documented in Appendix 7 to this report 

2.6 A full explanation of all variances that exceed £50,000 is contained within Appendix 6. 
3. Making use of revenue budget savings 

Combating homelessness 
3.1 The Cabinet is asked to recommend to Council that some of the budget savings from 2011/12 

should be directed to addressing the problems of rough sleepers, one of the most vulnerable 
categories of homeless people in the town. 

3.2 In April 2012, the then Cabinet Member for Finance and Community Development made a 
decision to give a grant of £21,800 to Cheltenham Housing Aid Centre (CHAC) to fund an 
Assertive Outreach Service, through which trained workers would go out into the streets to find 
rough sleepers and give them the support they need.  This was to fill a gap in our services 
identified in our Housing and Homelessness Strategy 2012-17. 

3.3 The £21,800 grant was found from a budget saving which the Council had made when the advice 
and inclusion contract was tendered, and was enough to pay for the first year of what was 
envisaged as a three-year contract.  The Cabinet is now asked to recommend Council to allocate 
a further £43,600 to this service from the 2011/12 revenue budget savings, so that the full three 
years can be funded without putting extra pressure on the revenue budget. 

3.4 The number of people who are sleeping rough at any given time in Cheltenham is relatively small, 
but they tend to be people with very complex needs, frequently including mental health problems 
and drug and alcohol addictions.  They need intensive support if they are to get back on their feet, 
but in many cases all previous attempts by the public services to help them have failed. 

3.5 CHAC was chosen to provide the Assertive Outreach Service because they have a track record of 
helping rough sleepers and the right knowledge and experience to do this very challenging job.   
Making recycling easier for residents 

3.6 There has been a large increase in demand for recycling boxes since fortnightly residual waste 
collections were introduced.  An increased level of demand is likely to continue, beyond the 
capacity of the existing revenue budget provision to meet it.  It is therefore proposed that £43,900 
of the 2011/12 budget savings should be invested in providing recycling boxes and bins.  £37,600 
of this will be allocated to buying additional recycling boxes.  The remaining £6,300 will meet extra 
demand for bins from householders and may also be used to fund new communal bins.  
Strengthening the Planning Appeals Reserve 

3.7 The Council is likely to have to fight a number of potentially expensive appeals by developers who 
wish to challenge our planning policies at a time when the National Planning Policy Framework is 
still relatively new and our Joint Core Strategy is still taking shape.  The Cabinet is therefore 
asked to recommend that Council contributes £62,277 from the 2011/12 budget savings, together 
with a further £15,000 from carry-forwards, to strengthen our Planning Appeals Reserve. 

4. Budget carry forward requests 
4.1 At the year end, a number of budget holders requested ‘carry forward’ of unspent budgets. 

Requests fall into two categories and have been dealt with as follows: 

Page 8



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 5 of 12 Last updated 12 June 2012 
 

4.2 Some requests are in respect of goods and services ordered but not received by 31st March 2012 
or relate to items of expenditure not yet incurred but still planned to be spent in line with the 
original intention of the budget resulting mainly from slippage in work programmes. In line with 
previous practice, these have been reviewed by the Senior Leadership Team (SLT) and approved 
by the Section 151 Officer, under delegated powers (financial rule B10.1). A list of the approved 
carry forward of budgets totalling £955,800, for which expenditure is in line with the original 
approved purpose, is contained in Appendix 7. In accordance with the Service Reporting Code of 
Practice (SeRCOP), a transfer was made to a ‘carry forward’ reserve in 2011/12 (Appendix 8) and 
transfers will be made from the ‘carry forward’ reserve in 2012/13 to the appropriate cost centres 
in order that members and officers have a clear indication of the total budget, including carry 
forwards, available for 2012/13.  

4.3 Some requests have been made to carry forward an underspend to be used in a different way to 
that for which the budget was originally intended. Since this falls outside the budget set by 
Council in February 2011, their alternative use requires council approval (financial rule B10.3). 
The list contained in Appendix 7, totalling £214,700, has been reviewed and supported by the 
Senior Leadership Team and now requires council approval. 

5. Treasury Management 
5.1 Treasury Management in Local Government is governed by the CIPFA Code of Practice on 

Treasury Management in the Public Services and this Council has adopted the code and 
complies with its requirements, one of which is the receipt by Cabinet and Council of an Annual 
Review Report after the financial year end. 

5.2 A summary of the financial implications of the transactions in respect of interest and investment 
income are contained in Appendix 5. 

5.3 The detailed treasury report, including the current assessment of the implications of the Council’s 
exposure to Icelandic banks, as approved by the Treasury Management Panel at its meeting on 
13th June 2012, is attached at Appendix 9.  The key points are highlighted below: 

5.4 Icelandic Banks  
The Council has outstanding loans with the Icelandic owned banks Glitnir, Landsbanki and 
Kaupthing, Singer & Freidlander (KSF).  

5.5 Since the decision was made by the Icelandic Supreme Court that Local Authority wholesale 
depositors are considered preferential creditors, both the Landsbanki and Glitnir Winding up 
Boards have made repayments to the Council, with further amounts expected in the future.  

5.6 On the 17th February 2012 the Council received £1.508 million from Landsbanki as a first 
instalment, which was around 30% of the outstanding claim. A further 2% of the first instalment is 
being held in Icelandic Krona (ISK) in an escrow account. It had been expected that 98p in the 
pound would be recovered, although this has recently been upgraded to full recovery (ie.100%). A 
second distribution was recently made in May 2012 which was received in sterling. This 
amounted to 12p in the pound bringing the total to 42p in the pound returned to date. Future 
distribution payments are likely to occur over the coming years. 

5.7 On the 15th March 2012 the Council received £2.633 million from the Winding up Board of Glitnir. 
This equated to 81% of the overall claim. The remaining 19%, which we also expect to recover, is 
being held in Icelandic Krona (ISK) in an escrow account. We are awaiting further information on 
the distribution of this amount. 

5.8 Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander is estimated to repay between 81p to 86p in the pound. As at 31st 
March 2012, 63p in the pound had been recovered. In May 2012 a further 10p in the pound was 
distributed to authorities bringing the recovery rate to 73%.   

Page 9



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 6 of 12 Last updated 12 June 2012 
 

5.9 As explained in previous budget monitoring reports, the receipt from Glitnir will be used to repay 
the borrowing taken out when the original losses were capitalised, using the Capitalisation 
Direction received in 2009/10.  This will reduce borrowing repayments (Minimum Revenue 
Provision) by £120,000 per annum from 2012/13 and has been built into the base budget in 
2012/13.   

5.10 The Landsbanki repayment received does not have any budget implications as the Council had in 
this case already assumed priority status would be achieved, in line with the view taken by that 
bank’s winding up board.  For the 2010/11 accounts the Council had assumed a recovery rate of 
94.85% for these deposits, based on the best available information at the time.  If 100%, is 
ultimately received this would result in a further credit to revenue of £100-150,000. Used to repay 
the borrowing, this would reduce budgeted repayments by £5-7,000 per annum, from 2012/13.  

5.11 Treasury Management Activity  
There is a predicted surplus of interest of £10,454 to report on Treasury Management for 
2011/12. The General Fund (GF) is £32,618 favourable against the 2011/12 revised budget while 
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is £22,164 adverse against the revised budget.          

5.12 The Council’s borrowing costs for 2011/12 amounted to £1,223,606 against the revised budget of 
£1,216,700, a deficit of £6,906. Exchange rate losses on Icelandic distributions received in 
2011/2012 amounted to £9,303 was the major reason for this variance.  

5.13 The Council’s investment income for 2011/12 was £189,860 compared to a revised estimate of 
£172,500, a surplus of £17,360. Cash resources improved in 2011/12 due to the return of some 
Icelandic deposits, ensuring a higher return of interest from the Business Call Accounts, due to 
extending the length of time the deposits could remain in them.          
 

6. High Street Innovation Fund grant 
6.1 In March 2012, the Department of Communities and Local Government announced that £10 

million had been earmarked as a High Street Innovation Fund to help revive high street retail 
across the country.  £100,000 of this money was allocated to Cheltenham Borough Council. 

6.2 The Department stated in its letter to the Council dated 30 March 2012 that: “The fund has two 
purposes – to support empty properties on our high streets, and those areas affected by the riots.”  
Since the second of these aims is obviously not relevant to Cheltenham, it is clear that the 
Government expects us to spend this money on strategies and programmes that will help to fill 
empty properties.   

6.3 The Council has discretion over how to spend its Innovation Fund grant.  However, the 
Government states that it envisages the funding being used to support business rate discounts for 
new start-up businesses taking on empty properties.  It also recommends that councils should 
encourage “innovative local approaches to managing and revitalizing high streets” including 
programmes to improve local skills. 
This being the case, it is recommended that the money should be spent as follows: 
£65,000 – roughly two thirds of the total – should be allocated to funding business rate 
discounts for new business start-ups taking on empty properties.  Clearly, this is a relatively 
modest sum of money which, if it is to be effective, will need to be targeted at the areas where it 
can have the greatest impact.  The Cabinet Member for Finance will therefore be bringing forward 
a detailed policy to allocate this money, so that potential businesses will know whether and to 
what extent they can benefit.  We hope that the impact of the scheme will be increased by 
landlords offering to match-fund the discounts or help start-up businesses in other ways.   
 

Page 10



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 7 of 12 Last updated 12 June 2012 
 

£20,000 should be allocated for skills training to help new and existing businesses, by 
providing Skillsmart retail workshops. Skillsmart is the National Skills Academy for retail who 
have previously delivered valuable training in the town. The training is likely to focus upon two key 
areas: (i) improving customer service skills amongst front line employees in small and medium 
sized retailers and (ii) supporting retailers with specific skills, knowledge and tools – specifically 
buying and visual merchandising; building sales through marketing; and retail business planning 
and finance. It is anticipated that a similar training programme will be offered in the City of 
Gloucester thereby securing economies of scale. The LEP (Local Enterprise Partnership) has 
been approached for additional support through their retail pathfinder status. Part of the wider 
picture will be stimulating retail apprenticeship opportunities through links with Gloucestershire 
College and Gloucestershire Media group who have run extremely successful apprenticeship 
campaigns. 
  

• £9,000 to provide cameras to measure footfall in different parts of the town centre.  
Formerly this data was captured by a system funded by Gloucestershire County Council at a cost 
of approximately £8500pa but was withdrawn as part of budget savings. The proposal is to 
expand the system already deployed by key retail centres in the town and then with the addition 
of some extra counting points create a system for the whole town centre. Footfall cameras have a 
wide range of uses including calculating customer dwell times; monitoring the effectiveness of 
marketing campaigns; and measuring the impacts of festivals and other one-off events. In 
addition retailers can undertake more prescriptive studies such as individual store counting and 
analysis. The data gathered can help businesses monitor trends in visitor/customer behaviour so 
that they use their marketing budgets more effectively, and help the Council develop policies that 
will promote retail business in the town. The cost identified is a one-off installation cost which will 
require annual maintenance and software licence costs of £1500 pa. Retailers are keen to see 
this solution implemented. 

 
• £6,000 to fund the design stage of a project to renew and improve the signage for visitors 

in the town.  This was identified as a need in the Council’s Tourism and Marketing Strategy, and 
could deliver significant benefit to the retail and hospitality industries in the town, especially those 
located outside the core town centre commercial zone. Representatives of the retail sector have 
welcomed this proposal. 

 
In the course of internal discussions and consultations with the business community about ways 
of supporting high street businesses, a number of other ideas have been suggested, including: 

• Joint promotions by Cheltenham Borough Council and Gloucester City Councils.  The aim 
would be to identify three unique events every year in each town that do not clash and could be 
promoted jointly.  Gloucester City Council is eager to explore this and it would provide a positive 
platform for further cross town initiatives. 

 
• Information packs for visitors arriving in the town by coach, providing useful guidance to 
visitors and shoppers, possibly including incentives.  

 
• A window display competition, aimed at raising that standard of shop window displays, 
possibly run jointly with local media.  

 
It is possible that these proposals could be taken forward with funding from other budgets, or that 
funding could be sought from the Promoting Cheltenham Fund or other sources. 

7. Reserves 
7.1 The Section 151 Officer has, under delegated powers (financial rule B11.4), authority to make 

transfers to and from these operational reserves in accordance with the intention of the reserve as 
determined by the Council’s Reserves Policy and Protocol. The transfers approved by the Section 
151 Officer for 2011/12 are set out in the Use of Reserves and Balances schedule at Appendix 8. 

Page 11



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 8 of 12 Last updated 12 June 2012 
 

7.2 Appendix 10 details the reserves held by the Council, states their purpose and indicates the 
balance at 31st March 2012. In setting the budget for 2012/13 a review of reserves was 
undertaken with a view to assessing whether the levels were appropriate, in line with the policy for 
reserves and balances, and taking into account the needs and risks of the organisation and the 
prevailing economic conditions. At the year end this process has been repeated.  

7.3 An assessment of the Council’s other earmarked reserves has been made in line with the 
fiduciary duty of the Section 151 Officer at the year end. Accepting that there are still some areas 
of uncertainty, the level of reserves appears adequate at this point in time and no other changes 
are currently recommended. 

7.4 The level of maximum individual reserve balances were reviewed in February 2012, as part of the 
budget setting process. At 31st March 2012, most reserves are within these specific maximum 
levels. 

7.5 It is important to understand and consider that there is an opportunity cost in maintaining 
reserves. Members will be aware that reserves exist for specific ‘earmarked’ and valid purposes 
which are regularly reviewed. Over time, it is anticipated that these reserves will be used for the 
purpose for which they were set aside. Hence the opportunity cost of holding these reserves at 
existing or slightly above existing levels is either justified or insignificant.  

7.6 At the year end, the General Fund Balance stands at £2.253m and therefore remains above the 
minimum range of £1.5m to £2m recommended by the Section 151 Officer. Given the continued 
prevailing economic conditions and the pressure on the current and future year’s revenue 
budgets, it is recommended that this should not be reduced. 

8. Capital Outturn 2011/12 
8.1 The outturn position in respect of General Fund capital is contained in Appendix 11. Members are 

asked to note the outturn position and, where there is slippage, approve the carry forwards into 
2012/13 requested by officers. 

9. Section 106 receipts 
9.1 A position statement in respect of the activity of Section 106 receipts is contained in Appendix 12.  
9.2 The following summarises the activity in respect of Section 106 for 2011/12, compared to 

2010/11. 
31/3/11 £        31/3/12 £ 

Balance of unused Section 106 receipts     279,582                  289,316 
Net additional receipts in year                55,363                   144,186 
Receipts used to finance projects in year                (45,629)                 (33,508) 
Balance outstanding at year end      289,316                 399,994 

10. Council tax and business rates collection 
10.1 The monitoring report for the collection of council tax and business rates (NNDR) income is 

shown in Appendix 13. This shows the position at the end of March 2012. 
 
 

Page 12



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 9 of 12 Last updated 12 June 2012 
 

11. Sundry debt collection 
11.1 The monitoring report for the collection of sundry debt income is shown in Appendix 14. This 

shows the position at the end of March 2012. 
 

12. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
12.1 HRA income and expenditure  

The revised estimates for the Housing Revenue Account anticipated a deficit of £961,400 which 
would reduce revenue reserves to £2,711,800. The outturn statement, at Appendix 15, shows a 
deficit for the year of £570,433, an overall positive variance of £390,967 which will leave revenue 
reserves at year end at £3,102,799.  
 
This positive variance arose primarily from: 
• lower revenue funding of capital expenditure required (£320,968) 
• reduction in the need to provide for bad debts (£44,310) 
• increased income from service charges (£22,729) 
• savings in management costs (£34,039) 
Partially offset by the additional contributions to the housing repairs account (£21,246) as 
detailed in paragraph 12.2 

12.2 Housing repairs account  
The Council keeps a separate Housing Repairs Account (shown at Appendix 16) that assists in 
smoothing out peaks and troughs in the need for responsive repairs. Total costs on this account 
exceeded the budget of £3,953,000 by £21,246 which is not considered significant given the 
demand led nature of the expenditure.  

12.3 HRA Capital Programme 
As shown at Appendix 17, actual expenditure totalled £4.740m, a reduction of £249,000 when 
compared to the revised estimate of £4.989m. This variation was identified in the February 2012 
monitoring report and arises from savings in two projects namely: 
• The transformational improvement programme at St Paul’s 
• Water mains renewal 

13. Prudential Indicators 
13.1 At its meeting in February 2011, the Council set the prudential indicators for 2011/12 to comply 

with the prudential code. A summary of the prudential indicators for the year is contained in 
Appendix 18. 

13.2 The prudential indicators have been monitored regularly and there were no material departures 
from the indicators arising during the year. The outturn indicators are reported to Cabinet and 
Council as part of the capital and treasury management outturn in accordance with the 
arrangements determined at the February 2011 council meeting.  

13.3 The outturn position for 2011/12 has, in some cases, had an impact on prudential indicators for 
2012/13 where there is slippage and carry forward of spend. As a result some revisions to the 

Page 13



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 10 of 12 Last updated 12 June 2012 
 

prudential indicators for 2012/13, approved by Council in February 2012, have been made. These 
are marked with an asterisk in Appendix 18 and require member approval. 

14. 2012/13 Revenue and Capital budget monitoring to May 2012  
14.1 Due to the pressures of the year end process and the rollout of a new Enterprise Resource 

Planning (ERP) system, a detailed monitoring exercise has not been undertaken at this point in 
the year. However, no significant variances have been identified by service managers at this 
stage.  

 
15. Section 151 Officer advice 
15.1 The Government expects councils to make a significant contribution to reducing the level of public 

debt and the Council can expect to continue to face a significant public sector funding squeeze 
over the next few years. Future budgets are likely to contain some difficult decisions and may 
require some sources of ‘one off’ finance to enable savings to be delivered through cost / staffing 
reductions. In this situation, any opportunity to fund future investment requirements from one off 
sources rather than impacting on future year’s budgets should be taken. 

15.2 In agreeing the recommendations, members need to be mindful of the prevailing challenging 
financial climate and in view of the budget pressures already potentially facing the Council in the 
current year, to ensure that any carry forwards recommended for approval (even those for which 
the Section 151 Officer has the delegation to approve) are the most effective use of scarce 
resources. 

16. Conclusion 
16.1 The outturn position for 2011/12 demonstrates that, despite another challenging year, the Council 

managed to turn a projected overspend of £476k into a modest underspend, which demonstrates 
that we continue to maintain a strong and consistent track record of the management of services 
within budgets. There are no significant ‘unexpected’ overspends or under spends in 2011/12 
which demonstrates that budget monitoring arrangements remain strong. 

16.2 If approved, some of the carry forward requests will assist in the delivery of corporate objectives, 
help to complete projects started in 2011/12 and support initiatives which help to bridge the 
medium term funding gap.  

16.3 Members should note that the outturn position will be used to prepare the Statement of Accounts 
for approval by the Audit Committee. 

17. Consultation 
17.1 Appropriate members and officers were consulted in the process of preparing the outturn position 

and associated reports and accounts. 

Report author Contact officer: Paul Jones, Head of Financial Services     
paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 775154 

Page 14



 

   

Financial outturn 2010/11 Page 11 of 12 Last updated 12 June 2012 
 

Appendices 1. Risk assessment 
2. Summary outturn performance position - General Fund 
3. Service level outturn performance position - General Fund 
4. Capital charges 
5. Interest and investment income 
6. Significant variances 
7. Carry forward requests 
8. Use of balances and reserves 
9. Treasury outturn 
10. Movement on earmarked reserves and general balances 
11. Capital programme - General Fund 
12. Section 106 receipts statement 
13. Council tax and NNDR collection 
14. Sundry debt collection 
15. HRA Operating account 
16. HRA Housing repairs account 
17. HRA Capital programme 
18. Prudential indicators 

Background information 1. Section 25 Report – Council 11th February 2011  
2. Final Budget Proposals for 2011/12 – Council 11h February 2011 
 

 

Page 15



 

$au05sidh.doc Page 12 of 12 Last updated 12 June 
2012 

 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1.. Historically, the council 
has used in year 
savings to fund one off 
growth / new initiatives. 
As a result of budgets 
getting tighter, there 
may be a reduced 
likelihood of in year 
savings being delivered 
resulting in potentially 
increased pressure on 
the General Reserve to 
fund growth / new 
initiatives over the 
period of the MTFS. 

Director 
Resources 

December 
2010 

4 3 12 Reduce Future capital 
receipts may be 
needed to increase 
the size of the 
General Reserve. 

on-going Director 
Resources 
(working 
with SLT) 

 

 

P
age 16



AP
PE

ND
IX
 2

GE
NE

RA
L F

UN
D 
RE

VE
NU

E 
OU

TT
UR

N 
20

11
/12

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

20
11

/12
20

11
/12

20
11

/12
ov

er
sp

en
d /

 
C/
F r

eq
ue

sts
Va

ria
nc

e
C/
F r

eq
ue

sts
Va

ria
nc

e
GR

OU
P

Or
igi

na
l

Re
vis

ed
Ou

ttu
rn

(u
nd

er
sp

en
d)

Tr
f t
o /

 (f
ro
m)

ap
pr
ov

ed
 by

ne
t o

f S
15

1
to 

be
 ap

pr
ov

ed
 

ne
t o

f a
ll 

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

pe
r L

ed
ge

r
be

for
e a

dju
stm

en
ts

Re
se

rv
es

S1
51

 O
ffic

er
c/f

 ap
pr
ov

als
Me

mb
er
s

c/f
 re

qu
es

ts
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
7

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

7
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

St
rat

eg
ic 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt
(16

,45
0)

(11
,05

0)
(26

,88
8)

(15
,83

8)
(15

,83
8)

(15
,83

8)
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

2,9
42

,80
0

2,8
76

,45
0

2,6
87

,64
6

(18
8,8

04
)

(5,
11

3)
13

1,9
00

(62
,01

8)
(62

,01
8)

Bu
ilt 

En
vir

on
me

nt
1,1

66
,85

0
1,0

72
,96

6
45

5,2
65

(61
7,7

01
)

14
6,8

94
36

3,2
00

(10
7,6

07
)

30
,00

0
(77

,60
7)

Re
so
urc

es
1,3

40
,65

0
1,5

86
,65

0
1,4

46
,66

9
(13

9,9
81

)
58

,44
4

17
6,2

00
94

,66
4

8,0
00

10
2,6

64
W

ell
be

ing
 an

d C
ult

ure
4,6

72
,20

0
4,5

91
,45

0
4,4

43
,16

0
(14

8,2
90

)
18

,98
7

21
,00

0
(10

8,3
03

)
25

,00
0

(83
,30

3)
Op

era
tio

ns
4,7

93
,50

0
4,8

43
,00

0
4,7

97
,49

9
(45

,50
1)

(31
,62

0)
36

,80
0

(40
,32

1)
10

,00
0

(30
,32

1)
Pr
og

ram
me

d M
ain

ten
an

ce
 (R

ev
en

ue
)

48
2,1

00
58

8,4
00

42
8,2

12
(16

0,1
88

)
16

1,0
00

81
2

81
2

Bu
sin

es
s C

ha
ng

e
73

4,8
00

99
9,9

00
62

8,2
51

(37
1,6

49
)

22
6,7

00
(14

4,9
49

)
14

1,7
00

(3,
24

9)
Ta

rge
t s

av
ing

s
(48

0,0
00

)
(69

,65
0)

0
69

,65
0

69
,65

0
69

,65
0

Ba
d d

eb
t p

rov
isi
on

40
,00

0
40

,00
0

31
,43

0
(8,

57
0)

(8,
57

0)
(8,

57
0)

0
0

15
,67

6,4
50

16
,51

8,1
16

14
,89

1,2
44

(1,
62

6,8
72

)
34

8,5
92

95
5,8

00
(32

2,4
80

)
21

4,7
00

(10
7,7

80
)

Ca
pit

al 
Ch

arg
es
 - A

pp
en

dix
 4

(2,
09

7,6
00

)
62

0,5
00

62
0,5

42
42

42
42

Int
ere

st 
an

d I
nv

es
tm

en
t In

co
me

 - A
pp

en
dix

 5
52

1,8
00

59
7,2

00
54

,07
5

(54
3,1

25
)

(41
,90

6)
(41

,90
6)

Us
e o

f b
ala

nc
es
 an

d r
es
erv

es
 - A

pp
en

dix
 8

17
3,6

43
(2,

99
0,0

24
)

(1,
18

4,4
13

)
1,8

05
,61

1
0

Ar
ea

 B
as
ed

 G
ran

t
0

(18
0,4

24
)

(18
0,4

24
)

0
0

0
Ne

w 
Ho

me
s B

on
us

0
(29

0,2
75

)
(29

0,2
66

)
9

9
9

Ne
t u

nd
ers

pe
nd

36
4,4

77
NE

T 
BU

DG
ET

14
,27

4,2
93

14
,27

5,0
93

14
,27

5,2
36

De
du

ct:
Re

ve
nu

e S
up

po
rt G

ran
t

(1,
43

9,9
27

)
(1,

43
9,9

27
)

(1,
43

9,9
27

)
0

0
0

Na
tio

na
l N

on
-D

om
es
tic

 R
ate

(4,
65

8,4
05

)
(4,

65
8,4

05
)

(4,
65

8,4
06

)
-1

(1)
(1)

Co
lle
cti

on
 Fu

nd
 C
on

trib
uti

on
(59

,50
0)

(59
,50

0)
(59

,45
5)

45
45

45
NE

T 
SP

EN
D 
FU

ND
ED

 B
Y 
CO

UN
CI
L T

AX
(8,

11
6,4

61
)

(8,
11

7,2
61

)
(8,

11
7,4

48
)

-18
7

(18
7)

(18
7)

TO
TA

L I
NC

OM
E

(14
,27

4,2
93

)
(14

,27
5,0

93
)

(14
,27

5,2
36

)
To

tal
 bu

dg
et 

un
de

rs
pe

nd
(36

4,4
77

)
(14

9,7
77

)

KE
Y

A 
- O

rig
ina

l b
ud

ge
t fo

r 2
01

1/1
2 a

pp
rov

ed
 by

 C
ou

nc
il -

 Fe
bru

ary
 20

11
B 
- R

ev
ise

d b
ud

ge
t fo

r 2
01

1/1
2 -

 in
clu

din
g b

ud
ge

t re
vis

ion
s a

pp
rov

ed
 by

 C
ou

nc
il d

uri
ng

 20
11

/12
an

d a
pp

rov
ed

 ca
rry

 fo
rw

ard
s f

rom
 20

10
/11

C 
- O

utt
urn

 ne
t e

xp
en

dit
ure

 be
for

e y
ea

r e
nd

 ad
jus

tm
en

ts
D 
- O

pe
rat

ion
al 

tra
ns

fer
s t

o /
 (fr

om
) r
es
erv

es
 ap

pro
ve
d b

y t
he

 D
ire

cto
r o

f R
es
ou

rce
s u

nd
er 

de
leg

ate
d p

ow
ers

 - A
pp

en
dix

 8
E 
- C

arr
y f

orw
ard

 re
qu

es
ts 

ap
pro

ve
d b

y t
he

 D
ire

cto
r o

f R
es
ou

rce
s u

nd
er 

de
leg

ate
d p

ow
ers

 - A
pp

en
dix

 7
F -

 N
et 

va
ria

nc
e a

fte
r a

dju
stm

en
ts 

in 
co

lum
ns

 D
 to

 E
G 

- C
arr

y f
orw

ard
 re

qu
es
ts 

req
uir

ing
 M

em
be

r a
pp

rov
al 

- A
pp

en
dix

 7
H 
- N

et 
va
ria

nc
e o

n c
os
t c

en
tre

s t
ak
ing

 in
to 

ac
co

un
t a

ll c
arr

y f
orw

ard
 re

qu
es
ts 

- s
ee

 de
tai

l a
t A

pp
en

dix
 3

Page 17



Page 18
This page is intentionally left blank



SE
RV

IC
E 

LE
VE

L 
O

UT
TU

RN
 P

ER
FO

RM
AN

CE
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N 
20

11
-1

2
AP

PE
ND

IX
 3

 

(U
nd

er)
 /

(U
nd

er)
 /

SO
A 
-C
od

e
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Tr
an

sfe
rs

Ad
jus

ted
Ov

ers
pe

nd
IAS

19
Ad

jus
ted

RE
VE

NU
E 

O
UT

TU
RN

 2
01

1/
12

Bu
dg

et
Re

vis
ed

Ac
tua

l
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to 

(fr
om

)
Ca

rry
(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

Co
de

 / I
FR

S
Pe

ns
ion

Se
RC

OP
(U
nd

er)
 /

Bo
ok

 11
/12

Bu
dg

et 
11

/12
20

11
/12

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
es

Fo
rw

ard
s

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ad

jus
tm

en
ts

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ov
ers

pe
nd

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

BU
ILT

 EN
VIR

ON
ME

NT
 D
21

80
0

Ch
elt
en

ha
m 
Str

ate
gic

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

10
,20

0
21

,90
0

17
,89

7
(4,

00
3)

3,2
00

(80
3)

(4,
00

3)
(4,

00
3)

 B5
11

40
Str

ate
gic

 Pl
an

nin
g

16
8,9

00
17

7,4
00

16
9,5

67
(7,

83
3)

(7,
83

3)
(7,

83
3)

(7,
83

3)
 B5

11
45

Jo
int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y

0
7,3

00
3,6

33
(3,

66
7)

3,6
67

0
(3,

66
7)

(3,
66

7)

 D
34

30
0

To
wn

 C
en

tre
 M
an

ag
em

en
t

29
,50

0
32

,10
0

32
,10

0
0

0
0

0
 D
34

40
0

Bu
sin

es
s &

 Ec
on

om
ic 
De

ve
lop

me
nt

14
3,8

00
24

3,9
06

10
6,8

74
(13

7,0
32

)
13

9,4
00

2,3
68

(13
7,0

32
)

(13
7,0

32
)

 D
21

25
0

Civ
il E

me
rge

nc
y P

lan
nin

g
24

3,0
50

20
8,9

60
17

2,2
05

(36
,75

5)
32

,40
1

40
0

(3,
95

4)
(36

,75
5)

(36
,75

5)
 E2

14
00

Sh
op

mo
bil
ity
 Sc

he
me

92
,35

0
83

,05
0

83
,09

2
42

42
42

42
 E1

11
10

Ch
elt
en

ha
m 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l F
un

d
0

14
9,2

00
34

,32
7

(11
4,8

73
)

11
4,6

00
(27

3)
(11

4,8
73

)
(11

4,8
73

)

 E7
25

00
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

Div
isi
on

12
7,6

00
(1,

00
0)

(35
,11

2)
(34

,11
2)

30
,00

0
(4,

11
2)

(34
,11

2)
(34

,11
2)

 B5
11

20
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Co
ntr

ol
58

9,3
00

53
8,7

00
54

8,0
37

9,3
37

9,3
37

9,3
37

9,3
37

 B5
23

00
Bu

ild
ing

 C
on

tro
l

60
,60

0
98

,40
0

64
,34

7
(34

,05
3)

(34
,05

3)
(34

,05
3)

(34
,05

3)
 B5

11
30

Co
ns
erv

ati
on

91
,70

0
10

4,0
00

10
4,0

00
0

0
0

0
 B5

11
60

Civ
ic 
Pr
ide

28
2,4

00
31

0,3
00

18
9,5

75
(12

0,7
25

)
11

1,5
00

(9,
22

5)
(12

0,7
25

)
(12

0,7
25

)
 D
21

60
0

La
nd

 C
ha

rge
s

(31
,65

0)
(75

,05
0)

(96
,51

0)
(21

,46
0)

34
,40

0
12

,94
0

(21
,46

0)
(21

,46
0)

 E2
21

00
Ch

elt
 R
ive

r &
 W

ate
r C

ou
rse

s
16

0,7
00

15
7,3

00
15

6,2
60

(1,
04

0)
60

0
(44

0)
(1,

04
0)

(1,
04

0)

 E2
11

50
Bu

s S
tat

ion
 - R

oy
al 
W
ell

10
,60

0
11

,50
0

12
,29

0
79

0
79

0
79

0
79

0
 E2

21
50

CB
C 
Fu

nd
ed

 H
igh

wa
y W

ork
s

92
,60

0
98

,50
0

95
,50

3
(2,

99
7)

(17
8)

(3,
17

4)
(2,

99
7)

(2,
99

7)
 E2

11
00

Ca
r P

ark
s -

 O
ff S

tre
et

(1,
65

0,1
00

)
(1,

81
3,4

00
)

(1,
82

6,1
64

)
(12

,76
4)

(49
6)

10
,90

0
(2,

36
0)

(12
,76

4)
(12

,76
4)

 E2
13

00
Re

sid
en

ts 
Pa

rki
ng

 Sc
he

me
s

(20
0)

0
0

0
0

0
 E2

13
00

Re
sid

en
ts 
Pa

rki
ng

 Sc
he

me
s

(20
0)

0
0

0
0

0
 E3

62
00

On
-S
tre

et 
Ca

r P
ark

ing
-E
xte

nd
ed

 Sc
he

me
(1,

00
0)

0
0

0
0

0

 H
22

60
0

Ex
 C
om

mu
nit
y S

erv
ice

s
(10

5,8
00

)
(51

,30
0)

(67
,14

3)
(15

,84
3)

(15
,84

3)
(15

,84
3)

(15
,84

3)
 H
22

26
0

Ho
us
ing

 St
rat

eg
y

26
3,9

00
20

,30
0

20
,30

0
0

0
0

0
 H
22

30
0

Ho
us
ing

 G
ran

ts
12

3,7
00

10
0,0

00
94

,42
3

(5,
57

7)
(5,

57
7)

(5,
57

7)
(5,

57
7)

 H
22

35
0

Su
pp

ort
ing

 Pe
op

le
29

,60
0

15
,90

0
15

,90
0

0
0

0
0

 H
22

40
0

Ho
me

les
s P

ers
on

s
31

6,6
00

30
3,8

00
23

8,4
14

(65
,38

6)
59

,70
0

(5,
68

6)
(65

,38
6)

(65
,38

6)
 H
22

50
0

Co
mm

un
ity
 Al

arm
s

(52
,20

0)
(40

,30
0)

(43
,02

0)
(2,

72
0)

(2,
72

0)
(2,

72
0)

(2,
72

0)
 H
22

22
5

Ho
us
ing

 St
an

da
rds

11
4,6

00
24

3,7
00

23
6,6

70
(7,

03
0)

(7,
03

0)
(7,

03
0)

(7,
03

0)
 H
22

27
0

Ho
us
ing

 En
ab

lin
g/P

art
ne

rsh
ip

56
,10

0
63

,50
0

63
,50

0
0

0
0

1,7
90

,00
0

1,7
90

,00
0

 H
22

55
0

Dis
ab

led
 Fa

cil
itie

s G
ran

ts
0

64
,30

0
64

,30
0

0
0

0
32

0,0
00

32
0,0

00
 H
22

23
0

PS
DH

 gr
an

ts 
/ lo

an
s

0
0

0
0

0
(17

,32
4)

(17
,32

4)

TO
TA

L B
UI
LT

 EN
VIR

ON
ME

NT
1,1

66
,85

0
1,0

72
,96

6
45

5,2
65

(61
7,7

01
)

14
6,8

94
39

3,2
00

(77
,60

7)
(61

7,7
01

)
2,0

92
,67

6
0

0
1,4

74
,97

5

CO
MM

ISS
IO
NI
NG

 D
21

20
0

Co
rpo

rat
e M

an
ag

em
en

t
1,2

48
,90

0
1,0

95
,10

0
1,0

93
,25

0
(1,

85
0)

(1,
85

0)
(1,

85
0)

11
,79

3
9,9

43
 G
50

33
7

Tra
ns
fer

 to
 ac

cu
mu

lat
ed

 ab
se
nc
es
 ac

co
un

t
0

0
0

0
0

0
(11

,79
3)

(11
,79

3)
 D
21

21
5

CP
A C

os
ts

11
,10

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 D
21

22
0

Co
rpo

rat
e S

ub
sc
rip

tio
ns

24
,40

0
23

,70
0

23
,66

2
(38

)
(38

)
(38

)
(38

)

 D
11

70
0

Po
lic
y &

 In
for

ma
tio
n M

an
ag

em
en

t
(92

,70
0)

(12
,10

0)
(36

,06
1)

(23
,96

1)
11

,50
0

(12
,46

1)
(23

,96
1)

(23
,96

1)

Pa
ge

 1 
of 

6

Page 19



SE
RV

IC
E 

LE
VE

L 
O

UT
TU

RN
 P

ER
FO

RM
AN

CE
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N 
20

11
-1

2
AP

PE
ND

IX
 3

 

(U
nd

er)
 /

(U
nd

er)
 /

SO
A 
-C
od

e
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Tr
an

sfe
rs

Ad
jus

ted
Ov

ers
pe

nd
IAS

19
Ad

jus
ted

RE
VE

NU
E 

O
UT

TU
RN

 2
01

1/
12

Bu
dg

et
Re

vis
ed

Ac
tua

l
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to 

(fr
om

)
Ca

rry
(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

Co
de

 / I
FR

S
Pe

ns
ion

Se
RC

OP
(U
nd

er)
 /

Bo
ok

 11
/12

Bu
dg

et 
11

/12
20

11
/12

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
es

Fo
rw

ard
s

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ad

jus
tm

en
ts

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ov
ers

pe
nd

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

 D
11

71
5

Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d M

an
ag

em
en

t o
f S

erv
ice

s
0

14
,80

0
7,4

40
(7,

36
0)

7,3
00

(60
)

(7,
36

0)
(7,

36
0)

 D
11

77
5

Fa
rm

ers
 M
ark

et
90

0
6,3

50
6,1

09
(24

1)
(24

1)
(24

1)
(24

1)
 D
38

70
0

LA
21

28
,90

0
23

,10
0

23
,10

0
0

0
0

0
 D
21

90
0

Eq
ua

l O
pp

ort
un

itie
s

0
1,7

00
(50

5)
(2,

20
5)

(2,
20

5)
(2,

20
5)

(2,
20

5)
 D
21

95
0

Co
mm

un
ity
 Pl

an
nin

g
14

7,4
00

13
5,3

00
13

5,3
00

0
0

0
0

 D
21

97
0

Pa
ris
h P

rid
e

0
51

,40
0

32
,58

1
(18

,81
9)

18
,80

0
(19

)
(18

,81
9)

(18
,81

9)
 D
11

90
0

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
 M
an

ag
em

en
t

(9,
70

0)
(9,

70
0)

(5,
29

0)
4,4

10
4,4

10
4,4

10
4,4

10
 D
12

60
0

Se
rvi
ce
 D
ev
elo

pm
en

t
3,8

00
(11

0,6
00

)
(11

1,2
17

)
(61

7)
(61

7)
(61

7)
(61

7)

 D
12

22
0

Civ
ic 
& M

em
be

r S
erv

ice
s

30
0

40
0

1,7
62

1,3
62

1,3
62

1,3
62

1,3
62

 D
24

10
0

An
ne

cy
0

0
1,5

02
1,5

02
1,5

02
1,5

02
1,5

02
 D
24

15
0

Tw
inn

ing
 Ex

pe
ns
es

27
,00

0
42

,90
0

38
,07

7
(4,

82
3)

(4,
82

3)
(4,

82
3)

(4,
82

3)
 D
24

20
0

Go
ttin

ge
n S

po
rts

 Ex
ch
an

ge
0

0
53

3
53

3
53

3
53

3
53

3
 D
24

22
0

Go
ttin

ge
n V

isi
t/V

isi
tor

s
0

0
60

60
60

60
60

 D
24

23
0

Go
ttin

ge
n B

ig 
Pa

rty
 Vi

sit
0

0
2,5

81
2,5

81
2,5

81
2,5

81
2,5

81
 D
24

83
0

W
eih

ei
0

0
11

7
11

7
11

7
11

7
11

7
 D
22

10
0

Civ
ic 
Ex

pe
ns
es

57
,70

0
60

,60
0

58
,78

9
(1,

81
1)

(1,
81

1)
(1,

81
1)

(1,
81

1)
 D
22

20
0

Civ
ic 
Ca

r
44

,60
0

32
,90

0
34

,21
3

1,3
13

1,3
13

1,3
13

1,3
13

 D
23

01
0

Ho
sp
ita
lity

- s
ma

ll i
tem

s
2,5

00
2,5

00
21

2
(2,

28
8)

(2,
28

8)
(2,

28
8)

(2,
28

8)
 D
23

02
0

Ma
yo
ral

 Su
nd

ay
50

0
50

0
0

(50
0)

(50
0)

(50
0)

(50
0)

 D
23

03
0

Ma
yo
r M

ak
ing

 C
ere

mo
ny

3,0
00

3,0
00

2,9
63

(37
)

(37
)

(37
)

(37
)

 D
23

06
0

Re
me

mb
ran

ce
 Su

nd
ay

3,3
00

3,3
00

2,0
87

(1,
21

3)
(1,

21
3)

(1,
21

3)
(1,

21
3)

 D
23

07
0

Me
da

l o
f H

on
ou

r A
wa

rds
60

0
60

0
25

3
(34

7)
(34

7)
(34

7)
(34

7)
 D
23

09
0

Ba
ttle

 of
 Br

ita
in 
Da

y
1,4

00
1,4

00
1,0

61
(33

9)
(33

9)
(33

9)
(33

9)
 D
23

09
0

Ba
ttle

 of
 Br

ita
in 
Da

y
1,4

00
1,4

00
1,0

61
(33

9)
(33

9)
(33

9)
(33

9)
 D
23

10
0

Ho
sp
ita
lity

 - C
ivi
c G

ifts
70

0
70

0
0

(70
0)

(70
0)

(70
0)

(70
0)

 D
23

20
0

Fe
sti
va
l P

erf
orm

ing
 Ar

ts
24

,40
0

24
,40

0
29

,76
0

5,3
60

5,3
60

5,3
60

5,3
60

 D
23

90
0

Ch
ari

ty 
Ev

en
ts

5,0
00

5,0
00

3,9
83

(1,
01

7)
(1,

01
7)

(1,
01

7)
(1,

01
7)

 D
12

25
0

D.
S.U

.
(26

,90
0)

(15
,00

0)
(13

,56
5)

1,4
35

1,4
35

1,4
35

1,4
35

 D
21

10
0

De
mo

cra
tic
 Pr

oc
es
s

56
5,2

50
51

2,2
50

49
2,7

40
(19

,51
0)

7,0
00

(12
,51

0)
(19

,51
0)

(19
,51

0)
 D
21

15
0

Ca
bin

et 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

80
,10

0
82

,80
0

82
,99

9
19

9
19

9
19

9
19

9
 D
21

19
0

O 
& S

 C
om

mi
tte

es
56

,00
0

64
,90

0
68

,94
6

4,0
46

4,0
46

4,0
46

4,0
46

 D
12

20
0

Le
ga

l S
erv

ice
s

(4,
40

0)
12

,75
0

(34
,46

0)
(47

,21
0)

(47
,21

0)
(47

,21
0)

(47
,21

0)
 D
12

20
5

CB
C 
v. 
La

ird
 C
as
e

0
35

,00
0

40
,11

3
5,1

13
(5,

11
3)

0
5,1

13
5,1

13
 D
21

30
0

Dis
tric

t E
lec

tio
ns

62
,10

0
70

,90
0

84
,12

2
13

,22
2

13
,22

2
13

,22
2

13
,22

2
 D
21

40
0

Ele
cto

ral
 R
eg

ist
rat

ion
20

2,5
00

18
3,0

00
19

1,2
90

8,2
90

8,2
90

8,2
90

8,2
90

 D
21

50
0

Ele
c.R

eg
.O
ve
rhe

ad
s

2,3
50

(10
,75

0)
(12

,72
0)

(1,
97

0)
(1,

97
0)

(1,
97

0)
(1,

97
0)

 D
21

51
0

Co
un

ty 
Co

un
ty 
Ele

cti
on

s
0

0
2,4

00
2,4

00
2,4

00
2,4

00
2,4

00
 D
21

55
0

AV
 R
efe

ren
du

m
0

0
(9,

96
5)

(9,
96

5)
(9,

96
5)

(9,
96

5)
(9,

96
5)

 D
33

95
0

Re
so
urc

e C
en

tre
 (H

old
ing

 Ac
co
un

t)
2,0

00
7,3

00
4,1

81
(3,

11
9)

(3,
11

9)
(3,

11
9)

(3,
11

9)
 D
39

12
0

SL
A-
Gl
os
.R
ac
ial
 Eq

ua
lity

20
,10

0
53

,10
0

47
,05

3
(6,

04
7)

3,2
00

(2,
84

7)
(6,

04
7)

(6,
04

7)
 D
37

10
0

He
ste

rs 
W
ay

47
,50

0
44

,70
0

44
,70

0
0

0
0

0
 D
37

20
0

W
ha

dd
on

75
,80

0
44

,00
0

44
,00

0
0

0
0

0
 D
38

10
0

Co
mm

un
ity
 D
ev
. S

tra
teg

y
91

,90
0

93
,20

0
93

,20
0

0
0

0
0

Pa
ge

 2 
of 

6

Page 20



SE
RV

IC
E 

LE
VE

L 
O

UT
TU

RN
 P

ER
FO

RM
AN

CE
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N 
20

11
-1

2
AP

PE
ND

IX
 3

 

(U
nd

er)
 /

(U
nd

er)
 /

SO
A 
-C
od

e
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Tr
an

sfe
rs

Ad
jus

ted
Ov

ers
pe

nd
IAS

19
Ad

jus
ted

RE
VE

NU
E 

O
UT

TU
RN

 2
01

1/
12

Bu
dg

et
Re

vis
ed

Ac
tua

l
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to 

(fr
om

)
Ca

rry
(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

Co
de

 / I
FR

S
Pe

ns
ion

Se
RC

OP
(U
nd

er)
 /

Bo
ok

 11
/12

Bu
dg

et 
11

/12
20

11
/12

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
es

Fo
rw

ard
s

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ad

jus
tm

en
ts

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ov
ers

pe
nd

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

 D
38

30
0

Ch
elt
. D

isa
bil
ity
 Ac

tio
n

25
0

0
0

0
0

0
 D
38

60
0

Pe
ns
ion

ers
 Fo

rum
25

0
25

0
25

0
0

0
0

0
 D
39

10
0

SL
A-
Cit

ize
ns
 Ad

v. 
Bu

rea
u

16
1,4

00
16

2,4
00

16
1,7

79
(62

1)
(62

1)
(62

1)
(62

1)
 D
39

15
0

SL
A-
CC

AV
A

40
,60

0
67

,00
0

47
,00

0
(20

,00
0)

20
,00

0
0

(20
,00

0)
(20

,00
0)

 D
39

21
0

Sm
all
 G
ran

ts-
Pr
op

ert
y

8,0
00

8,0
00

8,0
00

0
0

0
0

 D
38

85
0

Yo
uth

 Af
fai
rs

24
,00

0
63

,40
0

(73
8)

(64
,13

8)
64

,10
0

(38
)

(64
,13

8)
(64

,13
8)

TO
TA

L C
OM

MI
SS

IO
NI
NG

2,9
42

,80
0

2,8
76

,45
0

2,6
87

,64
6

(18
8,8

04
)

(5,
11

3)
13

1,9
00

(62
,01

8)
(18

8,8
04
)

0
0

0
(18

8,8
04

)

OP
ER

AT
IO
NS

 C
22

10
0

Gr
ee

n E
nv
iro

nm
en

t D
ivi
sio

n
(76

,65
0)

13
,35

0
16

,16
5

2,8
15

2,8
15

2,8
15

2,8
15

 C
23

16
0

En
vir
on

me
nta

l M
ain

ten
an

ce
 D
ivi
sio

n
(10

,40
0)

16
,90

0
(28

,58
7)

(45
,48

7)
(45

,48
7)

(45
,48

7)
(45

,48
7)

 E3
42

00
NP

R 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l M
ain

ten
an

ce
12

7,0
00

82
,30

0
61

,67
7

(20
,62

3)
(20

,62
3)

(20
,62

3)
(20

,62
3)

 C
23

10
0

Re
fus

e C
oll
ec
tio
n

96
3,5

00
1,0

35
,40

0
1,0

77
,23

2
41

,83
2

41
,83

2
41

,83
2

41
,83

2
 C
23

11
0

Str
ee

t C
lea

nin
g

86
4,2

00
75

9,1
00

74
7,9

51
(11

,14
9)

(11
,14

9)
(11

,14
9)

(11
,14

9)
 C
23

12
0

Re
cy
cli
ng

 C
en

tre
/C
A S

ite
27

4,5
00

17
6,7

00
16

2,5
61

(14
,13

9)
20

,00
0

5,8
61

(14
,13

9)
(14

,13
9)

 C
23

12
5

Re
cy
cli
ng

: B
rin

g S
ch
em

es
48

,00
0

39
,90

0
50

,78
1

10
,88

1
10

,88
1

10
,88

1
10

,88
1

 C
23

13
0

Bu
ild
ing

 C
lea

nin
g

12
,80

0
12

,10
0

11
,54

9
(55

1)
(55

1)
(55

1)
(55

1)
 C
23

14
0

Pu
bli
c C

on
ve
nie

nc
es

12
2,1

00
18

0,2
00

16
2,3

57
(17

,84
3)

(17
,84

3)
(17

,84
3)

(17
,84

3)
 C
23

18
0

Re
cy
cli
ng

: C
oll
ec
tio
n S

ch
em

es
40

5,7
50

60
0,6

50
57

4,0
04

(26
,64

6)
12

,00
0

(14
,64

6)
(26

,64
6)

(26
,64

6)
 C
23

19
0

Ga
rde

n C
oll
ec
tio
ns

(21
4,7

00
)

(13
,20

0)
65

,56
1

78
,76

1
78

,76
1

78
,76

1
78

,76
1

 C
24

10
0

Fle
et 

Ma
int
en

an
ce

(2,
50

0)
0

(64
4)

(64
4)

(64
4)

(64
4)

(64
4)

 C
24

10
0

Fle
et 

Ma
int
en

an
ce

(2,
50

0)
0

(64
4)

(64
4)

(64
4)

(64
4)

(64
4)

 C
24

15
0

Fle
et 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt
(47

,30
0)

0
0

0
0

0
0

 C
22

10
5

Ho
us
ing

 Fo
rec

ou
rts

(10
,50

0)
(20

,60
0)

(24
,39

2)
(3,

79
2)

(3,
79

2)
(3,

79
2)

(3,
79

2)
 C
22

11
0

Pa
rks

 & 
Ga

rde
ns

1,1
63

,90
0

96
3,7

00
94

2,3
21

(21
,37

9)
10

,00
0

(11
,37

9)
(21

,37
9)

(21
,37

9)
 C
22

11
5

Gr
as
s V

erg
es

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 C
22

12
0

Sp
ort

s &
 O
pe

n S
pa

ce
s

1,2
08

,10
0

1,1
28

,10
0

1,1
33

,26
8

5,1
68

(31
,62

0)
4,8

00
(21

,65
2)

5,1
68

5,1
68

 C
22

14
0

Nu
rse

ry
(39

,00
0)

(85
,20

0)
(10

3,1
64

)
(17

,96
4)

(17
,96

4)
(17

,96
4)

(17
,96

4)
 C
22

44
0

Gl
ou

ce
ste

r C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il (
Sc

ho
ols

)
4,7

00
(46

,40
0)

(51
,14

1)
(4,

74
1)

(4,
74

1)
(4,

74
1)

(4,
74

1)

TO
TA

L O
PE

RA
TIO

NS
4,7

93
,50

0
4,8

43
,00

0
4,7

97
,49

9
(45

,50
1)

(31
,62

0)
46

,80
0

(30
,32

1)
(45

,50
1)

0
0

0
(45

,50
1)

RE
SO

UR
CE

S
 D
12

30
0

Hu
ma

n R
es
ou

rce
s a

nd
 O
rga

nis
ati
on

 de
ve
lop

me
nt

34
,00

0
9,2

00
(7,

04
1)

(16
,24

1)
17

,00
0

75
9

(16
,24

1)
(16

,24
1)

 D
21

26
0

He
alt
h &

 Sa
fet

y
3,8

00
3,5

00
(77

2)
(4,

27
2)

4,2
00

(72
)

(4,
27

2)
(4,

27
2)

 D
12

31
0

Co
rpo

rat
e T

rai
nin

g
(21

,90
0)

(21
,80

0)
(29

,75
6)

(7,
95

6)
8,0

00
44

(7,
95

6)
(7,

95
6)

 D
12

40
0

Dir
ec
tor

 (R
es
ou

rce
s)

(11
9,4

50
)

92
,15

0
85

,51
9

(6,
63

1)
(6,

63
1)

(6,
63

1)
(6,

63
1)

 D
11

40
0

Au
dit
 & 

As
su
ran

ce
(43

,05
0)

7,1
50

7,4
00

25
0

25
0

25
0

25
0

 D
11

30
0

Fin
an

cia
l S

erv
ice

s
10

,90
0

(43
,50

0)
(64

,21
1)

(20
,71

1)
20

,00
0

(71
1)

(20
,71

1)
(20

,71
1)

 D
12

48
5

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt

(27
,75

0)
(18

,75
0)

(19
,40

2)
(65

2)
(65

2)
(65

2)
(65

2)
 D
12

49
0

Su
nd

ry 
De

bto
rs

(20
0)

32
,80

0
32

,95
5

15
5

15
5

15
5

15
5

 D
32

60
0

Fin
an

cia
l E

xp
en

se
s -

 In
su
ran

ce
s

12
,10

0
(5,

30
0)

(6,
00

9)
(70

9)
(70

9)
(70

9)
(70

9)

Pa
ge

 3 
of 

6

Page 21



SE
RV

IC
E 

LE
VE

L 
O

UT
TU

RN
 P

ER
FO

RM
AN

CE
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N 
20

11
-1

2
AP

PE
ND

IX
 3

 

(U
nd

er)
 /

(U
nd

er)
 /

SO
A 
-C
od

e
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Tr
an

sfe
rs

Ad
jus

ted
Ov

ers
pe

nd
IAS

19
Ad

jus
ted

RE
VE

NU
E 

O
UT

TU
RN

 2
01

1/
12

Bu
dg

et
Re

vis
ed

Ac
tua

l
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to 

(fr
om

)
Ca

rry
(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

Co
de

 / I
FR

S
Pe

ns
ion

Se
RC

OP
(U
nd

er)
 /

Bo
ok

 11
/12

Bu
dg

et 
11

/12
20

11
/12

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
es

Fo
rw

ard
s

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ad

jus
tm

en
ts

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ov
ers

pe
nd

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

 D
32

70
0

Fin
an

cia
l E

xp
en

se
s -

 D
eb

t M
gt/

Ba
nk
 C
ha

rge
s

87
,10

0
84

,80
0

76
,89

3
(7,

90
7)

(7,
90

7)
(7,

90
7)

(7,
90

7)
 D
32

75
0

Pe
ns
ion

 Fu
nd

 Ba
ck
fun

din
g C

on
trib

uti
on

s
1,3

31
,60

0
1,3

31
,60

0
1,3

29
,72

0
(1,

88
0)

(1,
88

0)
(1,

88
0)

(1,
88

0)
 D
33

80
0

Un
iso

n S
po

rts
 & 

So
cia

l C
lub

14
,00

0
14

,40
0

14
,43

7
37

37
37

37
 D
35

10
0

Gl
ou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

 Ai
rpo

rt
(1,

30
0)

37
,20

0
33

,90
2

(3,
29

8)
(3,

29
8)

(3,
29

8)
(3,

29
8)

 H
22

28
0

Ho
us
ing

 Ad
va
nc
es

1,7
00

0
(92

)
(92

)
(92

)
(92

)
(92

)

 D
12

50
0

Pr
op

ert
y S

erv
ice

s D
ivi
sio

n
(7,

85
0)

(10
,15

0)
(23

,86
9)

(13
,71

9)
13

,00
0

(71
9)

(13
,71

9)
(13

,71
9)

 D
21

29
0

As
se
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
lan

0
65

,10
0

65
,10

0
0

0
0

0
 D
30

20
0

Mi
sc
ell
an

eo
us
 Pr

op
ert

ies
 & 

La
nd

(48
4,3

00
)

(41
3,9

00
)

(40
8,5

76
)

5,3
24

(19
,00

4)
(13

,68
0)

5,3
24

5,3
24

 D
30

22
0

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

& R
eg

en
era

tio
n S

ite
s

68
,60

0
78

,90
0

78
,90

0
0

0
0

0
 D
13

10
0

Mu
nic

ipa
l O

ffic
es

17
,20

0
(15

,40
0)

(43
,99

8)
(28

,59
8)

(28
,59

8)
(28

,59
8)

(28
,59

8)
 D
14

10
0

De
po

t B
uil
din

g
5,0

00
(31

,90
0)

(31
,34

8)
55

2
(1,

25
1)

(70
0)

55
2

55
2

 D
30

30
0

W
ar 

Me
mo

ria
ls

6,1
00

7,3
00

3,4
52

(3,
84

8)
(3,

84
8)

(3,
84

8)
(3,

84
8)

 L2
14

00
Sta

nto
n R

oo
m

7,5
00

8,7
00

6,8
19

(1,
88

1)
(1,

88
1)

(1,
88

1)
(1,

88
1)

 L3
22

00
Ch

ris
tm
as
 in
 C
he

lte
nh

am
35

,50
0

46
,70

0
43

,24
5

(3,
45

5)
3,4

00
(55

)
(3,

45
5)

(3,
45

5)

 D
12

45
0

Ca
sh
 R
ec
eip

tin
g /

 Ba
nk
ing

(5,
70

0)
(4,

50
0)

(5,
70

1)
(1,

20
1)

(1,
20

1)
(1,

20
1)

(1,
20

1)
 D
12

45
5

Ca
r P

ark
 In

co
me

 C
oll
ec
tio
n

(4,
30

0)
(5,

00
0)

(9,
89

5)
(4,

89
5)

(4,
89

5)
(4,

89
5)

(4,
89

5)
 D
12

49
5

Cu
sto

me
r S

erv
ice

s A
rea

s
(19

,20
0)

(49
,10

0)
(54

,15
8)

(5,
05

8)
(5,

05
8)

(5,
05

8)
(5,

05
8)

 D
13

12
0

Ce
ntr

al 
Ma

il R
oo

m
(8,

10
0)

(4,
10

0)
(6,

57
1)

(2,
47

1)
(2,

47
1)

(2,
47

1)
(2,

47
1)

 D
13

16
0

Cu
sto

dia
ns
 -M

un
i.B

lds
(4,

20
0)

(7,
10

0)
(11

,32
0)

(4,
22

0)
(4,

22
0)

(4,
22

0)
(4,

22
0)

 D
12

43
0

Ho
us
ing

 & 
CT

 Be
ne

fits
 O
ve
rhe

ad
 a/

c
(32

,60
0)

3,2
00

1,9
51

(1,
24

9)
(1,

24
9)

(1,
24

9)
(1,

24
9)

 D
12

43
5

Lo
ca
l H

ou
sin

g A
llo
wa

nc
es

(75
,60

0)
(75

,60
0)

(10
2,1

36
)

(26
,53

6)
26

,50
0

(36
)

(26
,53

6)
(26

,53
6)

 D
12

43
5

Lo
ca
l H

ou
sin

g A
llo
wa

nc
es

(75
,60

0)
(75

,60
0)

(10
2,1

36
)

(26
,53

6)
26

,50
0

(36
)

(26
,53

6)
(26

,53
6)

 H
23

10
0

Re
nt 

All
ow

an
ce
s

(31
,60

0)
(47

,10
0)

16
0,7

52
20

7,8
52

20
7,8

52
20

7,8
52

20
7,8

52
 H
23

15
0

Ho
us
ing

 Be
ne

fit 
Ad

mi
nis

tra
tio
n

14
3,1

00
67

,20
0

72
,15

8
4,9

58
4,9

58
4,9

58
4,9

58
 H
23

20
0

Te
na

nts
 R
en

t R
eb

ate
s

(11
0,1

00
)

(79
,70

0)
(13

6,1
02

)
(56

,40
2)

52
,20

0
(4,

20
2)

(56
,40

2)
(56

,40
2)

 D
12

44
0

Co
un

cil
 Ta

x O
ve
rhe

ad
s

33
,50

0
11

,00
0

2,8
24

(8,
17

6)
8,0

00
(17

6)
(8,

17
6)

(8,
17

6)
 D
12

44
5

Co
un

cil
 Ta

x L
ea

fle
t

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 D
12

46
0

Pr
op

ert
y I
ns
pe

cti
on

80
0

(18
,60

0)
(21

,50
7)

(2,
90

7)
2,9

00
(7)

(2,
90

7)
(2,

90
7)

 D
12

48
0

Bu
sin

es
s R

ev
en

ue
s O

ve
rhe

ad
s

20
0

(45
,70

0)
(45

,78
0)

(80
)

(80
)

(80
)

(80
)

 D
31

20
0

Co
un

cil
 Ta

x C
oll
 an

d C
T b

en
efi
ts

64
4,4

00
60

5,5
00

58
9,1

13
(16

,38
7)

(16
,38

7)
(16

,38
7)

(16
,38

7)
 D
31

30
0

NN
DR

 C
oll
ec
tio
n

(44
,40

0)
(72

,10
0)

(71
,66

9)
43

1
43

1
43

1
43

1
 D
39

40
0

Dis
cre

tio
na

ry 
 R
eli
ef

12
,10

0
12

,10
0

11
,96

0
(14

0)
(14

0)
(14

0)
(14

0)

 D
11

80
0

IT 
Se

rvi
ce
s

(11
3,2

50
)

(11
8,0

50
)

(14
3,2

43
)

(25
,19

3)
25

,00
0

(19
3)

(25
,19

3)
(25

,19
3)

 D
11

82
0

IT 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re

26
,50

0
15

6,0
00

43
,19

5
(11

2,8
05

)
82

,70
0

(30
,10

5)
(11

2,8
05

)
(11

2,8
05

)
 D
13

25
0

Co
rpo

rat
e T

ele
co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

(20
0)

(50
0)

29
,53

0
30

,03
0

30
,03

0
30

,03
0

30
,03

0

TO
TA

L R
ES

OU
RC

ES
 

1,3
40

,65
0

1,5
86

,65
0

1,4
46

,66
9

(13
9,9

81
)

58
,44

4
18

4,2
00

10
2,6

64
(13

9,9
81
)

0
0

0
(13

9,9
81

)

ST
RA

TE
GI
C 
DI
RE

CT
OR

S
 D
11

10
0

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
(C
.Ex

ec
s)

(16
,20

0)
40

0
(27

9)
(67

9)
(67

9)
(67

9)
(67

9)
 D
51

10
0

Dir
ec
tor

 (C
orp

ora
te 

Se
rvi
ce
s)

(5,
00

0)
(6,

30
0)

(7,
60

6)
(1,

30
6)

(1,
30

6)
(1,

30
6)

(1,
30

6)
 E7

41
00

En
vir
on

me
nt 

Gr
ou

p M
an

ag
em

en
t&A

dm
in

4,7
50

(5,
15

0)
(19

,00
3)

(13
,85

3)
(13

,85
3)

(13
,85

3)
(13

,85
3)

Pa
ge

 4 
of 

6

Page 22



SE
RV

IC
E 

LE
VE

L 
O

UT
TU

RN
 P

ER
FO

RM
AN

CE
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N 
20

11
-1

2
AP

PE
ND

IX
 3

 

(U
nd

er)
 /

(U
nd

er)
 /

SO
A 
-C
od

e
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Tr
an

sfe
rs

Ad
jus

ted
Ov

ers
pe

nd
IAS

19
Ad

jus
ted

RE
VE

NU
E 

O
UT

TU
RN

 2
01

1/
12

Bu
dg

et
Re

vis
ed

Ac
tua

l
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to 

(fr
om

)
Ca

rry
(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

Co
de

 / I
FR

S
Pe

ns
ion

Se
RC

OP
(U
nd

er)
 /

Bo
ok

 11
/12

Bu
dg

et 
11

/12
20

11
/12

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
es

Fo
rw

ard
s

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ad

jus
tm

en
ts

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ov
ers

pe
nd

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

TO
TA

L S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 D
IR
EC

TO
RS

(16
,45

0)
(11

,05
0)

(26
,88

8)
(15

,83
8)

0
0

(15
,83

8)
(15

,83
8)

0
0

0
(15

,83
8)

WE
LL

BE
IN
G 
& 
CU

LT
UR

E
 E6

31
00

Ce
me

ter
ies

 & 
Cr
em

ato
riu

m
(78

2,8
00

)
(68

5,4
00

)
(67

0,9
68

)
14

,43
2

(81
3)

13
,61

9
14

,43
2

14
,43

2

 C
22

19
0

All
otm

en
ts

73
,10

0
70

,90
0

69
,52

9
(1,

37
1)

(1,
37

1)
(1,

37
1)

(1,
37

1)
 B5

11
25

Pr
iva

te 
Tre

es
 (in

cl 
TP

0s
)

15
,80

0
50

,30
0

49
,90

0
(40

0)
(40

0)
(40

0)
(40

0)

 E7
11

50
Pu

bli
c P

rot
ec
tio
n D

ivi
sio

n
26

,50
0

(41
,90

0)
(37

,52
4)

4,3
76

21
,10

0
25

,47
6

4,3
76

4,3
76

 A2
15

00
Lic

en
sin

g
(32

,40
0)

6,5
00

(35
,25

1)
(41

,75
1)

(41
,75

1)
(41

,75
1)

(41
,75

1)
 D
34

51
0

Cr
im
e a

nd
 D
iso

rde
r

81
,60

0
27

6,0
00

27
1,1

33
(4,

86
7)

1,6
00

(3,
26

7)
(4,

86
7)

(4,
86

7)
 C
24

20
0

Ab
an

do
ne

d C
ars

54
,30

0
19

,40
0

18
,30

6
(1,

09
4)

(1,
09

4)
(1,

09
4)

(1,
09

4)
 E6

13
00

An
im
al 
W
elf
are

58
,00

0
56

,80
0

49
,72

5
(7,

07
5)

(7,
07

5)
(7,

07
5)

(7,
07

5)
 E6

11
00

Fo
od

 Sa
fet

y
21

2,0
00

11
6,3

00
11

3,7
47

(2,
55

3)
(2,

55
3)

(2,
55

3)
(2,

55
3)

 E6
12

00
He

alt
h &

 Sa
fet

y a
t W

ork
 Ac

t
18

8,9
00

79
,80

0
79

,80
0

0
0

0
0

 E6
12

50
Po

llu
tio
n C

on
tro

l
18

0,1
00

13
9,3

00
14

2,7
05

3,4
05

3,4
05

3,4
05

3,4
05

 E6
13

50
Pe

sts
 C
on

tro
l

92
,00

0
82

,20
0

77
,38

2
(4,

81
8)

2,1
00

(2,
71

8)
(4,

81
8)

(4,
81

8)
 E6

14
50

W
ate

r S
am

pli
ng

50
0

50
0

66
(43

4)
(43

4)
(43

4)
(43

4)
 E6

15
00

CC
TV

/To
wn

 C
en

tre
 Sa

fet
y

13
6,5

00
13

2,7
00

13
2,0

95
(60

5)
(60

5)
(60

5)
(60

5)
 E6

16
00

Co
nta

mi
na

ted
 La

nd
50

,30
0

29
,90

0
25

,10
1

(4,
79

9)
(4,

79
9)

(4,
79

9)
(4,

79
9)

 E6
16

50
Air

 Q
ua

lity
37

,60
0

42
,40

0
37

,53
4

(4,
86

6)
6,0

00
1,1

34
(4,

86
6)

(4,
86

6)
 E6

16
50

Air
 Q
ua

lity
37

,60
0

42
,40

0
37

,53
4

(4,
86

6)
6,0

00
1,1

34
(4,

86
6)

(4,
86

6)

 L1
72

00
W
ell
be

ing
 & 

Cu
ltu
re 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt
1,8

00
17

,70
0

9,1
54

(8,
54

6)
(8,

54
6)

(8,
54

6)
(8,

54
6)

 L2
32

00
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 
Ar
ts 
Fe

sti
va
ls 
Ltd

12
5,3

00
13

6,5
00

13
6,5

00
0

0
0

0
 L1

61
00

Ho
lid
ay
 R
ec
rea

tio
n P

rog
ram

me
10

6,2
00

11
2,1

00
10

5,3
38

(6,
76

2)
2,8

00
(3,

96
2)

(6,
76

2)
(6,

76
2)

 L1
73

00
Sp

ort
 D
ev
elo

pm
en

t
83

,10
0

90
,40

0
89

,36
1

(1,
03

9)
(1,

03
9)

(1,
03

9)
(1,

03
9)

 L1
74

00
Su

pp
ort

 to
 Ex

ter
na

l S
po

rts
 O
rga

nis
ati
on

s
4,4

00
4,0

00
4,0

00
0

0
0

0
 L1

75
00

He
alt
hy
 Li
fes

tyl
es

51
,70

0
55

,10
0

49
,01

4
(6,

08
6)

5,0
00

(1,
08

6)
(6,

08
6)

(6,
08

6)
 L1

15
00

Re
cre

ati
on

 Fa
cil
itie

s/M
an

ag
em

en
t

1,6
59

,25
0

1,6
56

,40
0

1,6
80

,76
7

24
,36

7
6,0

00
30

,36
7

24
,36

7
24

,36
7

 L4
11

00
Ar
t G

all
ery

 & 
Mu

se
um

90
4,8

00
81

1,4
00

79
4,3

39
(17

,06
1)

19
,80

0
2,7

39
(17

,06
1)

(17
,06

1)
 L2

35
00

Ar
ts 
Gr
an

t/E
na

bli
ng

 Fu
nd

s
17

1,6
00

18
7,0

00
18

3,9
11

(3,
08

9)
(3,

08
9)

(3,
08

9)
(3,

08
9)

 L3
11

00
To

uri
st 
Inf

orm
ati
on

 C
en

tre
91

,25
0

10
0,1

50
10

0,0
16

(13
4)

(13
4)

(13
4)

(13
4)

 L8
11

00
Ev

ery
ma

n T
he

atr
e

16
1,2

00
20

9,8
00

21
1,3

28
1,5

28
1,5

28
1,5

28
1,2

50
,00

0
1,2

51
,52

8
 L8

12
00

Pla
yh
ou

se
 Th

ea
tre

23
,00

0
9,1

00
9,1

49
49

49
49

49
 L2

11
00

To
wn

 H
all

78
3,7

00
55

8,4
00

51
4,1

79
(44

,22
1)

1,4
00

(42
,82

1)
(44

,22
1)

(44
,22

1)
 L2

12
00

Pit
tvi
lle
 Pu

mp
 R
oo

m
(68

,60
0)

26
7,7

00
23

2,8
22

(34
,87

8)
(34

,87
8)

(34
,87

8)
(34

,87
8)

 L2
45

00
Bo

x O
ffic

e
18

1,5
00

0
0

0
0

0
0

TO
TA

L W
EL

LB
EIN

G 
& 
CU

LT
UR

E
4,6

72
,20

0
4,5

91
,45

0
4,4

43
,16

0
(14

8,2
90

)
18

,98
7

46
,00

0
(83

,30
3)

(14
8,2

90
)

1,2
50

,00
0

0
0

1,1
01

,71
0

BU
SIN

ES
S C

HA
NG

E
 G
O7

GO
7 P

roj
ec
t

16
1,1

00
0

0
0

0
0

0
 G
OC

OE
GO

 Su
pp

ort
 & 

Ho
sti
ng

 C
oE

 R
ev
en

ue
 C
os
ts

23
,80

0
89

,10
0

96
,91

5
7,8

15
7,8

15
7,8

15
7,8

15

Pa
ge

 5 
of 

6

Page 23



SE
RV

IC
E 

LE
VE

L 
O

UT
TU

RN
 P

ER
FO

RM
AN

CE
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N 
20

11
-1

2
AP

PE
ND

IX
 3

 

(U
nd

er)
 /

(U
nd

er)
 /

SO
A 
-C
od

e
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Tr
an

sfe
rs

Ad
jus

ted
Ov

ers
pe

nd
IAS

19
Ad

jus
ted

RE
VE

NU
E 

O
UT

TU
RN

 2
01

1/
12

Bu
dg

et
Re

vis
ed

Ac
tua

l
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to 

(fr
om

)
Ca

rry
(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

Co
de

 / I
FR

S
Pe

ns
ion

Se
RC

OP
(U
nd

er)
 /

Bo
ok

 11
/12

Bu
dg

et 
11

/12
20

11
/12

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
es

Fo
rw

ard
s

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ad

jus
tm

en
ts

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ov
ers

pe
nd

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

 G
OE

RP
GO

 ER
P S

ys
tem

 Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n

47
,80

0
19

2,9
00

18
0,4

57
(12

,44
3)

12
,40

0
(43

)
(12

,44
3)

(12
,44

3)
 IT

00
55

Go
ve
rnm

en
t C

on
ne

ct
45

,20
0

42
,50

0
30

,65
0

(11
,85

0)
(11

,85
0)

(11
,85

0)
(11

,85
0)

 IT
00

58
Or
ga

nis
ati
on

 & 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

W
ork

35
7,9

00
22

5,6
00

17
2,0

44
(53

,55
6)

53
,50

0
(56

)
(53

,55
6)

(53
,55

6)
 IT

00
59

Bu
sin

es
s C

on
tin
uit
y

0
0

90
9

90
9

90
9

90
9

90
9

 IT
00

62
W
ork

ing
 Fl

ex
ibl
y

(1,
00

0)
29

,10
0

11
,07

3
(18

,02
8)

18
,00

0
(28

)
(18

,02
8)

(18
,02

8)
 IT

00
71

Re
ve
nu

es
 & 

Be
ne

fits
 So

urc
ing

 St
rat

eg
y

10
0,0

00
19

0,3
00

23
,60

0
(16

6,7
00

)
16

6,7
00

0
(16

6,7
00

)
(16

6,7
00

)
 IT

00
72

Cu
sto

me
r S

erv
ice

s S
ou

rci
ng

 St
rat

eg
y

0
55

,30
0

52
,80

0
(2,

50
0)

2,5
00

0
(2,

50
0)

(2,
50

0)
 IT

00
73

IC
T S

ou
rci
ng

 St
rat

eg
y

0
50

,80
0

41
,30

0
(9,

50
0)

9,5
00

0
(9,

50
0)

(9,
50

0)
 IT

00
74

W
as
te 

Co
mp

an
y

0
12

4,3
00

18
,50

4
(10

5,7
96

)
10

5,8
00

4
(10

5,7
96

)
(10

5,7
96

)

TO
TA

L B
US

IN
ES

S C
HA

NG
E

73
4,8

00
99

9,9
00

62
8,2

51
(37

1,6
49

)
0

36
8,4

00
(3,

24
9)

(37
1,6

49
)

0
0

0
(37

1,6
49

)

PR
OG

RA
MM

E M
AIN

TE
NA

NC
E

48
2,1

00
58

8,4
00

42
8,2

12
-16

0,1
88

16
1,0

00
0

81
2

-16
0,1

88
0

0
0

-16
0,1

88

 G
50

53
0

BA
D 
DE

BT
S P

RO
VIS

IO
N

40
,00

0
40

,00
0

31
,43

0
-8,

57
0

0
-8,

57
0

-8,
57

0
0

0
0

-8,
57

0

 G
50

52
0

SA
VIN

GS
 FR

OM
 VA

CA
NC

IES
-48

0,0
00

-69
,65

0
0

69
,65

0
0

0
69

,65
0

69
,65

0
0

0
0

69
,65

0

TO
TA

L A
LL

 SE
RV

IC
ES

15
,67

6,4
50

16
,51

8,1
16

14
,89

1,2
44

(1,
62

6,8
72

)
34

8,5
92

1,1
70

,50
0

(10
7,7

80
)

(1,
62

6,8
72

)
3,3

42
,67

6
0

0
1,7

15
,80

4

Pa
ge

 6 
of 

6

Page 24



AP
PE

ND
IX 

3

PL
AN

NE
D 

M
AI

NT
EN

AN
CE

 P
RO

G
RA

M
M

E 
20

11
/1

2

Co
de

Sc
he

me
 

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Bu

dg
et

Re
vis

ed
Ou

ttu
rn

Un
de

r/(
Ov

er)
Co

mm
en

ts
Bo

ok
Bu

dg
et

 
sp

en
d o

n
 

 
20

11
/12

20
11

/12
20

11
/12

Pr
oje

cts
 

RE
VE

NU
E

PM
00

00
All
 pr

op
ert

ies
 (H

&S
)

Ins
tal
lat
ion

 of
 Po

we
r P

erf
ec
tor

s a
t T

ow
n H

all.
11

7,9
00

75
,90

0
0

0£
75

,90
0 e

xp
en

dit
ure

 on
 Po

we
r P

erf
ec
tor

s d
ela

ye
d d

ue
 to
 tri
al 
pe

rio
d. 
Fu

nd
s w

il 
be

 re
qu

ire
d i
n 2

01
2/1

3.
PM

00
10

Ar
t G

alle
ry 
& M

us
eu

m
Cy

clic
al 
wir

ing
 te
stin

g a
nd

 co
ns
eu

qe
nti
al 
rep

air
s.

4,4
00

4,4
00

88
4

3,5
16

PM
00

20
To

wn
 H
all

Ge
ne

ral
 wi

rin
g c

ycl
ica

l te
stin

g &
 re

pa
irs
, re

pla
ce
me

nt 
of 
fixe

d h
ou

se
 lig

hts
 an

d 
wir

ing
, re

pla
ce
me

nt 
of 
ligh

tin
g a

nd
 wi

rin
g w

ith
in 
Co

nfe
ren

ce
 Su

ite
,re

pla
ce
me

nt 
of 
ho

us
e l
igh

t h
ou

sin
gs
 in
 ro

of 
vo
id.

30
,00

0
30

,00
0

32
,63

8
(2,

63
8)

PM
00

30
Pit

tvi
lle 

Pu
mp

 R
oo

m
CC

TV
, a
nn

ua
l m

ain
ten

an
ce
 of
 Sp

aw
ate

r p
um

ps
,re

pla
ce
me

nt 
of 
inc

om
ing

 
ma

in 
wa

ter
 su

pp
ly, 

ch
an

de
lier

 re
fur

bis
hm

en
ts,
 cy

clic
al 
wir

ing
 te
stin

g, 
up

gra
de

 
of 
ligh

tin
g w

irin
g a

nd
 fit
tin
gs
, a
nn

ua
l cl

ea
nin

g a
nd
 re

wa
xin

g o
f b
allr

oo
m 

flo
ori
ng

, re
pla

ce
me

nt 
ch
air
s.

21
,20

0
38

,70
0

31
,72

5
6,9

75

PM
00

40
Re

cre
ati
on

 C
en

tre
Bir

d c
on

tro
l m

ea
su
res

, a
nn

ua
l B

MS
 ch

ec
ks
, re

pla
ce
me

nt 
of 
sa
un

a/s
tea

mr
oo

m 
ca
bin

 he
ate

r,re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 
ex
ter

na
l la

mp
s,c

ycl
ica

l w
irin

g t
es
tin
g, 

rep
lac

em
en

t o
f lig

hti
ng

 la
mp

s in
 Sp

ort
s H

all,
 re

fur
bis

hm
en

t o
f w

oo
de

n s
pru

ng
 

flo
or,

 de
ep

 cle
an

 of
 di
vin

g b
oa

rd 
tow

er.

44
,70

0
44

,70
0

47
,01

7
(2,

31
7)

PM
00

41
Pr
inc

e o
f W

ale
s S

tad
ium

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t o
f lig

hti
ng
 pr

ov
isio

n i
n c

ar 
pa

rk,
 an

nu
al 
ma

int
en

an
ce
 of
 tra

ck
 

hig
h l
igh

tin
g, 
rol
ling

 pr
og

ram
me

 to
 up

gra
de

 tra
ck
 lig

hti
ng

 fit
tin
gs
, c
ycl

ica
l w

irin
g 

tes
tin
g a

nd
 co

ns
eq

ue
nti
al 
rep

air
s, 
irri
ga

tio
n p

um
p h

ou
se
 an

d e
qu

ipm
en

t 
ma

int
en

an
ce
, g
en

era
l re

pa
irs
 to
 tra

ck
 an

d f
ield

 su
rfa

ce
s, 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 
of 

sp
ec
tat
or 

se
ati
ng

.

10
3,5

00
43

,50
0

41
,92

0
1,5

80

PM
00

42
Pa

vili
on

s
Ge

ne
ral
 pe

rio
dic

 re
pa

irs
 at
 C
en

tra
l C

ros
s K

ios
k.

7,9
50

19
,45

0
24

,38
2

(4,
93

2)
PM

00
60

De
po

t
Ge

ne
ral
 wi

rin
g c

ycl
ica

l te
stin

g &
 re

pa
irs
, fu

el 
tan

k r
ep

lac
em

en
ts.

57
,50

0
72

,50
0

80
,65

1
(8,

15
1)

PM
00

60
De

po
t

Ge
ne

ral
 wi

rin
g c

ycl
ica

l te
stin

g &
 re

pa
irs
, fu

el 
tan

k r
ep

lac
em

en
ts.

57
,50

0
72

,50
0

80
,65

1
(8,

15
1)

PM
00

61
Civ

ic A
me

nit
y &

 R
ec
ycl

ing
 Si

te
Ge

ne
ral
 wi

rin
g c

ycl
ica

l te
stin

g &
 re

pa
irs
.

1,5
00

1,5
00

(1,
25

4)
2,7

54
PM

00
70

Mu
nic

ipa
l O

ffic
e

Cy
clic

al 
wir

ing
 te
stin

g a
nd

 co
ns
eq

ue
nti
al 
rep

air
s.

4,0
00

4,0
00

10
,24

3
(6,

24
3)

PM
00

80
Ce

me
ter

y
Ge

ne
ral
 wi

rin
g c

ycl
ica

l te
stin

g &
 co

ns
eq
ue

nti
al 
rep

air
s.

3,0
00

3,0
00

3,0
34

(34
)

PM
00

81
Cr
em

ato
riu
m

Re
ne

w/u
pg

rad
e f
urn

ac
e e

qu
ipm

en
t, t
ren

ch
ing

 wo
rks

, a
nn

ua
l m

ain
ten

an
ce
 of
 

up
gra

de
d c

rem
ato

rs,
 bu

ilde
rs 
wo

rks
 in
 co

nn
ec
tio
n w

ith
 up

gra
de

.
61

,20
0

12
1,2

00
65

,98
3

4,0
17

£5
1,2

00
 re

qu
ire
d i
n 1

2/1
3 f
or 

ma
int
en

an
ce
 co

ntr
ac
t (p

os
tpo

ne
d d

ue
 to
 fin

al 
sta

ge
 of
 wo

rks
 fa
llin

g i
n 2

01
2/1

3).

PM
00

82
Ch

arl
ton

 Ki
ng

s C
em

ete
ry

Ge
ne

ral
 wi

rin
g c

ycl
ica

l te
stin

g &
 re

pa
irs
.

65
0

65
0

65
0

PM
00

90
Mi
sc
ella

ne
ou

s P
rop

ert
ies

Ge
ne

ral
 cy

clic
al 
wir

ing
 an

d c
on

se
qu

en
tia
l re

pa
irs
, c
om

mu
na

l a
rea

 
red

ec
ora

tio
n t
o B

erk
ele

y M
ew

s, 
ele

ctr
ica

l re
wir

e a
t B

erk
ele

y M
ew

s.
8,6

00
41

,10
0

8,5
18

82
£1

6,7
00

 re
qu

ire
d i
n 1

2/1
3 f
or 

Be
rke

ley
 M
ew

s c
om

mu
na

l re
de

co
rat

ion
s. 
£1

5,8
00

 
req

uir
ed

 in
 12

/13
 fo
r te

stin
g.

PM
00

91
Ev

ery
ma

n T
he

atr
e

Ge
ne

ral
 m
ain

ten
an

ce
 & 

rep
air
s.

3,0
00

2,1
18

88
2

PM
00

92
Ce

ntr
al 
Nu

rse
ry

Dis
trib

uti
on

 pa
ne

ls, 
co
ns
eq

ue
nti
al 
rep

air
s t
o g

ree
nh

ou
se
, c
ycl

ica
l w

irin
g 

tes
tin
g, 
im
pro

ve
me

nt 
of 
pro

prt
ies

 to
 co

mp
ly w

ith
 D
ec
en

t H
om

es
 st
an

da
rds

.
1,1

00
25

,10
0

6,1
30

18
,97

0

PM
00

95
Ed

inb
urg

h H
ou

se
Ge

ne
ral
 m
ain

ten
an

ce
 & 

rep
air
s.

2,2
00

0
84

1
(84

1)
PM

00
96

Sta
nto

n R
oo

ms
Ge

ne
ral
 wi

rin
g c

ycl
ica

l te
stin

g &
 re

pa
irs
.

40
0

40
0

40
0

PM
00

99
Sta

tue
s &

 M
em

ori
als

Ge
ne

ral
 re

pa
irs
 an

d c
lea

nin
g o

f s
ton

ew
ork

, c
on

dit
ion

 su
rve

y a
nd

 re
pa

ir o
f 

Ne
ptu

ne
's F

ou
nta

in.
2,0

00
7,0

00
16

,52
8

(9,
52

8)

PM
01

20
Ge

ne
ral
 C
ar 

Pa
rks

Cy
clic

al 
wir

ing
 te
stin

g &
 co

ns
eq

ue
nti
al 
rep

air
s.

0
0

1,0
29

(1,
02

9)
PM

01
25

Gr
os
ve
no

r T
err

ac
e C

ar 
Pa

rk
Cy

clic
al 
wir

ing
 te
stin

g &
 co

ns
eq

ue
nti
al 
rep

air
s.

35
0

(35
0)

PM
01

31
Re

ge
nt 
Ar
ca
de

 C
ar 

Pa
rk

Lig
hti
ng

 up
gra

de
s a

nd
 cy

clic
al 
wir

ing
 te
stin

g.
0

42
,00

0
45

,86
2

(3,
86

2)
PM

01
50

Br
idg

es
Co

nd
itio

n s
urv

ey
.

0
0

50
0

(50
0)

Pa
ge

 7

Page 25



AP
PE

ND
IX 

3

PL
AN

NE
D 

M
AI

NT
EN

AN
CE

 P
RO

G
RA

M
M

E 
20

11
/1

2

Co
de

Sc
he

me
 

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Bu

dg
et

Re
vis

ed
Ou

ttu
rn

Un
de

r/(
Ov

er)
Co

mm
en

ts
Bo

ok
Bu

dg
et

 
sp

en
d o

n
 

 
20

11
/12

20
11

/12
20

11
/12

Pr
oje

cts
 

PM
01

60
Pu

blic
 To

ilet
s

Pe
rio
dic

 je
t c
lea

nin
g/t
es
t o
f d
rai
na

ge
 sy

ste
m.

10
,30

0
10

,30
0

9,1
14

1,1
86

TO
TA

L R
EV

EN
UE

 PR
OG

RA
MM

ED
 

MA
IN

TE
NA

NC
E

48
2,1

00
58

8,4
00

42
8,2

12
58

8C
/F 

£1
59

,60
0

CA
PI

TA
L

PM
00

81
Cr
em

ato
riu
m

52
4,0

00
52

4,0
00

52
4,0

00
0

TO
TA

L C
AP

ITA
L P

RO
GR

AM
ME

D 
MA

IN
TE

NA
NC

E
52

4,0
00

52
4,0

00
52

4,0
00

0

TO
TA

L P
RO

GR
AM

ME
D 

MA
IN

TE
NA

NC
E

1,0
06

,10
0

1,1
12

,40
0

95
2,2

12
58

8

* T
he

 va
ria
nc
e, 
aft
er 

ca
rry

 fo
rw
ard

 re
qu

es
ts,
 wi

ll b
e r

eta
ine

d i
n t
he

 Pr
og

ram
me

 M
ain

ten
an

ce
 R
es
erv

e a
nd

 al
loc

ate
d t
o f
utu

re 
ye
ars

 pr
og

ram
me

s.

Pa
ge

 8

Page 26



AP
PE

ND
IX 

4

Ca
pit

al 
Ch

arg
es

20
11

/12
20

11
/12

20
11

/12
20

11
/12

OR
IG

IN
AL

RE
VIS

ED
AC

TU
AL

VA
RI

AN
CE

NO
TE

£
£

£
£

Mi
nim

um
 R
ev
en
ue
 Pr

ov
isio

n (
MR

P)
61
6,2

00
3,2

48
,40

0
3,2

48
,42

1
21

1
De

bt 
Re

de
mp

tio
n P

rem
ium

s
14
5,7

00
14
5,7

00
14
5,5

73
(12

7)
2

De
pre

cia
tio
n

(2,
75
3,7

00
)

(2,
67
7,5

00
)(

2,6
77
,47

5)
25

3
Am

ort
isa

tio
n

(10
5,8

00
)

(96
,10

0)
(95

,97
7)

12
3

4
Ca

pit
al 

Ch
arg

es
(2,

09
7,6

00
)

62
0,5

00
62

0,5
42

42

NO
TE

1P
res

cri
be
d %

 re
qu
ire
d t
o b

e s
et 
as
ide

 to
 re

pa
y d

eb
t a
s s

et 
in 
the

 M
RP

 Po
licy

2A
mo

rtis
ed
 co

st 
of 

de
bt 
re-

sc
he
du
lin
g

3D
ep
rec

iat
ion

 - d
ep
rec

ati
on
 ch

arg
ed
 on

 th
e C

ou
nc
il's

 ta
ng
ibl
e f

ixe
d a

ss
ets

4A
mo

rtis
ati
on
 - a

mo
rtis

ati
on
 ch

arg
ed
 on

 th
e C

ou
nc
il's

 in
tan

gib
le 
fix
ed
 as

se
ts

Page 27



Page 28
This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE
ND

IX 
5

Int
ere

st 
an

d I
nv

es
tm

en
t In

co
me

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

OR
IG
IN
AL

RE
VIS

ED
AC

TU
AL

VA
RI
AN

CE
NO

TE
£

£
£

£
Ex
ter
na
l In
ter
es
t P
ay
ab
le

1,2
12
,60
0

1,2
16
,70
0

1,2
23
,60
6

6,9
06

1
HR

A I
tem

 8 
Cr
ed
it

62
,40
0

81
,70
0

79
,02
0

(2,
68
0)

2
Ex
ter
na
l In
ter
es
t re
ce
ive
d

(17
6,3
00
)

(17
2,5
00
)

(18
9,8
60
)

(17
,36
0)

3
Int
ere
st 
du
e f
rom

 Ic
ela
nd
ic 
ba
nk
s

0
0

(38
0,9
84
)

(38
0,9
84
)

4
Ice
lan
dic
 Ba

nk
s i
mp
air
me
nt

0
0

(12
9,5
22
)

(12
9,5
22
)

5
HR

A I
tem

 8 
De
bit

(57
6,9
00
)

(52
8,7
00
)

(54
8,1
85
)

(19
,48
5)

6
Int

ere
st 

an
d I

nv
es
tm

en
t In

co
me

52
1,8

00
59
7,2

00
54
,07

5
(54

3,1
25
)

NO
TE

1E
xte
rna
l in
ter
es
t p
ay
ab
le 
- in
ter
es
t p
aid
 on
 th
e C

ou
nc
il's
 tre
as
ury
 m
an
ag
em
en
t / 
ca
sh
flo
w 
ac
tiv
ity

2I
tem

 8 
cre
dit
 - c
on
trib
uti
on
 to
 th
e H

ou
sin
g R

ev
en
ue
 Ac

co
un
t (H

RA
) in
 re
sp
ec
t o
f d
isc
ou
nt 
rec
eiv
ed
 fro

m 
de
bt 
re-
sc
he
du
lin
g a
nd
 in
ter
es
t re
ce
iva
ble

on
 ca
sh
 ba
lan
ce
s h
eld
 by
 th
e H

RA
3I
nte
res
t e
arn
ed
 on
 C
ou
nc
il's
 fu
nd
s a
nd
 tre
as
ury
 m
an
ag
em
en
t / 
ca
sh
flo
w 
ac
tiv
ity

4I
nte
res
t d
ue
 in
 ye
ar 
fro
m 
Ice
lan
dic
 ba
nk
s

5I
mp
air
me
nt 
of 
Ice
lan
dic
 ba
nk
s d
ep
os
its
 cr
ed
it

6I
tem

 8 
de
bit
 - c
on
trib
uti
on
 fro

m 
the
 H
ou
sin
g R

ev
en
ue
 Ac

co
un
t in
 re
sp
ec
t o
f p
rem

ium
 in
cu
rre
d f
rom

 de
bt 
re-
sc
he
du
lin
g a
nd
 de
bt 
ch
arg
es

Page 29



Page 30
This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                       APPENDIX 6 

1 

 
      SIGNIFICANT VARIANCES IN REVENUE OUTTURN FOR 2011/12 
                                     (OVER £50,000) BY SERVICE 
 
 
 
WELLBEING & CULTURE 
 
There is a net underspend within the Wellbeing & Culture service of £148,300 
including the following significant variances:- 
 
Town Hall & Pittville Pump Rooms 
There is an under spend of £79,100 to report for the Entertainments Division in 
2011/12. There is a net under spend of £44,200 for the Town Hall. This was due to 
an increase in sales for CBC promoted events and agency tickets during the final 
quarter of the financial year.  
 
Pittville Pumps Rooms had a net under spend of £34,900 for 2011/12. Lettings 
income and catering income was up by £23,600 against budget and there was also 
an under spend of £9,000 on premises costs. The remaining £2,300 under spend 
occurred on supplies and services. 
 
 
 
COMMISSIONING 
There is a net underspend within the Commissioning Directorate of £188,800 
including the following significant variance:- 
 
Youth Affairs 
There is an under spend of £64,100 for 2011/12 due to grant payments made to 
voluntary youth projects in 2011/12 having twelve months to spend their allocation. 
The balance remaining has been requested to be carried forward into 2012/13.  
 
 
 
BUILT ENVIRONMENT 
 
There is a net under spend within the Built Environment Directorate of £617,700 
including the following significant variances:- 
 
Business & Economic Development 
There is an under spend of £137,000 for 2011/12 which is made up of an under 
spend of £102,200 on the Promoting Cheltenham Fund which has been requested to 
be carried forward into 2012/13. The successful grant applicants in late 2011 have a 
year to complete their projects and receive the grant payment. A £10,000 under 
spend of LABGI funding carried forward from 2010/11 and further under spends of 
£27,200 through savings on employee costs and supplies and services are to be 
carried forward into 2012/13 to fund Joint Core Strategy Economic work. 
 
Cheltenham Environmental Fund 
There is an underspend of £114,900 for 2011/12 for which a carry forward request 
has been made.  The funding is split into various different projects which will be 
completed in 2012/13. 
 

Page 31



                                                                                                       APPENDIX 6 

2 

Civic Pride 
There is an under spend of £120,700 on this cost centre as anticipated expenditure 
was not required in the current year.  Future expenditure will be required in line with 
the ongoing progress of the Cheltenham Development Task Force. £111,500 has 
been appropriated back to the Civic Pride reserve for future use. 
 

 Homelessness 
 There is a net underspend of £65,400 for 2011/12 including £59,700 underspend in 
 non-ring fenced Local Housing Support Grant funding received in 2011/12. This 
 underspend has been requested to be carried forward to support homelessness 
 expenditure in 2012/13.  
 
 
 OPERATIONS 
 
 There is a net underspend of £45,500 within Operation Services for 2011/12. 
 There are no significant variances (in excess of £50,000) to report. 
  
 
 RESOURCES 
 
 There is a net underspend of £168,000 within the Resources Directorate for 2011/12 
 including the following significant variances:- 
 
Housing and council tax benefits  
The cost of rent allowances, rent rebates and council tax benefits paid out is wholly 
funded by government subsidy.  In addition, subsidy is also paid on overpayments 
made due to changes in claimant’s circumstances (i.e. not due to local authority 
error).  The unpredictability of this demand-led service, particularly in the level of 
overpayments, makes the net cost of this service difficult to estimate.   
Overall the outturn on benefits (rent allowances, rent rebates and council tax 
benefits) was a net credit of £235,000 compared to an estimated net credit budget of 
£189,500, an increased credit of £52,400.  This credit has been transferred to the 
Benefits Equalisation Reserve to meet any shortfalls in the budget in the future.  
Following a recent audit report and on the advice of the Benefits Manager, there is a 
recommendation to increase the size of the bad debt provision for benefit 
overpayments, as a result of the government’s proposed change from the current 
benefits system to universal credits.  This change could mean that any outstanding 
debts may not be recoverable against future benefit payments, leaving the council to 
finance any write offs, without receiving any corresponding subsidy.  
Before any unbudgeted transfers, the bad debt provision as at 31st March 2012 for 
benefit overpayments was £407,100 (representing 44% of the debt outstanding).  
The audit recommendation is that the provision should be at least 75% of the level of 
outstanding debt by 2017. The advice of the S151 Officer, reported to council in June 
2011, was that over the next few years the council look to increase the provision 
further through further realignment of the benefit related reserves or from any future 
under spends.  A transfer of an additional £200,000 has therefore been made to the 
bad debt provision from the overall under spend, so that at 31st March 2012 it now 
represents 65% of the debt outstanding. 
The council remains committed to supporting people who are currently in receipt of 
benefits under the current scheme in the transition to universal credits. 

Page 32



                                                                                                       APPENDIX 6 

3 

ICT Infrastructure  
There is an under spend in the ICT infrastructure budgets of £112,800 as a result of 
the programme of ongoing desktop replacement being delayed due to resourcing 
issues.  A carry forward request for £82,700 has been made to support the ongoing 
programme in the new financial year. 
 
  
BUSINESS CHANGE 
The Business Change budgets are under spent by a net £371,600 made up of the 
following significant variances: 

 
Revenues & Benefits Sourcing Strategy 
The Revenues & Benefits Sourcing Strategy budget of £166,700 has not been spent 
in 2011/12. A carry forward request has been made for this money to be used to 
continue to progress shared working arrangements for the Resources Directorate 
with other councils, including £141,700 for a potential shared ICT service. 
 
Organisational & Development Work 
There is an underspend of £53,500, against the budget of £80,000 for the year. This 
funding was agreed by council to support the significant business change required in 
order to deliver some of the councils key projects including GO. Outstanding funding 
is allocated to supporting the use of Achieve Breakthrough within our new 
partnership arrangements; for interim procurement capacity; for support for the 
implementation of GO; for learning and development of staff in support of 
commissioning, and for external advice to the Leisure and Culture review.  A request 
has been made for the underspend to be carried forward to complete the work 
streams in 2012/13.  
 
Waste Company  
There is an underspend in this budget of £105,800 at the year end. This budget is to 
fund the one-off set up costs of Ubico over the period 2011/12 and 2012/13 and a  
request has been made to carry forward this budget to fund the remaining set up 
costs of Ubico in 2012/13.   
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



Page 34
This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE
ND
IX 
7

20
11

/1
2 

CA
RR

Y 
FO

RW
AR

D 
RE

QU
ES

TS
A (
i)

A (
ii)

B
Re
f

Am
ou
nt 
£ 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
Co
de

Co
st 
Ce
ntr
e

Re
as
on
 fo
r c
arr
y f
orw

ard
Ba
se
 Bu
dg
ets

On
e-O

ff B
ud
ge
ts

(N
et 
of 
VA
T)

Am
ou
nts
 ag
ree
d
Am
ou
nts
 ag
ree
d

Am
ou
nts
  

by
 S1
51
 O
ffic
er

by
 S1
51
 O
ffic
er

for
 m
em
be
r

un
de
r d
ele
ga
ted

un
de
r d
ele
ga
ted

ap
pro
va
l

po
we
rs

po
we
rs

1
    
 

1,4
00

    
    
    

L2
11
00
-34
10

 To
wn
 H
all
 

Bu
dg
et 
wa
s u
nd
ers
pe
nt 
du
e t
o C
om
pu
ter
 eq
uip
me
nt 
ord
ere
d i
n M

arc
h 2
01
2 b
ut 
rec
eiv
ed
 

in 
ea
rly
 Ap
ril 
20
12
.

1,4
00

2
    
 

6,0
00

    
    
    

L1
72
00
-35
01

 W
ell
be
ing
 & 
Cu
ltu
re 

Ma
na
ge
me
nt 

Up
gra
de
 to
 H
ori
zo
ns
 so
ftw
are
 to
 en
ab
le 
On
lin
e B
oo
kin
gs
 & 
Pa
ym
en
ts 
an
d  
a K
ios
k 

fun
cti
on
 - L
eis
ure
@
.

6,0
00

3
    
 

2,8
00

    
    
    

L1
61
00
-31
04

 Pl
ay
 D
ev
elo
pm
en
t 

Eq
uip
me
nt 
- R
eq
ue
st 
£2
,80
0 c
arr
y f
orw

ard
 to
 m
ee
t th
e c
os
t o
f a
 pl
an
ne
d r
ep
lac
em
en
t 

eq
uip
me
nt 
ord
er 
pla
ce
d i
n M

arc
h a
he
ad
 of
 th
e E
as
ter
 pr
og
ram

me
, fo
r w
hic
h t
he
 

eq
uip
me
nt 
wa
s d
eli
ve
red
 in
 ea
rly
 Ap
ril.
 A 
ca
rry
 fo
rw
ard
 w
ou
ld 
su
pp
ort
 ad
dit
ion
al 
de
live
ry 

du
rin
g 2
01
2/1
3.

2,8
00

4
    
 

5,0
00

    
    
    

L1
75
00
-01
01

 H
ea
lth
y L
ife
sty
les
 

Sa
lar
ies
 - R

eq
ue
st 
£5
,00
0 c
arr
y f
orw

ard
 as
so
cia
ted
 w
ith
 a 
me
mb
er 
of 
sta
ff r
etu
rni
ng
 fro
m 

ma
ter
nit
y le
av
e l
ate
r th
an
 ex
pe
cte
d t
he
ref
ore
 th
e c
ros
s o
ve
r b
etw
ee
n 2
 m
em
be
rs 
of 
sta
ff 

ha
s o
cc
urr
ed
 la
ter
 th
an
 ex
pe
cte
d. 

5,0
00

    
    
    
    
 

5
    
 

2,1
00

    
    
    

E7
11
50
-02
04

 Pu
bli
c P
rot
ec
tio
n d
ivis
ion
 

Tra
ini
ng
 co
urs
e -
 re
 in
ve
sti
ga
tiv
e t
ec
hn
iqu
es
, g
ath
eri
ng
 ev
ide
nc
e, 
pu
ttin
g t
og
eth
er 
a 

pro
se
cu
tio
n f
ile
 an
d r
ela
ted
 su
bje
cts
. D
ela
ye
d f
rom

 Fe
b 1
2 t
hro
ug
h t
rai
ne
r il
lne
ss
. T
o b
e 

un
de
rta
ke
n M

ay
 20
12
.

2,1
00

    
    
    
    
 

6
    
 

6,0
00

    
    
    

E6
16
50
-31
03

 Pu
bli
c P
rot
ec
tio
n-A
ir Q

ua
lity
 E
xte
ns
ion
 of
 ai
r q
ua
lity
 m
ac
hin
e r
en
tal
 - S
win
do
n R
oa
d t
o J
an
ua
ry 
20
13

6,0
00

    
    
    
    
 

7
    
 

2,1
00

    
    
    

E6
13
50
-32
22

 Pu
bli
c P
rot
ec
tio
n -
 Se
ag
ull
 

Re
du
cti
on
 Pr
og
ram

me
 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
for
 se
ag
ull
 re
du
cti
on
 pr
og
ram

me
 20
12
-13

2,1
00

    
    
    
    
 

8
    
 

9,0
00

    
    
    

E7
11
50
-36
23

 Pu
bli
c P
rot
ec
tio
n d
ivis
ion
 

Idd
ox
 do
cu
me
nt 
ma
na
ge
me
nt 
sy
ste
m 
an
d l
ice
ns
es
 fo
r E
nv
iro
nm
en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 

tha
t in
teg
rat
es
 w
ith
 th
e U
nif
orm

 Sy
ste
m 

9,0
00

    
    
    
    
 

9
    
 

3,0
00

    
    
    

E7
11
50
-02
04

 Pu
bli
c P
rot
ec
tio
n d
ivis
ion
 

Un
ifo
rm
 Tr
ain
ing
 Pu
bli
c P
rot
ec
tio
n D
ivis
ion

3,0
00

    
    
    
    
 

10   
7,0
00

    
    
    

E7
11
50
-35
01

 Pu
bli
c P
rot
ec
tio
n d
ivis
ion
 

W
ork
ing
 fle
xib
ly -
 tri
al 
of 
tw
o P
ub
lic 
Pr
ote
cti
on
 O
ffic
ers
 to
 w
ork
 fro
m 
ho
me
 / o
the
r lo
ca
tio
ns
 

-In
itia
l s
et 
up
 co
sts
 an
d c
os
t o
f tw
o h
an
d h
eld
 de
vic
es

7,0
00

    
    
    
    
 

11   
1,6
00

    
    
    

D3
45
10
-81
42

 C
rim
e &
 D
iso
rde
r - 
alc
oh
ol 

pa
rtn
ers
hip
 gr
an
t 

 C
rim
e &
 D
iso
rde
r - 
alc
oh
ol 
pa
rtn
ers
hip
 gr
an
t 

1,6
00

    
    
    
    
 

46
,00

0
 To

tal
 W
ell
be
ing

 &
 C
ult
ur
e 

21
,00

0
0

25
,00

0

12   
7,0
00

    
    
    

D2
11
00
-31
01

 D
em
oc
rat
ic 
Se
rvi
ce
s 

To
 su
pp
ort
 ro
llo
ut 
of 
IC
T R

em
ote
 Ac
ce
ss
 Fa
cili
tie
s f
or 
me
mb
ers

7,0
00

    
    
    
    
 

Pa
ge
 1

Page 35



AP
PE
ND
IX 
7

20
11

/1
2 

CA
RR

Y 
FO

RW
AR

D 
RE

QU
ES

TS
A (
i)

A (
ii)

B
Re
f

Am
ou
nt 
£ 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
Co
de

Co
st 
Ce
ntr
e

Re
as
on
 fo
r c
arr
y f
orw

ard
Ba
se
 Bu
dg
ets

On
e-O

ff B
ud
ge
ts

(N
et 
of 
VA
T)

Am
ou
nts
 ag
ree
d
Am
ou
nts
 ag
ree
d

Am
ou
nts
  

by
 S1
51
 O
ffic
er

by
 S1
51
 O
ffic
er

for
 m
em
be
r

un
de
r d
ele
ga
ted

un
de
r d
ele
ga
ted

ap
pro
va
l

po
we
rs

po
we
rs

13   
64
,10
0

    
    
  

D3
88
50
-38
00

 Yo
uth
 Af
fai
rs 

Ma
tch
 fu
nd
ed
 gr
an
t p
ay
me
nts
 m
ad
e t
o v
olu
nta
ry 
yo
uth
 pr
oje
cts
 in
 20
11
/12
 - w

ith
 tw
elv
e 

mo
nth
s t
o s
pe
nd
 th
eir
 al
loc
ati
on
. T
he
 c/
f n
ee
de
d t
o a
wa
rd 
rem

ain
ing
 gr
an
t p
ay
me
nts
 in
 

20
12
/13
.

64
,10
0

    
    
    
   

14   
20
,00
0

    
    
  

D3
91
50

 G
AV
CA
 

Re
ma
ini
ng
 tra
nc
he
s o
f G
AV
CA
 on
e o
ff e
xp
en
dit
ure
 - c
om
mi
tte
d 2
01
2/1
3

20
,00
0

    
    
    
   

15   
2,3
00

    
    
    

D1
17
00
-34
01

 Po
licy
 & 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

Pr
int
ing
 of
 co
ns
ult
ati
on
 in
for
ma
tio
n o
n B
ou
nd
ary
 R
ev
iew
s i
n A
utu
mn
 20
12
 fo
r th
e g
en
era
l 

pu
bli
c.

2,3
00

    
    
    
    
 

16   
7,3
00

    
    
    

D1
17
15
-35
01

 N
eig
hb
ou
rho
od
 M
ng
t 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

To
 fu
nd
 th
e s
up
po
rt o
f c
om
mu
nit
y le
d e
ve
nts
 an
d a
cti
vit
ies
 in
 20
12
/13
. A
lso
 to
 su
pp
ort
 

rem
ain
ing
 ne
igh
bo
urh
oo
d c
o-o
rdi
na
tio
n g
rou
ps
 to
 be
co
me
 co
mm

un
ity 
led
.

7,3
00

    
    
    
    
 

17   
18
,80
0

    
    
  

D2
19
70
-36
77

 C
om
mu
nit
y P
rid
e 

Fu
nd
ing
 ha
s b
ee
n a
llo
ca
ted
 to
 pr
oje
cts
 by
 w
ay
 of
 gr
an
ts 
wh
ich
 or
ga
nis
ati
on
s h
av
e u
nti
l th
e 

en
d o
f J
uly
 20
12
 to
 sp
en
d.

18
,80
0

    
    
    
   

18   
3,2
00

    
    
    

D3
91
20
-31
87

 SL
A-
R.
Eq
ua
lity
 

Ha
te 
Cr
im
e P
roj
ec
t - 
 Sp
ec
ific
 Fu
nd
ing
 fro
m 
Fe
bru
ary
 20
09
 st
ill u
nu
se
d.

3,2
00

    
    
    
    
 

19   
9,2
00

    
    
    

D1
17
10
-X
XX
X

 Pr
oje
ct 
Ma
na
ge
me
nt 

Be
ca
us
e t
he
 na
tur
e o
f p
roj
ec
t w
ork
 ru
ns
 in
 pe
ak
s a
nd
 tro
ug
hs
 th
e c
ou
nc
il h
as
 be
en
 ab
le 
to 

se
ll s
om
e o
f th
e c
ap
ac
ity 
to 
oth
er 
co
un
cils
, s
mo
oth
ing
 ou
t w
ork
 an
d e
na
bli
ng
 us
 to
 ke
ep
 

va
lua
ble
 sk
ills
 in
ho
us
e. 
 Th
e m

on
ey
 ra
ise
d f
rom

 th
is 
ac
tiv
ity 
is 
req
ue
ste
d t
o b
e c
arr
ied
 

for
wa
rd 
to 
20
12
/13
 as
 th
ere
 ar
e a
 nu
mb
er 
of 
ke
y p
roj
ec
ts 
in 
the
 co
rpo
rat
e s
tra
teg
y a
nd
 it 
is 

im
po
rta
nt 
tha
t w
e h
av
e s
uff
icie
nt 
pro
jec
t s
up
po
rt t
o e
na
ble
 th
es
e t
o b
e p
rog
res
se
d. 
 By
 

wo
rki
ng
 w
ith
 ot
he
r c
ou
nc
ils 
an
d s
ell
ing
 sk
ills
 it 
en
ab
les
 kn
ow
led
ge
 tra
ns
fer
 an
d b
uil
d u
p 

pa
rtn
ers
hip
 w
ork
ing
, b
ut 
als
o a
llo
ws
 us
 to
 us
e t
he
 re
so
urc
es
 m
ore
 fle
xib
ly t
o m

ee
t o
ur 
ow
n 

pro
jec
t m
an
ag
em
en
t d
em
an
ds
.

9,2
00

    
    
    
    
 

13
1,9

00
 To

tal
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 

29
,00

0
10
2,9

00
0

20   
10
2,2
00

    
    

D3
44
00
-38
00

 Bu
sin
es
s &
 Ec
on
om
ic 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

Pr
om
oti
ng
 C
he
lte
nh
am
 Fu
nd
 - T
he
 su
cc
es
sfu
l g
ran
t a
pp
lica
nts
 w
ere
 aw
ard
ed
 in
 la
te 
20
11
. 

Th
ey
 ha
ve
 a 
ye
ar 
to 
co
mp
let
e t
he
ir p
roj
ec
ts 
an
d r
ec
eiv
e t
he
 gr
an
t p
ay
me
nt.

10
2,2
00

    
    
    
 

21   
37
,20
0

    
    
  

D3
44
00
-38
52

 Bu
sin
es
s &
 Ec
on
om
ic 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 

To
 fu
nd
 ec
on
om
ic 
pro
jec
t w
ork
 w
ith
in 
the
 Jo
int
 C
ore
 St
rat
eg
y in
 20
12
/13
.

37
,20
0

    
    
    
   

Pa
ge
 2

Page 36



AP
PE
ND
IX 
7

20
11

/1
2 

CA
RR

Y 
FO

RW
AR

D 
RE

QU
ES

TS
A (
i)

A (
ii)

B
Re
f

Am
ou
nt 
£ 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
Co
de

Co
st 
Ce
ntr
e

Re
as
on
 fo
r c
arr
y f
orw

ard
Ba
se
 Bu
dg
ets

On
e-O

ff B
ud
ge
ts

(N
et 
of 
VA
T)

Am
ou
nts
 ag
ree
d
Am
ou
nts
 ag
ree
d

Am
ou
nts
  

by
 S1
51
 O
ffic
er

by
 S1
51
 O
ffic
er

for
 m
em
be
r

un
de
r d
ele
ga
ted

un
de
r d
ele
ga
ted

ap
pro
va
l

po
we
rs

po
we
rs

22   
34
,40
0

    
    
  

D2
16
00
-87

30
La
nd
 C
ha
rge

s

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
Bo
rou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il is
 w
ork
ing
 jo
int
ly w

ith
 Te
wk
es
bu
ry 
Bo
rou
gh
  a
nd
 G
lou
ce
ste
r 

Cit
y C
ou
nc
ils 
on
 th
e J
oin
t C
ore
 St
rat
eg
y (
JC
S)
 an
d i
ts 
su
pp
ort
ing
 ev
ide
nc
e b
as
e, 
wh
ich
 is
 

eff
ec
tiv
ely
 re
pla
cin
g t
he
 pr
ev
iou
s G

lou
ce
ste
rsh
ire
 C
ou
nty
 C
ou
nc
il r
es
po
ns
ibi
lity
 fo
r th
e 

co
un
ty 
str
uc
tur
e p
lan
. A
s a
 re
su
lt, 
the
re 
are
 em

erg
ing
 fu
nd
ing
 pr
es
su
res
 on
 di
str
ict
s, 
wh
ich
 

mu
st 
en
su
re 
tht
a t
he
ir e
co
no
mi
c s
tra
teg
ies
 ar
e e
ffe
cti
ve
ly a
lig
ne
d w
ith
 th
e J
CS
. It
 is
 

rec
om
me
nd
ed
 th
at 
thi
s s
um
 is
 ca
rrie
d f
orw

ard
 as
 a 
co
nti
ng
en
cy
 ag
ain
st 
the
 ris
k o
f 

pa
rtn
ers
hip
 fu
nd
ing
 re
qu
ire
me
nts
, re
lat
ing
 to
 th
e e
co
no
mi
c e
vid
en
ce
 ba
se
.

34
,40
0

    
    
    
   

23   
3,2
00

    
    
    

D2
18
00
-31
85

 C
he
lte
nh
am
 St
rat
eg
ic 

Pa
rtn
ers
hip
 

To
 fu
nd
 th
e I
ns
pir
ing
 Fa
mi
lie
s P
roj
ec
t

3,2
00

    
    
    
    
 

24   
60
0

    
    
    
   

E2
21
00
-11

29
Ch

elt
 R
ive

rs 
& W

ate
r C

ou
rse

s
To
 fu
nd
 es
se
nti
al 
ma
int
en
an
ce
 w
ork
s, 
as
 pl
an
ne
d.

60
0

    
    
    
    
    

25   
40
0

    
    
    
   

D2
12
50
-39

72
Civ

il E
me

rge
nc
ies

To
 fu
nd
 es
se
nti
al 
ma
int
en
an
ce
 w
ork
s, 
as
 pl
an
ne
d.

40
0

    
    
    
    
    

26   
15
,00
0

    
    
  

E7
25
00

 Bu
ilt 
En
vir
on
me
nt 
Div
isio
n 

To
 fu
nd
 C
he
lte
nh
am
's c
on
trib
uti
on
 to
 a 
Str
ate
gic
 H
ou
sin
g M

ark
et 
As
se
ss
me
nt 
to 
su
pp
ort
 

the
 w
ork
 of
 th
e J
oin
t C
ore
 St
rat
eg
y.

15
,00
0

    
    
    
   

27   
15
,00
0

    
    
  

E7
25
00

 Bu
ilt 
En
vir
on
me
nt 
Div
isio
n 

To
 he
lp 
su
pp
ort
 fo
rth
co
mi
ng
 pl
an
nin
g a
pp
ea
ls.

15
,00
0

    
    
    
   

28   
10
,90
0

    
    
  

E2
11
00
-85
69

 O
ff S
tre
et 
Ca
r P
ark
ing
 - 

Sta
ff  

Su
rpl
us
 ac
hie
ve
d o
n s
taf
f p
ark
ing
 pe
rm
its
 w
ill b
e u
se
d i
n t
he
 fo
rth
co
mi
ng
 ye
ar 
to 
fun
d 

Gr
ee
n T
rav
el 
ini
tia
tiv
es
, a
s a
gre
ed
 w
he
n t
he
 in
itia
tiv
e w
as
 im
ple
me
nte
d.

10
,90
0

    
    
    
   

29   
59
,70
0

    
    
  

H2
24
00
-81
22

 H
om
ele
ss
ne
ss
 

 H
om
ele
ss
ne
ss
 - D

CL
G 
Im
ple
me
nta
tio
n g
ran
ts 
rec
eiv
ed
 - t
o b
e s
pe
nt 
to 
su
pp
ort
 im
pa
ct 
of 

we
lfa
re 
ref
orm

s 
59
,70
0

    
    
    
   

Pa
ge
 3

Page 37



AP
PE
ND
IX 
7

20
11

/1
2 

CA
RR

Y 
FO

RW
AR

D 
RE

QU
ES

TS
A (
i)

A (
ii)

B
Re
f

Am
ou
nt 
£ 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
Co
de

Co
st 
Ce
ntr
e

Re
as
on
 fo
r c
arr
y f
orw

ard
Ba
se
 Bu
dg
ets

On
e-O

ff B
ud
ge
ts

(N
et 
of 
VA
T)

Am
ou
nts
 ag
ree
d
Am
ou
nts
 ag
ree
d

Am
ou
nts
  

by
 S1
51
 O
ffic
er

by
 S1
51
 O
ffic
er

for
 m
em
be
r

un
de
r d
ele
ga
ted

un
de
r d
ele
ga
ted

ap
pro
va
l

po
we
rs

po
we
rs

30   
11
4,6
00

    
    

E1
11
10

 C
he
lte
nh
am
 En
vir
on
me
nta
l 

Fu
nd
 

Th
e f
un
din
g h
as
 be
en
 al
loc
ate
d t
o v
ari
ou
s i
mp
rov
em
en
t p
roj
ec
ts 
in 
the
 to
wn
, th
e b
ala
nc
e 

of 
the
 fu
nd
ing
 w
ill b
e u
tilis
ed
 as
 th
e p
roj
ec
ts 
are
 co
mp
let
ed
 in
 20
12
/13
.

11
4,6
00

    
    
    
 

39
3,2

00
 To

tal
 B
uil
t E
nv
iro
nm

en
t 

10
9,2

00
25
4,0

00
30
,00

0

31   
4,8
00

    
    
    

C2
21
20
-38
74

 Pa
rks
 an
d G

ard
en
s 

To
 fu
nd
 Le
ck
ha
mp
ton
 H
ill f
en
cin
g c
os
ts 
of 
£4
,80
0 (
tot
al 
co
st 
£2
2,0
00
 of
 w
hic
h w
e w
ill b
e 

cla
im
ing
 ba
ck
 £1
7,2
00
 fro
m 
Na
tur
al 
En
gla
nd
)

4,8
00

    
    
    
    
 

32   
10
,00
0

    
    
  

E3
42
00
-46
04

 N
PR
 En
vir
on
me
nta
l 

Ma
int
en
ac
e 

To
 fu
nd
 th
e b
ud
ge
t re
du
cti
on
 as
 im
ple
me
nte
d b
y G
lou
ce
ste
rsh
ire
 C
ou
nty
 C
ou
nc
il r
ela
tin
g 

to 
the
 cu
ttin
g o
f g
ras
s v
erg
es
. T
his
 w
ork
 is
 de
live
red
 th
rou
gh
 th
e m

ini
 H
igh
wa
ys
 Ag
en
cy
 

co
ntr
ac
t.

10
,00
0

    
    
    
   

33   
12
,00
0

    
    
  

C2
31
80
-39
20

 R
ec
yc
lin
g C
oll
ec
tio
n 

Sc
he
me
s 

To
 fu
nd
 re
cy
clin
g c
ale
nd
ars
 no
t p
rod
uc
ed
 in
 20
12
/13
. In
ste
ad
, th
e c
om
mi
ss
ion
er 
wil
l b
e 

pro
du
cin
g s
om
e l
ite
rat
ure
 an
d c
ale
nd
ars
 in
 th
e n
ew
 fin
an
cia
l ye
ar.

12
,00
0

    
    
    
   

34   
20
,00
0

    
    
  

 C
23
12
0-3
50
1 

 R
ec
yc
lin
g -
 C
A S

ite
 

To
 fu
nd
 re
cy
clin
g c
en
tre
 im
pro
ve
me
nts
. It
 w
as
 ho
pe
d t
o b
e a
ble
 to
 ac
hie
ve
 th
is 
in 
the
 

fin
an
cia
l ye
ar 
20
11
/12
, h
ow
ev
er,
 th
is 
wil
l n
ow
 no
t b
e p
os
sib
le 
du
e t
o p
roj
ec
t s
lip
pa
ge
 

res
ult
ing
 fro
m 
the
 pr
es
su
res
 of
 th
e b
us
ine
ss
 ch
an
ge
 pr
og
ram

20
,00
0

    
    
    
   

46
,80

0
 To

tal
 O
pe
rat
ion

s 
36
,80

0
10
,00

0

35   
20
,00
0

    
    
  

D1
13
00
-01
09

 Fi
na
nc
ial
 Se
rvi
ce
s 

Fu
nd
ing
 re
ce
ive
d v
ia 
the
 gi
ftin
g a
rra
ng
em
en
ts 
in 
lie
u o
f b
ac
k f
illin
g u
nd
er 
the
 G
O 

Pr
og
ram

me
 w
hic
h w
ill b
e u
se
d d
uri
ng
 20
12
/13
 to
 co
nti
nu
e b
ac
k-f
illin
g m

em
be
rs 
of 
sta
ff 

tha
t h
av
e b
ee
n s
ec
on
de
d t
o t
he
 G
O 
Pr
og
ram

me
.

20
,00
0

    
    
    
   

36   
25
,00
0

    
    
  

D1
18
00
-01
01

 IT
 Se
rvi
ce
s 

To
 fu
nd
 ex
ter
na
l S
tra
teg
ic 
IC
T a
dv
ice
 in
 20
12
/13
 to
 su
pp
ort
 th
e s
ou
rci
ng
 st
rat
eg
y f
or 
IC
T.

25
,00
0

    
    
    
   

37   
82
,70
0

    
    
  

D1
18
20
-36
60

 IT
 In
fra
str
uc
tur
e 

To
 fu
nd
 th
e c
on
tin
ue
d r
oll
ing
 re
pla
ce
me
nt 
of 
IC
T e
qu
ipm

en
t.

82
,70
0

    
    
    
   

Pa
ge
 4

Page 38



AP
PE
ND
IX 
7

20
11

/1
2 

CA
RR

Y 
FO

RW
AR

D 
RE

QU
ES

TS
A (
i)

A (
ii)

B
Re
f

Am
ou
nt 
£ 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
Co
de

Co
st 
Ce
ntr
e

Re
as
on
 fo
r c
arr
y f
orw

ard
Ba
se
 Bu
dg
ets

On
e-O

ff B
ud
ge
ts

(N
et 
of 
VA
T)

Am
ou
nts
 ag
ree
d
Am
ou
nts
 ag
ree
d

Am
ou
nts
  

by
 S1
51
 O
ffic
er

by
 S1
51
 O
ffic
er

for
 m
em
be
r

un
de
r d
ele
ga
ted

un
de
r d
ele
ga
ted

ap
pro
va
l

po
we
rs

po
we
rs

38   
17
,00
0

    
    
  

D1
23
00
-01
09

 H
um
an
 R
es
ou
rce
s 

To
 su
pp
ort
 th
e l
oc
al 
im
ple
me
nta
tio
n o
f A
gre
ss
o a
nd
 ro
ll-o
ut 
of 
se
lf s
erv
ice
 fu
nc
tio
na
lity
 in
 

Se
pte
mb
er 
20
12
, in
clu
din
g f
un
din
g t
he
 w
ork
ing
 of
 ad
dit
ion
al 
ho
urs
.

17
,00
0

    
    
    
   

39   
8,0
00

    
    
    

D1
23
10
-02
05

 C
orp
ora
te 
Tra
ini
ng
 

To
 su
pp
ort
 tra
ini
ng
 re
qu
ire
me
nts
 fo
llo
win
g t
he
 im
ple
me
nta
tio
n o
f A
gre
ss
o &
 G
O 
Sh
are
d 

Se
rvi
ce
s.

8,0
00

    
    
    
    
 

40   
4,2
00

    
    
    

D2
12
60
-02
05

 H
ea
lth
 & 
Sa
fet
y 

To
 fu
nd
 re
fre
sh
er 
H&
S t
rai
nin
g w
hic
h c
ou
ld 
no
t b
e a
rra
ng
ed
 in
 20
11
/12
 du
e t
o t
rai
ne
r 

av
ail
ab
ility
.

4,2
00

    
    
    
    
 

41   
8,0
00

    
    
    

D1
24
40
-36
02

 C
ou
nc
il T
ax
 

Us
e o
f g
en
era
l u
nd
ers
pe
nd
 in
 C
ou
nc
il T
ax
 ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
bu
dg
ets
 to
 su
pp
ort
 th
e i
nc
rea
se
d 

co
st 
of 
po
sta
ge
.

8,0
00

    
    
    
    
 

42   
2,9
00

    
    
    

D1
24
60
-01
01

 Pr
op
ert
y I
ns
pe
cti
on
 

To
 he
lp 
fun
d c
ov
er 
for
 lo
ng
 te
rm
 si
ck
ne
ss
 w
ith
in 
the
 C
ou
nc
il T
ax
 te
am
.

2,9
00

    
    
    
    
 

43   
13
,00
0

    
    
  

D1
25
00
-01
01

 Pr
op
ert
y S
erv
ice
s 

To
 su
pp
ort
 m
ate
rni
ty 
lea
ve
 co
ve
r a
nd
 to
 pr
ov
ide
 ad
mi
n s
up
po
rt t
o c
om
ple
te 
the
 po
pu
lat
ion
 

of 
Un
ifo
rm
 sy
ste
m 
wit
h p
rop
ert
y d
ata
.

13
,00
0

    
    
    
   

44   
3,4
00

    
    
    

L3
22
00
-13
30

 C
hri
stm

as
 in
 C
he
lte
nh
am
 

To
 su
pp
ort
 on
go
ing
 m
ain
ten
an
ce
 an
d r
ep
lac
em
en
t o
f li
gh
ts.

3,4
00

    
    
    
    
 

18
4,2

00
 To

tal
 R
es
ou
rce

s 
11
4,2

00
62
,00

0
8,0

00

45   
12
,40
0

    
    
  

GO
CO
E

 ER
P I
mp
lem

en
tat
ion
 

 To
 su
pp
ort
 re
sid
ua
l im
ple
me
nta
tio
n c
os
ts 
of 
the
 ne
w 
ER
P s
ys
tem

 an
d t
he
 cr
ea
tio
n o
f a
 

sh
are
d s
erv
ice
 fo
r F
ina
nc
e, 
Pr
oc
ure
me
nt,
 H
R 
an
d P
ay
rol
l in
 20
12
/13
 

12
,40
0

    
    
    
   

Pa
ge
 5

Page 39



AP
PE
ND
IX 
7

20
11

/1
2 

CA
RR

Y 
FO

RW
AR

D 
RE

QU
ES

TS
A (
i)

A (
ii)

B
Re
f

Am
ou
nt 
£ 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
Co
de

Co
st 
Ce
ntr
e

Re
as
on
 fo
r c
arr
y f
orw

ard
Ba
se
 Bu
dg
ets

On
e-O

ff B
ud
ge
ts

(N
et 
of 
VA
T)

Am
ou
nts
 ag
ree
d
Am
ou
nts
 ag
ree
d

Am
ou
nts
  

by
 S1
51
 O
ffic
er

by
 S1
51
 O
ffic
er

for
 m
em
be
r

un
de
r d
ele
ga
ted

un
de
r d
ele
ga
ted

ap
pro
va
l

po
we
rs

po
we
rs

46   
53
,50
0

    
    
  

IT0
05
8

 O
rga
nis
ati
on
 & 

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
wo
rk 

Th
is 
fun
din
g w
as
 ag
ree
d b
y c
ou
nc
il t
o s
up
po
rt t
he
 si
gn
ific
an
t b
us
ine
ss
 ch
an
ge
 re
qu
ire
d i
n 

ord
er 
to 
de
live
r s
om
e o
f th
e c
ou
nc
ils 
ke
y p
roj
ec
ts 
inc
lud
ing
 G
O.
 O
uts
tan
din
g f
un
din
g i
s 

all
oc
ate
d t
o s
up
po
rtin
g t
he
 us
e o
f A
ch
iev
e B
rea
kth
rou
gh
 w
ith
in 
ou
r n
ew
 pa
rtn
ers
hip
 

arr
an
ge
me
nts
; fo
r in
ter
im
 pr
oc
ure
me
nt 
ca
pa
cit
y; 
for
 su
pp
ort
 fo
r th
e i
mp
lem

en
tat
ion
 of
 G
O;
 

for
 le
arn
ing
 an
d d
ev
elo
pm
en
t o
f s
taf
f in
 su
pp
ort
 of
 co
mm

iss
ion
ing
, a
nd
 fo
r e
xte
rna
l a
dv
ice
 

to 
the
 Le
isu
re 
an
d C
ult
ure
 re
vie
w.
  T
his
 un
de
rsp
en
d i
s n
ee
de
d t
o c
om
ple
te 
the
 w
ork
 

str
ea
ms
 in
 20
12
/13
.

53
,50
0

    
    
    
   

47   
18
,00
0

    
    
  

IT0
06
2

 W
ork
ing
 fle
xib
ly 

To
 fu
nd
 th
e f
urt
he
r ro
llo
ut 
of 
ne
w 
tec
hn
olo
gie
s w
hic
h s
up
po
rt f
lex
ibl
e w
ork
ing

18
,00
0

    
    
    
   

48   
16
6,7
00

    
    

IT0
07
1

 R
ev
s &
 Be
ns
 so
urc
ing
 

str
ate
gy
 

To
 fu
nd
 po
ten
tia
l c
oll
ab
ora
tiv
e w
ork
ing
 w
ith
 ot
he
r c
ou
nc
ils.
 Ba
lan
ce
 of
 £1
41
,70
0 t
o b
e 

us
ed
 to
 su
pp
ort
 IC
T d
ev
elo
pm
en
t - 
se
e b
elo
w 
ref
 49
.

25
,00
0

    
    
    
   

49   
9,5
00

    
    
    

IT0
07
3

 IT
 Se
rvi
ce
s s
ou
rci
ng
 

str
ate
gy
 

To
 fu
nd
 th
e d
ev
elo
pm
en
t o
f IC
T i
nc
lud
ing
 ad
dre
ss
ing
 bu
sin
es
s c
on
tin
uit
y is
su
es
 (c
orp
ora
te 

ris
k r
eg
ist
er 
34
b),
 IC
T i
nfr
as
tru
ctu
re 
str
ate
gy
 (w
ork
 is
 un
de
rw
ay
 to
 de
tem

ine
 fu
tur
e I
CT
 

inv
es
tm
en
t re
qu
ire
me
nts
) a
nd
 se
rvi
ce
 so
urc
ing
 st
rat
eg
y (
inc
lud
ing
 th
e p
os
sib
ility
 of
 a 

sh
are
d s
erv
ice
)

9,5
00

    
    
    
    
 

14
1,7
00

    
    
    
 

50   
2,5
00

    
    
    

IT0
07
2

 C
us
tom

er 
Se
rvi
ce
s s
ou
rci
ng
 

str
ate
gy
 

To
 su
pp
ort
 in
ve
stm

en
t in
 co
lla
bo
rat
ive
 w
ork
ing
 w
ith
 or
the
r c
ou
nc
ils 
fol
low
ing
 th
e c
rea
tio
n 

of 
Ub
ico
 in
clu
din
g t
he
 de
ve
lop
me
nt 
of 
cu
sto
me
r s
erv
ice
s i
nte
rfa
ce
s (
inc
lud
ing
 IC
T 

sy
ste
ms
) w
ith
 U
bic
o.

2,5
00

    
    
    
    
 

51   
10
5,8
00

    
    

IT0
07
4

 W
as
te 
Co
mp
an
y 

To
  fu
nd
 th
e o
ne
-of
f o
n-g
oin
g s
et-
up
 co
sts
 as
so
cia
ted
 w
ith
 th
e c
rea
tio
n o
f U
bic
o L
td.
 

Fu
nd
s m

ay
 al
so
 be
 re
qu
ire
d t
o b
rin
g o
n b
oa
rd 
po
ten
tia
l n
ew
 pa
rtn
ers
 in
to 
Ub
ico
 w
ith
 

ne
go
tia
tio
ns
 al
rea
dy
 un
de
rw
ay
 w
ith
 Te
wk
es
bu
ry 
BC
 co
mm

iss
ion
ers
.

10
5,8
00

    
    
    
 

36
8,4

00
 To

tal
 B
us
ine

ss
 C
ha
ng
e 

0
22
6,7

00
14
1,7

00

1,1
70
,50

0
 To

tal
 C
arr

y F
or
wa

rd
 R
eq
ue
sts

 
31
0,2

00
64
5,6

00
21
4,7

00

Pa
ge
 6

Page 40



US
E 
OF

 B
AL

AN
CE

S 
AN

D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
AP

PE
ND

IX
 8

DE
TA

ILE
D 
RE

SE
RV

E 
MO

VE
ME

NT
S

RS
VE

BU
DG

ET
BO

OK
RE

VI
SE

D
AC

TU
AL

VA
RI
AN

CE
RE

F:
20

11
/12

20
11

/12
20

11
/12

20
11

/12
NO

TE
£

£
£

£
US

E 
OF

 B
AL

AN
CE

S 
& 
RE

SE
RV

ES
 - S

UM
MA

RY

73
01

Co
ntr
ibu
tio
ns
 to
 re
se
rve

s -
 se
e d

eta
il b
elo
w*

1,6
58
,84

3
1,8

64
,23

6
3,5

67
,32

3
1,6

24
,38

7
82
40

Co
ntr
ibu
tio
ns
 fro

m 
res

erv
es
 - s

ee
 de

tai
l b
elo
w 
**

-1,
00
3,1

00
-4,
26
5,8

60
-4,
27
0,9

73
-5,
11
3

82
48

Co
ntr
ibu
tio
ns
 fro

m 
res

erv
es
 to
 fu
nd
 on

e o
ff r
ev
en
ue
 - 

se
e d

eta
il b
elo
w*
**

-48
2,1

00
-58

8,4
00

-48
0,7

62
10
7,6

38
17

3,6
43

-2,
99

0,0
24

-1,
18

4,4
13

1,7
26

,91
1

*  
CO

NT
RI
BU

TIO
NS

 TO
 R
ES

ER
VE

S
BR

02
Pe
ns
ion
 R
es
erv

e
15
0,0

00
15
0,0

00
15
0,0

00
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 pe

ns
ion
 re
se
rve

 to
 fu
nd
 fu
tur
e p

en
sio
n a

nd
 au

gm
en
tat
ion
 co
sts
 

BR
12

Ho
us
e S

urv
ey
 R
es
erv

e
7,5

00
7,5

00
7,5

00
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
wa
rds

 su
rve

y e
ve
ry 
3 y
ea
rs

BR
12

Ho
us
e S

urv
ey
 R
es
erv

e
0R

es
erv

e r
ea
lig
nm

en
t fr
om

 H
ou
sin
g N

ee
ds
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
Re
se
rve

BR
14

Flo
od
 Al
lev
iat
ion
 R
es
erv

e
32
,40

1
32
,40

1C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 C
ivil
 Em

erg
en
cie
s -
 flo

od
 al
lie
via
tio
n w

ork
s 

BR
15

Ar
t G
all
ery

 & 
Mu

se
um

 D
ev
elo
pm

en
t R
es
erv

e
12
2,0

00
14
1,8

00
19
,80

0
BR

45
Jo
int
 C
ore

 St
rat
eg
y R

es
erv

e
3,6

67
3,6

67
Co
ntr
ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d t
he
 Jo
int
 C
ore

 St
rat
eg
y 

BR
58

Civ
ic 
Pr
ide
 R
es
erv

e
11
1,5

00
11
1,5

00
Co
ntr
ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d D

ev
elo
pm

en
t ta

sk
 fo
rce

 pr
oje
cts
 12

/13
BR

63
Re
nt 
All
ow
an
ce
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n R

es
erv

e
29
,30

0
29
,30

0
29
,30

0
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 fu
tur
e c
os
ts 
Iin
 lie
u o

f a
dd
itio
na
l a
dm

ini
str
ati
on
 gr
an
t

BR
63

Re
nt 
All
ow
an
ce
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n R

es
erv

e
78
,70

0
Co
ntr
ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d f
utu

re 
co
sts
 

BR
67

Int
ere

st 
Eq
ua
lisa

tio
n R

es
erv

e
38
1,0

00
.00

38
1,0

00
Co
ntr
ibu
tio
n t
o c
ov
er 
an
y a
dd
itio
na
l lo
ss
es
 ar
isin

g i
n t
he
 va
lue
 of
 Ic
ela
nd
ic 
de
po
sit
s 

an
d/o

r to
 re
du
ce
 th
e b

orr
ow
ing
 ar
isin

g f
rom

 th
e c
ap
ita
lisa

tio
n o

f th
e l
os
se
s

BR
67

Int
ere

st 
Eq
ua
lisa

tio
n R

es
erv

e
12
0,2

19
.00

12
0,2

19
Co
ntr
ibu
tio
n t
o c
ov
er 
im
pa
irm

en
t a
dju
stm

en
t re

 Ic
ela
nd
ic 
ba
nk
s 

BR
76

Ele
cti
on
s R

es
erv

e
61
,20

0
61
,20

0
61
,20

0
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 fu
tur
e e

lec
tio
n c
os
ts

BR
89

Pr
op
ert
y R

ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew
als
 R
es
erv

e
69
3,0

00
69
3,0

00
69
3,0

00
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Pl
an
ne
d M

ain
ten

an
ce
 pr
og
ram

me

BR
91

Ca
rry
 fo
rw
ard

 re
qu
es
ts 
ap
pro

ve
d b

y C
FO

 un
de
r 

de
leg
ate

d p
ow
ers

95
5,8

00
95
5,8

00
Ca
rry
 fo
rw
ard

 of
 bu

dg
ets
 to
 fu
nd
 ex
pe
nd
itu
re 
in 
lin
e w

ith
 or
igi
na
l b
ud
ge
t - 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
7

BR
92

Re
ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O
utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

70
0,0

00
75
1,6

93
75
1,6

93
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 ca
pit
al 
res

erv
e (
su
bje
ct 
to 
fut
ure

 re
vie
w 
of 
ca
pit
al 
fin
an
cin
g s
tra
teg

y)
BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
16
,30

0
16
,30

0
16
,30

0
0T

ran
sfe

r to
 G
en
era

l B
ala
nc
es
 in
 re
sp
ec
t o
f A
ud
it p
art
ne
rsh

ip 
sa
vin
gs

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
10
,64

7
10
,64

7
Re
se
rve

 re
-al
ign
me

nt 
of 
Sin

gle
 St
atu

s r
es
erv

e t
o G

en
era

l b
ala
nc
es

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
21
,05

3
21
,05

3
Re
se
rve

 re
-al
ign
me

nt 
of 
Lo
ca
l A
uth

ori
ty 
Bu
sin
es
s G

row
th 
Inc
en
tiv
e S

ch
em

e (
LA
BG

I) 
res

erv
e t
o G

en
era

l b
ala
nc
es

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
1,5

43
1,5

43
1,5

43
0T

ran
sfe

r to
 G
en
era

l B
ala
nc
es

1,6
58

,84
3

1,8
64

,23
6

3,5
67

,32
3

1,6
24

,38
7

** 
CO

NT
RI
BU

TIO
NS

 FR
OM

 R
ES

ER
VE

S
BR

01
Sin

gle
 St
atu

s R
es
erv

e
-3,
60
0

-3,
60
0

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 tra

ns
itio
na
l c
os
ts 
of 
sin
gle
 st
atu

s
BR

01
Sin

gle
 St
atu

s R
es
erv

e
-10

,64
7

-10
,64

7
Re
se
rve

 re
-al
ign
me

nt 
of 
Sin

gle
 St
atu

s r
es
erv

e t
o G

en
era

l b
ala
nc
es

Pa
ge
 1

Page 41



US
E 
OF

 B
AL

AN
CE

S 
AN

D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
AP

PE
ND

IX
 8

DE
TA

ILE
D 
RE

SE
RV

E 
MO

VE
ME

NT
S

RS
VE

BU
DG

ET
BO

OK
RE

VI
SE

D
AC

TU
AL

VA
RI
AN

CE
RE

F:
20

11
/12

20
11

/12
20

11
/12

20
11

/12
NO

TE
£

£
£

£

BR
02

Pe
ns
ion
 R
es
erv

e
-10

0,0
00

-10
0,0

00
-10

0,0
00

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 in
cre

as
ed
 pe

ns
ion
 co
sts
 as
 a 
res

ult
 of
 th
e 2

00
4 t
rie
nn
ial
 re
va
lua
tio
n

BR
05

IBS
 Li
ce
ns
e R

es
erv

e
-1,
80
0

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 co
st 
of 
IBS

 lic
en
ce

BR
05

IBS
 Li
ce
ns
e R

es
erv

e
-5,
00
0

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 m
ain
ten

an
ce
 on

 up
gra

de
s t
o C

ou
nc
il T

ax
 / B

en
efi
ts 
sy
ste
m

BR
09

Cu
ltu
ral
 D
ev
elo
pm

en
t R
es
erv

e
-15

,00
0

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Pl
ay
ho
us
e T

he
atr
e d

ev
elo
pm

en
t

BR
10

Bu
sin
es
s G

row
th 
Inc
en
tiv
e S

ch
em

e (
LA
BG

I) R
es
erv

e
-30

,00
0

-35
,00

0
-35

,00
0

0Co
ntr
ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d e

co
no
mi
c a
nd
 cu
ltu
ral
 de

ve
lop
me

nt 
as
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ou
nc
il in

 
pre

vio
us
 fin

an
cia
l y
ea
ras

BR
10

Bu
sin
es
s G

row
th 
Inc
en
tiv
e S

ch
em

e (
LA
BG

I) R
es
erv

e
-10

,00
0

-10
,00

0
-10

,00
0

0Co
ntr
ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d e

co
no
mi
c a
nd
 cu
ltu
ral
 de

ve
lop
me

nt 
as
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ou
nc
il 

29
/6/
09

BR
10

Bu
sin
es
s G

row
th 
Inc
en
tiv
e S

ch
em

e (
LA
BG

I) R
es
erv

e
-21

,05
3

-21
,05

3
Re
se
rve

 re
-al
ign
me

nt 
of 
Lo
ca
l A
uth

ori
ty 
Bu
sin
es
s G

row
th 
Inc
en
tiv
e S

ch
em

e (
LA
BG

I) 
res

erv
e t
o G

en
era

l b
ala
nc
es

BR
12

Ho
us
e S

urv
ey
 R
es
erv

e
-32

,00
0

-32
,00

0
-32

,00
0

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 ho

us
ing
 st
oc
k c
on
dit
ion
s s
urv

ey
 co
sts

BR
14

Flo
od
 Al
lev
iat
ion
 R
es
erv

e
-50

,00
0

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 flo

od
 al
lev
iat
ion
 w
ork

s
BR

14
Flo

od
 Al
lev
iat
ion
 R
es
erv

e
-30

,00
0

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 lo
ca
l fl
oo
d a

lle
via
tio
n w

ork
s f
or 
3 y
ea
rs 
(fr
om

 EU
 G
ran

t)
BR

14
Flo

od
 Al
lev
iat
ion
 R
es
erv

e
-74

,70
0

-13
3,9

10
-13

3,9
10

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Se

ve
rn 
Tre

nt 
W
ate

r c
om

mu
nit
y f
un
d s
ch
em

es
BR

25
Pu
mp

 R
oo
m 
Ins
ura

nc
e R

es
erv

e
-11

,00
0

-11
,00

0
0I
ns
ura

nc
e r
es
erv

e f
or 
sto
len
 je
we
lle
ry

BR
27

TIC
 Sh

op
 R
es
erv

e
-11

,70
0

-11
,70

0
0A

cc
um

ula
ted

 pr
ofi
ts 
he
ld 
for
 TI
C 
sh
op
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
BR

30
GF

 In
su
ran

ce
 R
es
erv

e
-38

,60
0

-38
,60

0
0T

o f
un
d r
isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t in
itia
tiv
es
 / e

xc
es
s /
 pr
em

ium
 in
cre

as
es

BR
52

Co
mm

ute
d M

ain
ten

an
ce
 

-39
,00

0
-39

,00
0

-39
,00

0
0U

se
 of
 de

ve
lop
ers

 co
ntr
ibu
tio
ns
 to
 fu
nd
 m
ain
ten

an
ce
 co
sts

BR
54

Le
ga
l S
taf
fin
g R

es
erv

e
-19

,35
0

-19
,35

0
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 se
t u
p c
os
ts 
of 
On
e L

eg
al

BR
58

Civ
ic 
Pr
ide
 R
es
erv

e
-10

8,7
00

-14
5,6

00
-14

5,6
00

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Pr
oje
ct 
Ma

na
ge
r

BR
58

Civ
ic 
Pr
ide
 R
es
erv

e
-11

2,5
00

-11
2,5

00
-11

2,5
00

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 pr
oje
ct 
co
sts

BR
63

Re
nt 
All
ow
an
ce
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n R

es
erv

e
-68

,40
0

-68
,40

0
-68

,40
0

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 in
cre

as
ed
 ne

t c
os
t c
om

pa
red

 to
 bu

dg
et

BR
65

Lic
en
sin
g F

ee
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n R

es
erv

e
-17

,00
0

-17
,00

0
-17

,00
0

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Ta

xi 
Ma

rsh
all
s i
n 2

00
9/1

0

BR
66

Int
ere

st 
Eq
ua
lisa

tio
n

-2,
50
0,0

00
-2,
50
0,0

00
0To

 co
ve
r a
ny
 ad

dit
ion
al 
los
se
s a
ris
ing
 in
 th
e v
alu
e o

f Ic
ela
nd
ic 
de
po
sit
s a
nd
/or
 to
 

red
uc
e t
he
 bo

rro
win

g a
ris
ing
 fro

m 
the

 ca
pit
ali
sa
tio
n o

f th
e l
os
se
s

BR
72

Lo
ca
l P
lan
 R
es
erv

e
-55

,00
0

-55
,00

0
0F

un
d c
yc
lica

l c
os
t o
f lo

ca
l p
lan
 in
qu
iry

BR
88

IT 
Re
pa
irs
 & 
Re
ne
wa
ls 
Re
se
rve

-42
,40

0
-79

,40
0

-79
,40

0
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 IT
 in
fra
str
uc
tur
e

BR
89

Pr
op
ert
y R

ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew
als
 R
es
erv

e
-15

,00
0

-60
,00

0
-60

,00
0

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Ev

ery
ma

n T
he
atr
e g

ran
t

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
-71

,60
0

-71
,60

0
-71

,60
0

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 G
O 
Pr
og
ram

me

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
-18

0,0
00

-33
9,3

00
-34

4,4
13

-5,
11
3Co

ntr
ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d t
he
 on

e o
ff s

taf
fin
g c
os
ts 
as
so
cia
ted

 w
ith
 th
e 2

01
0/1

1 b
ud
ge
t 

pro
po
sa
ls

BR
91

20
10
/11

 ca
rry
 fo
rw
ard

 re
se
rve

s c
rea

ted
 at
 31

.3.
11

-35
1,2

00
-35

1,2
00

0A
pp
rov

ed
 ca
rry
 fo
rw
ard

s 
-1,

00
3,1

00
-4,

26
5,8

60
-4,

27
0,9

73
-5,

11
3

Pa
ge
 2

Page 42



US
E 
OF

 B
AL

AN
CE

S 
AN

D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
AP

PE
ND

IX
 8

DE
TA

ILE
D 
RE

SE
RV

E 
MO

VE
ME

NT
S

RS
VE

BU
DG

ET
BO

OK
RE

VI
SE

D
AC

TU
AL

VA
RI
AN

CE
RE

F:
20

11
/12

20
11

/12
20

11
/12

20
11

/12
NO

TE
£

£
£

£

***
 C
ON

TR
IB
UT

IO
NS

 FR
OM

 R
ES

ER
VE

S 
TO

 FU
ND

 O
NE

 O
FF

 R
EV

EN
UE

BR
89

Pr
op
ert
y R

ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew
als
 R
es
erv

e
-48

2,1
00

-58
8,4

00
-42

7,4
00

16
1,0

00
To
 fu
nd
 Pr
og
ram

me
d M

ain
ten

an
ce

BR
92

Ca
pit
al 
Re
se
rve

-19
,00

4
-19

,00
4C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 ca
pit
al 
pro

gra
mm

e r
ec
las
sif
ied
 as
 re
ve
nu
e- 
lan
d &

 pr
es
ale
 co
sts

BR
92

Ca
pit
al 
Re
se
rve

-34
,35

8
-34

,35
8C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 ca
pit
al 
pro

gra
mm

e r
ec
las
sif
ied
 as
 re
ve
nu
e

-48
2,1

00
-58

8,4
00

-48
0,7

62
10

7,6
38

Pa
ge
 3

Page 43



US
E 
OF

 B
AL

AN
CE

S 
AN

D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
AP

PE
ND

IX
 8

Pa
ge
 4

Page 44



US
E 
OF

 B
AL

AN
CE

S 
AN

D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
AP

PE
ND

IX
 8

Co
ntr
ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d i
nc
rea

se
d p

en
sio
n c
os
ts 
as
 a 
res

ult
 of
 th
e 2

00
4 t
rie
nn
ial
 re
va
lua
tio
n

Pa
ge
 5

Page 45



US
E 
OF

 B
AL

AN
CE

S 
AN

D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
AP

PE
ND

IX
 8

Pa
ge
 6

Page 46



   

Council 25th June 2012   Treasury outturn 2011/12  
 Page 1 of 8  
  

       Appendix 9 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Treasury Management Panel – 13th June 2012  

Treasury Outturn 2011/12 
Report of the Director, Resources   

1. Introduction 
1.1   Treasury Management in Local Government is governed by the CIPFA Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services and this Council has adopted 
the Code and complies with its requirements, one of which is the receipt by 
Cabinet/Council of an Annual Review Report after the financial year end. 

2.     Economic Outlook for 2011/12 
2.1   At the time of determining the Treasury Strategy Statement for 2011/12 in February 

2011, there were tentative signs that the UK was emerging from recession with the 
worst of the financial crisis behind it. Recovery in growth was expected to be slow and 
uneven as the austerity measures announced in the 2010 Comprehensive Spending 
Review were implemented in order to bring down the budget deficit and government 
borrowing and rebalance the economy and public sector finances. Inflation measured 
by the Consumer Price Index (CPI) had remained stubbornly above 3% and 
unemployment was at a 16-year high at 2.5 million and was expected to rise as the 
public and private sector contracted. There was also a high degree of uncertainty 
surrounding Eurozone sovereign debt sustainability. 

2.2    Inflation during 2011/12 remained high with CPI and the Retail Price Index (RPI) rising 
in September 2011 to 5.2% and 5.6% respectively primarily due to escalating utility 
prices and the January 2011 increase in VAT to 20%. Inflation eased slowly as 
reductions in transport costs, food prices, intensifying competition amongst retailers 
and supermarkets and the VAT effect falling out in 2012, pushed February 2012 CPI 
down to 3.4% and RPI to 3.7%. This, however, was not enough to offset low wage 
growth and, as result, Britons suffered the biggest drop in disposable income in more 
than three decades. 

2.3   Growth, on the other hand remained indefinable. The Bank’s Quarterly Inflation Reports 
painted a bleak picture as the outlook was downgraded to around 1% in 2011 and 
2012. The unresolved problems in the Eurozone weighed negatively on global 
economic prospects. UK Gross Domestic Product was positive in only the first and 
third calendar quarters of 2011 and registered just 0.5% for the whole of 2011. 
Unemployment rose to 2.68million and worryingly youth unemployment broke through 
the 1 million barrier. House prices struggled to show sustained growth and consumer 
confidence remained fragile. 

2.4   It was not surprising that the Bank of England Monetary Policy Committee maintained 
the status quo on the Bank Rate which has now been held at 0.5% since March 2009, 
but increased asset purchases by £75bn in October 2011 and another £50bn in 
February 2012 taking the Quantitative Easing (QE) total to £325bn.  The government 
struck broadly to its austerity plans as the economy was rebalancing slowly. The 

Page 47



   

Council 25th June 2012   Treasury outturn 2011/12  
 Page 2 of 8  
  

opinion of the independent Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) was that the 
government was on track to meet its fiscal targets but identified oil price shocks and a 
further deterioration in Europe as the main risks to the outlook for growth and in 
meeting the fiscal target. 

2.5  The US economy continued to show tentative, positive signs of growth alongside a 
gradual decline in the unemployment rate. The US Federal Reserve (the Fed) 
committed to keeping policy rates low until 2014, although a modest shift in the Fed’s 
language in March, alongside an improvement in economic activity, cast doubts about 
the stability of the Fed’s policy commitment. 

2.6   In Europe, sovereign debt problems for some minor countries became critical. Several 
policy initiatives were largely unsuccessful. Two bailout packages were required for 
Greece and one for Portugal, and the contagion spread to Spain and Italy whose 
sovereign bonds came under increased stress in November 2011. Rating agencies 
downgraded nine European sovereigns. 

        3.      Portfolio position 1/4/11-31/3/12 
                    Movements in the Council’s borrowing during 2011/12 can be seen in the table below.  

Long term loans are deemed to be those repayable over a period of more than one 
year. 

Source of Loan 
 

Temporary 
Borrowing 

Balance at 
1 April 2011 

                   
                      £ 

Raised 
during 
the year 

                      £ 

Repaid  
during 
the year 

                      £ 

Balance at 
31 March  
2012 
£ 

 
 - Building Societies 
 
 - Banks 
  
 - Local Authorities 
 
Temporary                 
Investment 

 
5,000,000 

 
0 

8,000,000 
 
 

323,759 

 
0 
 

0 
 

104,840,000 
 
 

1,022,896 

 
5,000,000 

0 
 

107,740,000 
 
 

1,343,655 

 
                0            

 
 0 

   
5,100,000 

 
 

3,000 
Total Short Term 
Borrowing 

 
      13,323,759 

 
105,862,896 

 
114,083,655 

 
5,103,000 

 
Long Term 
Borrowing 

                
    

 
 - Public  
Works Loan 
 Board 
 
- Market  Loans 

11,000,0000 

15,900,0000 
 

 
 

29,814,000 
 
 

0 

 
 

7,669 
 
 

0 

 
 

40,806,331 
 
 

15,900,000 

Long Term 
Borrowing 26,900,000 

 
29,814,000 

 
7,669 

 
56,706,331 

Total External 
Borrowing 40,223,759 

 
135,676,896 

 
114,091,324 

 
61,809,331 

 
 

Page 48



   

Council 25th June 2012   Treasury outturn 2011/12  
 Page 3 of 8  
  

3.1  In 2011/12 the Council’s actual debt management costs (borrowing) were £1,223,606 
compared to a revised budget of £1,216,700, a deficit  of £6,906. Exchange rate losses 
on Icelandic distributions received in 2011/2012 amounted to £9,303.The weighted 
average rate on all loans for 2011/12 was 3.25% (2010/11 3.13%) against a revised 
estimated rate of 3.03%. Given the significant cuts to local government funding putting 
pressure on the Council’s finances, the strategy followed was to minimise debt interest 
payments by reducing temporary debt to cover cash-flow shortfalls by using maturing 
investments. 

       3.2   The Localism Act passed into law in November 2011 which enabled the reform of council 
housing finance. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) subsidy system has now been 
abolished and replaced with self-financing whereby authorities support their own 
housing stock from their own income. This reform required a re-adjustment of each 
authority’s housing–related debt based on a valuation of its council housing stock. The 
CLG issued the final Settlement Payment Determination in February 2012. The 
settlement date for the self financing transaction was 28th March 2012. As the Council’s 
debt level generated by the housing reform model was higher than the Subsidy Capital 
Financing Requirement (SCFR), the Council was required to pay the CLG the difference 
between the two, which was £27.414m. This required the Council to fund the full 
settlement by taking on borrowing. A preferential set of PWLB rates were available for 
this transaction on 26th March 2012 only, for settlement on 28th March 2012. Given the 
one-off nature of the PWLB funding window and the advantages offered in terms of rate, 
loan structure and administration, the Council took the decision to fund £27.414m 
through new borrowing from the PWLB. Three separate loans were taken for periods of 
between 20 and 30 years at an weighted average of 3.42%. 

3.3    The treasury management implications of HRA reform and an appropriate strategy to 
manage the transaction were discussed with the Council’s Treasury Advisors and 
Housing Consultants.  The Council will henceforth adopt a two pool approach in relation 
to the allocation of debt between the General Fund and HRA. 

     3.4   The interest repaid from the HRA for the use of debt balances amounted to £548,256 
against a revised budget of £528,700. The reason for this increase was down to the 
additional interest due on the £27.414m new PWLB borrowing taken out in late March 
and also the General Fund (GF) receiving more in interest from the HRA for its share of 
the debt held by the Council. The weighted average rate of interest on all borrowing for 
2011/12 was estimated to be 3.03% but came in at 3.25%.  

     3.5  The Council took out further PWLB borrowing during the financial year on behalf of 
Cheltenham Borough Homes (£1.4m) and The Gloucestershire Everyman Theatre 
(£1m). These loans were taken on an annuity basis in which the named organisations 
are repaying back in full to the Council based on the loan terms taken with the PWLB, 
ensuring the GF is cost neutral. 

 

        4.     Investments 
                   4.1 The CLG’s Guidance on Local Government Investments in England requires local 

authorities to focus on security and liquidity, rather than yield. 
 
 

Page 49



   

Council 25th June 2012   Treasury outturn 2011/12  
 Page 4 of 8  
  

 
4.2  Investments - Movements in the Council’s investment portfolio during 2011/12 can be   

seen in the table below. 
Source of Loan 

 
Temporary 
Lending 

Balance at 
1 April 
2011 
£ 

Raised  
during 
the year 

                 £ 

Repaid  
during 
the year 
    £ 

      Balance at 
       31 March  

2012 
   £ 

 
 
Building 
Societies 
 

            Banks 
 
 
Bank of 
Scotland Call 
A/C 
 
Santander Call 
A/C 
 
CBH 
 
Glos Airport 
 
Glos Everyman 
Theatre 
 

 
 
 

0 
 

5,000,000 
 
 

900,000 
 
 
 

0 
 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 
 
 

 
 
 

0 
 

2,000,000 
 
 

43,250,000 
            

 
25,650,000 

 
      1,400,000  
     1,190,585 

1,000,000 
 

 
 
 

0 
 

5,000,000 
 
 

44,150,000 
 
 
 

23,050,000 
 
 

1,400,000 
 

0 
 

1,000,000  

 
 
 

0 
 

2,000,000 
 
 

                             0 
                                   

2,600,000 
   
 

 0 
 

          1,190,585 
 

0               
  
 

Total Short  
Term Lending 

5,900,000 74,490,585 74,600,000 5,790,585 
 
Long Term 
Lending 
 

 
Balance at 
1 April 
2011 
£ 

 
Raised  
during 
the year 

                 £ 

 
Repaid  
during 
the year 
     £ 

    
      Balance at 

31 March  
2012 
£ 
 

 
-     Banks 
 
-  Icelandic   
Banks 

 
0 
 

9,410,000 

 
0 
 

0 

 
0 
 

4,235,756 

 
0 
 

5,174,244 
 
 
 

Total Long 
Term Lending 

9,410,000 0 4,235,756 5,174,244 

Total External 
Investments 

15,310,000 74,490,585 78,835,756 10,964,829 

 
 

4.3  Security of capital remained the Council’s main investment objective. This was 
maintained by following the Council’s counterparty policy as set out in its Treasury 

Page 50



   

Council 25th June 2012   Treasury outturn 2011/12  
 Page 5 of 8  
  

Management Strategy Statement for 2011/12.  
4.4    In December 2011, the Icelandic Supreme Court ruled that local authority deposits with 

Glitnir and Landsbanki qualified for priority status and since the ruling several 
payments have been made by the banks winding-up-boards.  

4.5  The table below shows the detailed repayments in respect of the specific Icelandic 
investments held in administration: 
Icelandic Deposits Held Original 

Deposits 
Amount 
Received to date 

Amount 
Outstanding 

                        £                                     £                          £ 
                                    
Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander 

                               
2,000,000 1,260,000 740,000 

                                    
Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander 

                               
1,000,000 630,000 370,000 

                                          
Glitnir 

                           
3,000,000 2,427,600 572,400 

                                 
Landsbanki 2,000,000 599,380 1,400,620 

                                 
Landsbanki 2,000,000 599,467 1,400,533 

                                 
Landsbanki 1,000,000 309,309 690,691 

                              
TOTAL 11,000,000 5,825,756 5,174,244 

 
 
4.6  Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander is estimated to repay between 81p to 86p in the pound. 

To date (31st March 2012) 63p in the pound has been recovered. In May 2012  a further 
10p in the pound was distributed to authorities bringing the recovery rate to 73%.  

4.7  Glitnir Winding-up-Board repaid in March 2012 approximately 81p in the pound from a 
mixture of Sterling, Euro and US Dollars. The remaining 19% remains held in Icelandic 
Krona in an escrow account. 

4.8  Landsbanki Winding-up-Board repaid approximately 30p in the pound in February 2012, 
with a further 2p in the pound held in Icelandic Krona in an escrow account. It had been 
expected that 98p in the pound would be recovered although this has recently been 
upgraded to full recovery (ie.100%). A second distribution was recently made in May 
2012 which was received in Sterling. This amounted to 12p in the pound bringing the 
total to 42p in the pound returned to date. Future distribution payments are likely to 
occur over the coming years. 

4.9  Issues remain around foreign exchange risks, as payments have been and will continue 

Page 51



   

Council 25th June 2012   Treasury outturn 2011/12  
 Page 6 of 8  
  

to be received in Euros, US Dollars, GBP and Icelandic Krona. The Council has 
discussed these foreign exchange transactions with its bank and suitable arrangements 
have been put in place to accept the payments. There are still uncertainties regarding 
funds currently held in Icelandic Krona, as they cannot currently be converted into GBP. 
The LGA in conjunction with those authorities affected, are working on a practical 
solution for all parties concerned. 

 4.10 The Council’s investment income for 2011/12 was £189,860 compared to a revised 
estimate of £172,500, a surplus of £17,360. Cash resources improved in 2011/12 due to 
the return of some Icelandic deposits, which insured a higher return of interest from the 
Business Call Accounts, due to extending the length of time the deposits could remain 
in them. 

 4.11 At the year end, the overall treasury management position (external borrowing less 
external investments) was such that the Council was a net borrower to the sum of 
£51.6m (2010/11 £22.9m). The overall interest receivable and payable for 2011/12 was 
a surplus of £10,454 against revised budget on the General Fund while the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) is £22,164 over against revised budget, resulting in surplus 
interest of £32,618 to report for the financial year. 

                 5.       Credit Risk  
                           As stated in the Annual Investment Strategy 2011/12 the Council will monitor and 

update the credit standing of the institutions on a regular basis. Information was not just 
based on credit ratings but was also assessed and monitored with reference to:- 

• Statement of Government Support 
• Credit default Swaps 
• Corporate developments 
• Share price 

The minimum long-term counterparty credit rating determined for the 2011/12 treasury 
strategy was A+/A1 across rating agencies Fitch, S&P and Moody’s. This particular 
criterion was amended and approved at Council on the 10th February 2012 to A-/A3 in 
response to downgrades in credit ratings below A+ of many institutions considered to be 
systemically important to the financial system. The downgrades were driven principally 
by the agencies’ view the extent of future government support rather than deterioration 
in the institutions’ credit worthiness.  

       Counterparty credit quality has been maintained as demonstrated by the Credit Score 
Analysis table summarised below on all deposits for the Council held during the 2011/12 
financial year which has been provided by Arlingclose Ltd.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



   

Council 25th June 2012   Treasury outturn 2011/12  
 Page 7 of 8  
  

              
Date Value 

Weighted 
Average 
Credit 
Risk 
Score 

Value 
Weighted 
Average 
Credit 
Rating 

Time 
Weighted 
Average 
Credit 
Risk 
Score 

Time 
Weighted 
Average 
Credit 
Rating 

Average 
Life 
(days) 

31/03/2011 4.67 A+ 5.05 A+ 144 
30/06/2011 4.67 A+ 4.77 A+ 195 
30/09/2011 4.71 A+ 4.38 AA- 141 
31/12/2011 3.98 AA- 4.92 A+ 51 
31/03/2012 5.00 A+ 5.00 A+ 49 

 
                         The value weighted average reflects the credit quality of investments according to the 

size of the deposit. The time weighted average reflects the credit quality of investments 
according to the maturity of the deposit. The Council aimed to achieve a score of 5 or 
lower, to reflect the Council’s overriding priority of security of monies invested and the 
minimum credit rating of threshold A+ for investment counterparties. 

6.     Treasury Limits and Prudential indicators 
6.1    The Council can confirm that it has complied with its Prudential Indicators for 2011/12, 

which was set in February 2011 as part of the Council’s Treasury Management 
Strategy. The Authorised and Borrowing Limits were amended and approved by 
Council on the 10th February to enable further borrowing in relation to the HRA self-
financing requirements. In compliance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of 
Practice this report provides members with a summary report of the treasury 
management activity during 2011/12. None of the Prudential Indicators has been 
breached and a prudent approach has been taking in relation to investment activity 
with priority being given to security and liquidity over yield. 

7.      Treasury Management Advisors 
7.1    Arlingclose Ltd were appointed as the Council’s treasury management advisors in       

April 2007 and the contract was extended for a further 7 months from 1st April 2012. 
           During 2011/12 Arlingclose as part of their service have delivered:- 

• Over 100 Counterparty Credit updates  (55 – 10/11) 
• 23 Technical updates (26 -10/11) 
• 63 Economic updates/Interest rate forecasts (28 – (10/11) 
• Held 10 workshops to attend to learn new legislation/changes in treasury 

management     (9 – 10/11) 

Page 53



   

Council 25th June 2012   Treasury outturn 2011/12  
 Page 8 of 8  
  

• Quarterly reviews on the Councils Debt and Investment portfolio    
• Attended 3 Treasury Management Panel meetings in 2011/12  (2 -10/11) 
• Email 2 weekly bulletins – Preview and a review of the week. 

7.2      The Council is clear as to the services it expects and is provided under the contract. 
The Council is also clear that overall responsibility for treasury management remains 
with the Council.                                                                                                                

8.        Conclusions 
8.1 Members are asked to note the outturn for 2011/12.   
 

         
 
 

 

Page 54



AP
PE

ND
IX 

10

RE
SE

RV
ES

 AT
 31

ST
 M
AR

CH
 20

12
20
11
/12

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

Re
se
rve

Pu
rp
os
e o

f R
es
erv

e
31
/3/
11

Mo
ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
Tr
an
sfe

r o
f

Re
-al
ign

me
nt

31
/3/
12

Re
ve
nu
e

Ca
pit
al

Un
de
rsp

en
d

EA
RM

AR
KE

D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
£

£
£

£
£

£

Ot
he
r

BR
01

Sin
gle

 St
atu

s R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd

 im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f S
ing

le 
Sta

tus
(14

,24
7.0

0)
3,6

00
.00

10
,64

7.0
0

0.0
0

BR
02

Pe
ns
ion

 R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd

 fu
tur

e p
en

sio
n l
iab

ilit
y

(28
,37

3.3
8)

(50
,00

0.0
0)

(78
,37

3.3
8)

BR
04

Ec
on

om
ic 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Re
se
rve

To
 fu

nd
 fu

tur
e e

co
no

mi
c s

tud
ies

(14
,20

0.0
0)

(14
,20

0.0
0)

BR
05

IBS
 Li
ce
ns
e R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd

 co
st 
of 

IBS
 lic

en
se
 pa

id 
up

 fro
nt

(14
8,7

00
.00

)
(14

8,7
00

.00
)

BR
06

Ke
ep

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 Ti
dy
 R
es
erv

e
Ke

ep
 C
he

lte
nh

am
 Ti
dy
 ca

mp
aig

n -
 sc

he
me

 co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns

(62
6.2

7)
(62

6.2
7)

BR
08

Gr
av
e M

ain
ten

an
ce
 R
es
erv

e
Lo

ng
-te

rm
 gr

av
e m

ain
ten

an
ce

0.0
0

0.0
0

BR
09

Cu
ltu
ral
 D
ev
elo

pm
en

t R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd

 fu
tur

e a
rts
 fa

cil
itie

s/a
cti
vit
y

(22
,36

1.0
0)

(22
,36

1.0
0)

BR
10

LA
BG

I R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd

 fu
tur

e e
co
no

mi
c /
 cu

ltu
ral
 de

ve
lop

me
nt

(76
,05

2.8
6)

45
,00

0.0
0

21
,05

2.8
6

(10
,00

0.0
0)

BR
12

Ho
us
e S

urv
ey
 R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd

 cy
cli
ca
l h
ou

sin
g s

toc
k c

on
dit
ion

 su
rve

ys
(10

5,0
24

.83
)

24
,50

0.0
0

(80
,52

4.8
3)

BR
13

Tw
inn

ing
 R
es
erv

e
Tw

inn
ing

 to
wn

s c
ivi
c v

isi
ts 
to 

Ch
elt
en

ha
m

(17
,40

0.0
0)

(17
,40

0.0
0)

BR
14

Flo
od

 Al
lev

iat
ion

 R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd

 fu
tur

e f
loo

d r
es
ilie

nc
e w

ork
, d

ele
ga

ted
 to

 th
e F

loo
d 

wo
rki
ng

 gr
ou

p f
or 

all
oc
ati
on

(34
8,0

93
.52

)
10

1,5
08

.85
(24

6,5
84

.67
)

BR
15

Ar
t G

all
ery

 & 
Mu

se
um

 D
ev
elo

pm
en

t R
es
erv

e
(2,

00
0,0

00
.00

)
(14

1,8
00

.00
)

16
5,0

79
.02

(1,
97

6,7
20

.98
)

BR
25

Pu
mp

 R
oo

m 
Ins

ura
nc
e R

es
erv

e
Ins

ura
nc
e r

es
erv

e f
or 

sto
len

 je
we

lle
ry

(28
,06

6.1
1)

11
,00

0.0
0

(17
,06

6.1
1)

BR
26

Mu
se
um

 Sh
op

 R
es
erv

e
Ac

cu
mu

lat
ed

 pr
ofi
ts 
he

ld 
for

 M
us
eu

m 
sh
op

 im
pro

ve
me

nts
0.0

0
0.0

0
BR

27
TIC

 Sh
op

 R
es
erv

e
Ac

cu
mu

lat
ed

 pr
ofi
ts 
he

ld 
for

 TI
C 
sh
op

 im
pro

ve
me

nts
(11

,72
9.1

8)
11

,70
0.0

0
(29

.18
)

BR
30

GF
 In
su
ran

ce
 R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd

 ris
k m

an
ag

em
en

t in
itia

tiv
es
 / e

xc
es
s /
 pr

em
ium

 
inc

rea
se
s

(15
9,9

71
.44

)
38

,60
0.0

0
(12

1,3
71

.44
)

BR
42

Ve
hic

le 
Le

as
ing

 Eq
ua

lis
ati
on

 R
es
erv

e
Pu

rch
as
e o

f v
eh

icl
es
 an

d e
qu

ipm
en

t
(11

6,0
85

.24
)

(11
6,0

85
.24

)
BR

45
Jo
int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd

 Jo
int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y

(23
4,5

80
.36

)
(3,

66
6.5

2)
(23

8,2
46

.88
)

BR
54

Le
ga

l S
taf

f R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd

 se
t-u

p c
os
ts 
of 

On
e L

eg
al

(19
,35

0.0
0)

19
,35

0.0
0

0.0
0

BR
58

Civ
ic 
Pr
ide

To
 pu

mp
 pr

im
e c

ivi
c p

rid
e i
nit
iat
ive

 / m
atc

h f
un

din
g

(1,
08

3,1
97

.60
)

14
6,6

00
.00

(93
6,5

97
.60

)
(4,
42
8,0

58
.79

)
(4,
02
4,8

87
.58

)
Re

pa
irs

 &
 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

es
BR

52
Co

mm
ute

d M
ain

ten
an

ce
 R
es
erv

e
De

ve
lop

er 
co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 to

 fu
nd

 m
ain

ten
an

ce
(26

3,6
29

.37
)

39
,00

0.0
0

(22
4,6

29
.37

)
BR

78
Hig

hw
ay
s I
ns
ura

nc
e R

es
erv

e
Co

un
ty 
hig

hw
ay
s -
 in
su
ran

ce
 ex

ce
ss
es

(15
,00

0.0
0)

(15
,00

0.0
0)

BR
83

Co
un

cil
 Ta

x/B
en

efi
ts 
IT 

Re
se
rve

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
fun

d t
o c

ov
er 

so
ftw

are
 re

lea
se
s

(30
,00

0.0
0)

(30
,00

0.0
0)

BR
88

I.T
. R

ep
air
s &

 R
en

ew
als

 R
es
erv

e
Re

pla
ce
me

nt 
fun

d
(13

3,0
64

.70
)

79
,40

0.0
0

(53
,66

4.7
0)

BR
89

Pla
nn

ed
 M
ain

ten
an

ce
 R
es
erv

e
20

 ye
ar 

ma
int
en

an
ce
 fu

nd
(1,

02
5,9

29
.12

)
(20

5,6
00

.00
)

51
7,5

52
.00

(71
3,9

77
.12

)
(1,
46
7,6

23
.19

)
(1,
03
7,2

71
.19

)

Pa
ge

 1

Page 55



AP
PE

ND
IX 

10

RE
SE

RV
ES

 AT
 31

ST
 M
AR

CH
 20

12
20
11
/12

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

Re
se
rve

Pu
rp
os
e o

f R
es
erv

e
31
/3/
11

Mo
ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
Tr
an
sfe

r o
f

Re
-al
ign

me
nt

31
/3/
12

Re
ve
nu
e

Ca
pit
al

Un
de
rsp

en
d

EA
RM

AR
KE

D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
£

£
£

£
£

£

Eq
ua
lis
ati
on
 R
es
erv

es
BR

63
Re

nt 
All
ow

an
ce
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n

Cu
sh
ion

 im
pa

ct 
of 

flu
ctu

ati
ng

 ac
tiv
ity
 le
ve
ls

(11
9,6

55
.60

)
(39

,60
0.0

0)
(15

9,2
55

.60
)

BR
64

Pla
nn

ing
 Ap

pe
als

 Eq
ua

lis
ati
on

Fu
nd

ing
 fo

r o
ne

 of
f a

pe
als

 co
st 
in 
ex
ce
ss
 of

 re
ve
nu

e b
ud

ge
t

(38
,95

5.0
9)

(38
,95

5.0
9)

BR
65

Lic
en

sin
g F

ee
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n

Pa
st 
inc

om
e s

urp
lus

es
 to

 cu
sh
ion

 im
pa

ct 
of 

rev
ise

d l
eg

isl
ati
on

(28
,35

5.0
0)

17
,00

0.0
0

(11
,35

5.0
0)

BR
67

Int
ere

st 
Eq

ua
lis
ati
on

To
 co

ve
r a

ny
 ad

dit
ion

al 
los

se
s a

ris
ing

 in
 th

e v
alu

e o
f Ic

ela
nd

ic 
de

po
sit
s a

nd
/or

 to
 re

du
ce
 th

e b
orr

ow
ing

 ar
isi
ng

 fro
m 

the
 

ca
pit
ali
sa
tio
n o

f th
e l
os
se
s

(2,
78

7,5
94

.76
)

1,9
98

,78
1.0

0
(78

8,8
13

.76
)

BR
72

Lo
ca
l P

lan
 Eq

ua
lis
ati
on

Fu
nd

 cy
cli
ca
l c
os
t o

f lo
ca
l p
lan

 in
qu

iry
(55

,03
0.0

0)
55

,00
0.0

0
(30

.00
)

BR
76

Ele
cti
on

s/E
lec

tor
al 
Re

g. 
Eq

ua
lis
ati
on

Fu
nd

 cy
cli
ca
l c
os
t o

f lo
ca
l e
lec

tio
ns

(11
,50

0.0
0)

(61
,20

0.0
0)

(72
,70

0.0
0)

(3,
04
1,0

90
.45

)
(1,
07
1,1

09
.45

)
Re

se
rve

s f
or
 co

mm
itm

en
ts

BR
91

Ol
d Y

ea
r C

red
ito
r R

sv
e -

 R
R

Ap
pro

ve
d b

ud
ge

t c
arr

y f
orw

ard
s

(35
1,2

00
.00

)
(60

4,6
00

.00
)

(36
4,4

77
.03

)
(1,
32
0,2

77
.03

)

CA
PIT

AL
BR

77
Ca

pit
al 
Re

se
rve

 - G
F H

ou
sin

g
To

 fu
nd

 H
ou

sin
g G

en
era

l F
un

d c
ap

ita
l e
xp
en

dit
ure

(90
2,4

76
.15

)
(90

2,4
76

.15
)

BR
92

Ca
pit
al 
Re

se
rve

 - G
F

To
 fu

nd
 G
en

era
l F
un

d c
ap

ita
l e
xp
en

dit
ure

 
(90

1,7
99

.68
)

(69
8,3

30
.97

)
32

9,3
72

.69
(1,

27
0,7

57
.96

)
(1,
80
4,2

75
.83

)
(2,
17
3,2

34
.11

)

TO
TA

L E
AR

MA
RK

ED
 R
ES

ER
VE

S
(11

,09
2,2

48
.26

)
(9,
62
6,7

79
.36

)

GE
NE

RA
L F

UN
D 
BA

LA
NC

E
BS

01
Ge

ne
ral
 Ba

lan
ce
 - R

R
Ge

ne
ral
 ba

lan
ce

(2,
61

9,5
07

.03
)

39
8,1

70
.29

(31
,69

9.8
6)

(2,
25

3,0
36

.60
)

(2,
61
9,5

07
.03

)
(2,
25
3,0

36
.60

)

TO
TA

L G
EN

ER
AL

 FU
ND

 R
ES

ER
VE

S A
ND

 B
AL

AN
CE

S
(13

,71
1,7

55
.29

)
1,1

84
,41

2.6
5

1,0
12
,00

3.7
1

(36
4,4

77
.03

)
0.0

0
(11

,87
9,8

15
.96

)

Pa
ge

 2

Page 56



AP
PE

ND
IX 

11
GE
NE
RA
L F

UN
D 
CA
PIT

AL
 PR

OG
RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he
me

 
Sc
he
me

 D
es
cri
pti
on

Or
igi
na
l

Pa
ym

en
ts

Re
vis
ed

(U
nd
ers

pe
nd
)/

Ap
pr
ov
ed

Re
vis
ed

Co
mm

en
ts

Sc
he
me

to
Bu
dg
et

Ou
ttu
rn

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Bu
dg
et

Bu
dg
et

 
 

 
 

Co
st

31
/03
/11

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

£
£

£
£

£
RE
SO
UR
CE
S

Pr
op
ert
y S

erv
ice
s

Va
rio
us

C/
R

Pr
og
ram

me
d M

ain
ten

an
ce

Ne
w 
cre

ma
tor

s
52
4,0

00
51
7,5

52
6,4

48
13
1,0

00
13
7,5

00

Fin
an
cia
l S
erv

ice
s

GC
ER

P
C

GO
 E
RP

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
ER

P 
sy
ste

m 
wit

hin
 th

e G
O 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
42
1,7

00
21
2,3

09
21
9,4

00
16
4,4

04
54
,99

6
80
,00

0

Th
e d

ela
y i
n i
mp

lem
en
tat

ion
 of

 th
e n

ew
 

ER
P 
sy
ste

m 
at 

on
e 1

 pa
rtn

er 
Co

un
cil
 

ha
s r

es
ult
ed
 in
 ad

dit
ion

al 
res

ou
rce

 be
ing

 
req

uir
ed
 to

 m
ee
t th

e A
ug
us
t 2

01
2 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n d

ate
.

DC
40
02

C
Gl
ou
ce
ste

rsh
ire
 A
irp
ort

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t

ow
ard

s t
he
 re

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
jec

t - 
£1
.2m

 lo
an

0
1,2

00
,00

0
1,2

00
,00

0
IC
T

DC
32
11

C
W
ork

ing
 Fl
ex
ibl
y

De
liv
er 

co
un
cil
 se

rvi
ce
s a

t a
 tim

e a
nd
 pl
ac
e w

hic
h s

uit
 th

e c
us
tom

er.
 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f C
itri
x e

nv
iro
nm

en
t to

 de
liv
er 

bu
sin

es
s a

pll
ica

tio
ns
 to

 
the

 ho
me

 / r
em

ote
 us

ers
 de

sk
top

35
,30

0
26
,57

6
8,7

24
8,7

00

DC
32
13

C
St
ora

ge
 A
rea

 N
etw

ork
St
ora

ge
 fo

r th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 da
ta 

in 
a s

ec
ure

, e
xp
an
da
ble

 an
d r

ob
us
t 

en
vir
on
me

nt
15
5,0

00
14
2,2

97
12
,70

0
13
,90

6
(1,

20
6)

DC
40
03

C
Te

lep
ho
ny
 sw

itc
h u

pg
rad

e
Up

gra
de
 of

 op
era

tin
g s

ys
tem

, v
oic

e s
ys
tem

 an
d c

on
tac

ts 
ce
ntr

e w
ith
 th

e 
be
ne
fit 
of 

fut
ure

-pr
oo
fin
g t

he
 co

un
cil
's 
sy
ste

m 
an
d a

dd
ing

 fle
xib

ilit
y.

70
,30

0
70
,30

0
70
,63

8
(33

8)

WE
LL
BE
IN
G 
& 
CU

LT
UR
E

Pa
rks

 &
 G
ard

en
s

LC
60
01

S
S.
10
6 P

lay
 ar

ea
 re

fur
bis

hm
en
t

De
ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

54
,00

0
33
,50

8
20
,49

2
50
,00

0
50
,00

0

LC
60
06

C
Pla

y A
rea

 E
nh
an
ce
me

nt
On

go
ing

 pr
og
ram

me
 of

 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 an

d r
efu

rbi
sh
me

nt 
of 

pla
y a

rea
s t
o 

en
su
re 

the
y i
mp

rov
e a

nd
 m

ee
t s
afe

ty 
sta

nd
ard

s 
80
,00

0
79
,82

5
17
5

80
,00

0
80
,00

0

LC
60
11

P
Pit

tvi
lle
 P
ark

 B
oa
tho

us
e b

rid
ge

En
ha
nc
em

en
ts 
to 

Pit
tvi
lle
 P
ark

 in
clu

din
g t

he
 B
oa
tho

us
e b

rid
ge
 fu

nd
ed
 

fro
m 

Se
ve
rn 

Tre
nt 

W
ate

r C
om

mu
nit
y F

un
d a

wa
rde

d f
oll
ow

ing
 th

e f
loo

ds
 

in 
20
07
.

72
,00

0
70
,85

4
1,1

46

Ce
me
ter
y &

 C
rem

ato
riu
m

LC
60
22

Bu
ria
l C

ha
pe
l

Inv
es
t to

 sa
ve
 sc

he
me

 to
 co

nv
ert

 bu
ria
l c
ha
pe
l to

 ha
nd
le 
cre

ma
tio
ns
.

11
0,0

00
99
,82

9
10
,10

0
81
3

9,2
87

9,3
00

Cu
ltu
ral
 Se

rvi
ce
s

LC
40
06

R/
P

Ar
t G

all
ery

 &
 M
us
eu
m 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Sc
he
me

Co
un
cil
's 
co
mm

itm
en
t to

 ne
w 
sc
he
me

 as
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ou
nc
il 2

0th
 Ju

ly 
20
08

2,0
30
,00

0
1,0

13
,44

8
1,0

16
,55

2
4,2

70
,00

0
5,2

86
,55

2

Th
e m

ain
 co

ntr
ac
tor

s c
om

me
nc
ed
 w
ork

 
on
 th

e A
G&

M 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
Au

gu
st 

20
11
 an

d w
ork

 is
 pr

og
res

sin
g w

ell
, w

ith
 

an
 ex

pe
cte

d o
pe
n f

rom
 S
um

me
r 2

01
3. 

Th
e r

em
ain

ing
 ca

pit
al 
bu
dg
et 

is 
ne
ee
d 

to 
su
pp
ort

 th
e c

om
mi
tte

d e
xp
en
dit
ure

 in
 

20
12
/13

.

LC
40
07

C
Ev

ery
ma

n T
he
atr

e
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t

ow
ard

s t
he
 re

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
jec

t - 
£1
m 

loa
n a

nd
 £2

50
k 

gra
nt

1,2
50
,00

0
1,2

50
,00

0
1,2

50
,00

0
0

Co
mm

un
ity
 Sa

fet
y

EC
00
06

C
CC

TV
/To

wn
 C
en
tre

 in
itia

tiv
e

Ex
pa
ns
ion

 of
 on

 st
ree

t C
CT

V 
in 
the

 to
wn

 ce
ntr

e t
o i
nc
rea

se
 sa

fet
y a

nd
 

se
cu
re 

the
 en

vir
on
me

nt
50
,00

0
46
,23

5
3,7

65
50
,00

0
53
,80

0

Pa
ge

 1

Page 57



AP
PE

ND
IX 

11
GE
NE
RA
L F

UN
D 
CA
PIT

AL
 PR

OG
RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he
me

 
Sc
he
me

 D
es
cri
pti
on

Or
igi
na
l

Pa
ym

en
ts

Re
vis
ed

(U
nd
ers

pe
nd
)/

Ap
pr
ov
ed

Re
vis
ed

Co
mm

en
ts

Sc
he
me

to
Bu
dg
et

Ou
ttu
rn

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Bu
dg
et

Bu
dg
et

 
 

 
 

Co
st

31
/03
/11

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

£
£

£
£

£
BU
ILT

 EN
VIR

ON
ME

NT
Int
eg
rat
ed
 Tr
an
sp
or
t

EC
00
33

C
CC

TV
 in
 C
ar 

Pa
rks

Ad
dit
ion

al 
CC

TV
 in
 or

de
r to

 im
pro

ve
 sh

op
pin

g a
rea

s a
nd
 re

du
ce
 fe

ar 
of 

cri
me

14
,80

0
49
6

14
,30

4
50
,00

0
64
,30

0

EC
00
60

C
Ca

r p
ark

 m
an
ag
em

en
t te

ch
no
log

y

Th
e u

pg
rad

e o
f th

e c
ar 

pa
rk 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
tec

hn
olo

gy
 at

 se
lec

ted
 si
tes

 
su
ch
 as

 R
eg
en
t A

rca
de
 is
 es

se
nti
al 
as
 th

e e
xis

tin
g m

an
ag
em

en
t s
ys
tem

s 
an
d h

ard
wa

re 
ha
ve
 no

w 
rea

ch
ed
 th

e e
nd
 of

 th
eir
 lif
e c

yc
le.

13
0,0

00
26
,19

2
10
3,8

08
12
0,0

00
22
3,8

00

Th
e i
mp

lem
en
tat

ion
 of

 th
e c

ar 
pa
rk 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
sy
ste

m 
at 

Re
ge
nt 

Ar
ca
de
 

is 
sc
he
du
led

 fo
r J

uly
 20

12
 an

d t
he
 

rem
ain

ing
 fu

nd
ing

 w
ill 
be
 us

ed
 at

 th
is 

tim
e.

Ho
us
ing

 

HC
74
40

C/
SC

G
Di
sa
ble

d F
ac
ilit
ies

 G
ran

ts

Ma
nd
ato

ry 
Gr
an
t fo

r th
e p

rov
isi
on
 of

 bu
ild
ing

 w
ork

, e
qu
ipm

en
t o

r 
mo

dif
yin

g a
 dw

ell
ing

 to
 re

sto
re 

or 
en
ab
le 
ind

ep
en
de
nt 

liv
ing

, p
riv
ac
y, 

co
nfi
de
nc
e a

nd
 di
gn
ity
 fo

r in
div

idu
als

 an
d t

he
ir f

am
ilie

s.
60
0,0

00
65
3,2

08
(53

,20
8)

60
0,0

00
60
0,0

00

Ad
dit
ion

al 
Di
sa
ble

d F
ac
ilit
ies

 G
ran

ts 
fun

din
g h

as
 be

en
 m

ad
e a

va
ila
ble

, 
pe
rm

itti
ng
 ad

dit
ion

al 
ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

in 
20
11
/12

HC
74
45

C
Ad

ap
tat

ion
 S
up
po
rt G

ran
t

Us
ed
 m

os
tly
 w
he
re 

es
se
nti
al 
rep

air
s (

he
alt
h a

nd
 sa

fet
y) 
are

 id
en

tifi
ed
 to

 
en
ab
le 
the

 D
FG

 w
ork

 to
 pr

oc
ee
d (

e.g
. e

lec
tric

al 
wo

rks
).  

26
,00

0
8,7

16
17
,28

4
26
,00

0
26
,00

0

HC
74
00

PS
DH

He
alt
h &

 S
afe

ty 
Gr
an
t / 

Lo
an
s

A 
ne
w 
for

m 
of 

as
sis

tan
ce
 av

ail
ab
le 
un
de
r th

e c
ou
nc
il's

 H
ou
sin

g R
en
ew

al 
Po

lic
y 2

00
3-0

6

32
4,4

00
20
,72

6
30
3,6

74
30
3,6

74

Th
e r

es
ou
rce

 is
 be

ing
 us

ed
 fo

r th
e l
on
g 

ter
m 

be
ne
fit 
of 

pri
va
te 

se
cto

r h
ou
sin

g, 
foc

us
sin

g o
n t

he
 w
ors

t p
rop

ert
ies

 an
d 

mo
st 
vu
ne
rab

le 
ind

ivi
du
als

.  T
he
re 

ha
s 

als
o b

ee
n a

 ch
an
ge
 in
 ap

pro
ac
h t

o 
bri
ng
ing

 va
ca
nt 

pro
pe
rtie

s b
ac
k i
nto

 us
e 

to 
all
ow

 fo
r b

ett
er 

lon
g t

erm
 us

e o
f th

is 

HC
74
05

PS
DH

Va
ca
nt 

Pr
op
ert

y G
ran

t
A 
ne
w 
for

m 
of 

as
sis

tan
ce
 av

ail
ab
le 
un
de
r th

e c
ou
nc
il's

 H
ou
sin

g R
en
ew

al 
Po

lic
y 2

00
3-0

6

to 
all
ow

 fo
r b

ett
er 

lon
g t

erm
 us

e o
f th

is 
lim

ite
d f

un
din

g. 
 Th

e b
ala

nc
e o

f th
is 

fun
din

g w
ill 
be
 us

ed
 ov

er 
co
mi
ng
 ye

ars
 

to 
me

et 
the

se
 ai
ms

.

HC
74
10

PS
DH

Re
no
va
tio
n G

ran
ts

Gr
an
ts 
pro

vid
ed
 un

de
r th

e H
ou
sin

g G
ran

ts,
 C
on
str

uc
tio
n a

nd
 

Re
ge
ne
rat

ion
 A
ct 
19
96

HC
74
55

LA
A 
/ C

W
arm

 &
 W

ell
A 
Gl
ou
ce
ste

rsh
ire
-w
ide

 pr
oje

ct 
to 

pro
mo

te 
ho
me

 en
erg

y e
ffic

ien
cy
, 

pa
rtic

ula
rly
 ta

rge
ted

 at
 th

os
e w

ith
 he

alt
h p

rob
lem

s
60
,00

0
60
,00

0
0

60
,00

0
60
,00

0

HC
92
00

C/
S

Ho
us
ing

 E
na
bli
ng

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

in 
su
pp
ort

 of
 en

ab
lin
g t

he
 pr

ov
isi
on
 of

 ne
w 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho
us
ing

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 re

gis
ter

ed
 S
oc
ial
 La

nd
lor
ds
 an

d t
he
 H
ou
sin

g 
Co

rpo
rat

ion
27
0,0

00
27
0,0

00
27
0,0

00

Th
e C

PO
 pr

oc
es
s f
or 

Cr
ab
tre

e P
lac

e 
ha
s c

om
me

nc
ed
, h

ow
ev
er 

it i
s n

ot 
lik
ely

 
to 

co
mp

let
e u

nti
l 2
01
3/1

4 d
ue
 to

 th
e 

tim
efr

am
e f

or 
mo

vin
g t

hro
ug
h t

he
 

pro
ce
ss
.

HC
92
00

C/
S

Ho
us
ing

 E
na
bli
ng

Tra
ns
for

ma
tio
na
l im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to

 pr
iva

te 
ho
us
eh
old

s i
n S

t. P
au
l's 

to 
as
sis

t th
em

 in
 ra

isi
ng
 th

e s
tan

da
rd 

of 
the

ir d
we

llin
gs
 in
 lin

e w
ith
 ne

w 
bu
ild
 

co
un
cil
 ho

us
ing

 st
oc
k.

13
0,0

00
13
0,0

00
13
0,0

00

Gr
an
ts 
for

 up
 to

 £1
0k
 fo

r p
riv
ate

 
ho
us
eh
old

s h
av
e b

ee
n p

rov
ide

d i
n 

20
12
/13

 an
d t

he
 w
ork

s a
re 

in 
the

 fin
al 

sta
ge
s o

f c
om

ple
tio
n.

HC
92
00

C/
S

Ho
us
ing

 E
na
bli
ng

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

in 
su
pp
ort

 of
 en

ab
lin
g t

he
 pr

ov
isi
on
 of

 ne
w 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho
us
ing

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 B
oro

ug
h H

om
es

1,7
90
,00

0
1,7

90
,00

0
0

2,9
00
,00

0
2,9

00
,00

0

OP
ER
AT
IO
NS

C
Ve

hic
les

 an
d r

ec
yc
lin
g c

ad
die

s
Re

pla
ce
me

nt 
ve
hic

les
 an

d r
ec
yc
lin
g e

qu
ipm

en
t 

1,4
46
,15

3
0

1,4
46
,15

3
1,4

46
,00

0

Pa
ge

 2

Page 58



AP
PE

ND
IX 

11
GE
NE
RA
L F

UN
D 
CA
PIT

AL
 PR

OG
RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he
me

 
Sc
he
me

 D
es
cri
pti
on

Or
igi
na
l

Pa
ym

en
ts

Re
vis
ed

(U
nd
ers

pe
nd
)/

Ap
pr
ov
ed

Re
vis
ed

Co
mm

en
ts

Sc
he
me

to
Bu
dg
et

Ou
ttu
rn

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Bu
dg
et

Bu
dg
et

 
 

 
 

Co
st

31
/03
/11

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

£
£

£
£

£
BU
DG

ET
 PR

OP
OS
AL
S F

UT
UR
E C

AP
ITA

L 
PR
OG

RA
MM

E:
C

Up
gra

de
 of

 M
icr
os
oft

 O
ffic

e
Up

gra
de
 of

 M
icr
os
oft

 O
ffic

e r
eq
uir
ed
 as

 ve
rsi
on
 cu

rre
ntl
y u

se
d i
s a

n e
nd
 

of 
life

 pr
od
uc
t a

nd
 no

 lo
ng
er 

su
pp
ort

ed
 by

 M
icr
os
oft

.  
12
0,0

00
12
0,0

00

C
Vir

tua
l e
-m

ail
 ap

pli
an
ce
 lic

en
ce

Vir
tua

l e
-m

ail
 ap

pli
an
ce
 lic

en
ce
 -s

ett
ing

 up
 of

 e-
ma

il c
on
ne
cti
on
 be

tw
ee
n 

all
 G
O 
Pa

rtn
er 

au
tho

riti
es
.

22
,00

0
22
,00

0

C
Im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to

 G
ros

ve
no
r T

err
ac
e C

ar 
Pa

rk

Im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 G
ros

ve
no
r T

err
ac
e C

ar 
Pa

rk 
inc

lud
ing

 m
ak
ing

 a 
Gr
ee
n 

ca
r p

ark
, im

pro
vin

g l
ink

ag
es
 to

 th
e H

igh
 S
tre

et,
 im

pro
ve
d s

us
tai
na
bil
ity
 - 

rai
nw

ate
r h

arv
es
tin
g, 

PV
 ce

lls
 et

c.
15
0,0

00
15
0,0

00

CA
PIT

AL
 SC

HE
ME

S R
EC
LA
SS
IFI
ED
 A
S 

RE
VE
NU
E:

DC
10
66

C
La
nd
 &
 P
rop

ert
y p

res
ale

 co
sts

Pr
op
ert

y &
 Le

ga
l c
os
ts 
as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 th

e d
ev
elo

pm
en
ts

19
,00

4
(19

,00
4)

EC
00
51

C
Re

-jo
int
ing

 H
igh

 S
tre

et/
Pr
om

en
ad
e p

ed
es
tria

nis
ed
 ar

ea
Re

-jo
int
ing

 w
ork

s r
eq
uir
ed
 to

 im
pro

ve
 sa

fet
y a

nd
 ap

pe
ara

nc
e o

f th
e c

ore
 

co
mm

erc
ial
 ar

ea
60
,00

0
51
,99

3
7,7

00
17
8

7,5
22

7,5
00

LC
60
15

C
Le
ck
ha
mp

ton
 H
ill 
dry

 st
on
e w

all
Ma

tch
 fu

nd
ed
 w
ith
 N
atu

ral
 E
ng
lan

d t
o c

on
str

uc
t d

ry 
sto

ne
 w
all
ing

 on
 

Le
ck
ha
mp

ton
 H
ill 
sit
 of

 sp
ec
ial
 sc

ien
tifi
c i
nte

res
t (S

SS
I)

62
0,0

00
67
7,3

63
0

31
,62

0
(31

,62
0)

LC
60
05

C
All

otm
en
ts

All
otm

en
t E

nh
an
ce
me

nts
 - n

ew
 to

ile
ts,
 pa

th 
su
rfa

cin
g, 

fen
cin

g, 
sig

na
ge
, 

an
d o

the
r im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to

 in
fra

-st
ruc

tur
e.

35
3,1

00
34
2,8

43
10
,20

0
0

10
,20

0
10
,20

0

EC
00
54

C
De

po
t R

ati
on
ali
sa
tio
n

Co
sts

 as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 in
co
rpo

rat
ing

 Te
wk

es
bu
ry 
Bo

rou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il w

ith
in 

the
 D
ep
ot 

sit
e a

t S
win

do
n R

oa
d

30
0,0

00
27
2,7

80
27
,20

0
1,2

51
25
,94

9
25
,90

0
EC

00
54

C
De

po
t R

ati
on
ali
sa
tio
n

the
 D
ep
ot 

sit
e a

t S
win

do
n R

oa
d

30
0,0

00
27
2,7

80
27
,20

0
1,2

51
25
,94

9
25
,90

0

TO
TA
L C

AP
ITA

L P
RO

GR
AM

ME
9,2

44
,25

3
5,8

99
,15

0
3,3

45
,10

3
9,8

29
,00

0
13

,26
5,2

26

Fu
nd
ed
 by

:
G

Go
ve

rnm
en

t G
ran

ts
SC

G
Sp

ec
ifie

d C
ap

ita
l G

ran
t (D

FG
)

30
6,0

00
34
1,9

24
30
6,0

00
30
6,0

00
LA

A
LA

A P
erf

orm
an

ce
 R

ew
ard

 G
ran

t
60
,00

0
60
,00

0
60
,00

0
60
,00

0
P

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 Fu
nd

ing
76
8,0

00
96
5,4

58
2,8

54
,00

0
2,7

00
,00

0
PS

DH
Pr

iva
te 

Se
cto

r D
ec

en
t H

om
es

 G
ran

t
32
4,4

00
20
,72

6
30
3,6

74
HL

F
He

rita
ge

 Lo
tte

ry 
Fu

nd
ing

75
0,0

00
0

75
0,0

00
HR

A
Ho

us
ing

 R
ev

en
ue

 Ac
co

un
t C

on
trib

uti
on

10
0,0

00
0

R
Pr

op
ert

y P
lan

ne
d M

ain
ten

an
ce

 R
es

erv
e

52
4,0

00
51
7,5

52
13
1,0

00
13
7,5

00
R

AG
&M

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t R

es
erv

e
58
4,0

00
16
5,0

79
1,4

16
,00

0
1,9

76
,72

0
S

De
ve

lop
er 

Co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 S1

06
54
,00

0
33
,50

8
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
C

Ge
ne

ral
 Ba

lan
ce

s
10
9,4

00
0

80
,00

0
C

HR
A C

ap
ita

l R
ec

eip
ts

39
0,0

00
49
0,0

00
C

GF
 C

ap
ita

l R
ec

eip
ts

12
0,0

00
52
2,1

69
C

HI
P C

ap
ita

l R
es

erv
e

37
0,0

00
0

40
0,0

00
C

Pr
ud

en
tia

l B
orr

ow
ing

3,8
46
,15

3
2,4

00
,00

0
4,1

00
,00

0
5,5

46
,00

0
C

GF
 C

ap
ita

l R
es

erv
e

93
8,3

00
38
2,7

35
91
2,0

00
95
5,3

32
9,2

44
,25

3
5,8

99
,15

0
0

9,8
29

,00
0

13
,26

5,2
26

Pa
ge

 3

Page 59



Page 60
This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE
ND

IX 
12

Ap
pli
ed
 to
 fu
nd

Re
ve
nu
e 

Us
ea
ble

Am
ou
nts

ex
pe
nd
itu
re

De
ve
lop

er
De
ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
 (S
10
6) 
- O

utt
urn

 Po
sit
ion

 31
st 
Ma

rch
 20

12
Re
ce
ipt
s/

Ap
pli
ed

fun
de
d f
rom

Am
ou
nts

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns

Ba
lan

ce
 

Re
fun

ds
to 
fun

d
Ca
pit
al

tra
ns
fer
red

c/f
wd

@ 
1/4

/11
in 
ye
ar

fix
ed
 as

se
ts

un
de
r S

tat
ute

to 
rev

en
ue

@ 
31
/3/
12

£
£

£
£

£
£

De
ve
lop

ers
 Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

C-
N7
50
34
-B
99
9

Co
urt
s-K

ing
sd
itc
h-B

on
d S

um
 In
de
xe
d L

ink
ed

(19
,80

0.0
0)

(19
,80

0.0
0)

C-
N7
50
47
-B
99
9

St 
Ja
me

s S
ou
th-
Bo
nd
 Su

m 
Ind

ex
ed
 Li
nk
ed

(63
,00

0.0
0)

(63
,00

0.0
0)

(82
,80

0.0
0)

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

(82
,80

0.0
0)

C-
N7
51
30
-E
01
2

Me
rro
wd
ow
n-S

us
tai
na
ble

 Tr
an
sp
ort

(99
.34

)
(99

.34
)

C-
N7
50
81
-E
01
2

2 D
ev
on
 Av

en
ue
-S
us
tai
na
ble

 Tr
an
sp
ort

(19
,80

3.5
0)

(19
,80

3.5
0)

C-
N7
51
44
-E
01
2

Pr
ior
s R

oa
d S

ain
sb
ury

s-S
us
tai
na
ble

 Tr
an
sp
ort

0.0
0

(17
,77

8.0
0)

(17
,77

8.0
0)

C-
N7
59
99
-E
01
2

GC
C-
Su
sta

ina
ble

 Tr
an
sp
ort

0.0
0

(35
,20

5.1
3)

(35
,20

5.1
3)

0.0
0

(72
,88

5.9
7)

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

(72
,88

5.9
7)

C-
N7
50
38
-H
00
1

Ma
rke

t S
tre
et-
Aff
ord

ab
le 
Ho
us
ing

(17
,62

1.5
0)

(17
,62

1.5
0)

(17
,62

1.5
0)

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

(17
,62

1.5
0)

C-
N7
50
70
-L0

01
Du
na
lle
y S

t-P
ub
lic 
Ar
t

(7,
00
0.0

0)
(7,
00
0.0

0)
C-
N7
51
11
-L0

01
Ro
se
mu

llio
n-P

ub
lic 
Ar
t

(3,
36
2.3

2)
(3,
36
2.3

2)
C-
N7
51
16
-L0

01
75
-79

 R
ow
an
fie
ld 
Ro
ad
-P
ub
lic 
Ar
t

(5,
34
2.5

0)
(5,
34
2.5

0)
C-
N7
51
19
-L0

01
La
wn
sw
oo
d-P

ub
lic 
Ar
t

0.0
0

C-
N7
51
41
-L0

01
Ha
the

rle
y L
an
e-P

ub
lic 
Ar
t

(25
,00

0.0
0)

(25
,00

0.0
0)

(40
,70

4.8
2)

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

(40
,70

4.8
2)

(40
,70

4.8
2)

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

(40
,70

4.8
2)

C-
N7
51
41
-M
L0
1

Ma
int
en
an
ce
 of
 la
nd
 be

tw
ee
n G

ree
nw
od
e L

eg
he
 an

d S
ou
thg

rov
e C

old
 Po

ol 
La
ne

0.0
0

(53
,30

3.8
3)

(53
,30

3.8
3)

0.0
0

(53
,30

3.8
3)

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

(53
,30

3.8
3)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
80
1

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-A

du
lt/Y

ou
th 

(51
,94

6.3
1)

(15
,29

0.0
0)

28
,16

1.2
4

(39
,07

5.0
7)

C-
N7
50
38
-P
80
1

Ma
rke

t S
tre
et-
Ad
ult
/Yo

uth
(15

,87
6.9

4)
(15

,87
6.9

4)
C-
N7
50
56
-P
80
1

58
-60

 St
 Pa

uls
-A
du
lt/Y

ou
th

(3,
75
6.1

3)
(3,
75
6.1

3)
C-
N7
50
70
-P
80
1

Du
na
lle
y S

tre
et-
Ad
ult
/Yo

uth
(2,
72
0.0

0)
(2,
72
0.0

0)
C-
N7
51
16
-P
80
1

75
-79

 R
ow
an
fie
ld 
Ro
ad
-A
du
lt/Y

ou
th

(3,
52
9.2

6)
(3,
52
9.2

6)
C-
N7
51
30
-P
80
1

Me
rro
wd
ow
n-A

du
lt/Y

ou
th

(20
1.9

6)
(20

1.9
6)

C-
N7
51
40
-P
80
1

Ch
arl
ton

 La
ne
-A
du
lt/Y

ou
th

(1,
84
0.0

0)
(1,
84
0.0

0)
C-
N1
32
81
-P
80
2

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-A

gg
 G
ard

ne
rs

(78
8.6

2)
(21

6.0
0)

1,0
04
.62

0.0
0

C-
N1
32
81
-P
80
3

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e A

rle
 Fa

rm
0.0

0
(1,
43
6.0

0)
94
0.9

9
(49

5.0
1)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
80
4

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-B

ee
ch
es

(36
4.0

0)
(10

6.5
0)

(47
0.5

0)
C-
N1
32
81
-P
80
9

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-C

lyd
e C

res
en
t

(1,
66
3.9

8)
1,6

63
.98

0.0
0

C-
N7
50
38
-P
81
1

Ma
rke

t S
tre
et-
Elm

fie
ld

(27
,80

3.0
0)

(27
,80

3.0
0)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
81
3

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-F

air
vie
w

(10
6.5

0)
10
6.5

0
0.0

0

Pa
ge
 1

Page 61



AP
PE
ND

IX 
12

Ap
pli
ed
 to
 fu
nd

Re
ve
nu
e 

Us
ea
ble

Am
ou
nts

ex
pe
nd
itu
re

De
ve
lop

er
De
ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
 (S
10
6) 
- O

utt
urn

 Po
sit
ion

 31
st 
Ma

rch
 20

12
Re
ce
ipt
s/

Ap
pli
ed

fun
de
d f
rom

Am
ou
nts

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns

Ba
lan

ce
 

Re
fun

ds
to 
fun

d
Ca
pit
al

tra
ns
fer
red

c/f
wd

@ 
1/4

/11
in 
ye
ar

fix
ed
 as

se
ts

un
de
r S

tat
ute

to 
rev

en
ue

@ 
31
/3/
12

£
£

£
£

£
£

C-
N7
50
57
-P
81
3

Ell
ers

lie
-Fa

irv
iew

(1,
20
1.5

4)
1,2

01
.54

0.0
0

C-
N1
32
81
-P
82
3

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-L

an
sd
ow
n C

res
ce
nt

(97
2.5

0)
(36

8.0
0)

(1,
34
0.5

0)
C-
N1
32
81
-P
82
4

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-L

ec
kh
am

pto
n L

an
es

(43
.00

)
(43

.00
)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
82
7

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-M

on
tpe

llie
r G

ard
en
s

(15
0.5

0)
15
0.5

0
0.0

0
C-
N1
32
81
-P
83
4

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-P

rio
rs 
Fa
rm

(18
2.0

0)
(18

2.0
0)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
83
5

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-Q

E2
0.0

0
(18

2.0
0)

(18
2.0

0)
C-
N1
32
81
-P
84
0

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-W

ha
dd
on
 R
oa
d

(28
4.5

0)
27
9.0

1
(5.
49
)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
84
1

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-W

ins
ton

 C
hu
rch

ill G
ard

en
s

0.0
0

(21
6.0

0)
(21

6.0
0)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
84
2

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-P

res
tbu

ry
(57

7.6
7)

(18
2.0

0)
(75

9.6
7)

C-
N1
32
81
-P
84
3

S1
06
 Pl
ay
sp
ac
e-B

en
ha
ll

(15
0.5

0)
(15

0.5
0)

C-
N7
51
16
-P
84
3

75
-79

 R
ow
an
fie
ld 
Ro
ad
-B
en
ha
ll

(1,
28
4.1

9)
(1,
28
4.1

9)
(11

5,4
43
.10

)
(17

,99
6.5

0)
33
,50

8.3
8

0.0
0

0.0
0

(99
,93

1.2
2)

C-
N7
51
18
-C
OM

M
Ba
rbr
idg

e N
urs

ery
-C
om

mu
nit
y F

ac
iliti
es

(32
,74

6.8
6)

(32
,74

6.8
6)

(32
,74

6.8
6)

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

(32
,74

6.8
6)

To
tal
 De

ve
lop

ers
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

(28
9,3

16
.28

)
(14

4,1
86
.30

)
33
,50

8.3
8

0.0
0

0.0
0

(39
9,9

94
.20

)

Pa
ge
 2

Page 62



Co
un

ci
l T

ax
 a

nd
 B

us
in

es
s 

Ra
te

s
Co

lle
ct

io
n 

Ra
te

s 
20

11
 - 

20
12

AP
PE

ND
IX

 1
3

Cu
rre

nt 
Ye

ar
 C

ha
rg

es
 - 2

01
1/2

01
2

 %
 C
oll
ec
ted

20
11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Re
vis

ed
 20

11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.03
.12

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

98
.78

%
98

.80
%

N/
A

Co
mp

ar
iso

n w
ith

 20
10
/20

11
As

 at
 31

.03
.11

% 
Co

lle
cte

d 3
1.0

3.1
1

To
p Q

ua
rti
le 

98
.71

%
98

.71
%

N/
A

Pr
ev

iou
s Y

ea
rs

 C
ha

rg
es

 O
uts

tan
din

g i
n C

ur
re

nt 
Ye

ar
 (2

01
1/2

01
2) 

 Pr
ev
iou

s Y
ea
r D

eb
ts 
Ou

tst
an
din

g
20
11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Re
vis

ed
 20

11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.03
.12

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

£2
64

,69
9

£2
60

,00
0

£2
80

,00
0

Co
mp

ar
iso

n w
ith

 20
10
/20

11
As

 at
 31

.03
.11

Am
ou

nt 
o/s

 31
.03

.11
To

p Q
ua
rti
le 

£2
82

,55
9

£2
82

,55
9

N/
A

Cu
rre

nt 
Ye

ar
 C

ha
rg

es
 - 2

01
1/2

01
2

 %
 C
oll
ec
ted

20
11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Re
vis

ed
 20

11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.03
.12

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

98
.23

%
98

.21
%

N/
A

Co
mp

ar
iso

n w
ith

 20
10
/20

10
As

 at
 31

.03
.11

% 
Co

lle
cte

d 3
1.0

3.1
1

To
p Q

ua
rti
le 

98
.19

%
98

.19
%

N/
A

Pr
ev

iou
s Y

ea
rs

 C
ha

rg
es

 O
uts

tan
din

g i
n C

ur
re

nt 
Ye

ar
 (2

01
1/2

01
2) 

 Pr
ev
iou

s Y
ea
r D

eb
ts 
Ou

tst
an
din

g
20
11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Re
vis

ed
 20

11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.03
.12

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

£8
02

,33
0

£7
55

,00
0

£7
90

,00
0

Co
mp

ar
iso

n w
ith

 20
10
/20

10
As

 at
 31

.03
.11

Am
ou

nt 
o/s

 31
.03

.11
To

p Q
ua
rti
le 

£7
51

,09
9

£7
51

,09
9

N/
A

Bu
si

ne
ss

 R
at

es
  2

01
1/

20
12

Co
un

ci
l T

ax
  2

01
1/

20
12

Th
e a

rre
ars

 ar
e s

lig
htl
y h

igh
er 

tha
n t

he
 re

vis
ed
  ta

rge
t a
nd

 hi
gh

er 
tha

n a
t th

e s
am

e 
tim

e l
as
t y
ea
r. W

e a
re 

wo
rki
ng

 w
ith
 co

un
cil 

tax
 pa

ye
rs 
ha
vin

g d
iffic

ult
y i
n p

ay
ing

 an
d 

the
 ar

rea
rs 
are

 be
ing

 co
lle
cte

d s
lig
hly

 sl
ow

er 
tha

n a
nti
cip

ate
d.

Th
e e

nd
 of
 ye

ar 
co
lle
cti
on
 ra

te 
is 
slig

htl
y b

elo
w 
the

 ta
rge

t b
ut 

is 
hig

he
r th

an
 th

e s
am

e 
tim

e l
as
t y
ea
r. 

Th
e a

rre
ars

 ou
tst
an
din

g a
re 

low
er 

tha
n t

he
 re

vis
ed
 ta
rge

t a
nd

 le
ss
 th

an
 at
  th

e s
am

e 
tim

e l
as
t y
ea
r. W

e c
on
tin
ue
 to
 m

on
ito
r th

e p
os
itio

n c
los

ely
 an

d a
re 

wo
rki
ng

 w
ith
 an

y 
bu

sin
es
se
s h

av
ing

 di
ffic

ult
y i
n p

ay
ing

.   

Th
e e

nd
 of
 ye

ar 
co
lle
cti
on
 ra

te 
is 
hig

he
r th

an
 th

e t
arg

et 
an
d h

igh
er 

tha
n a

t s
am

e t
im
e 

las
t y
ea
r. 

Page 63



Page 64
This page is intentionally left blank



 Su
nd

ry 
De

bto
r In

vo
ice

s
Ou

tst
an

din
g 2

01
1/1

2
AP

PE
ND

IX 
14

% 
of

 in
vo

ice
s 

ou
tst

an
din

g m
or

e  
th

an
 on

e m
on

th
 Ta
rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio
d

As
 at
 31
.03
.12

As
 at
 31
.03
.12

Ge
ne
ral
 Fu
nd
 In
vo
ice
s

11
,18

1
£1

2,0
40

,94
1

93
2

£1
,78

4,2
95

30
2

£2
12

,68
2

32
%

Le
ss

 th
an

 15
%

A l
arg

e n
um

be
r o

f in
vo

ice
s a

re 
rai

se
d b

etw
ee

n 
Ja

nu
ary

 an
d M

arc
h w

hic
h h

as
 re

su
lte

d i
n 

pro
po

rtio
na

tel
y m

ore
 in

vo
ice

s t
ha

n u
su

al 
be

ing
 

ou
tst

an
din

g f
or 

mo
re 

tha
n a

 m
on

th.

HR
A 
Inv
oic
es

1,5
42

£3
64

,92
4

43
2

£1
49

,70
3

34
9

£9
5,1

57
81

%
Le

ss
 th

an
 50

%

20
11
 Ta
rg
et 

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio
d

As
 at
 31
.03
.12

Ge
ne
ral
 Fu
nd
 In
vo
ice
s

54
£4

3,8
11

£6
0,0

00
Th

e y
ea
r e

nd
 ta

rge
t h

as
 be

en
 ex

ce
ed
ed
 as

 a 
res

ult
 of

 a 
foc

us
se
d r

ev
iew

 of
 pr

ev
iou

s y
ea
rs 

de
bts

 pr
ior
 to

 th
e m

igr
ati
on
 of

 th
e d

eb
tor

s s
ys
tem

 
fro

m 
AS

H 
to 

Ag
res

so
.

HR
A 
Inv
oic
es

79
4

£2
34

,83
5

£1
70

,00
0

Th
e v

alu
e o

f p
rev

iou
s y

ea
r in

vo
ice

s i
s h

igh
er 

tha
n 

the
 ta

rge
t b

ut 
ac
tio
n i
s b

ein
g t

ak
en
 to

 re
co
ve
r th

e 
su
ms

 du
e a

nd
 si
gn

ific
an
t p

rog
res

s h
as
 be

en
 

ma
de
 du

rin
g t

he
 ye

ar 
to 

ad
dre

ss
 pr

ev
iou

s y
ea
r 

HR
A 
de
bt.

 Pr
ev
iou
s Y
ea
r In

vo
ice
s 

Ou
tst
an
din
g

As
 at
 31
.03
.12

As
 at
 31
.03
.12

Pr
ev

iou
s Y

ea
r In

vo
ice

s O
uts

tan
din

g i
n 2

01
1/1

2

Su
nd

ry
 D

eb
t  2

01
1/1

2

Cu
rre

nt
 Ye

ar
 In

vo
ice

s 
Ou

tst
an

din
g 

As
 at
 31
.03
.12

Inv
oic

es
 ou

tst
an

din
g m

or
e 

th
an

 a 
mo

nt
h  

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

(E
xc

 In
sta

lm
en

t In
vo

ice
s)

As
 at
 31
.03
.12

Cu
rre

nt 
Ye

ar
 In

vo
ice

s -
 20

11
/12

Cu
rre
nt 
Ye
ar 
Inv
oic
es
    
    
    
  

Ra
ise
d 

Page 65



Page 66
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 15

Revised Actual
£ £

EXPENDITURE

General & Special Management 1,852,500 1,818,461
ALMO Management Fee 4,330,200 4,330,200
Rents, Rates, Taxes and Other Charges 32,900 35,373
Transfer to Housing Repairs Account 3,953,000 3,974,246
Provision for Bad Debts 200,000 155,690
Interest Payable 528,700 548,220
Depreciation of Dwellings 3,240,900 3,240,894
Depreciation of Other Assets 85,100 81,137
Debt Management Expenses 46,500 56,095
Rent Rebate Subsidy Limitation 86,700 82,622
Housing Revenue Account Subsidy 3,278,000 3,255,439

TOTAL 17,634,500 17,578,377

INCOME

Dwelling Rents 16,658,000 16,659,433
Non Dwelling Rents 424,800 419,679
Charges for Services and Facilities 725,400 748,129
Supporting People Grant 150,000 152,252

TOTAL 17,958,200 17,979,493

NET INCOME FROM SERVICES -323,700 -401,116

Amortised Premiums / Discounts 8,900 8,891
Interest Receivable -86,500 -83,037

NET OPERATING INCOME -401,300 -475,262

Appropriations
Revenue Contributions to Capital 1,447,800 1,126,832
Transfer from Major Repairs Reserve -85,100 -81,137

HRA Surplus / (Deficit) carried to reserve -961,400 -570,433

Revenue Reserve brought forward 3,673,200 3,673,232

Revenue Reserve carried forward 2,711,800 3,102,799

HRA OPERATING ACCOUNT

2011/12
Page 67



Appendix 16

Revised Actual
£ £

EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance :-
Reactive Repairs 2,559,000 2,698,745
Annual & Cyclical Maintenance 1,394,000 1,275,501

3,953,000 3,974,246

INCOME
Contribution from Housing Revenue Account 3,953,000 3,974,246

Surplus/Deficit for the Year 0 0

Balance brought forward 0 0
Balance carried forward 0 0

Revised Actual
£ £

Balance brought forward 300,300 300,338

Depreciation of Dwellings 3,240,900 3,240,894
Depreciation of Other Assets 85,100 81,137

3,626,300 3,622,369

Utilised in Year (Funding Capital Programme App E) -3,541,200 -3,541,232
Transfer to HRA re Other Assets -85,100 -81,137
Balance carried forward 0 0

2011/12

HOUSING REPAIRS ACCOUNT 

MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE 

2011/12

Page 68



Appendix 17

Revised Actual
£'000 £'000

EXPENDITURE

Property Improvements & Major Repairs (incl fees) 4,529 4,328

Adaptations for the Disabled 350 349

Environmental Works (Tenant Selection) 60 24

Repurchase of Shared Ownership Dwellings 50 39

4,989 4,740
FINANCING

Recharges 72
HRA Revenue Contribution 1,448 1,127
Major Repairs Reserve 3,541 3,541

4,989 4,740

HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

2011/12

Page 69



Page 70
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 18    
 

Prudential Indicators 2011/12 Outturn                                                             Page 1

The Prudential Code and Indicators – outturn 2011/12 
 
Introduction: 

The Prudential code set out a framework for self-regulation of capital spending 
which allows councils to borrow money to fund capital projects without any limit 
provided the plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.  In order to 
demonstrate this, the Code required the Council to set a minimum number of 
specific prudential indicators.  These indicators must be monitored during the year 
and revised by the Council as necessary.  
 
The indicators fall into three categories, according to whether they relate to Capital 
expenditure, External debt or Treasury Management. A comparison of the outturn 
indicators with those set by the Council in February 2012, with an explanation of 
variances and subsequent revisions to the 2011/12 indicators requiring approval 
follows: 
 
 
Capital Expenditure Indicators 
 
Forecast Capital Expenditure 
 
The Code requires the Council to estimate its total capital expenditure, split 
between the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and non HRA. 
 
The following table includes estimated and actual expenditure incurred in 2011/12, 
the original estimate for 2012/13 and revised estimate for 2012/13 resulting from 
the impact of the 2011/12 outturn position. The actual outturn position for 2011/12 
is to be noted and the revised estimate for 2012/13 (marked *) to be approved by 
Members. 
 
Capital Expenditure 
 
Capital 
programme  

2011/12 
Revised 

 
£000 

2011/12 
Outturn 

 
£000 

2012/13 
Estimate  
10/02/12  
£000 

2012/13/ * 
 To be Revised 

25/06/12  
£000 

General Fund 9,244 5,390 9,829 13,673 
HRA 4,989 4,740 5,192 5,192 
                    
Total 

           
14,233  

 
10,130     

 
15,021 

 
18,865 

 
 
The main variance between 2011/12 revised and 2011/12 actual on the General 
Fund is due to the non purchase of vehicle replacements,  delay in purchasing car 
parking technology equipment and minor slippages on other capital projects 
planned for 2011/12. The under spend will be required in 2012/13 to complete 
these projects, which has been incorporated into the 2012/13 revised figures for 
approval by members. The small variance within the HRA is due to lower than 
anticipated expenditure on maintaining the housing stock. 
 
 

Page 71



Appendix 18    
 

Prudential Indicators 2011/12 Outturn                                                             Page 2

 
 
 
Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to the net revenue stream 

  
This is an indicator of affordability.  It would not be prudent for borrowing costs to 
be a significant proportion of net revenue either now or in the future.   
 
The following table includes the actual figures for 2010/11 and estimates and the 
actual for 2011/12 of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream.  
 
Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 

 
 2010/11 

Actual 
2011/12 
Revised 

2011/12 
Outturn 

Non-HRA 4.09% 5.28% 5.05% 
       HRA 2.31% 2.54% 2.66% 
 
 
 
Capital Financing Requirement 

 
The capital financing requirement measures the authority’s underlying need to 
borrow for capital purposes. In accordance with best professional practice, 
Cheltenham Borough Council does not associate borrowing with particular items or 
types of expenditure. The authority has an integrated treasury management 
strategy and has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in 
the Public Services. Cheltenham Borough Council has, at any point in time, a 
number of cashflow scenarios both positive and negative, and manages its 
treasury position in terms of its borrowings and investments in accordance with its 
approved treasury management strategy and practices. In day to day cash 
management, no distinction is made between revenue cash and capital cash. 
External borrowing arises as a consequence of all the financial transactions of the 
authority and not simply those arising from capital spending. 
 
The Council can borrow without limit, provided it ensures such borrowing is 
affordable, prudent and sustainable. 
 
The following table includes the estimated and actual capital financing requirement 
at 31/3/12, the original estimate for 31/3/13 and revised estimate for 31/3/13 
(marked *) resulting from the impact of the 2011/12 outturn position. The actual 
outturn position at 31/3/12 is to be noted and revised estimate for 31/3/13 is to be 
approved by Members. 
 
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
 
 31/03/12 

Estimate 
 

£000 

31/03/12 
Actual 

 
£000 

31/03/13  
Estimate 
10/02/2012 
£000 

31/03/13 * 
Estimate 

 
£000 

Non-HRA 27,354 24,883 30,013 31,386 
HRA 46,142 46,142 44,750 44,750 
Total CFR 73,496 71,025 74,763 76,136 

Page 72



Appendix 18    
 

Prudential Indicators 2011/12 Outturn                                                             Page 3

 
 
 
Net borrowing and the Capital Financing Requirement 

 
CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities includes the 
following as a key indicator of prudence: 
 
“In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for a 
capital purpose, the local authority should ensure that the net external borrowing 
does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of  the capital financing 
requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional capital 
financing requirement for the current and next two financial years.” 
 
Local authorities may borrow temporarily to cover cash flow shortages but over the 
medium term should only borrow to finance capital expenditure. 
 
In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for capital 
purposes, the Council needs to ensure that its net external borrowing does not 
exceed its Capital Financing Requirement over the current and next three years. 
The table below demonstrates that the estimated and actual level of net 
investments remains lower than the capital financing requirement in each year, and 
therefore meets this requirement. 
 
The actual outturn position for 2010/11 is to be noted and the revised estimate for 
2011/12 (marked *) to be approved by Members. 
 
Estimated net borrowing and capital financing requirement at year end 
 

 2011/12 
£’000 

Estimate 
2011/12 
£’000 
Outturn 

2012/13 
£’000 

Estimate 
10/02/2012 

2012/13 
£’000 

Estimate 
25/6/12 * 

Gross borrowing 72,706 72,472 75,298 72,777 
Investments 6,450 9,737 5,785 12,955 
Net (Investment)/ 
borrowing 

66,256 62,735 69,513 59,822 
  
Capital financing 
requirement 

 
73,496 

 
71,025 

 
74,763 

 
76,136 

 
As can be seen from the table, the net borrowing for the council did not breach the 
capital financing requirement for 2011/12. 
 
 
 
 
Incremental impact of capital expenditure on the council tax and housing 
rents 
 
A fundamental indicator of the affordability of capital expenditure plans is its impact 
on the council tax and housing rents.  Any borrowing for capital purposes has an 
impact on the revenue account and, to the extent it is not supported by government 
or other contributions, on council tax and/or housing rents.  Using capital receipts 

Page 73



Appendix 18    
 

Prudential Indicators 2011/12 Outturn                                                             Page 4

to fund capital expenditure also has an impact because the assets sold would no 
longer generate rental income or investment income.  The use of revenue funding 
to fund capital clearly has a direct impact on the revenue account and council 
taxes/rents.  The completed capital schemes will also have an impact in terms of 
running costs and income generated. 
 
The Council must estimate the incremental impact of its capital expenditure plans 
on the council tax and housing rents.  
 
The estimate of the incremental impact of capital investment decisions, over and 
above capital investment decisions that have previously been taken by the Council 
for 2011/12 and for average weekly rents were: 
 
For the Band D Council Tax 
 

2011/12 
Estimate 

£ 
2011/12 
Outturn 

£ 
nil nil 

 
 
 
 
For average weekly housing rents 
 

2011/12 
Estimate 

£ 
2011/12 
Outturn 

£ 
*nil *nil 

 
 
* The Council is reducing housing rents over this period in line with the rent 
restructuring plan, hence capital investment decisions do not impact on the level of 
council house rent, but impact on the level of funds available to fund repairs. 
 
The outturn position is the same as estimated since the council tax and housing 
rents were set, in February 2011, at levels to fund the capital programmes 
approved by Members. 
 
External Debt Indicators 

 
Two limits were set and monitored to ensure borrowing is prudent, affordable and 
sustainable.  These limits, together with the Treasury Management limits discussed 
below, replaced the section 45 limits imposed by the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989, which the Council previously approved in February/March each 
year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



Appendix 18    
 

Prudential Indicators 2011/12 Outturn                                                             Page 5

Authorised Limit 
 
The Council set an authorised limit for its external debt which took account of the 
following:  
 
• the possible maximum level of borrowing that may need to be incurred and 

the limit beyond which borrowing will be prohibited 
 

• the statutory limit specified in section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 
2003 

 
• reflects a level of borrowing which, although affordable in the short term 

may not be sustainable 
 
• The ‘outer boundary’ of the Council’s possible need to borrow. 
 
In respect of its external debt, the Council approved the following authorised limits 
for its total external debt gross of investments. The Council delegated authority to 
the Section 151 Officer, within the total limit for any individual year, to effect 
movement between the separately agreed limits for borrowing and other long term 
liabilities, in accordance with option appraisal and best value for money for the 
authority.  
 
Authorised Limit for External Debt 
 

2011/12 
 

£000 
2012/13 
Original 

 
£000 

2012/13 Revised 
 

£000 
Borrowing 109,000 109,000 109,000 
Other long term liabilities 0 0 0 
Total 109,000 109,000 109,000 
 
In setting the limit, account must be taken of the authority’s current commitments, 
existing plans and the proposals for capital expenditure and financing, and with its 
approved treasury management policy statement and practices.  
 
This limit represents the worst case scenario, i.e. the effect on the cash flow of 
receiving no council tax income and borrowing to the maximum of the capital 
financing requirement, in addition to investments held. The calculation follows a 
prescribed formula and is in excess of the expected levels of borrowing in 
accordance with Treasury. 
 
The Council did not breach this boundary during 2011/12. 
 
 
Operational Boundary 
  
 
The Council approved the following operational boundary for external debt for the 
same time period. The operational boundary for external debt is based on the 
same estimates as the authorised limit but reflects directly the estimate of the most 
likely, prudent but not worst case scenario, without the additional headroom 
included within the authorised limit to allow for example for unusual cash 

Page 75



Appendix 18    
 

Prudential Indicators 2011/12 Outturn                                                             Page 6

movements. The operational boundary represents a key management tool for in 
year monitoring. Within the operational boundary, figures for borrowing and other 
long term liabilities are separately identified. The Council delegated authority to the 
Section 151 Officer, to effect movement between separately agreed figures for 
borrowing and other long term liabilities, in a similar fashion to the authorised limit.  
 
The boundary may be breached occasionally due to unexpected cash flow 
shortages but a sustained breach would indicate the Council may be in danger of 
breaching the Authorised Limit.  
 
Operational Boundary for External Debt 
 
 2011/12 

 
£000 

2012/13 
Original 

 
£000 

2012/13 
Revised 

 
£000 

Borrowing 99,000 99,000 99,000 
Other long term liabilities 0 0 0 

Total 99,000 99,000 99,000 
 
The operational boundary represents the maximum expected operational 
borrowing at a given time, which is significantly lower than the prescribed 
authorised limit. This measure reflects a more realistic view of likely cash flow 
scenarios, and should not be exceeded. 
 
The Council did not breach this boundary during 2011/12. 

 
The Council’s actual external debt at 31st March 2012 was £72.472 million. It 
should be noted that actual external debt is not directly comparable to the 
authorised limit and operational boundary, since the actual external debt reflects 
the position at a single point in time. 

 
 
 
Treasury Management Indicators 
 
Adoption of the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for 
Treasury Management in the Public Services. This includes the delegation of the 
day to day Treasury Management Function to the section 151 Officer. 

 
 
Upper limits on interest rate exposure 

 
The Council must set upper limits on its exposure to changes in interest rates for at 
least the next three years.  An upper limit must be set for both fixed and variable 
rates covering both borrowing and investments. Investments are all classed as 
variable rate exposure as they are all repayable within 365 days. 
 
The purpose of these indicators is to reduce the likelihood of an adverse 
movement in interest rates or borrowing / investment decisions impacting 
negatively on the Council’s overall financial position. 
  

Page 76



Appendix 18    
 

Prudential Indicators 2011/12 Outturn                                                             Page 7

The Council set an upper limit on its fixed interest rate exposures of its gross 
outstanding borrowing and an upper limit on its variable interest rate exposures of 
its gross outstanding borrowing.  
 
This means the Section 151 Officer manages fixed interest rate exposures within 
the range 50% to 100% and variable interest rate exposures within the range 0% to 
50%. 
 
This has not been breached during 2011/12. 

 
Maturity structure of borrowing 
 
The Council set both upper and lower limits with respect to the maturity structure of 
borrowing.  This indicator is designed to be a control over an authority having large 
concentrations of fixed rate debt needing to be replaced at times of uncertainty 
over interest rates.  Therefore the aim should be a relatively even spread of debt 
repayment dates. 

 
The Council sets upper and lower limits for the maturity structure of its borrowings 
as follows: 
 
Amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in each period is: 
 
 Upper Limit Lower Limit 
Under 12 months 10% 0 
12 months and within 24 months 20% 0 
24 months and within 5 years 30% 0 
5 years and within 10 years 50% 0 
10 years and above 100% 0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Conclusions: 
No breaches of the prudential code or indicators took place during 2011/12. 
 
Member are asked to note the outturn for 2011/11 and approve the revisions to the 
2012/13 estimates (marked with *). 
 
 

Page 77



Page 78
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$rsxhrh34.doc Page 1 of 6 Last updated 07 June 2012 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 19 June 2012 

Review of the council’s performance at end of 2011-12 
 

Accountable member Cllr. Jon Walklett, Cabinet Member Corporate Services 
Accountable officer Richard Gibson, Strategy and Engagement Manager 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary  
Recommendations Cabinet to endorse  
 
Financial implications None as a result of this report 

 
Legal implications None as the result of this report 

 
HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None as the result of this report 

Key risks The business planning process helps the council manage risk in a number 
of areas, but particularly through creating a strategic framework for the 
management of projects and initiatives. 
If we do not respond to performance information, then we may not direct 
change and improvement in a positive direction. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

This report sets out performance information relating to the delivery of 
corporate priorities in 2011-2012. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None identified as a result of this report 

Agenda Item 6
Page 79



 

   

$rsxhrh34.doc Page 2 of 6 Last updated 07 June 2012 
 

1. Background 
1.1 The council agreed its corporate strategy action plan 2011-12 in March 2011. The strategy set out 

our 5 objectives and 11 outcomes and a range of milestones and indicators to measure 
performance in 2011-12. 

 
1.2 The performance report takes information and data from our performance management system to 

provide elected members with an overview of how the council performed last year. This enables 
elected members to input into discussions about how to resolve areas where there maybe 
performance concerns and also to recognise where performance was better than expected.  

 
1.3 The report also includes a summary of how Cheltenham Borough Homes has supported the 

delivery of our corporate outcomes in appendix B.  
 
2. 2011-12 Performance Overview 
 
2.1 Corporate Strategy milestones 
 In the 2011-12 action plan, we identified 45 milestones to track our progress. Out of these: 

• 93% (42) of milestones have been completed at the end of the year. 
• 7% (3) of milestones are red and have not been completed at the year end.. 
 
The 3 red milestones are: 
 
Milestones commentary 

Develop traffic modelling subject to GCC 
capital position. 

The bid to the government’s sustainable travel 
pot did not initially succeed though was re-
submitted by GCC on 24 Feb and the council 
learnt of the bid’s success on 24th May.  
 

Implement the GO back-office system in the 
partner organisations. 

the Agresso system has gone live at Forest of 
Dean, West Oxfordshire, Cheltenham Borough 
Council, Cheltenham Borough Homes and 
Ubico Ltd.  Implementation at Cotswold District 
Council will now take place in August 2012, the 
delay was mainly due to the fact that system 
testing took longer than originally forecast.  GO 
Shared Services went live on 1 April 2012 as 
originally planned.  
 

Officer group established for climate change 
adaptation. 

It was recognised that an officer group is not 
now appropriate so an alternative approach has 
been agreed. The climate change & 
sustainability officer will work with directors of 
corporate services to update their risk 
assessments and then to produce a 
report.  Commissioned services (built 
environment and Ubico) will be required to 
report on how they have been adapting to 
climate change as part of the review process.   

 
2.2 Performance indicators  
 In the 2011-12 action plan, we identified 52 key indicators to track our progress. Out of these: 

• 32 were indicators which CBC is directly accountable for and targets have been set.  
• 5 were environmental indicators 

Page 80



 

   

$rsxhrh34.doc Page 3 of 6 Last updated 07 June 2012 
 

• 15 were community-based indicators which others are accountable for and no targets were set 
in the action plan. 

Page 81



 

   

$rsxhrh34.doc Page 4 of 6 Last updated 07 June 2012 
 

 
Out of the 32 CBC indicators, targets were not met for the following 5 (17%) indicators. 

Indicator Status 
Target Actual (31 

March 
2012) Commentary 

Percentage of municipal waste 
land filled (Quarterly)  

54% 57% The amount of household 
residual waste collected has 
gone up over the 12 months 
since April 2011, despite an 
early decrease associated 
with the introduction of the 
new recycling collection 
scheme.  

Proportion of planning 
decisions upheld at appeal 
(quarterly)  

67.1 50.0% Whilst the percentage of 
appeals lost was quite high 
at 50%, the number of 
appeals during the year was 
at a six year low of 35, 
representing just 2.2% of 
decisions made. 

Number of visitors to the TIC 
(quarterly)  

22,503 15,162 This year visitor figures are 
continuing to show a decline 
with only some slight 
increases showing June to 
August 2011 in comparison 
to the previous year.  Across 
the year the TIC are 1,600 
visitors down on 2010/2011 
figures.  This continues to 
follow the trend that more 
first time visitors are 
accessing the website 
before visiting a destination. 

Attendances during the annual 
Summer of Sport initiative  

1,554 1,426 Delivered during 
July/August only. 
Attendance number is 
slightly below target but 
represents an excellent 
attendance over a five week 
period. The structure of the 
programme was changed 
this year, and was delivered 
at significantly lower cost to 
CBC. 

number of Under 16 swims 
(quarterly)  

12,901 11,149 Free swims continue to be 
well attended although 
slightly below target levels - 
this is against a trend of 
increasing attendance in 
other areas.  The £1 swim 
for example achieved 6094, 
1294 ahead of its target - 
this may indicate that less 
children are accompanied 
and now attend on their own 
or with friends.   
 

Page 82



 

   

$rsxhrh34.doc Page 5 of 6 Last updated 07 June 2012 
 

3. Consultation and feedback 
3.1 The draft performance report was presented to the council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 

28th May. The committee was particularly interested in the indicator measuring the proportion of 
planning decisions upheld at appeal. They requested information as to how much the council was 
spending on appeals and what the trend has been over the past couple of years.  

Report author Contact officer:  
Richard Gibson, Strategy and Engagement Manager. 
01242 235 354 
richard.gibson@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Review of outcomes 2011-12 
3. CBH contributions to CBC Corporate Plan, 2011/12 

Background information 2011-12 Corporate Strategy action plan, Report to Council, 28th March 
2011. 

 

Page 83



 

   
$rsxhrh34.doc Page 6 of 6 Last updated 07 June 2012 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

CD5 If the division does not 
ensure quality of 
performance data and 
associated analysis then 
we will not be able to 
support the council make 
in making service 
improvements 

Strategy and 
Engagement 
Manager 

Jan 
2012 

2 3 6 reduce Quarterly performance 
reports to SLT 
Performance measures 
built into commissioning 
service specifications 
meeting to be arranged 
with key officers about 
use of ESP and 
commissioned services 
 
 

31-Mar-
12 

Strategy and 
Engagement 
Manager 

on 
commissioning 
division risk 
register 

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 84



Re
vi

ew
 o

f o
ut

co
m

es
 2

01
1-

12
 

 Ou
tco

me
s 

wh
at 

we
nt 

we
ll 

wh
at 

did
n’t

 go
 so

 w
ell

 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

ha
s a

 cl
ea

n a
nd

 
we

ll-m
ain

tai
ne

d e
nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il a

gre
ed
 to

 es
tab

lish
 a 

joi
nt 

loc
al 
au
tho

rity
 

co
mp

an
y w

hic
h w

ill d
eli
ve
r s

av
ing

s a
nd

 ha
s 

de
ve
lop

ed
 a 

se
rvi
ce
 co

ntr
ac
t w

hic
h s

ets
 th

e o
utc

om
es
 

to 
be
 de

live
red

 by
 th

e c
om

pa
ny
 an

d h
as
 id
en

tifi
ed
 a 

sh
are

d c
lie
nt 

off
ice

r re
so
urc

e w
ith
 C
ots

wo
ld 
DC

 to
 

en
su
re 

tha
t th

e c
on
tra

ct 
is 
mo

nit
ore

d. 
Ub

ico
 w
as
 

lau
nc
he

d o
n 1

st
 Ap

ril 
20

12
. 

 Th
e a

mo
un
t o

f w
as
te 

reu
se
d, 

rec
yc
led

 or
 co

mp
os
ted

 
hit
 50

% 
for

 th
e f

irs
t-ti

me
 at

 th
e e

nd
 of

 qu
art

er 
1 a

nd
 

the
n f

ell
 ba

ck
 to

 44
% 

at 
the

 en
d o

f th
e y

ea
r w

ith
 th
e 

ov
era

ll r
ec
yc
lin
g r

ate
 fo

r th
e y

ea
r fo

rec
as
t to

 be
 on

 
tar

ge
t a

t 4
6%

. L
as
t y
ea

r, t
he
 fig

ure
 w
as
 on

ly 
34

.4%
 

 A r
ev
iew

 of
 th

e g
ard

en
 w
as
te 

sc
he

me
 le
d t

o t
he

 
int
rod

uc
tio
n o

f a
 pa

y-a
s-y

ou
-go

 ba
g s

erv
ice

 w
hic

h w
as
 

lau
nc
he

d i
n F

eb
rua

ry 
to 

a l
im
ite
d n

um
be

r o
f s
tre

ets
 

wh
ich

 ar
e d

iffi
cu
lt t
o a

cc
es
s o

r h
av
e l
im
ite
d s

pa
ce
 fo

r 
wa

ste
 st
ora

ge
.  T

he
re 

ha
s b

ee
n a

 st
ea

dy
 ta

ke
 up

 of
 

thi
s f
ac
ility

. 
 Th

e f
irs
t re

ne
wa

ls 
for

 th
e g

ard
en
 w
as
te 

sc
he
me

 
sta

rte
d i
n Q

4 a
nd

 th
ere

 ha
s b

ee
n a

 st
ea

dy
 ta

ke
 up

 of
 

ren
ew

als
 w
ith
 an

 ad
dit
ion

al 
48

0 n
ew

 ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
. 

 

Th
e a

mo
un
t o

f w
as
te 

se
nt 

to 
lan

dfi
ll w

as
 3%

 ab
ov
e t

he
 

54
% 

tar
ge

t. T
his

 is
 la
rge

ly 
be

ca
us
e t

he
 ho

us
eh

old
 re

sid
ua

l 
wa

ste
 to

nn
ag

es
 ha

ve
 go

ne
 up

 ov
er 

the
 12

 m
on

ths
 si
nc
e 

Ap
ril 
20

11
. A

lth
ou
gh

 w
he

n t
he
 ne

w 
sc
he

me
 w
as
 

int
rod

uc
ed

, th
ere

 w
as
 a 

dra
sti
c d

ec
rea

se
 in
 th

e a
mo

un
t o
f 

ho
us
eh

old
 w
as
te 

be
ing

 se
nt 

to 
lan

dfi
ll, 
ho

we
ve
r it

 is
 

dis
ap

po
int
ing

 th
at 

the
 tre

nd
 in
 th

e a
mo

un
t o
f re

sid
ua

l 
wa

ste
 co

lle
cte

d o
ve
r th

e r
es
t o
f 2

01
1/1

2 w
as
 up

wa
rds

. 
 A c

on
trib

uti
ng

 fa
cto

r is
 th

at,
 at

 th
e m

om
en
t, t

he
 co

un
cil 

is 
no

t e
nfo

rci
ng

 th
e ‘
no

 si
de
-w
as
te’
 po

licy
. R

es
ide

nts
 ar

e a
ble

 
to 

pre
se
nt 

as
 m

uc
h r

es
idu

al 
wa

ste
 as

 th
ey
 de

sir
e a

nd
 it 
is 

rem
ov
ed

. 

Ch
elt
en

ha
m’
s n

atu
ral

 an
d b

uil
t 

en
vir
on

me
nt 

is 
en

ha
nc
ed
 an

d 
pro

tec
ted

. 
 

Th
e b

uil
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

t c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 re

vie
w 

co
nc
lud

ed
 an

d a
 se

rvi
ce
 sp

ec
ific

ati
on

 fo
r 2

01
2-1

3 
ag

ain
st 
wh

ich
 th

e b
uil
t e
nv
iro

nm
en

t d
ivis

ion
 w
ill b

e 
as
ke
d t

o m
ea

su
re 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
. T

he
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 
wo

rk 
inc

lud
ed

 w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 bu

sin
es
s a

nd
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

ind
us
try

 st
ak
eh

old
ers

 to
 pr

om
ote

 th
e v

alu
e o

f h
eri
tag

e 
an

d c
on

se
rva

tio
n t

o t
he

 ec
on

om
ic 
vit
ali
ty 
of 

the
 to
wn

. 
Th

e p
ark

s t
ea
m 

ha
ve
 be

en
 w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 a 

wid
e r

an
ge

 
of 

co
mm

un
itie

s i
nc
lud

ing
 Sa

nd
for

d P
ark

 ro
ck
ery

, 
Ita

lia
n G

ard
en

s p
lan

tin
g, 

Pil
gro

ve
 W

ay
 in
 Sp

rin
gb

an
k 

an
d v

ari
ou

s p
lay

gro
un

ds
.  

 

Th
e m

ile
sto

ne
 to

 de
ve
lop

 tra
ffic

 m
od

ell
ing

 to
 su

pp
ort

 th
e 

reg
en

era
tio
n o

f th
e t

ow
n c

en
tre

 w
as
 no

t a
ble

 to
 be

 
ac
hie

ve
d. 

A b
id 
wa

s m
ad
e t

o t
he
 na

tio
na

l s
us
tai
na
ble

 
tra

ve
l p
ot 

bu
t th

is 
wa

s n
ot 

ac
ce
pte

d; 
the

 bi
d w

as
 re

-
su
bm

itte
d b

y G
CC

 on
 24

 Fe
b a

nd
 w
e a

re 
aw

ait
ing

 th
e 

ou
tco

me
 w
hic

h i
s e

xp
ec
ted

 in
 la
te-

Ma
y /
 ea

rly
 Ju

ne
. T

he
 

jun
cti
on
 ef

fic
ien

cy
 ex

pe
rim

en
t h

as
 be

en
 po

stp
on

ed
 fo

r th
e 

for
es
ee

ab
le 
fut

ure
 du

e t
o s

afe
ty 
iss

ue
s. 
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2 Page 85



Ou
tco

me
s 

wh
at 

we
nt 

we
ll 

wh
at 

did
n’t

 go
 so

 w
ell

 
Th

ey
 ha

ve
 al
so
 be

en
 su

pp
ort

ing
 Fr

ien
ds
 of

 gr
ou
ps
 to

 
he

lp 
the

m 
to 

loo
k a

fte
r th

eir
 lo
ca
l p
ark

s a
nd
 ar

e d
oin

g 
litt
er 

pic
kin

g a
nd

 le
af 

cle
ari

ng
 et

c. 
 Th

ey
 ha

ve
 al
so
 

wo
rke

d w
ith
 th

e F
rie

nd
s o

f th
e H

on
ey
bo

urn
e L

ine
 to

 
im
pro

ve
 se

cu
rity

 an
d e

nc
ou

rag
e g

rea
ter

 us
e o

f it
 an

d 
ha

ve
 w
ork

ed
 w
ith
 gr

aff
iti 
art

ist
s a

nd
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 
fro

m 
a P

rin
ce
's 
Tru

st 
gro

up
 to

 cr
ea
te 

60
m 

of 
mu

ral
 on

 
the

 un
de
rpa

ss
 of

 Je
ss
op
s A

ve
nu

e. 
 W
ork

 ha
s b

ee
n o

ng
oin

g w
ith
 sy

ste
ms

 th
ink

ing
 w
hic

h 
ha

s r
es
ult
ed

 in
 a 

mo
re 

eff
ec
tiv
e s

erv
ice

 fo
r th

e 
cu
sto

me
r. 

 Th
e s

tra
teg

ic 
lan

d u
se
 te

am
 tra

ns
fer

red
 to
 th

e b
uil
t 

en
vir
on

me
nt 

div
isio

n f
rom

 1 
Ja
nu

ary
 so

 th
at 

it e
na
ble

s 
a m

ore
 jo
ine

d u
p a

pp
roa

ch
 to

 se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry 

un
de

r a
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

ma
na
ge

me
nt 

ap
pro

ac
h. 

Co
ns
ult
ati
on

 
wa

s u
nd

ert
ak
en

 on
 th

e j
oin

t c
ore

 st
rat

eg
y w

hic
h s

et 
ou

t a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
op
tio
ns
 fo
r th

e d
eli
ve
ry 

of 
ho

us
ing

 
ne

ed
.  

Ca
rbo

n e
mi
ss
ion

s a
re 

red
uc
ed

 
an

d C
he

lte
nh

am
 is
 ab

le 
to 

ad
ap

t 
to 

the
 im

pa
cts

 of
 cl
im
ate

 ch
an

ge
. 

 

Ne
w,
 m

ore
 ef

fic
ien

t c
rem

ato
rs 

ha
ve
 be

en
 in
sta

lle
d a

nd
 

are
 no

w 
op

era
tio
na

l. A
 ba

nk
 of

 LE
D 
lig
hts

 is
 cu

rre
ntl
y 

be
ing

 tri
all
ed

 in
 th

e s
wim

mi
ng

 po
ol 
ha

ll. 
LE

D 
lig
hti
ng

 
wa

s a
lso

 su
cc
es
sfu

lly 
tria

lle
d i
n R

eg
en

t A
rca

de
 ca

r 
pa

rk;
 fu

ll in
sta

lla
tio
n i
s u

nd
erw

ay
 an

d w
ill b

e 
co
mp

let
ed
 in
 lin

e w
ith
 th

e n
ew

 tic
ke
tin
g s

ys
tem

 
 Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

Lo
w 
Ca

rbo
n P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
lau

nc
he

d a
 ne

w 
on

lin
e t

oo
lkit

, T
he
 Bi

g G
ree

n B
un

dle
, w

hic
h i
s 

de
sig

ne
d t

o h
elp

 bu
sin

es
se
s e

ng
ag

e w
ith
 st
aff
 ab

ou
t 

gre
en

 is
su
es
 at

 w
ork

.   
 Th

e c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 fra

me
wo

rk 
inc

lud
es
 a 

su
sta

ina
bil
ity
 ap

pra
isa

l w
hic

h w
ill e

ns
ure

 th
at 
clim

ate
 

ch
an

ge
 is
su
es
 ar

e p
ick

ed
 up

 th
rou

gh
 th

e 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 pr

oc
es
s. 

   

In 
ter

ms
 of

 de
live

rin
g e

ne
rgy

 sa
vin

g p
roj

ec
ts,
 a 

vo
lta
ge

 
op

tim
isa

tio
n d

ev
ice

 w
as
 in
sta

lle
d a

t L
eis

ure
@
 bu

t th
is 

ca
us
ed

 pr
ob

lem
s w

ith
 C
om

bin
ed

 H
ea

t a
nd

 Po
we

r u
nit
 

wh
ich

 co
uld

 no
t b

e r
es
olv

ed
. T

he
 de

vic
e i
s b

ein
g t

ak
en

 ou
t 

an
d r

ein
sta

lle
d a

t th
e T

ow
n H

all
. S

ub
jec

t to
 a 

pil
ot 

pe
rio

d, 
the

 re
ma

ind
er 

of 
de

vic
es
 w
ill b

e r
oll
ed

 ou
t. 

 Th
e m

ile
sto

ne
 to

 es
tab

lish
 an

 of
fic
er 

gro
up

 to
 co

ord
ina

te 
eff

ort
s o

n c
lim

ate
 ch

an
ge

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 w
as
 no

t a
ch
iev

ed
 as

 
it w

as
 fe

lt t
his

 m
ec
ha

nis
m 

wa
s n

o l
on
ge

r a
pp

rop
ria
te 

un
de

r 
the

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 st
ruc

tur
e; 

ins
tea

d t
he
 cl
im
ate

 ch
an

ge
 

an
d s

us
tai
na

bil
ity
 of

fic
er 

wil
l w

ork
 w
ith
 di
rec

tor
s o

f re
tai
ne

d 
se
rvi
ce
s t
o u

pd
ate

 th
eir
 ris

k a
ss
es
sm

en
ts 
an

d t
he
n 

pro
du

ce
 a 

rep
ort

. C
om

mi
ss
ion

ed
 se

rvi
ce
s (

bu
ilt 

en
vir
on

me
nt,

 lo
ca
l a
uth

ori
ty 
co
mp

an
y) 

wil
l b
e r

eq
uir

ed
 to

 
rep

ort
 on

 ho
w 
the

y h
av
e b

ee
n a

da
pti
ng

 to
 cl
im
ate

 ch
an
ge

 
as
 pa

rt o
f th

e r
ev
iew

 pr
oc
es
s. 
  

Page 86



Ou
tco

me
s 

wh
at 

we
nt 

we
ll 

wh
at 

did
n’t

 go
 so

 w
ell

 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

is 
ab

le 
to 

rec
ov
er 

qu
ick

ly 
an

d s
tro

ng
ly 
fro

m 
the

 
rec

es
sio

n. 
  

W
ork

 ha
s c

on
tin
ue

d t
his

 ye
ar 

to 
su
pp

ort
 lo
ca
l 

bu
sin

es
se
s t
hro

ug
h t

ou
gh

 ec
on

om
ic 
tim

es
. T

he
 

co
un

cil 
wo

rke
d w

ith
 fo

rm
er 

Bu
sin

es
s L

ink
 ad

vis
ors

 to
 

pro
vid

e f
ree

 ad
vic

e s
es
sio

ns
 at

 th
e M

un
icip

al 
Of
fic
es
. 

To
 da

te 
32

 bu
sin

es
se
s (
27

 st
art

-up
s) 

ha
ve
 be

ne
fite

d 
fro

m 
the

 ad
vic

e. 
Th

e c
ou
nc
il s

up
po

rte
d a

 pr
oje

ct 
to 

en
ab

le 
8 l
oc
al 
en

tre
pre

ne
urs

 to
 es

tab
lish

 an
d g

row
 

the
ir b

us
ine

ss
es
 – 

thi
s c

on
clu

de
d w

ith
 a 

bu
sin

es
s 

sh
ow

ca
se
 he

ld 
at 

the
 Be

ec
hw

oo
d S

ho
pp

ing
 C
en

tre
.  

 Th
e c

ou
nc
il h

as
 co

nti
nu

ed
 to

 co
mm

un
ica

te 
reg

ula
rly
 

wit
h l
oc
al 
bu

sin
es
se
s t
hro

ug
h i
ts 
bu
sin

es
s p

rid
e 

ne
ws

let
ter

, th
ree

 ed
itio

ns
 ha

ve
 be

en
 pu

bli
sh
ed

 an
d 

thi
s g

oe
s t
o 6

96
 bu

sin
es
se
s. 
 

 Th
rou

gh
 th

e w
ork

 of
 C
he
lte
nh

am
 D
ev
elo

pm
en

t 
Ta

sk
for

ce
, s
ign

ific
an
t w

ork
 ha

s b
ee

n u
nd

ert
ak
en

 to
 

pro
vid

e a
 lo
ng

er-
ter

m 
sti
mu

lus
 fo

r th
e l
oc
al 
ec
on

om
y; 

Re
ge

nt 
Ar
ca
de
 ha

ve
 st
art

ed
 w
ork

s o
n t

he
 ne

w 
Hig

h 
Str

ee
t fr

on
tag

e; 
co
ntr

ac
ts 
ha

ve
 be

en
 ex

ch
an

ge
d w

ith
 

the
 de

ve
lop

er 
of 

No
rth

 Pl
ac
e /

 Po
rtla

nd
 St

ree
t a

nd
 a 

pla
nn

ing
 ap

pli
ca
tio
n f

or 
the

 ne
w 
Hig

h S
tre

et 
ac
ce
ss
 to

 
the

 Br
ew

ery
 si
te 

ha
s b

ee
n s

ub
mi
tte

d. 
 

 Th
e c

ou
nc
il h

as
 al
so
 co

nti
nu

ed
 to

 su
pp

ort
 th

e 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

Bu
sin

es
s P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
an

d i
ts 
ma

ng
er 

wh
o 

fac
ilita

tes
 cl
os
e l
iai
so
n w

ith
 lo
ca
l b
us
ine

ss
es
, tr

ad
er 

as
so
cia

tio
ns
 an

d t
he
 m

ed
ia.
  

Un
em

plo
ym

en
t in

 th
e b

oro
ug

h r
em

ain
s r

ela
tiv
ely

 hi
gh

 at
 

3.3
% 

at 
en

d o
f M

arc
h, 

tho
ug

h t
he
re 

are
 po

ck
ets

 of
 th

e 
bo

rou
gh

 w
he

re 
un

em
plo

ym
en

t is
 m

uc
h h

igh
er 

– S
t. M

ark
s 

at 
6.1

%,
 O
ak
ley

 at
 6.

4%
 an

d H
es
ter

s W
ay
 at
 7.

2%
 ar

e a
ll 

in 
the

 10
% 

hig
he

st 
in 
the

 co
un

ty.
  

 Th
e p

rop
ort

ion
 of

 yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 no
t in

 ed
uc
ati
on

, 
em

plo
ym

en
t o

r tr
ain

ing
 (N

EE
T) 

rem
ain

s t
he

 hi
gh

es
t in

 th
e 

co
un

ty;
 at

 th
e e

nd
 of

 M
arc

h t
he
re 

we
re 

15
3 i
n t

his
 gr

ou
p 

rep
res

en
tin
g 6

.0%
 of
 th

e c
oh

ort
 of

 16
-18

 ye
ar 

old
s. 
 

W
e a

ttra
ct 
mo

re 
vis

ito
rs 
an

d 
inv

es
tor

s t
o C

he
lte
nh

am
. 

 
Ca

bin
et 

ag
ree

d t
he
 To

uri
sm

 an
d M

ark
eti
ng

 St
rat

eg
y a

t 
its
 m

ee
tin
g i
n A

pri
l 2
01

1, 
an

d w
ork

 ha
s b

ee
n 

un
de

rta
ke
n t

o c
rea

te 
a n

ew
 of

fic
er 

str
uc
tur

e t
o s

up
po

rt 
the

 to
uri

sm
 se

rvi
ce
. T

he
re 

we
re 

aro
un

d 1
.7m

 hi
ts 
on

 
the

 to
uri

sm
 w
eb

sit
e. 

 Th
rou

gh
 th

e P
rom

oti
ng

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 Fu

nd
, £

15
0k
 w
as
 

all
oc
ate

d t
o 1

3 p
roj

ec
ts 
tha

t w
ill s

tim
ula

te 
ec
on

om
ic 

an
d b

us
ine

ss
 gr

ow
th 

in 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m.

 A 
fur

the
r 

all
oc
ati
on

 of
 £2

5k
 w
as
 m

ad
e t

o s
up

po
rt t

he
 re

-de
sig

n 
an

d i
mp

lem
en
tat

ion
 of

 th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 to
uri
sm

 w
eb

sit
e. 
 

Th
e n

um
be
r o

f a
ctu

al 
vis

ito
rs 

to 
the

 To
uri

st 
Inf

orm
ati
on

 
Ce

ntr
e h

as
 co

nti
nu

ed
 to

 de
clin

e w
ith
 on

ly 
so
me

 sl
igh

t 
inc

rea
se
s s

ho
win

g J
un

e t
o A

ug
us
t 2

01
1 i
n c

om
pa
ris
on

 to
 

the
 pr

ev
iou

s y
ea

r. A
cro

ss
 th

e y
ea

r th
e T

IC
 ar

e 1
,60

0 
vis

ito
rs 

do
wn

 on
 20

10
/20

11
 fig

ure
s. 
Th

is 
co
nti
nu

es
 to

 
fol
low

 th
e t

ren
d t

ha
t m

ore
 fir

st 
tim

e v
isit

ors
 ar

e a
cc
es
sin

g 
the

 w
eb

sit
e b

efo
re 

vis
itin

g a
 de

sti
na

tio
n. 

 

Page 87



Ou
tco

me
s 

wh
at 

we
nt 

we
ll 

wh
at 

did
n’t

 go
 so

 w
ell

 
Co

mm
un

itie
s f
ee

l s
afe

 an
d a

re 
sa
fe.

 
 

Du
e t

o t
he
 hi
gh

 bu
rgl

ary
 ra

tes
 in
 th

e b
oro

ug
h, 

an
 

ev
en

t w
as
 he

ld 
in 
Ma

y t
o g

ain
 pa

rtn
er 

co
mm

itm
en
t to

 
a r

an
ge

 of
 ac

tiv
itie

s t
o h

elp
 re

du
ce
 do

me
sti
c b

urg
lar

y. 
A m

ult
i a
ge

nc
y t
as
k a

nd
 fin

ish
 gr

ou
p w

as
 se

t u
p t
o 

co
ord

ina
te 

ac
tiv
ity
. T

he
 w
ork

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 

by
 th

e p
oli
ce
, 

co
un

cil 
an

d o
the

r a
ge

nc
ies

 is
 be

gin
nin

g t
o h

av
e a

n 
im
pa

ct 
wit

h 3
00

 le
ss
 in
cid

en
ts 
in 
Q4

 co
mp

are
d t

o Q
3 

 Fu
nd

ing
 w
as
 ra

ise
d f
rom

 va
rio

us
 so

urc
es
 to

 in
sta

ll 7
 

ne
w 
CC

TV
 ca

me
ras

 on
 th

e H
on

ey
bo

urn
e L

ine
 

be
tw
ee

n t
he

 ra
ilw

ay
 st
ati
on

 an
d J

ub
ile
e B

rid
ge

 w
hic

h 
are

 m
on

ito
red

 at
 La

ns
do
wn

 R
oa

d P
oli
ce
 St

ati
on

.  
 Th

e A
nti
-S
oc
ial
 Be

ha
vio

ur 
(A
SB

) w
ork

ing
 gr

ou
p w

as
 

res
tru

ctu
red

 to
 in
co
rpo

rat
e t

he
 C
BH

 Sa
fer

 Es
tat

es
 

me
eti
ng

s a
nd

 H
ate

 C
rim

e m
ee
tin
gs
 to

 im
pro

ve
 

eff
icie

nc
y. 

 In 
ter

ms
 of

 ov
era

ll c
rim

e f
igu

res
, th

e t
ota

l fo
r th

e y
ea

r 
is 
95

65
, 5

71
 le
ss
 th

an
 in
 20

10
-11

. T
he

re 
wa

s a
 22

% 
red

uc
tio
n i
n Q

4. 
 Th

e n
um

be
r o

f A
SB

 in
cid

en
ts 
in 
the

 ye
ar 

wa
s 5

54
8, 

bu
t th

is 
ca
nn

ot 
be
 co

mp
are

d t
o p

rev
iou

s y
ea

rs 
as
 th

e 
wa

y A
SB

 is
 re

co
rde

d h
as
 be

en
 ch

an
ge

d. 
Th

ere
 w
as
 a 

sig
nif
ica

nt 
fal
l b
etw

ee
n Q

3 1
,37

6 i
nc
ide

nts
 an

d Q
4 

84
8 i
nc
ide

nts
. 

Th
ere

 w
ere

 30
9 i
nc
ide

nts
 of

 re
co
rde

d v
iol
en

ce
 in
 th

e t
ow

n 
ce
ntr

e o
n F

rid
ay
 an

d S
atu

rda
y e

ve
nin

gs
, 1

4 m
ore

 th
an
 in
 

the
 pr

ev
iou

s y
ea

r, b
ut 

the
 ov

era
ll t
ren

d i
s p

os
itiv

e, 
in 
20

07
-

08
 th

ere
 w
ere

 50
1 i
nc
ide

nts
. 

 Th
ere

 w
ere

 23
66

 se
rio

us
 ac

qu
isit

ive
 cr

im
es
 in
 th

e y
ea

r 
20

11
-12

; c
om

pa
red

 to
 2,

40
6 i
n t

he
 pr

ev
iou

s y
ea

r. T
his

 
ref

lec
ted

 th
e h

igh
 bu

rgl
ary

 ra
te 

tha
t C

he
lte
nh

am
 

ex
pe

rie
nc
ed

 th
rou

gh
ou
t 2

01
1. 

 Th
e n

um
be
r o

f re
pe

at 
do
me

sti
c v

iol
en

ce
 in
cid

en
ts 
wa

s 
33

.3%
 w
hic

h i
s 1

% 
hig

he
r th

an
 la
st 
ye
ar.

 

Pe
op

le 
ha

ve
 ac

ce
ss
 to

 de
ce
nt 

an
d a

ffo
rda

ble
 ho

us
ing

. 
 

Ph
as
e I

 of
 th

e S
t P

au
ls 
red

ev
elo

pm
en

t is
 pr

og
res

sin
g 

we
ll, 
wit

h t
ran

sfo
rm

ati
on
al 
im
pro

ve
me

nts
 al
so
 be

ing
 

un
de

rta
ke
n t

o r
em

ain
ing

 pr
iva

tel
y-o

wn
ed

 dw
ell
ing

s. 
Th

is 
inv

olv
es
 gr

an
t in

ve
stm

en
t th

rou
gh

 th
e p

riv
ate

 
se
cto

r h
ou

sin
g t

ea
m 

of 
£1
30

,00
0. 

 Th
e c

ab
ine

t a
pp

rov
ed

 a 
rep

ort
 w
hic

h s
et 

ou
t o

pti
on

s 
for

 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
a n

um
be

r o
f k
ey
 si
tes

 an
d h

ow
 

the
se
 m

ay
 be

 de
ve
lop

ed
 as

 ei
the

r C
BC

 or
 C
BH

 
ow

ne
d p

rop
ert

ies
.  W

ork
 w
ill c

on
tin
ue

 du
rin

g 2
01

2/1
3 

to 
ide

nti
fy 
a w

ay
 fo

rw
ard

 w
hic

h d
eli
ve
rs 

the
 ou

tco
me

s 
wh

ilst
 pr

ov
idi
ng

 va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey
. 

W
e a

re 
sti
ll w

ait
ing

 fo
r fi
gu

res
 th

at 
wil

l s
ho

w 
ho

w 
ma

ny
 

ne
w 
ho

me
s w

ere
 bu

ilt,
 an

d w
ha

t th
e o

ve
ral

l im
pa

ct 
wa

s o
n 

ho
us
ing

 su
pp

ly.
  

 Th
ere

 w
ere

 16
 ho

us
eh

old
s l
ivin

g i
n t

em
po

rar
y 

ac
co
mm

od
ati
on

 at
 th

e e
nd

 of
 M
arc

h, 
an

d w
hil
st 
thi
s i
s 

low
er 

tha
n i
n p

rev
iou

s y
ea

r, t
he
re 

is 
sti
ll c

on
ce
rn 

tha
t 

nu
mb

ers
 w
ill i

nc
rea

se
, p

art
icu

lar
ly 
am

on
gs
t la

rge
r fa

mi
lie
s, 

as
 pr

iva
te 

ren
ted

 ac
co
mm

od
ati
on

 be
co
me

s l
es
s 

aff
ord

ab
le.
  

Page 88



Ou
tco

me
s 

wh
at 

we
nt 

we
ll 

wh
at 

did
n’t

 go
 so

 w
ell

 
Th

e m
em

be
r h

ou
sin

g r
ev
iew

 gr
ou
p h

as
 be

en
 m

ee
tin
g 

to 
co
ns
ide

r th
e i
mp

ac
ts 
of 

we
lfa
re 

an
d h

ou
sin

g r
efo

rm
 

on
 pe

op
les

 ab
ility

 to
 ac

ce
ss
 af

for
da

ble
 ho

us
ing

.  T
he
 

co
un

cil 
ha

s a
pp

rov
ed

 th
e H

RA
 bu

sin
es
s p

lan
 w
hic

h 
se
ts 
ou
t th

e s
tra

teg
ic 
dir
ec
tio
n f

oll
ow

ing
 th

e 
im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f s
elf
 fin

an
cin

g i
n A

pri
l 2
01

2. 
 Th

is 
wil

l p
rov

ide
 si
gn

ific
an

t o
pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

the
 co

un
cil 

an
d 

CB
H 
to 

su
pp

ort
 te

na
nts

. 
 W
ork

 is
 on

go
ing

 on
 th

e d
ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f a

 ho
us
ing

 
str

ate
gy
 w
hic

h w
ill i

nc
orp

ora
te 

str
ate

gie
s f
or 

ho
me

les
sn
es
s, 
ten

an
cie

s, 
an

d h
ou

sin
g r

en
ew

al.
 

Pe
op

le 
are

 ab
le 
to 

lea
d h

ea
lth
y 

life
sty

les
. 

 
Th

e s
po

rts
, p

lay
 an

d h
ea
lth
y l
ife
sty

les
 te

am
 ha

ve
 

co
nti
nu

ed
 to

 de
live

r a
nd

 su
pp

ort
 a 

wid
e r

an
ge

 of
 

co
mm

un
ity
 ba

se
d s

po
rts

 in
itia

tiv
es
, p

lay
 ev

en
ts 
an

d 
he

alt
hy
 lif
es
tyl
es
 in
itia

tiv
es
 Th

e t
ea

m 
de

live
red

 an
 

ex
ten

siv
e p

rog
ram

me
 of

 sp
ort

 an
d p

lay
 ac

tiv
itie

s 
de

live
red

 du
rin
g t

he
 5 

we
ek
 su

mm
er 

ho
lid
ay
s, 

inc
lud

ing
 th

e S
um

me
r o

f S
po

rt p
rog

ram
me

 re
su
ltin

g i
n 

the
 fo

llo
win

g -
 1,

49
1 a

tte
nd

an
ce
s a

t P
lay

Zo
ne

 
pla

ys
ch
em

es
, 4

,76
6 r

ec
ord

ed
 Pl

ay
 R
an

ge
r v

isit
s a

nd
 

1,4
26

 at
ten

da
nc
es
 at

 th
e S

um
me

r o
f S

po
rt 

pro
gra

mm
e. 
 

 Na
tio
na

l P
lay

 D
ay
 w
as
 al
so
 su

cc
es
sfu

lly 
sta

ge
d i
n 

Pit
tvi
lle
 Pa

rk 
du
rin

g A
ug
us
t w

ith
 1,

00
5 c

hil
dre

n a
nd

 
yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 pu

rch
as
ing

 ac
tiv
ity
 w
ris
t b

an
ds
. 

 Sig
nif
ica

nt 
wo

rk 
wa

s a
lso

 be
en

 un
de
rta

ke
n t

o p
rep

are
 

for
 th

e O
lym

pic
 To

rch
 R
ela

y i
n M

ay
 20

12
, w

hic
h w

ill 
inc

lud
e a

n i
nte

rac
tiv
e s

po
rts

 vi
lla
ge

 to
 sh

ow
ca
se
 a 

wid
e r

an
ge

 of
 lo
ca
l s
po
rts

 or
ga

nis
ati
on

s. 
Th

e e
ve
nt 

wil
l a
lso

 su
pp

ort
 th

e b
uil
d u

p t
ow

ard
s t
he
 Su

mm
er 

of 
Sp

ort
 20

12
, w

hic
h w

ill f
ea
tur

e a
 br

oa
de

r ra
ng

e o
f 

Ol
ym

pic
 sp

ort
s i
n c

on
jun

cti
on

 w
ith
 lo
ca
l s
po

rts
 cl
ub
s t
o 

ce
leb

rat
e t

he
 Lo

nd
on

 ga
me

s a
nd
 sh

ow
ca
se
 lo
ca
l 

op
po

rtu
nit
ies

 to
 pa

rtic
ipa

te.
  

  

Fin
an

cia
lly 

the
 di
rec

t d
eb
it m

em
be

rsh
ip 
rec

eip
t th

at 
dip

pe
d 

in 
Au

gu
st 
ha

s c
on
trib

ute
d o

ve
ral

l s
lig
ht 

sh
ort

fal
l in

 in
co
me

 
for

 th
e y

ea
r. 

Page 89



Ou
tco

me
s 

wh
at 

we
nt 

we
ll 

wh
at 

did
n’t

 go
 so

 w
ell

 
Fo

r L
eis

ure
@
 ov

era
ll a

tte
nd

an
ce
s r

ea
ch
ed

 30
2,1

84
 

so
me

 7,
68

4 a
he

ad
 of

 ta
rge

t. T
he

re 
we

re 
19

,47
0 

att
en

da
nc
es
 on

 th
e a

cti
ve
 lif
e p

rog
ram

me
s w

hic
h w

as
 

8,4
70

 ah
ea

d o
f ta

rge
t. T

he
 £1

 sw
im
s w

as
 ah

ea
d o

f 
tar

ge
t b

y 5
68

9 s
wim

s, 
14
,46

3 m
ed

ica
l re

fer
ral

 pa
tie
nts

 
att

en
de

d s
es
sio

ns
 an

d 4
8,3

47
 ch

ild
ren

 sw
am

 fre
e 

(al
tho

ug
h t

his
 w
as
 sh

ort
 by

 1,
35

3).
 Le

isu
re@

 ha
s 

be
en

 in
vo
lve

d i
n m

an
y p

art
ne
rsh

ips
 th

is 
ye
ar 

inc
lud

ing
 

the
 U
NI
ve
rsa

l s
ch
em

e w
ith
 U
niv

ers
ity
, th

e P
E T

ea
ch
er 

tra
ini
ng

 pr
og
ram

me
, w

ork
ing

 w
ith
 2g

eth
er 

tru
st 
to 

off
er 

se
rvi
ce
s t
o m

en
tal
 he

alt
h g

rou
ps
, a

nd
 w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 

loc
al 
he

alt
h p

art
ne

rs 
on
 pr

oje
cts

 lik
e t

he
 R
es
pir

ato
ry 

Fa
ilu
re 

Gr
ou
p, 

sm
ok
ing

 ce
ss
ati
on

, fa
lls 

pre
ve
nti
on

 an
d 

os
teo

po
ros

is 
cla

ss
es
.  

 
Ou

r re
sid

en
ts 
en
joy

 a 
str
on

g 
se
ns
e o

f c
om

mu
nit
y a

nd
 in
vo
lve

d 
in 
res

olv
ing

 lo
ca
l is

su
es
. 

 

Re
lat
ion

sh
ips

 w
ith
 pa

ris
he

s a
re 

he
alt
hy
 an

d t
he

re 
is 
a 

reg
ula

r m
ee

tin
g w

ith
 th

e C
5 g

rou
p; 

thr
ou
gh

 th
is 
gro

up
, 

pa
ris
he

s h
av
e b

ee
n c

on
su
lte
d a

bo
ut 

the
ir f
utu

re 
rol
e i
n 

the
 pl
an

nin
g s

ys
tem

 an
d t
he

re 
is 
a c

om
mi
tm

en
t to

 
wo

rk 
wit

h p
ari

sh
es
 on

 a 
rev

iew
 of

 pa
ris
h b

ou
nd

ari
es
. 

 Tra
ns
itio

n T
ow

n C
he

lte
nh

am
 go

ing
 w
ell
 w
ith
 ov

er 
10

0 
pe

op
le 
no

w 
en

ga
ge

d a
nd
 su

cc
es
sfu

l e
ve
nts

 ha
ve
 

be
en

 he
ld.
 N
ine

 ou
t o

f th
e 1

3 n
eig

hb
ou

rho
od
 

ma
na
ge

me
nt 

are
as
 ar

e n
ow

 co
ord

ina
ted

 by
 lo
ca
l 

co
mm

un
itie

s. 
Th

e C
HA

MP
S n

etw
ork

 is
 go

ing
 w
ell
; 5

8 
ch
am

ps
 ha

ve
 no

w 
be

en
 tra

ine
d. 

 Su
pp

ort
 ha

s b
ee

n p
rov

ide
d t

o a
 ra

ng
e o

f c
om

mu
nit
y 

org
an

isa
tio
ns
 w
ho

 w
ish

 to
 pu

t o
n D

iam
on

d J
ub

ile
e 

ce
leb

rat
ion

s; 
thi
s h

as
 ra

ng
ed
 to

 ge
ne

ral
 ad

vic
e a

nd
 

su
pp

ort
 to

 he
lp 
wit

h l
ice

ns
ing

 is
su
es
. T

he
re 

are
 12

 
pu

bli
c e

ve
nts

 pu
bli
cis

ed
 on

 th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 w
eb

sit
e a

nd
 

a f
urt

he
r 3

5 s
tre

et 
pa

rtie
s h

ap
pe

nin
g i
n C

he
lte
nh
am

. 

Th
ere

 ar
e c

on
ce
rns

 fro
m 

co
mm

un
ity
 or

ga
nis

ati
on

s a
nd

 
ele

cte
d m

em
be
rs 

tha
t n

ot 
en

ou
gh

 is
 be

ing
 do

ne
 to

 su
pp

ort
 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 in
 th

e b
oro

ug
h; 
thi
s i
s i
n l
igh

t o
f th

e 
red

uc
tio
ns
 to

 th
e y

ou
th 

se
rvi
ce
 an

d t
o o

the
r s

up
po
rt 

ag
en

cie
s s

uc
h a

s c
on

ne
xio

ns
.  

Ar
ts 
an

d c
ult
ure

 ar
e u

se
d a

s a
 

me
an

s t
o s

tre
ng

the
n 

co
mm

un
itie

s, 
str

en
gth

en
 th

e 
ec
on

om
y a

nd
 en

ha
nc
e a

nd
 

pro
tec

t o
ur 

en
vir
on

me
nt.
 

Th
e A

rt G
all
ery

 an
d M

us
eu

m 
wa

s c
los

ed
 fro

m 
Ap

ril 
20

11
 to

 en
ab

le 
wo

rk 
to 

co
mm

en
ce
 on

 th
e n

ew
 

ex
ten

sio
n; 

an
d w

ork
 ha

s p
rog

res
se
d w

ell
 ov

er 
the

 pa
st 

ye
ar;

 pi
lin
g a

nd
 w
ork

s t
o t
he

 fir
st 
flo
or 

we
re 

co
mp

let
ed

 
aro

un
d t

he
 en

d o
f M

arc
h 2

01
2. 

  

 

Page 90



Ou
tco

me
s 

wh
at 

we
nt 

we
ll 

wh
at 

did
n’t

 go
 so

 w
ell

 
 

Th
e O

ff t
he
 W

all
, o

n t
he

 M
ov
e p

rog
ram

me
 ha

s b
ee
n 

ex
tre

me
ly 
su
cc
es
sfu

l a
nd
 w
e h

av
e s

ub
se
qu

en
tly
 

en
ga

ge
d w

ith
 39

,63
5 p

eo
ple

 th
rou

gh
 va

rie
d e

ve
nts

 
an

d t
ou
rin

g s
ho

ws
 in
 an

d a
rou

nd
 C
he

lte
nh

am
.  T

his
 

pro
gra

mm
e w

ill c
on

tin
ue

 un
til 
Au

tum
n 2

01
2 w

ith
 

ev
en

ts 
lin
kin

g i
nto

 th
e J

ub
ile
e c

ele
bra

tio
ns
, th

e 
Ol
ym

pic
s a

nd
 th

e c
en
ten

ary
 of

 th
e S

co
tt/W

ilso
n 

An
tar

cti
c e

xp
ed

itio
n. 

 In
 ad

dit
ion

 to
 th

e e
ng

ag
em

en
t 

pro
gra

mm
e, 
the

 te
am

 ha
s a

lso
 co

nti
nu

ed
 its

 ed
uc
ati
on

 
pro

gra
mm

e a
nd

 re
gu

lar
 se

as
on

al 
ho

lid
ay
 ev

en
ts.
  U

p 
to 

the
 en

d o
f M

arc
h 2

9,1
22

 pe
op

le 
ha

ve
 ta

ke
n p

art
. 

 Th
e T

ow
n H

all
 ha

d a
 su

cc
es
sfu

l y
ea

r; 6
8,4

78
 tic

ke
ts 

we
re 

so
ld 
an

d t
he
re 

we
re 

25
0,0

00
 hi
ts 
on

 th
e n

ew
 

To
wn

 H
all
 w
eb

sit
e. 

 
Th

e c
ou

nc
il d

eli
ve
rs 

ca
sh
ab

le 
sa
vin

gs
, a

s w
ell
 as

 im
pro

ve
d 

cu
sto

me
r s

ati
sfa

cti
on

 ov
era

ll a
nd

 
be

tte
r p

erf
orm

an
ce
 th

rou
gh

 th
e 

eff
ec
tiv
e c

om
mi
ss
ion

ing
 of

 
se
rvi
ce
s. 

 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il h

as
 im

ple
me

nte
d a

 nu
mb

er 
of 

pro
jec

ts 
to 

de
live

r th
e £

2.8
m 

sa
vin

gs
 th

at 
we

re 
ag
ree

d a
s p

art
 of

 
the

 20
11
-12

 bu
dg

et 
in 
Fe

bru
ary

 20
11

. 
 Sig

nif
ica

nt 
wo

rk 
wa

s u
nd

ert
ak
en
 to

 la
un

ch
 th

e G
O 

Sh
are

d S
erv

ice
 on

 1s
t  A

pri
l to

ge
the

r w
ith
 its

 
ac
co
mp

an
yin

g b
us
ine

ss
 su

pp
ort

 sy
ste

m.
  

 Th
e L

eis
ure

 an
d c

ult
ure

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 re

vie
w 
ha

s 
rea

ch
ed

 op
tio
n a

pp
rai

sa
l s
tag

e a
nd

 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 

op
tio
ns
 ar

e n
ow

 be
ing

 ev
alu

ate
d a

ga
ins

t a
 se

t o
f 

cri
ter

ia 
ag
ree

d w
ith
 th

e m
em

be
r w

ork
ing

 gr
ou

p. 
Th

e 
rev

iew
 ha

s a
lre

ad
y s

av
ed

 £1
38
k t
o d

ate
.  

 A n
um

be
r o

f n
ew

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 re

vie
ws

 ha
ve
 be

en
 

ag
ree

d a
nd
 in
clu

de
d w

ith
in 
the

 co
rpo

rat
e s

tra
teg

y 
ac
tio
n p

lan
 fo

r 2
01

2/1
3 

Th
e A

gre
ss
o s

ys
tem

 ha
s g

on
e l
ive

 at
 Fo

res
t o
f D

ea
n, 

W
es
t O

xfo
rds

hir
e, 

Ch
elt
en

ha
m 

Bo
rou

gh
 C
ou

nc
il, 

Ch
elt
en

ha
m 

Bo
rou

gh
 H
om

es
 an

d U
bic

o L
td.

  
Im

ple
me

nta
tio
n a

t C
ots

wo
ld 
Dis

tric
t C

ou
nc
il w

ill n
ow

 ta
ke
 

pla
ce
 in
 Au

gu
st 
20

12
, th

e d
ela

y w
as
 m

ain
ly 
du

e t
o t

he
 fa

ct 
tha

t s
ys
tem

 te
sti
ng

 to
ok
 lo
ng

er 
tha

n o
rig

ina
lly 

for
ec
as
t.  

GO
 Sh

are
d S

erv
ice

s w
en

t li
ve
 on

 1 
Ap

ril 
20

12
 as

 or
igi
na

lly 
pla

nn
ed

. 
 

 

Page 91



Page 92
This page is intentionally left blank



CB
H 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 C
BC

 C
orp

ora
te 

Pla
n, 

20
11

/12
 

Pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 Bu

sin
es

s S
up

po
rt 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

CB
H 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 to
 C

BC
 C

or
po

ra
te

 P
la

n,
 20

11
/1

2 
  CB

C 
Ob

jec
tiv

es
 

CB
C 

Ou
tco

me
s 

CB
H 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

fo
r 2

01
1/

12
 

En
ha

nc
ing

 an
d p

ro
tec

tin
g 

ou
r e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

ha
s a

 cl
ea

n a
nd

 w
ell

-m
ain

tai
ne

d 
en

vir
on

me
nt.

 
�
 
Fly

 tip
pin

g r
em

ov
ed

 fro
m 

HR
A l

an
d b

y C
BH

 Es
tat

e C
lea

nin
g 

Te
am

: 3
,31

9 i
nd

ivid
ua

l fl
y t
ipp

ing
 re

qu
es
ts 
we

re 
de
alt
 w
ith
 in
 

20
11

/12
. A

ll f
ly 
tip
pe

d w
as
te 

fro
m 

CB
H 
ma

na
ge

d l
an

d i
s 

rem
ov
ed

 w
ith
in 
fiv
e w

ork
ing

 da
ys
 

�
 
10

0%
 of

 em
erg

en
cy
 re

qu
es
ts 
for

 fly
 tip

pin
g (

wh
ere

 th
ere

 is
 a 

ris
k t
o p

ub
lic 

he
alt
h) 

are
 re

sp
on

de
d t

o w
ith
in 
tw
o w

ork
ing

 
ho

urs
 fro

m 
rec

eip
t o
f in

str
uc
tio
n ,

 be
tw
ee

n t
he

 ho
urs

 of
 08

00
 

an
d 1

50
0 h

ou
rs 

Mo
nd

ay
 to

 Fr
ida

y 
�
 
Es

tat
e c

lea
ne

rs 
pe

rfo
rm

 6,
63

0 s
ch
ed
ule

d c
lea

ns
 pe

r y
ea

r 
�
 
10

0%
 of

 em
erg

en
cy
 cl
ea
nin

g r
eq

ue
sts

 (w
he

re 
the

re 
is 
a r

isk
 

to 
pu

bli
c h

ea
lth
) a

re 
res

po
nd

ed
 to

 w
ith
in 
tw
o w

ork
ing

 ho
urs

 
fro

m 
rec

eip
t o
f in

str
uc
tio
n 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m’
s n

atu
ral

 an
d b

uil
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

t is
 

en
ha

nc
ed

 an
d p

ro
tec

ted
. 

�
 
Co

mm
un

ity
 H
ou

se
 in
 St

 Pa
ul’
s h

as
 be

en
 gi
ve
n a

 fa
ce
lift
 

tha
nk
s t
o t

he
 C
BH

’s 
ma

int
en

an
ce
 co

ntr
ac
tor

s P
H 
Jo
ne

s 
an

d I
an
 W

illia
ms

. T
he

 ce
ntr

e h
as
 be

en
 tra

ns
for

me
d a

nd
 

no
w 
bo

as
ts 
a n

ew
 ki
tch

en
 an

d b
ath

roo
m 

wit
h f

ull
 di
sa
ble

d 
ac
ce
ss
. T

he
 in
ter

ior
 ha

s a
lso

 be
en

 tre
ate

d t
o a

 fre
sh
 co

at 
of 

pa
int
 th

an
ks
 to

 de
co
rat

ing
 co

nta
cto

r Ia
n W

illia
ms

 w
ho

 
do

na
ted

 pa
int
 an

d c
arr

ied
 ou

t th
e d

ec
ora

tin
g w

ork
.  

�
 
Sh

elt
ere

d H
ou

sin
g s

ch
em

es
 ha

ve
 be

en
 up

gra
de
d a

cro
ss
 

the
 bo

rou
gh

. W
ork

s i
nc
lud

es
 ga

rde
n a

nd
 la
nd

sc
ap
ing

 
wo

rks
, d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f b

es
po

ke
 sc

oo
ter

 st
ora

ge
, li
ft 

up
gra

de
s a

nd
 in
ter

na
l re

de
co
rat

ion
; im

pro
vin

g b
oth

 th
e 

en
vir
on

me
nt 

an
d q

ua
lity

 of
 lif
e f

or 
res

ide
nts

. 
�
 
Ne

w 
reg

en
era

tio
n p

roj
ec
t la

un
ch
ed

 fo
r H

ob
art

 H
ou
se
: 

Re
sid

en
ts 
in 
Ho

ba
rt H

ou
se
 an

d t
he

 su
rro

un
din

g a
rea

 w
ill 

so
on

 en
joy

 a 
tra

ns
for

ma
tio
n t

o t
he

ir c
om

mu
na

l o
utd

oo
r 

sp
ac
e t

ha
nk
s t
o t

he
 la
un

ch
 of

 th
e n

ew
 H
ob

art
 H
ou

se
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Pr

oje
ct.
 O
ve
r th

e n
ex
t s
ix 
mo

nth
s C

BH
 w
ill b

e 
wo

rki
ng

 cl
os
ely

 w
ith
 re

sid
en

ts 
in 
Ho

ba
rt H

ou
se
, 3
3-5

5 
Sh

ell
y R

oa
d a

nd
 17

0-1
92
 Sh

ak
es
pe

are
 R
oa

d t
o d

ev
elo

p 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

C Page 93



CB
H 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 C
BC

 C
orp

ora
te 

Pla
n, 

20
11

/12
 

Pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 Bu

sin
es

s S
up

po
rt 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2 

CB
C 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 
CB

C 
Ou

tco
me

s 
CB

H 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
fo

r 2
01

1/
12

 
de

sig
ns
 to

 im
pro

ve
 th

e g
ras

se
d a

rea
s a

nd
 pa

rki
ng

 ar
ou

nd
 

the
 pr

op
ert

ies
. In

 ad
dit
ion

 to
 th

e p
hy
sic

al 
reg

en
era

tio
n 

wo
rks

 so
cia

l a
nd
 ed

uc
ati
on

al 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 w
ill b

e 
de

ve
lop

ed
 fo

r re
sid

en
ts 

Ca
rb

on
 em

iss
ion

s a
re 

red
uc

ed
 an

d 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

is 
ab

le 
to 

ad
ap

t to
 th

e i
mp

ac
ts 

of 
cli

ma
te 

ch
an

ge
. 

�
 
Th

e 1
6 n

ew
 ho

me
s b

uil
t a

t B
rig

hto
n R

oa
d h

av
e a

ll b
ee

n 
bu

ilt 
to 

Co
de
 fo

r S
us
tai
na
ble

 H
om

es
 Le

ve
l 4
 an

d b
oa

st 
the

 
ins

tal
lat
ion

 of
 cu

ttin
g e

dg
e t

ec
hn

olo
gie

s (
inc

lud
ing

 Ph
oto

 
Vo

lta
ic 
(P
V)
 C
ell
s) 

wh
ich

 w
ill b

oo
st 
the

 ho
me

s’ 
en
erg

y 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 

�
 
En

erg
y e

ffic
ien

cy
 lin

ke
d S

AP
 (S

tan
da

rd 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
Pr
oc
ed

ure
) ra

tin
g h

as
 in
cre

as
ed

 fo
r e

xis
tin
g p

rop
ert

ies
 

�
 
SW

EA
 (S

ou
th 
W
es
t E

ne
rgy

 Ag
en

cy
) h

av
e a

tte
nd

ed
 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d p

icn
ics

 fo
r a

wa
ren

es
s r

ais
ing

 ar
ou
nd

 
en

vir
on

me
nta

l a
nd

 en
erg

y u
se
 – 

he
lpi
ng

 to
 ad

dre
ss
 fu

el 
po

ve
rty

 
�
 
CB

H 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l fo
rum

 se
t u

p w
ith
 a 

Bo
ard

 C
ha

mp
ion

 
�
 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l d
ata

 pr
od
uc
ed

 to
 un

de
rst

an
d C

arb
on

 
Fo

otp
rin

t a
nd

 se
t fu

tur
e t
arg

ets
. E

xte
rna

l e
ne

rgy
 

as
se
ss
me

nts
 of

 co
mp

an
y o

ffic
es
 to

 pr
od

uc
e a

cti
on
 pl
an

 
an

d a
n E

nv
iro

nm
en
tal
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ys
tem

 (E
MS

) s
et 

up
 

in 
lin
e w

ith
 IS

O1
40

01
 gu

ida
nc
e 

�
 
CB

H 
are

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
CB

C 
Ca

rbo
n R

ed
uc
tio
n G

rou
p a

nd
 

the
 Lo

w 
Ca

rbo
n P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
St

ren
gth

en
ing

 ou
r 

ec
on

om
y. 

 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

is 
ab

le 
to 

rec
ov

er 
qu

ick
ly 

an
d 

str
on

gly
 fr

om
 th

e r
ec

es
sio

n. 
�
 
Sp

ec
ial
ist
 Be

ne
fits

 an
d M

on
ey
 Ad

vis
or 

em
plo

ye
d t

o h
elp

 
res

ide
nts

 so
rt t

hro
ug

h t
he
ir f

ina
nc
es
 an

d m
ak
e s

ure
 th

at 
the

y a
re 

rec
eiv

ing
 al
l th

e b
en

efi
ts 
the

y a
re 

en
titl
ed
 to

 
�
 
CB

H-
led

 Fi
na

nc
ial
 In

clu
sio

n W
ork

ing
 G
rou

p h
eld

 th
ree

 
mo

ne
y a

dv
ice

 dr
op

-in
 ev

en
ts 
at 

loc
ati
on

s a
cro

ss
 th

e 
bo

rou
gh

. V
isit

ors
 to

 th
e e

ve
nts

 w
ere

 gi
ve
n s

up
po

rt a
nd

 
inf
orm

ati
on

 on
 a 

ran
ge

 of
 m

on
ey
 m

att
ers

 in
clu

din
g: 

de
bt 

ma
na
ge

me
nt,
 en

erg
y b

ills
, b

an
k a

cc
ou

nts
, s
av
ing

 sc
he
me

s 
an

d w
elf
are

 be
ne
fits

 ad
vic

e. 
Th

is 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 ev

en
t w

as
 

we
ll a

tte
nd

ed
 an

d i
nc
lud

ed
 in
for

ma
tio
n s

tan
ds
 fro

m 
CB

H,
 

CB
C,
 C
itiz

en
s A

dv
ice

 Bu
rea

u, 
Ba

rcl
ay
s B

an
k, 

Gl
ou

ce
ste

rsh
ire
 C
red

it U
nio

n, 
Jo
b C

en
tre

 Pl
us
, A

4e
, E

biC
o, 

Page 94



CB
H 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 C
BC

 C
orp

ora
te 

Pla
n, 

20
11

/12
 

Pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 Bu

sin
es

s S
up

po
rt 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3 

CB
C 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 
CB

C 
Ou

tco
me

s 
CB

H 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
fo

r 2
01

1/
12

 
Ag

e U
K, 

Ille
ga

l M
on

ey
 Le

nd
ing

 Te
am

 an
d M

on
ey
 Ad

vic
e 

Se
rvi
ce
. F

urt
he
r m

on
ey
 ad

vic
e e

ve
nts

 ar
e b

ein
g p

lan
ne

d 
for

 ne
xt 
ye
ar.

 
�
 
Em

plo
ym

en
t In

itia
tiv
es
 Ad

vis
or 

ha
s b

ee
n e

mp
loy

ed
 to

 he
lp 

res
ide

nts
 in
to 

tra
ini
ng

 an
d/o

r e
mp

loy
me

nt 
�
 
Th

e ‘
Hu

b’ 
op

en
ed

 at
 Ed

wa
rd 

W
ilso

n H
ou

se
 pr

ov
idi
ng

 
ad

vic
e a

nd
 gu

ida
nc
e f

or 
res

ide
nts

 ar
ou

nd
 tra

ini
ng

 an
d 

em
plo

ym
en

t o
pp

ort
un

itie
s 

�
 
CB

H 
Ac

ad
em

y t
o p

rov
ide

s t
en

an
ts 
wit

h s
kill

s  
We

 at
tra

ct 
mo

re 
vis

ito
rs 

an
d i

nv
es

tor
s t

o 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m.

 
 

St
ren

gth
en

ing
 ou

r 
co

mm
un

itie
s. 

Co
mm

un
itie

s f
ee

l s
afe

 an
d a

re 
sa

fe.
 

�
 
CB

H’s
 ‘s
afe

r e
sta

tes
 te

am
’ re

sp
on
d t

o 1
00
% 

rep
ort

s o
f 

se
rio

us
 AS

B w
ith
in 
on

e d
ay
 

�
 
CB

H’s
 ‘s
afe

r e
sta

tes
 te

am
’ w

ork
s c

los
ely

 w
ith
 C
BC

 an
d 

Po
lice

 Au
tho

rity
 to

 co
mb

at 
an
ti-s

oc
ial
 be

ha
vio

ur.
 Pr

oa
cti
ve
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ork

 ha
s s

up
po

rte
d v

uln
era

ble
 re

sid
en

ts 
of 

sh
elt
ere

d a
cc
om

mo
da
tio
n 

�
 
An

 an
ti-s

oc
ial
 be

ha
vio

ur 
inj
un

cti
on

 w
as
 su

cc
es
sfu

lly 
bro

ug
ht 

ag
ain

st 
loc

al 
ma

n D
an

ny
 Jo

hn
so
n, 

ba
nn

ing
 hi
m 

fro
m 

en
ter

ing
 H
es
ter

’s 
Wa

y a
nd

 su
rro

un
din

g a
rea

s. 
CB

H 
ap

pli
ed

 fo
r th

e A
SB

 in
jun

cti
on

 af
ter

 re
ce
ivin

g m
an
y 

all
eg

ati
on

s t
ha

t h
e h

ad
, o
ve
r m

an
y y

ea
rs,

 th
rea

ten
ed

 
vio

len
ce
 an

d u
se
d v

iol
en

ce
 ag

ain
st 
a n

um
be

r o
f 

Ch
elt
en

ha
m 

res
ide

nts
 an

d h
ad

 en
ga

ge
d i
n t

he
 su

pp
ly 
of 

dru
gs
 in
 H
es
ter

’s 
W
ay
. G

lou
ce
ste

r C
ou

nty
 C
ou

rt h
av
e 

pla
ce
d a

 fiv
e-y

ea
r A

SB
 in
jun

cti
on
 ag

ain
st 
him

. C
BH

 ha
s 

be
en

 w
ork

ing
 ha

rd 
to 

tac
kle

 an
d p

rev
en

t in
cid

en
ts 
of 

AS
B 

an
d t

he
 m

ajo
rity

 of
 ca

se
s a

re 
res

olv
ed

 w
ith
ou

t th
e n

ee
d f

or 
leg

al 
ac
tio
n t

hro
ug

h a
n i
nd

ep
en

de
nt 

me
dia

tio
n s

erv
ice

 an
d 

via
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

pre
ve
nta

tiv
e m

ea
su
res

 C
BH

 ha
s i
n p

lac
e t

o 
tac

kle
 an

ti-s
oc
ial
  

�
 
A n

ew
 an

ti-s
oc
ial
 be

ha
vio

ur 
(A
SB

) re
po

rtin
g s

erv
ice

, 
av
ail
ab

le 
to 

cu
sto

me
rs 

24
 ho

urs
 a 

da
y s

ev
en

 da
ys
 a 

we
ek
 

ha
s b

ee
n l
au

nc
he

d. 
Th

e n
ew

 AS
B s

up
po

rt l
ine

 ha
s b

ee
n 

de
ve
lop

ed
 to

 pr
ov
ide

 em
erg

en
cy
 su

pp
ort

 an
d a

dv
ice

 to
 

Page 95



CB
H 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 C
BC

 C
orp

ora
te 

Pla
n, 

20
11

/12
 

Pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 Bu

sin
es

s S
up

po
rt 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
4 

CB
C 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 
CB

C 
Ou

tco
me

s 
CB

H 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
fo

r 2
01

1/
12

 
an

yo
ne

 in
 th

e b
oro

ug
h w

ho
 w
ish

es
 to

 lo
dg

e a
 co

mp
lai
nt 

of 
AS

B i
n c

on
ne

cti
on

 w
ith
 a 

CB
H 
ma

na
ge

d p
rop

ert
y. 
Ca

lls 
wil

l 
be

 an
sw

ere
d b

y e
xp
eri

en
ce
d t

ele
ph

on
e h

an
dli
ng

 sp
ec
ial
ist
s 

Sit
ex
 O
rbi

s w
ho

 w
ill g

ath
er 

the
 re

lev
an

t in
for

ma
tio
n w

hic
h 

wil
l b
e p

as
se
d o

nto
 th

e C
BH

 Sa
fer

 Es
tat

es
 te

am
 to

 de
al 

wit
h o

n t
he

 ne
xt 
wo

rki
ng

 da
y. 
Th

e n
ew

 su
pp

ort
 lin

e a
lso

 
off

ers
 an

 ou
t-o

f-h
ou

rs 
rep

air
s s

erv
ice

 an
d i
f re

pa
irs
 ar

e 
cla

ss
ed

 as
 an

 em
erg

en
cy
, w

ill a
rra

ng
e f
or 

so
me

on
e t

o 
att

en
d w

ith
in 
tw
o h

ou
rs.

 
Pe

op
le 

ha
ve

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 de
ce

nt 
an

d a
ffo

rd
ab

le 
ho

us
ing

. 
�
 
CB

H 
ma

int
ain

s C
BC

’s 
ho
us
ing

 st
oc
k a

t 1
00
% 

de
ce
nc
y 

�
 
Int

rod
uc
tio
n o

f u
pd

ate
d p

rop
ert

y i
nfo

rm
ati
on

 sy
ste

m 
wil

l 
en

ab
le 
pro

ac
tiv
e i
de

nti
fic
ati
on

 of
 po

ten
tia
l d
ec
en

cy
 la
ps
es
 

�
 
St 

Pa
ul’
s -

 w
ork

 no
w 
we

ll u
nd

erw
ay
 on

 th
e t

ran
sfo

rm
ati
on

 
of 

80
 ho

me
s a

nd
 th

e b
uil
din

g o
f 4

8 n
ew

 pr
op

ert
ies

. W
ork

 
sta

rte
d i
n J

un
e a

nd
 ho

us
es
 in
 M
an

se
r a

nd
 H
ud

so
n S

tre
et 

wit
h m

an
y o

f th
em

 no
w 
ha

vin
g r

ec
eiv

ed
 ne

w 
ba

y w
ind

ow
s, 

rep
air

ed
 re

nd
eri

ng
, re

pa
int
ing

 an
d, 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 th
e 

pro
pe

rty
 fro

nts
 an

d g
ard

en
 ar

ea
s. 
Th

e 4
8 n

ew
 ho

me
s w

hic
h 

wil
l ra

ng
e f

rom
 1 

be
d f

lat
s t
o 4

 be
d h

ou
se
s a

re 
ex
pe

cte
d t

o 
be

 re
ad

y i
n 2

01
2. 

 
�
 
Co

ns
tru

cti
on

 w
ork

 on
 C
BH

’s 
firs

t n
ew

 ho
me

s w
as
 

co
mp

let
ed
. T

he
 16

 ne
w 
ho

me
s a

t B
rig

hto
n R

oa
d h

av
e a

ll 
be

en
 bu

ilt 
to 

Co
de

 fo
r S

us
tai
na

ble
 H
om

es
 Le

ve
l 4
 an

d 
bo

as
t th

e i
ns
tal
lat
ion

 of
 cu

ttin
g e

dg
e t

ec
hn

olo
gie

s w
hic

h w
ill 

bo
os
t th

e h
om

es
 en

erg
y p

erf
orm

an
ce
. T

he
 fir

st 
ten

an
cie

s 
we

re 
ha

nd
ed

 ov
er 

on
 4t

h  A
ug

us
t 2

01
1. 
 

�
 
Te

na
nts

 ca
n n

ow
 si
gn

 up
 to

 a 
ho
me

 sw
ap

 se
rvi
ce
 fo

r fr
ee

 
as
 C
BH

 is
 a 

pa
rtn

er 
wit

h t
he

 m
utu

al 
ex
ch
an
ge

 se
rvi
ce
, 

‘Ho
me

Sw
ap

pe
r’. 
Th

e H
om

eS
wa

pp
er 

se
rvi
ce
 he

lps
 co

un
cil 

ten
an

ts 
wh

o w
an

t to
 m

ov
e h

om
e b

y m
atc

hin
g t

he
m 

wit
h 

oth
er 

ten
an
ts 
wh

o w
an

t to
 sw

ap
. T

en
an

ts 
are

 ab
le 
to 

sw
ap

 
ho

me
s i
n t

he
ir l
oc
al 
are

a o
r a

t a
ny
 lo
ca
tio
n a

cro
ss
 th

e U
K. 

�
 
CB

H 
ha

ve
 re

ce
ive

d c
on

firm
ati
on

 th
at 

we
 ha

ve
 at

tai
ne

d 
Re

gis
ter

ed
 Pr

ov
ide

r (R
P)
 st
atu

s. 
Ga

ini
ng

 R
P s

tat
us
 w
ill 

all
ow

 C
BH

 to
 re

ce
ive

 go
ve
rnm

en
t fu

nd
ing

 fo
r th

e f
ina

nc
ing

 

Page 96



CB
H 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 C
BC

 C
orp

ora
te 

Pla
n, 

20
11

/12
 

Pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 Bu

sin
es

s S
up

po
rt 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5 

CB
C 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 
CB

C 
Ou

tco
me

s 
CB

H 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
fo

r 2
01

1/
12

 
of 

an
y s

uc
ce
ss
ful
 fu

tur
e b

ids
 to

 bu
ild
 ne

w 
aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
me

s. 
Pe

op
le 

are
 ab

le 
to 

lea
d h

ea
lth

y l
ife

sty
les

. 
�
 
Sta

yin
g w

arm
 an

d w
ell
 th

is 
win

ter
 w
as
 th

e t
he
me

 of
 C
BH

’s 
co
mm

un
ity
 ev

en
ts 
in 
No

ve
mb

er.
 Fo

ur 
W
int
er 

W
arm

er 
ev
en

ts 
we

re 
he

ld 
at 

co
mm

un
ity
 ve

nu
es
 ac

ros
s t
he
 bo

rou
gh

. 
Vis

ito
rs 

to 
the

 ev
en

ts 
go

t to
p a

dv
ice

 in
clu

din
g; 

mo
ne

y 
sa
vin

g t
ips

, c
oo
kin

g o
n a

 bu
dg

et,
 ho

w 
to 

sta
y w

arm
 an

d 
we

ll t
his

 w
int
er 

-  a
ll w

as
he

d d
ow

n w
ith
 a 

fre
e b

ow
l o
f 

de
lici

ou
s s

ou
p. 

Alo
ng

 w
ith
 C
BH

 of
fic
ers

 Ag
e U

K a
nd

 Vi
sio

n 
21

 w
ere

 al
so
 on

 ha
nd
 to

 of
fer

 to
p c

las
s a

dv
ice

 on
 ho

w 
to 

sta
y w

arm
 an

d w
ell
 th

is 
win

ter
.  

�
 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ork

 w
ith
 C
BC

 O
ffic

ers
 at

tra
cte

d f
un
din

g t
o 

de
ve
lop

 be
sp
ok
e a

cti
vit
ies

 fo
r o

lde
r p

eo
ple

 – 
thi
s i
nc
lud

ing
 

sit
-fit

 cl
as
se
s, 
cir
cle

 da
nc
ing

 ac
tiv
itie

s a
nd

 he
alt
hy
 ea

tin
g 

ad
vic

e. 
�
 
Co

mm
un

ity
 ev

en
ts 
su
ch
 as

 ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d p

icn
ics

 an
d f

un
 

da
ys
 ha

ve
 pr

om
ote

d h
ea
lth
y e

ati
ng

 an
d t

rai
nin

g c
ou

rse
s o

n 
co
ok
ing

 an
d e

ati
ng

 he
alt
hil
y h

av
e b

ee
n p

rov
ide

d  
�
 
Ov

er 
30

0 b
ud
din

g O
lym

pic
 sp

ort
ing

 st
ars

 tu
rne

d o
ut 

to 
tak

e 
pa

rt i
n t

he
 H
es
ter

’s 
W
ay
 Sp

ort
s F

un
 D
ay
. T

he
 ev

en
t 

org
an

ise
d b

y C
BH

 w
as
 he

ld 
to 

ma
rk 
the

 ru
n-u

p t
o t

he
 

Lo
nd

on
 20

12
 O
lym

pic
s a

nd
 w
as
 he

ld 
at 

the
 C
hri
st 
Co

lle
ge

 
Sp

ort
s C

en
tre

, y
ou

ng
ste

rs 
en

joy
ed

 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
ac
tiv
itie

s 
on

 of
fer

 in
clu

din
g f

oo
tba

ll, 
ho

ck
ey
, b

ow
ls,
 cu

rlin
g, 

jou
sti
ng

, 
an

d w
res

tlin
g. 

Th
e e

ve
nt 

wa
s a

lso
 he

ld 
to 

he
lp 
en
co
ura

ge
 

the
 co

mm
un

ity
 to

 ge
t a

cti
ve
 an

d t
ak
e a

n i
nte

res
t in

 sp
ort

 
�
 
Ch

ild
ren

 in
 th

e W
ha
dd

on
 ar

ea
 ar

e e
njo

yin
g a

 su
mm

er 
of 

fun
 af

ter
 th

e s
tar

t o
f C

BH
’s 
pro

gra
mm

e o
f s
um

me
r 

ac
tiv
itie

s. 
Th

e p
rog

ram
me

 ra
n t

hro
ug

ho
ut 

the
 su

mm
er 

ho
lid
ay
s a

nd
 th

e g
rou

p g
ot 

to 
ex
pe

rie
nc
e m

an
y d

iffe
ren

t 
ac
tiv
itie

s i
nc
lud

ing
: ra

ft b
uil
din

g, 
vo
lun

tee
rin
g, 

fis
hin

g, 
gra

ffit
i a
rtw

ork
 an

d c
oo
kin

g 
�
 
A n

ew
 co

mm
un

ity
 ga

rde
nin

g p
roj

ec
t h

as
 be

en
 la
un

ch
ed

 fo
r 

Cle
ve
do

n S
qu

are
 an

d R
ow

an
fie
ld 
res

ide
nts

. R
es
ide

nts
 in
 

wil
l b
e a

ble
 to

 en
joy

 a 
tra

ns
for

ma
tio
n t

o c
om

mu
na
l o
utd

oo
r 

Page 97



CB
H 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 C
BC

 C
orp

ora
te 

Pla
n, 

20
11

/12
 

Pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 Bu

sin
es

s S
up

po
rt 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
6 

CB
C 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 
CB

C 
Ou

tco
me

s 
CB

H 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
fo

r 2
01

1/
12

 
sp
ac
e t

ha
nk
s t
o t

he
 la
un

ch
 of

 th
e '
Ge

t u
p a

nd
 G
row

' P
roj

ec
t 

in 
co
nju

nc
tio
n w

ith
 Vi

sio
n 2

1. 
Ov

er 
the

 ne
xt 
tw
o y

ea
rs 

CB
H 

wil
l b
e e

na
bli
ng

 Vi
sio

n 2
1 t

o w
ork

 cl
os
ely

 w
ith
 re

sid
en

ts 
in 

Ro
wa

nfi
eld

 to
 gr

ow
 th

eir
 ow

n f
oo

d l
oc
all
y t
hro

ug
h t
he

 
es
tab

lish
me

nt 
of 

sh
are

d g
row

ing
 sp

ac
es
. T

rai
nin

g w
ill b

e 
pro

vid
ed

 to
 em

ph
as
ise

 he
alt
h b

en
efi
ts 
wit

hin
 a 

su
sta

ina
ble

 
livi

ng
 fra

me
wo

rk.
 Th

e p
roj

ec
t w

ill p
rov

ide
 in
for

ma
tio
n, 

ins
pir

ati
on

, a
nd
 be

ne
fit 
so
me

 di
sa
dv
an

tag
ed

 co
mm

un
ity
 

gro
up

s. 
Ou

r r
es

ide
nts

 en
joy

 a 
str

on
g s

en
se

 of
 

co
mm

un
ity

 an
d a

re 
inv

olv
ed

 in
 re

so
lvi

ng
 lo

ca
l 

iss
ue

s. 
�
 
Th

e l
oc
al 
wil

dli
fe 

po
pu

lat
ion

 in
 H
es
ter

’s 
W
ay
 is
 re

ap
ing

 th
e 

be
ne
fits

 of
 C
he

lte
nh

am
 Bo

rou
gh

 H
om

es
’ e
xte

ns
ive

 
ma

ke
ov
er 

of 
Sc

ott
 H
ou

se
 an

d E
dw

ard
 W

ilso
n H

ou
se
 af

ter
 

the
 la
un

ch
 of

 a 
res

ide
nt 

pro
jec

t to
 im

pro
ve
 th

e s
pa
ce
s 

aro
un

d t
he

 pr
op

ert
ies

. A
ll p

art
 of

 C
BH

’s 
tra

ns
for

ma
tio
na

l 
im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 th
e a

rea
, th

e P
rou

d t
o b

e G
ree

n! 
pro

jec
t 

wa
s d

ev
elo

pe
d a

fte
r re

sid
en

ts 
sa
id 
tha

t in
 ad

dit
ion

 to
 th

e 
ex
ter

na
l m

ak
eo

ve
r a

nd
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to

 th
e b

uil
din

gs
 th

ey
 

wa
nte

d t
o s

ee
 w
ild
life

 ha
bit
ats

 on
 th

eir
 do

ors
tep

 an
d c

rea
te 

a c
om

mu
nit
y g

ard
en
 fo

r re
sid

en
ts 
an

d l
oc
als

 w
ith
 be

nc
he

s, 
bir

d-f
ee

din
g s

tat
ion

s a
nd
 pl
an

ted
 ar

ea
s. 

�
 
Th

e n
am

es
 of

 fo
ur 

ne
w 
str

ee
ts 
in 
St 

Pa
ul’
s h

av
e b

ee
n 

de
cid

ed
 by

 lo
ca
l re

sid
en

ts 
aft

er 
we

 la
un

ch
ed

 th
e ‘

Up
 Yo

ur 
Str

ee
t!’ 
co
mp

eti
tio
n, 

inv
itin

g s
ug
ge

sti
on

s f
or 

the
 ne

w 
cu
l-d

e-
sa
cs
 be

ing
 bu

ilt 
as
 pa

rt o
f th

e ‘
Tra

ns
for

mi
ng

 St
 Pa

ul’
s’ 

reg
en

era
tio
n s

ch
em

e. 
CB

H 
jun

ior
 w
ard

en
s k

ep
t u
p t

he
ir 

go
od
 w
ork

 ov
er 

the
 su

mm
er 

ho
lid
ay
s b

y t
ak
ing

 pa
rt i

n a
 

va
rie

ty 
of 

ac
tiv
itie

s o
ut 

an
d a

bo
ut 

in 
the

 co
mm

un
ity
. T

he
 

yo
un

gs
ter

s, 
ag

ed
 8 

to 
10
 ye

ars
 ol
d a

nd
 al
l fr

om
 th

e H
es
ter

’s 
W
ay
 ar

ea
 en

joy
ed

 a 
co
mp

eti
tiv
e g

am
e o

f b
ow

ls 
on
 th

e W
ii 

wit
h s

he
lte
red

 sc
he
me

 re
sid

en
ts 
at 

Po
pe

’s 
Clo

se
 an

d h
av
e 

sta
rte

d a
 re

cy
clin

g p
roj

ec
t.  

�
 
At 

CB
H’s

 AG
M 
Th

ree
 cu

rre
nt 

Bo
ard

 m
em

be
rs;

 Ju
sti
ne

 
Hu

rst
, D

an
 C
lut
ten

 an
d G

rah
am

 Te
mp

let
on
 w
ere

 si
gn

ed
 in
 

as
 Te

na
nt 

Bo
ard

 re
pre

se
nta

tiv
es
 fo

r a
 fu

rth
er 

thr
ee
 ye

ar 
ter

m 

Page 98



CB
H 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 C
BC

 C
orp

ora
te 

Pla
n, 

20
11

/12
 

Pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 Bu

sin
es

s S
up

po
rt 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
7 

CB
C 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 
CB

C 
Ou

tco
me

s 
CB

H 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
fo

r 2
01

1/
12

 
�
 
A n

ew
 re

sid
en

t g
rou

p h
as
 be

en
 la
un

ch
ed
 of

fer
ing

 th
e 

co
mm

un
ity
 a 

ne
w 
an

d e
xc
itin

g w
ay
 to

 gi
ve
 th

eir
 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds
 a 

vo
ice

. T
he

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 Te

na
nts

 an
d 

Le
as
eh

old
ers

 Vo
ice

 (C
TL

V)
 ha

s b
ee

n c
rea

ted
 to

 of
fer

 
res

ide
nts

 th
e c

ha
nc
e t

o b
ec
om

e a
 ne

igh
bo

urh
oo
d 

am
ba

ss
ad

or 
an

d r
ep
res

en
t th

eir
 co

mm
un

ity
. A

fte
r a

n 
ex
ce
lle
nt 

res
po

ns
e t

o t
he
 ca

ll f
or 

vo
lun

tee
rs 

the
re 

are
 no

w 
13

 ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d a

mb
as
sa
do

rs 
wh

o u
nd

ert
oo
k t
rai

nin
g a

t 
the

 C
BH

 C
om

mu
nit
y A

ca
de

my
.  

�
 
W
e s

up
po
rt r

eg
ula

r n
eig

hb
ou

rho
od

 m
ee

tin
gs
 th

at 
inv

olv
ed

 
aro

un
d 2

00
 pe

op
le 
an

d p
rod

uc
e r

eg
ula

r c
om

mu
nit
y 

ne
ws

let
ter

s  
�
 
W
e s

up
po
rt t

en
 fu

lly 
ac
cre

dit
ed

 Te
na

nt 
an

d R
es
ide

nt 
As

so
cia

tio
ns
 (T

AR
As

) a
nd
 34

 st
ree

t, s
ch
em

e a
nd
 bl
oc
k 

CB
H 
Co

mm
un

ity
 R
ep

res
en

tat
ive

s 
�
 
W
e h

eld
 ar

ou
nd

 12
2 c

om
mu

nit
y d

ev
elo

pm
en

t a
cti
vit
ies

  
�
 
Be

sp
ok
e a

cti
vit
ies

 fo
r o

lde
r p

eo
ple

 ta
ck
led

 is
ola

tio
n a

nd
 

he
lpe

d i
n d

ev
elo

pin
g s

tro
ng

 co
mm

un
itie

s i
n s

ch
em

es
. 

En
ha

nc
ing

 th
e p

ro
vis

ion
 

of 
art

s a
nd

 cu
ltu

re.
 

Ar
ts 

an
d c

ult
ur

e a
re 

us
ed

 as
 a 

me
an

s t
o 

str
en

gth
en

 co
mm

un
itie

s, 
str

en
gth

en
 th

e 
ec

on
om

y a
nd

 en
ha

nc
e a

nd
 pr

ote
ct 

ou
r 

en
vir

on
me

nt.
 

�
 
Sc

ott
 & 

Ed
wa

rd 
W
ilso

n H
ou

se
 C
om

mu
nit
y G

rou
p d

es
ign

ed
 

an
d m

ad
e a

 m
os
aic

 fo
r d

isp
lay

, d
em

on
str

ati
ng

 th
e h

ist
ory

 
be

hin
d t

he
 bl
oc
ks
 of

 fla
ts.

 Th
is 

wa
s c

om
ple

ted
 w
ith
 th

e 
su
pp

ort
 of

 G
lou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

 Ad
ult
 Ed

uc
ati
on

 th
rou

gh
 th

e h
ub

 
at 

Ed
wa

rd 
W
ilso

n H
ou

se
. T

he
 m

ura
l h
as
 be

en
 fit
ted

 to
 a 

wa
ll a

t E
dw

ard
 W

ilso
n H

ou
se
 

En
su

rin
g w

e p
ro

vid
e 

va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey

 se
rvi

ce
s 

tha
t e

ffe
cti

ve
ly 

me
et 

the
 

ne
ed

s o
f o

ur
 cu

sto
me

rs.
 

Th
e c

ou
nc

il d
eli

ve
rs 

ca
sh

ab
le 

sa
vin

gs
, a

s w
ell

 
as

 im
pr

ov
ed

 cu
sto

me
r s

ati
sfa

cti
on

 ov
era

ll a
nd

 
be

tte
r p

erf
or

ma
nc

e t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e e

ffe
cti

ve
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 of

 se
rvi

ce
s. 

�
 
Th

e C
BH

 Ju
nio

r W
ard

en
 Sc

he
me

 w
as
 na

me
d t

he
 be

st 
yo
uth

 in
vo
lve

me
nt 

pro
jec

t in
 th

e S
ou
th 

of 
En

gla
nd
 at

 th
e 

TP
AS

 Aw
ard

s 2
01

1 –
 th
e s

ch
em

e n
ow

 go
es
 fo

rw
ard

 to
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l fi
na

ls.
  

�
 
Ou

r ‘A
nn

ua
l R

ep
ort

 to
 R

es
ide

nts
’ w

as
 hi
gh

lig
hte

d i
n t

he
 

Na
tio
na

l T
en

an
t O

rga
nis

ati
on

’s 
(N
TO

) 2
01

1 a
nn

ua
l re

po
rt 

rev
iew

 as
 on

e o
f th

e h
igh

es
t ra

ted
 re

po
rts

 pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 an

 
AL

MO
. T

he
 N
TO

 al
so
 pr

ais
ed

 C
BH

 fo
r a

llo
win

g t
en

an
ts 
the

 
op

po
rtu

nit
y t
o f
ee

db
ac
k a

nd
 sa

id 
tha

t th
ey
 “p

art
icu

lar
ly 
like

d 
tha

t it
 w
as
 te

na
nt-

led
 an

d t
ha
t th

ere
 w
as
 a 

go
od

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
be

tw
ee

n a
ll t
he

 st
ak
eh

old
ers

 in
vo
lve

d.”
 

Page 99



CB
H 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 C
BC

 C
orp

ora
te 

Pla
n, 

20
11

/12
 

Pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 Bu

sin
es

s S
up

po
rt 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
8 

CB
C 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 
CB

C 
Ou

tco
me

s 
CB

H 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
fo

r 2
01

1/
12

 
�
 
Ou

r H
ou

sin
g R

ev
en

ue
s t
ea

m 
ha

s s
uc
ce
ss
ful
ly 
ret

ain
ed

 its
 

ISO
QA

R 
90

01
:20

08
 qu

ali
ty 
sta

nd
ard

 fo
llo
win

g a
 re

ce
nt 

ex
ter

na
l a
ud

it. 
Th

e a
ud

it r
etu

rne
d n

o r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on

s, 
wh

ich
 is
 se

en
 as

 an
 ex

ce
lle
nt 

ac
hie

ve
me

nt.
 Th

e s
tan

da
rd 

ref
lec

ts 
the

 hi
gh

 le
ve
l o
f p

oli
cie

s a
nd

 pr
oc
es
se
s i
n p

lac
e 

an
d t

he
 ad

he
ren

ce
 to

 th
es
e i
n t

he
 co

lle
cti
on

 of
 te

na
nts

’ 
ren

t. 
�
 
Co

ld 
we

ath
er 

em
erg

en
cy
 pl
an

s w
ere

 ac
tiv
ate

d i
n t
he

 w
int
er,

 
to 

su
pp

ort
 ol
de

r a
nd

 vu
lne

rab
le 
pe

op
le.
 Th

is 
se
rvi
ce
 is
 

hig
hly

 va
lue

d b
y r

es
ide

nts
 of

 sh
elt
ere

d s
ch
em

es
 an

d c
an

 
pre

ve
nt 

ex
pe

nd
itu
re 

in 
oth

er 
sta

tut
ory

 ar
ea
s. 
 

�
 
Ou

r h
ou

sin
g s

up
po
rt t

ea
m 

wa
s a

wa
rde

d t
he
 C
od

e o
f 

Pr
ac
tic
e f

rom
 th

e C
en

tre
 fo

r H
ou

sin
g a

nd
 Su

pp
ort

 (C
HS

). 
Th

e C
HS

 C
od

e o
f P

rac
tic
e c

ov
ers

 te
n s

tan
da
rds

, w
hic

h 
mu

st 
be

 m
et 

inc
lud

ing
: in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 an

d e
mp

ow
erm

en
t, 

en
vir
on

me
nt,

 co
nfi
de

nti
ali
ty,
 an

d h
av
ing

 tra
ine

d a
nd

 
su
pp

ort
ed
 st
aff
. T

he
re 

mu
st 
als

o b
e e

vid
en

ce
 of

 cl
ea

r 
po

lici
es
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s a
s w

ell
 as

 ev
ide

nc
e o

f h
ow

 th
es
e 

are
 pu

t in
to 

pra
cti
ce
 on

 a 
da

y t
o d

ay
 ba

sis
 by

 fro
nt 
lin
e s

taf
f. 

Fe
ed

ba
ck
 fro

m 
the

 as
se
ss
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss
 id
en

tifi
ed
 ar

ea
s o

f 
be

st 
pra

cti
ce
 in
 C
BH

’s 
ho
us
ing

 su
pp

ort
 se

rvi
ce
  

�
 
CB

H 
sig

ne
d a

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 de
al 
wit

h T
rav

is 
Pe

rki
ns
 to

 
su
pp

ly 
bu

ild
ing

 m
ate

ria
ls 
for

 th
e n

ex
t fi
ve
 ye

ars
. T

rav
is 

Pe
rki
ns
 w
ill p

rov
ide

 a 
de
dic

ate
d s

tor
es
 ar

ea
 fo

r C
BH

 at
 its

 
Gl
ou

ce
ste

r R
oa

d s
ite
 an

d t
he
 us

e o
f a

 fu
rth

er 
sto

re 
wit

hin
 

the
 to

wn
. T

he
 fiv

e-y
ea

r a
gre

em
en
t, v

alu
ed

 at
 ap

pro
xim

ate
ly 

£5
00

k p
er 

an
nu

m,
 al
so
 in
clu

de
s a

 po
ss
ibl
e 5

 ye
ar 

ex
ten

sio
n s

ub
jec

t to
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
. T

he
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ill a

lso
 

giv
e C

BH
 ac

ce
ss
 to

 m
ate

ria
ls 
du

rin
g e

me
rge

nc
ies

 su
ch
 as

 
flo
od

s a
nd

 ex
tre

me
 co

ld 
we

ath
er 

�
 
Re

sp
on

siv
e r

ep
air

s r
ev
iew

: F
oll
ow

ing
 a 

rev
iew

 a 
tria

l o
f a

 
ne

w 
wo

rk 
pro

ce
ss
 th

at 
wo

uld
 su

pp
ort

 th
e u

se
 of

 PD
As

 
(pe

rso
na

l d
igi
tal
 as

sis
tan

ts)
 w
as
 la
un

ch
ed

. T
he
 PD

A i
s a

 
mo

bil
e w

ork
ing

 de
vic

e w
hic

h a
cts

 as
 a 

da
ta 

sto
re 

an
d a

 da
y 

pla
nn

er.
 Th

ey
 al
so
 al
low

 jo
b o

rde
rs 

to 
be
 se

nt 
to 

the
 

Page 100



CB
H 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

ns
 to

 C
BC

 C
orp

ora
te 

Pla
n, 

20
11

/12
 

Pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 Bu

sin
es

s S
up

po
rt 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
9 

CB
C 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 
CB

C 
Ou

tco
me

s 
CB

H 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
fo

r 2
01

1/
12

 
ha

nd
he

ld 
de

vic
e, 

co
mp

let
ed

 jo
b i
nfo

rm
ati
on

 to
 be

 se
nt 

ba
ck
 

to 
the

 of
fic
e a

nd
 re

-or
de

rin
g o

f s
up

pli
es
 di
rec

t to
 Tr

av
is 

Pe
rki
ns
. A

fte
r a

 su
cc
es
sfu

l s
tar

t to
 th

e t
ria

l, t
he
 pr

oje
ct 
tea

m 
is 
no

w 
go

ing
 ou

t to
 te

nd
er 

for
 th

e P
DA

 so
ftw

are
 

�
 
CB

H 
pro

vid
es
 ex

ce
lle
nt 

se
rvi
ce
s t
ha

t re
tur

n b
en

ch
ma

rka
ble

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 in
for

ma
tio
n w

hic
h c

on
sis

ten
tly
 pl
ac
es
 C
BH

 in
 

the
 to

p 2
5%

 na
tio
na

lly 
wh

en
 co

mp
are

d t
o o

the
r A

LM
Os

 fo
r 

ke
y s

erv
ice

 ar
ea

s. 
Cu

sto
me

r s
ati
sfa

cti
on
 is
 ve

ry 
hig

h, 
pla

cin
g C

BH
 am

on
g t

he
 hi
gh

es
t ra

ted
 AL

MO
s i
n t
he

 
co
un

try
. 

�
 
A l

arg
e s

ca
le 
co
ns
ult
ati
on

 w
ith
 ou

r c
us
tom

ers
 w
as
 

un
de

rta
ke
n i
n o

rde
r to

 ar
riv
e a

t a
gre

ed
 ‘L
oc
al 
off
ers

’ fo
r 

se
rvi
ce
s 

  

Page 101



Page 102
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

 Page 1 of 6 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 19 June 2012 

Right to Buy – Scheme Changes and Agreement to Retain Receipts 
 

Accountable member Cabinet Member for Housing and Safety, Councillor Peter Jeffries 
Accountable officer Director of Commissioning, Jane Griffiths 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision Yes 
Executive summary This report gives details of Government amendments to the Right to 

Buy (RTB) scheme for Council Housing tenants and seeks Cabinet 
approval to enter into an agreement with the Department of 
Communities and Local Government DCLG) which will enable the local 
retention of additional receipts that may arise from the changes. 

Recommendations 1. Note the changes to the RTB scheme for housing tenants. 
 

2. Approve the completion of an agreement with the Secretary of 
State enabling the retention of additional RTB receipts for 
investment in new affordable rented homes. 
 

3. Authorise the Director of Commissioning to enter into the 
agreement referred to in recommendation 2 above 

 
 

 
Financial implications As contained in the report and appendices. 

 
Contact officer: Mark Sheldon. 
  
E-mail: mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk 
 
Tel no: 01242 264123 

Legal implications If the council wishes to retain RTB receipts for the provision of new 
affordable housing (as defined in s 68(1) (a) Housing and Regeneration 
Act 2008) then it must enter into the agreement referred to in this report. 
The agreement is a standard agreement made by the Secretary of State 
pursuant to s11 (6) of the Local Government Act 2003 (inserted by s174 of 
the Localism Act 2011). 
 
Contact officer: Shirin Wotherspoon 
E-mail: shirin.wotherspoon@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01684 272017 

Agenda Item 7
Page 103



 

   

 Page 2 of 6 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no direct HR implications arising from the report but should 
there be an influx of right to buy applications at any one time then 
additional resource in property and legal may be required, the cost of 
which would be paid for from the HRA. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy 
E-mail: julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264355 

Key risks As outlined in Appendix 1 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The ability to re-invest part of the receipt in further social housing assists in 
the council’s objectives to deliver more affordable housing. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

Under the RTB scheme it would become the home owners responsibility to 
adapt their homes to address environmental and climate change issues.  
However any new homes funded through RTB receipts would be built to 
higher environmental standards than the older current stock. 

 
2. Background 
 
2.1 In March 2012, following a period of consultation, the Government announced final proposals for  
           amendments to the RTB scheme for Council housing tenants.  
 
2.2 The changes are designed to reinvigorate RTB - enabling more tenants achieve their aspiration 

of home ownership whilst using the receipts generated from additional sales to fund new 
affordable housing, replacing sold units on a one for one basis nationally. 
 

2.3 In April the Government distributed marketing material designed to help Councils publicise the 
new scheme and on 12th May provided details of how local authorities can retain the additional 
receipts for local re-provision. 
 

3. Details of the Changes 
 
3.1 The key changes to the scheme, which came into force on 2nd April 2012, are:- 

• An increase in the discount cap to £75,000 – this represents a £25,000 increase on the cap 
proposed in the original consultation document. In Cheltenham the previous cap was at 
£30,000. 

• Local authorities will be able to retain the additional receipts for replacement housing – 
provided they can sign up to an agreement with Government that they will limit the use of the 
net Right to Buy receipts to 30% of the cost of the replacement homes and that sufficient 
expenditure is incurred within three years from the date of receipt. 

• Councils will be able to deduct the necessary amount to cover the debt from the receipt but 
will not be required to use this part of the receipt to repay loans. 

• Councils will now be able to deduct a higher amount from each sale to cover the costs of 
administration. Authorities will now be able to retain £2,850 in London and £1,300 in the rest 
of England. This recognises the costs incurred when dealing with withdrawn applications. 

Page 104



 

   

 Page 3 of 6 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

• The Buy Back provision will continue, allowing local authorities to fund up to 50% of the cost 
of re-purchasing a former council home, up to a maximum of 6.5% of any additional net 
receipts (i.e. receipts available to support one-for-one replacement). 

• The cost floor has been retained and extended from 10 years to 15 years for new homes 
subject to RTB. Councils will continue to be able to apply for exemption from pooling 
arrangements (and therefore one for-one replacement) for RTB receipts from new social 
homes built after 2008. Without these changes there could be a financial disincentive for local 
authorities to provide new affordable rented homes in future. 

 
4. Calculation of the Council’s share 
  
4.1       The new scheme includes a complex calculation to determine the amount to be retained  
            by the Council from future RTB sales. This recognises that the self-financing settlement                         
            assumed a base level of sales under the old scheme and an assumed income share for both  
            the Council and HM Treasury (25%:75% after deducting administration costs).  
 
4.2 The format of the calculation, which is most easily illustrated as an annual statement, is  
            shown below:- 
 
 
 
 
 

  £’000 Assumption Comments 
A Total sales proceeds 1,000 20 sales @ 

£50,000  
Value of receipt based on 
increased discount 

B Attributable debt on 
additional sales 

-161 (20-6) @ £11,500 Retained by CBC, used to repay 
debt or other HRA purpose 

C Administration costs -26 20 @ £1,300 Flat rate allowance retained by 
CBC for HRA purpose 

D Assumed income 
CBC 

-116 Based on 
settlement, 
assumed 6 sales  

Retained by CBC, assumed use 
for HRA investment in business 
plan, but can be any purpose 

E Assumed income  
HM Treasury 

-278 Based on 
settlement 

Paid to Government 
F Net receipt available 

to fund re-provision 
419  Available to CBC subject to terms 

of agreement 
     
G Minimum programme 

of re-provision 
required to retain all 
net receipt 

1,397 G = F x 100/30 Must be spent within 3 years of 
receipt 

H Additional sum 
retained by CBC 

303 B+C+D Available for varying purposes as 
detailed above 

 
4.3 It must be stressed that all figures used in the above example are for illustration only with the 

exception of D & E. 
 

5. Agreement to retain receipts for stock replacement 
5.1 The Council has been asked by the Government if it wishes to enter into an agreement which 

would enable the retention of potential net receipts from RTB sales (item F in the illustration 
above) for local stock replacement.  
 

Page 105



 

   

 Page 4 of 6 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

5.2 The Secretary of State would allow those receipts to be retained if:- 
 

• Those receipts are used to fund replacement stock  
• Within 3 years of the date of receipt a sum of relevant expenditure is incurred which is 

sufficient so that the receipt is no more than 30% of that sum 
5.3 Any receipts remaining unused after 3 years must be returned to DCLG with interest ( at a rate of 

4% above base rate). In March 2012 the Cabinet received a report from CBH on future new build 
identifying three potential schemes and they are currently putting together financial proposals for 
funding these schemes. Cheltenham is well placed to take advantage of the additional funding 
that may arise from sales and therefore there is little risk in having to return any unused receipts.   
 

5.4 The Council is expected to fund the remaining 70% of expenditure on stock replacement from its 
own reserves or borrowing serviced by the anticipated rental income from the new stock. There is 
no requirement to replace stock on a one for one basis, the numbers provided can be more or 
less than the numbers sold as long as the 30% funding limit is not exceeded. 
 

5.5 The Government favours the replacement through new build but the receipts can also be used to 
fund the purchase of existing units for conversion into affordable rent. It is also acceptable to fund 
new supply by grant funding another body such as a housing association (but not a body in which 
the Council has a controlling interest). The Council could contract with CBH to deliver the new 
homes but the stock must remain within the Housing Revenue Account. 
 

5.6 There are no restrictions on the type, size, location or the rent that be must be charged on the 
new units. Rent rebate funding will be available for up to 80% of market rents.  
 

5.7 The Council can apply for any new stock to be exempted from future pooling if sold under the RTB 
scheme – all the receipt could be retained locally if it is used to repay debt or invest in affordable 
housing or regeneration. 
 

5.8 If the Council wishes to retain receipts from the first quarter, April to June 2012, the agreement 
must be signed and returned to DCLG by 27th June 2012. 
 

6. Impact of the new scheme 
 
6.1 The Government has estimated that up to 20,000 additional units will be sold in the first three 

years following the changes to the scheme. However it is impossible to gauge how those will be 
distributed nationally and to predict the type and value of stock that will be sold.  
 

6.2 A number of factors may reduce the level of additional sales. These include:- 
• The desire of tenants to purchase at a time of economic uncertainty 
• The limited availability of mortgages 
• Many of the more desirable properties have already been sold 
• A change in tenant mix 

6.3 The changes have already stimulated an increase in enquiries but how many of those will lead to 
completion has yet to be seen. It is essential that progress is monitored very closely to assess 
future impact on the HRA business plan and to determine the size of a re-provision programme. 
 
 

 

Page 106



 

   

 Page 5 of 6 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

7. Conclusion 
 

7.1 The changes to the RTB scheme will undoubtedly increase the overall number of sales but will 
realise a significantly reduced receipt per unit than previously. The actual number of sales is 
difficult to predict and can only be monitored. 
 

7.2 The Government is giving local authorities the opportunity to use sale receipts to fund 
replacement stock locally. In March 2012 the Cabinet received a report from CBH on future new 
build identifying three potential schemes. Cheltenham is well placed to take advantage of the 
additional funding that may arise from sales and it is recommended that Cabinet approve the 
completion of an agreement with the Secretary of State to retain such receipts.                                                                                                         

Report author Bob Dagger, Strategic Financial Advisor, Cheltenham Borough 
Homes 
Tel. 01242 264225;   
e-mail address bob.dagger@cheltborohomes.org 

Appendices 1. Risk assessment 
Background information DCLG agreement Section 11(6) of the Local Government Act 2003 – copy 

placed in members room 

Page 107



 

   
$lw0agxr5.doc Page 6 of 6 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

Risk Assessment  - Right to Buy                                           Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1.01 If the level of RTB sales 
increases significantly there 
may be a detrimental 
impact on the HRA 
business plan, in excess of 
the debt repayment 
available from the capital 
receipt 

Jane 
Griffiths 

June 
2012 

3 3 9 R Close monitoring of RTB 
activity  

Mar 2013 CBH through 
management 
agreement 

 

1.02 If the stock replacement 
programme is insufficient to 
enable the retention of 
available receipts they will 
be repaid to the 
Government with interest 

Jane 
Griffiths 

June 
2012 

3 3 9 R Monitor progress of re-
provision plans ensuring 
alignment to deadlines 
for use of receipts 

Mar 2013 CBH through 
management 
agreement 

 

 
 

P
age 108



 1

Agreement – Section 11(6) of the Local Government Act 2003 
 
 
This agreement is made pursuant to section 11(6) of the Local Government 
Act 2003. 
 
Parties 
 
The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government  (“the 
Secretary of State”) and 
 
…………. ……………………. (“the Authority”). 
 
This agreement comprises 10 pages 
 
General 
1. In this agreement : 

 
 “the due date”, “quarter” and “the relevant quarter” have the same 
meaning as in the Regulations; 
 “receipts” means the receipts to which  Schedule 1 to the Regulations 
applies; 
“retained amount” means the amount calculated in Part 1; 
“the Regulations” mean the Local Authority (Capital Finance and 
Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003; 
 “social housing” means low cost rental accommodation as defined by 
section 68(1)(a) of the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008; 
“the sub-liability” means the sub-liability calculated under Schedule 1 to 
the Regulations; 
the terms ”A”, “E”, “F”,“G”, “J” and “K” used in this agreement have the 
same meaning as in Schedule 1 to the Regulations. 

 
2. This agreement applies to receipts received on or after 1st April 2012 (“the 

commencement date”). 
 

Page 109



 2

3. The Authority is not required to pay to the Secretary of State such portion 
of the sub-liability calculated in accordance with Part 1 of this agreement 
provided the Authority complies with the conditions set out in this 
agreement. 

 
4. The Authority must use the retained amounts for the provision of social 

housing. Any amounts not used for this purpose must be paid to the 
Secretary of State and interest will be payable calculated in accordance 
with paragraph vi of Part 1. 

 
5. The Authority must provide the information set out in Parts 1 and 4 of this 

agreement to the Secretary of State at the times and in any format the  
Secretary of State may request. 

 
6. This agreement may be terminated by the Secretary of State by giving 

notice of one quarter. 
 
7. This agreement may be amended by agreement. 
 
Part 1 - Calculation of the portion of the sub-liability that the Authority 
may retain. 

 
i. Where in any quarter – 

 
A is more than (3.39847729 x G) + E + F + J 

 
the Authority may retain an amount (“the retained amount”) up to– 
 

K less (2.398347729 x G). 
 

ii. The Authority must inform the Secretary of State of the following by the 
due date of the relevant quarter- 

(a) the value of  K less (2.398347729 x G); 
(b) the retained amount; and 

Page 110



 3

(c) any amount not retained by the Authority. 
 

iii. Where the Authority has informed the Secretary of State (under 
paragraph ii(c)) that an amount will not be retained, the Authority must 
pay that amount to the Secretary of State by the due date of the 
relevant quarter. 

 
iv. Where the Authority has informed the Secretary of State that an 

amount will not be retained and fails to pay that amount on the due 
date of the relevant quarter, interest is payable and incurred from the 
due date until the Authority pays that amount to the Secretary of State. 

 
v. Where the Authority does not inform the Secretary of State of the 

amount it will not retain by the due date of the relevant quarter, it will be 
assumed that the retained amount for that quarter is the full amount the 
Authority may retain and where an amount is not retained and is paid 
to the Secretary of State, interest will be payable and incurred from the 
due date until the date the Authority pays that amount to the Secretary 
of State. 

 
vi. The Authority may pay any part of the retained amount to the Secretary 

of State and where it does so, interest is payable and incurred from the 
due date of the relevant quarter in which the retained amount was 
retained by the Authority until the date it is paid to the Secretary of 
State. 

 
Part 2– Return of retained amounts   

 
i. This Part applies where 13 quarters have expired since the 

commencement date. 
 

ii. In this Part : 
“the reckonable quarter” means the quarter 12 quarters prior to 
the relevant quarter; 

Page 111



 4

“quarter 1” means the quarter in which the commencement date 
falls; 
A is the total of the retained amounts for all quarters from 
quarter 1 to the reckonable quarter; 
“the total amount spent on the provision of social housing” is the 
amount spent on the provision of social housing from quarter 1 
to the last day of the relevant quarter; 
R is the total of the returnable amounts calculated under 
paragraph iv of this Part and amounts paid to the Secretary of 
State under paragraph vi of Part 1 for all the quarters from 
quarter 1 to the reckonable quarter. 
 

iii. The total retained amount is calculated as follows – 
 

A – R. 
 

iv. Where on the last day of the relevant quarter, the total retained 
amount exceeds 30% of the total amount spent on the provision of 
social housing, the Authority must pay to the Secretary of State the 
portion of the total retained amount in excess of 30% of the total 
amount spent on the provision of social housing (“the returnable 
amount”).  

 
v. Where the Authority must pay a returnable amount to the Secretary 

of State under paragraph iv of this Part, interest is payable, 
calculated and incurred from the due date of the reckonable quarter 
until the date the returnable amount is paid to the Secretary of 
State. 

 
Part 3 - Calculation of interest 
 

Where interest is payable under this agreement, it will be calculated at 
a rate of 4% above the base rate on a day to day basis compounded 
with three-monthly rests and “base rate” has the same meaning as in 
the Regulations. 

Page 112



 5

 
Part 4 - Provision of information  
 

On the due date of each relevant quarter the Authority must provide to 
the Secretary of State the details of the number of starts on site since 
the commencement date. 
 
“Start on site” means the earlier of commencement of the following by 
the Authority or other body to which the Authority has paid all or part of 
the retained amount for the purpose of providing social housing: 
 
(a) excavation for strip or trench foundations or for pad footings;  
 
(b) digging out and preparation of ground for raft foundations;  
 
(c) vibrofloatation, piling, boring for piles or pile driving; or  
 
(d)  drainage work specific to the buildings forming part of the 

scheme. 
 

Part 5 – The amount spent on the provision of social housing 
 
i. The amount spent on the provision of social housing shall not 

include any expenditure which has been used or which the authority 
intends to use to- 

(a)  reduce a capital receipt under regulation 15(1)(c) of the 
Regulations (capital allowance); or 
(b) buy back a relevant interest defined in paragraph 3(1)(b)  
of the Schedule to the Regulations and claim buy back 
allowance in respect of that expenditure under paragraph 3 of 
the Schedule to the Regulations. 

 

Page 113



 6

ii. The amount spent on the provision of social housing shall not 
include any expenditure on dwellings which are social housing at 
the time of the expenditure. 

 
iii. The amount spent on the provision of social housing is the amount 

spent by the Authority or by a body to which the Authority has paid 
some or all of the retained amounts (such body must not be a body 
in which the Authority holds a controlling interest) on the 
development costs associated with the provision of social housing 
for the benefit of the Authority’s area. 

 
iv. Where the Authority has paid all or some of the retained amounts to 

a body for the purpose of contributing towards the cost of providing 
social housing, the Authority must ensure that only retained 
amounts provided by the Authority have been used by such body 
for the provision of social housing for the benefit of the Authority.  

 
v. Social housing is provided for the benefit of the Authority where it is 

situated in the area of the Authority or the Authority has nomination 
rights in respect of the social housing. 

 
vi. The amount spent on social housing includes the following: 
 

(a) the development costs associated with the acquisition of 
dwellings to be used as social housing; 

(b)  the development costs associated with the acquisition of land 
for the construction of dwellings to be used as social 
housing; 

(c) the development costs of the construction of dwellings to be 
used as social housing.  

 
vii. In this Part “development costs” means the costs set out in Part 6.  
 
 

Page 114



 7

Part 6 – Development costs 
Development costs means the costs relating to the development of 
social housing in respect to the heads of expenditure set out below. 
Heads of expenditure 
1 Acquisition 
1.1 Purchase price of land/site. 
1.2 Stamp Duty Land Tax on the purchase price of land/site. 
2 Works 
2.1 Main works contract costs (excluding any costs defined as on 

costs). 
2.2 Major site development works (where applicable).  These 

include piling, soil stabilisation, road/sewer construction, 
major demolition. 

2.3 statutory agreements, associated bonds and party wall 
agreements (including all fees and charges directly 
attributable to such works) where applicable. 

2.4 Additional costs associated with complying with 
archaeological works and party wall agreement awards 
(including all fees, charges and claims attributable to such 
works) where applicable. 

2.5 Irrecoverable VAT on the above (where applicable). 
3 On costs 
3.1 Legal fees and disbursements. 
3.2 Net gains/losses via interest charges on development period 

loans. 
3.3 Building society or other valuation and administration fees. 
3.4 Fees for building control and planning permission. 
3.5 Fees and charges associated with compliance with European 

Community directives, and any requirements relating to 
energy rating of dwellings, Eco-Homes certification and 
Housing Quality Indicators. 

Page 115



 8

3.6 In-house or external consultants’ fees, disbursements and 
expenses (where the development contract is a design and 
build contract) (see note 1 below). 

3.7 Insurance premiums including building warranty and 
defects/liability insurance (except contract insurance included 
in works costs). 

3.8 Contract performance bond premiums. 
3.9 Borrowing administration charges (including associated legal 

and valuation fees). 
3.10 An appropriate proportion of the development and 

administration costs of the Authority or the body in receipt of 
funding from the Authority.   

3.11 Irrecoverable VAT on the above. 
 

Note 1 
Where the development contract is a design and build contract, the 
on-costs are deemed to include the builder’s design fee element of 
the contract sum. The amount included by the builder for design fees 
should be deducted from the works cost element referred to above, 
as should other non-works costs that may be submitted by the 
builder such as fees for building and planning permission, building 
warranty, defects liability insurance, contract performance bond and 
energy rating of dwellings. 

Note 2 
Some items will not qualify as development costs unless the 
Authority can clearly demonstrate that such costs are properly 
chargeable to the social housing, i.e. for the sole use of the residents 
or to comply with any statutory obligations that may have been 
imposed.  
Examples of these are as follows: 
• works to any roads which do not exclusively serve the social 

housing; 

Page 116



 9

• landscaping to areas of land which lie outside the boundaries of 
the land on which the social housing is situated; 

• district heating systems; 
• trunk sewers and sewage disposal works; 
• special refuse treatment buildings; 
• public conveniences; 
• community halls, club rooms, recreation rooms.   
Note 3 
Subject to the above, where any cost incurred or to be incurred by the 
Authority or a body in receipt of funding from the Authority is common 
both to the development of the social housing and to any other 
activity, asset or property of the Authority or a body in receipt of 
funding from the Authority, only such part of that cost as is attributable 
to the development of the social housing may be treated as a cost in 
respect of which the retained amount may be paid. 

 

Signed on behalf of the Authority by ……………………………………………… 
(insert name and position in capitals) 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………………………….. (add signature and 
date) 
 
 
 
 

Page 117



 10

Signed on behalf of the Secretary of State by Graham Duncan – Deputy 
Director – Affordable Housing Regulation and Investment 
 
 
 
 
 
…………………………………………………………………………(add signature 
and date) 

Page 118



 

   

$fw3ygu5m.doc Page 1 of 5 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 19 June 2012 

Council – 25 June 2012 (if necessary) 
Nominations to Outside Bodies 

 
Accountable member Leader, Councillor Steve Jordan 
Accountable officer Director of Commissioning, Jane Griffiths 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

O&S 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary Following each Selection Council, and at other times when vacancies arise, 

the Cabinet takes the opportunity to nominate and, in limited cases, appoint 
persons to various roles within bodies external to the Council.  The current 
list of outside bodies and nominations is set out in the attached Appendix A. 

Recommendations Cabinet make nominations/appointments to the bodies in Appendix A 
respectively in accordance with the following principles: 

• all nominations are made on the basis that the 
nominee/appointee is a representative of Cheltenham 
Borough Council insofar as that is compatible with any 
overriding legal duty to the outside body; and 

• Cabinet reserves the right at any time to withdraw/terminate a 
nomination/appointment which it has made 

• Cabinet should refer a nomination/appointment to Council for 
determination where consensus on that 
nomination/appointment cannot be achieved between all the 
political groups on the Council 

 
 
Financial implications There are no financial implications associated with this report.   

Contact officer: Mark Sheldon 
E-mail:      mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264123 

Agenda Item 8
Page 119



 

   

$fw3ygu5m.doc Page 2 of 5 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

Legal implications See body of the report. 
Two general powers are relevant to nomination/appointment to outside 
bodies, these being the 'Well Being' power found in the Local Government 
Act 2000 and the power of an authority to do anything conducive, 
incidental to or facilitative of the discharge of any of their functions found in 
the Local Government Act 1972. 
Guidance for Members appointed to outside bodies can be found at Part 
5G of the Council Constitution.  
Contact officer: Peter Lewis 
E-mail:   peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01684 272012 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy , HR Operations Manager 
julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 26 4355  
 

Key risks Members appointed should be aware of their roles and responsibilities.  
 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Supports all the community priorities and supports community 
engagement. 
 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None 

Page 120



 

   

$fw3ygu5m.doc Page 3 of 5 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

1. Background 
1.1 The bodies to which nominations/appointments are made comprise a variety of organisations and 

groups. A traditional distinction can be drawn between incorporated and unincorporated bodies; 
the former being distinct legal entities such as companies, having a legal personality and a 
framework imposing obligations upon those who become involved by appointment; the latter 
being bodies which, albeit without formal legal foundation, play an important role in representing 
interests within the local community. Involvement in these unincorporated organisations will often 
carry few or no legal obligations on those appointed. 

1.2 In the majority of cases Cheltenham Borough Council decides who to nominate to the body 
concerned and it is then for that body to decide on whether to accept the nomination and make 
the appointment. There are some limited exceptions to this, such as Cheltenham Borough Homes 
and Gloucestershire Airport, where the Council has the right (by virtue of its interests in those 
companies) to make the appointments to the boards of directors.  

2. Legal issues 
2.1 Table 3 of Part 3A of the Constitution refers to local choice functions (i.e. functions which the 

Council can exercise through Cabinet or Full Council). Paragraph 19 of table 3 refers to 'the 
appointment of any individual(b) to any body other than – (i) the authority….and the revocation of 
any such appointment'.  Paragraph 19 indicates that the function is to be exercised by the 'The 
Executive except where any such appointment concerns a council function listed in Table 1 to 
Part 3A'. i.e. a function which cannot be exercised by the Executive. None of the outside bodies in 
Appendix A relate to functions listed in Table 1. The power to Cabinet is subject to the proviso 
that if all political groups on the Council cannot agree a particular nomination/appointment then it 
will be referred to full Council for determination. 

2.2 Whilst nominations/appointments are made on the general basis that the nominee/appointee is 
the Council’s representative on the outside body, it is important to note that in many cases the 
overriding duty is to the outside body. For example, a company director has a primary duty of care 
towards the company and to act in the best interests of the company as a whole and a trustee 
must act in accordance with the trust deed and uphold the trust’s objectives. 

2.3 The Council is able to indemnify members (and officers) in the course of their activities on outside 
bodies provided they are acting within the scope of their authority as Council representatives. 
Outside bodies, such as companies, that are legal entities in their own right must have their own 
appropriate insurance arrangements in place. It is important that members (and officers) clarify 
the position in each particular case.  

2.4 Under the revised Executive functions set out in Part 3E and Appendix A of the Council’s 
constitution, the Leader has the power to make appointments to outside bodies where they relate 
to an Executive function provided there is Group Leader agreement to the appointments. The 
Leader exercised these powers and has already taken decisions on the appointments to 
Cheltenham Borough Homes, the Cheltenham Development Task Force and other bodies where 
the nomination is normally the Cabinet Member with the appropriate portfolio. These are included 
in Appendix A for completeness, shaded in blue (grey on printed copy) but are not the subject of 
the decision in this report.   

3. Nomination/appointment of external persons  
3.1 Historically Cheltenham Borough Council has nominated/appointed external persons to some 

outside bodies. On 29th June 2006 Council specifically agreed that ‘All nominees are elected 
Members of Cheltenham Borough Council unless there are exceptional reasons justifying the 
appointment of a non Member’.  Relevant examples of outside bodies to whom external persons 
have been appointed are; Gloucestershire Airport, Pate’s Grammar School Foundation. The 

Page 121



 

   

$fw3ygu5m.doc Page 4 of 5 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

reasons for these appointments have been the specialist knowledge skills and experience that 
have been brought to the outside body and/or the lack of Member nomination to that body. 

3.2 External persons are not, of course, subject to the Code of Members’ Conduct nor are they under 
any general obligation to act in the best interests of the Council or the broader public interest. 
Also, they are not covered by the Council's insurance.  Whilst these factors do not prevent the 
nomination of external persons they should be borne in mind when considering whether to make 
such nominations/appointments. 

4. Reasons for recommendations 
4.1 It is in the interests of the council to ensure representation on all these outside bodies.  

5. Alternative options considered 
5.1 None 
6. Consultation and feedback 
6.1 Appendix A was circulated to Group Leaders on 21 May 2012 with a request for nominations by 

Friday 8 June 2012.  

Report author Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager, 01242 774937, 
Rosalind.reeves@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. List of outside Bodies 

Background information 1. Exec decision made on 21 May for appointments to CBH and 29 
May 2012 for other appointments to outside bodies.  

2. Constitution Part 5G 
 

Page 122



 

   
$fw3ygu5m.doc Page 5 of 5 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 If elected members are not 
aware of their roles and 
responsibilities they may 
compromise their position 

 1/06/2012 3 2 6 Control Ensure members are 
aware of guidance set 
out in Constitution 
Ensure members 
understand their role 
on the outside body 
and have a copy of 
relevant constitution or 
terms of reference of 
the body concerned 

 Democratic 
Services 
Manager 

 

            
            
            
            

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 
 

P
age 123



Page 124
This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

N
.B

. W
he

re
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

m
or

e 
no

m
in

at
io

ns
 th

an
 p

la
ce

s,
 th

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f f

ur
th

er
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
G

ro
up

 L
ea

de
rs

 b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

m
ee

tin
g

N
am

e 
o

f 
b

o
d

y
N

am
e 

o
f 

p
re

vi
o

u
s 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
ve

N
o

m
in

ee
/s

N
o

. r
ep

s.
N

o
te

s

B
riz

en
 Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e'

s 
C

en
tr

e
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 J
o 

T
ea

kl
e

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 J

o 
T

ea
kl

e
1

M
em

be
r 

of
 m

an
ag

em
en

t c
om

m
ite

e

C
he

lte
nh

am
 A

rt
 G

al
le

ry
 a

nd
 

M
us

eu
m

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t T
ru

st
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 A
nd

re
w

 M
cK

in
la

y
1

E
x-

of
fic

io
 tr

us
te

e

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 J

oh
n 

R
aw

so
n

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 J

on
 W

al
kl

et
t

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 D

ig
go

ry
 S

ea
co

m
e

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 D

ig
go

ry
 S

ea
co

m
e

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 K

la
ra

 S
ud

bu
ry

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 A

nd
re

w
 L

an
sl

ey
 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 J

on
 W

al
kl

et
t

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 A

nd
re

w
 L

an
sl

ey
 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 B

ar
ba

ra
 D

riv
er

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 B

ar
ba

ra
 D

riv
er

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 C

ol
in

 H
ay

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 C

ol
in

 H
ay

V
ac

an
cy

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

uz
an

ne
 W

ill
ia

m
s

va
ca

nc
y

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 D

un
ca

n 
S

m
ith

C
he

lte
nh

am
 B

us
in

es
s

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

te
ve

 J
or

da
n

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

te
ve

 J
or

da
n

1
Le

ad
er

C
he

lte
nh

am
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

T
as

k 
F

or
ce

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 J

oh
n 

R
aw

so
n

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 R

ob
 G

ar
nh

am
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 A
nd

y 
M

cK
in

la
y

2
O

ne
 a

pp
oi

nt
m

en
t i

s 
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
B

ui
lt 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 J

oh
n 

R
aw

so
n

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 W

en
dy

 F
ly

nn

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 D

ig
go

ry
 S

ea
co

m
e

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 D

ig
go

ry
 S

ea
co

m
e

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 D

ig
go

ry
 S

ea
co

m
e

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 D

ig
go

ry
 S

ea
co

m
e

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 G

ar
th

 B
ar

ne
s

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 W

en
dy

 F
ly

nn
C

he
lte

nh
am

 P
ar

ki
ng

 B
oa

rd
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 J
oh

n 
R

aw
so

n
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 S
te

ve
 J

or
da

n
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 A
nd

y 
M

cK
in

la
y

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

te
ve

 J
or

da
n

2
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
B

ui
lt 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t i

s 
on

e 
m

em
be

r
C

he
lte

nh
am

 P
en

si
on

er
s 

F
or

um
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 J
ac

ky
 F

le
tc

he
r

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 J

ac
ky

 F
le

tc
he

r
1

N
o 

co
ns

tit
ut

io
na

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t f
or

 C
B

C
 m

em
be

r

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 C

ol
in

 H
ay

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 H

el
en

a 
M

cC
lo

sk
ey

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 P

at
 T

ho
rn

to
n

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 C

ol
in

 H
ay

C
he

lte
nh

am
 T

he
at

re
 &

 A
rt

s 
C

lu
b 

(P
la

yh
ou

se
)

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 D

ig
go

ry
 S

ea
co

m
e

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 D

ig
go

ry
 S

ea
co

m
e

1
C

an
 a

tte
nd

 c
om

m
itt

ee
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 fo

r 
ad

m
in

 a
nd

 
ev

en
ts

C
he

lte
nh

am
 W

es
t E

nd
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 L
td

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 J

on
 W

al
kl

et
t

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 J

on
 W

al
kl

et
t

1
O

bs
er

ve
r 

st
at

us

C
he

lte
nh

am
, C

ire
nc

es
te

r 
&

 
T

ew
ke

sb
ur

y 
C

iti
ze

ns
 A

dv
ic

e 
B

ur
ea

u

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 H

el
en

a 
M

cC
lo

sk
ey

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 H

el
en

a 
M

cC
lo

sk
ey

1

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

im
on

 W
he

el
er

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

im
on

 W
he

el
er

3

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
m

em
be

r

2
A

tte
nd

 B
oa

rd
 m

ee
tin

gs
 a

s 
ob

se
rv

er
s

2
P

ro
po

se
d 

to
 d

is
co

nt
in

ue
 a

s 
no

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

su
pp

or
t b

ei
ng

 o
ffe

re
d 

by
 G

C
C

 s
o 

no
 lo

ng
er

 a
n 

ou
ts

id
e 

bo
dy

 

E
nt

itl
em

en
t t

o 
3 

bo
ar

d 
m

em
be

rs
 in

 r
et

ur
n 

fo
r 

2
M

em
be

rs
 h

av
e 

vo
tin

g 
rig

ht
s

B
oa

rd
 M

em
be

rs

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 N
O

M
IN

A
T

IO
N

S
 T

O
 O

U
T

S
ID

E
 B

O
D

IE
S

 2
01

2-
14

C
he

lte
nh

am
 F

es
tiv

al
s

C
he

lte
nh

am
 B

or
ou

gh
 H

om
es

53

C
le

ev
e 

C
om

m
on

 B
oa

rd
 o

f 

C
he

lte
nh

am
 A

rt
s 

C
ou

nc
il

C
he

lte
nh

am
 R

oa
d 

S
af

et
y 

Li
ai

so
n 

G
ro

up

C
he

lte
nh

am
 in

 B
lo

om

Page 125



N
am

e 
o

f 
b

o
d

y
N

am
e 

o
f 

p
re

vi
o

u
s 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
ve

N
o

m
in

ee
/s

N
o

. r
ep

s.
N

o
te

s

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 B

er
na

rd
 F

is
he

r
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 P
at

 T
ho

rn
to

n

C
or

on
at

io
n 

O
ld

 P
eo

pl
es

 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

oc
ie

ty
 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 A

nn
e 

R
eg

an
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 A
nn

e 
R

eg
an

1
O

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

m
itt

ee

C
ot

sw
ol

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

B
oa

rd
V

ac
an

cy
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 P
en

ny
 H

al
l 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 H

el
en

a 
M

cC
lo

sk
ey

1
O

ne
 o

f 1
5 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
m

em
be

rs

C
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

P
la

nn
in

g 
Is

su
es

 g
ro

up
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 J
oh

n 
R

aw
so

n
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 A
nd

y 
M

cK
in

la
y

D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
ils

' N
et

w
or

k
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 S
te

ve
 J

or
da

n
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 S
te

ve
 J

or
da

n
1

Le
ad

er
E

ve
ry

m
an

 T
he

at
re

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 G

ar
th

 B
ar

ne
s

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 G

ar
th

 B
ar

ne
s 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 T

im
 H

ar
m

an
1

O
bs

er
ve

r 
on

 B
oa

rd

F
rie

nd
s 

of
 L

ec
kh

am
pt

on
 H

ill
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 K
la

ra
 S

ud
bu

ry
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 A
nd

re
w

 C
ha

rd
2

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
em

be
r 

bu
t n

o 
fo

rm
al

 
rig

ht
s 

on
 b

oa
rd

G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

 A
irp

or
t 

C
on

su
lta

tiv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 P
at

 T
ho

rn
to

n
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 P
at

 T
ho

rn
to

n
1

C
om

m
itt

ee
 m

em
be

r

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 M

al
co

lm
 S

te
nn

et
t

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 M

al
co

lm
 S

te
nn

et
t

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 J

ac
ky

 F
le

tc
he

r
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 J
ac

ky
 F

le
tc

he
r

M
r 

D
av

id
 L

aw
re

nc
e

M
r 

D
av

id
 L

aw
re

nc
e

G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 C

om
m

un
ity

 A
ct

io
n

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 J

o 
T

ea
kl

e
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 H
el

en
a 

M
cC

lo
sk

ey
1

O
bs

er
ve

r 
st

at
us

G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

 P
la

yi
ng

 
F

ie
ld

s 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
V

ac
an

cy
1

G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

 S
af

er
 

S
tr

on
ge

r 
Ju

st
ic

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 K
la

ra
 S

ud
bu

ry
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 P
et

er
 J

ef
fr

ie
s

1
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y

G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

 S
ha

do
w

 J
oi

nt
 

W
as

te
 B

oa
rd

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 R

og
er

 W
hy

bo
rn

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 R

og
er

 W
hy

bo
rn

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

te
ve

 J
or

da
n

2
N

or
m

al
ly

 C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

S
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 ta

ke
s 

on
e 

se
at

G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

 W
as

te
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 R

og
er

 W
hy

bo
rn

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 R

og
er

 W
hy

bo
rn

 
1

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

S
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 P

at
 T

ho
rn

to
n

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 P

at
 T

ho
rn

to
n

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 W

en
dy

 F
ly

nn
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 W
en

dy
 F

ly
nn

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 D

un
ca

n 
S

m
ith

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 D

un
ca

n 
S

m
ith

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 H

el
en

a 
M

cC
lo

sk
ey

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 H

el
en

a 
M

cC
lo

sk
ey

H
ill

vi
ew

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

en
tr

e
V

ac
an

cy
1

A
tte

nd
s 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 m

ee
tin

gs
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

te
ve

 J
or

da
n

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

te
ve

 J
or

da
n

1
Le

ad
er

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t G

ro
up

 
U

rb
an

 C
om

m
is

si
on

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 J

oh
n 

R
aw

so
n

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 A

nd
y 

M
cK

in
la

y
2

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

B
ui

lt 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t

Lo
w

 C
ar

bo
n 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 R

og
er

 W
hy

bo
rn

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 R

og
er

 W
hy

bo
rn

1
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
S

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

T
ru

st
ee

H
es

te
rs

 W
ay

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 L
td

23
F

ul
l B

oa
rd

 m
em

be
rs

G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

 A
irp

or
t L

td

C
llr

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

 D
ire

ct
or

H
ig

gs
 a

nd
 C

oo
pe

r 
(a

nd
 R

el
ie

f 
in

 N
ee

d)
2

pu
bl

ic
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 c
om

m
on

C
on

se
rv

at
or

s

Page 126



N
am

e 
o

f 
b

o
d

y
N

am
e 

o
f 

p
re

vi
o

u
s 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
ve

N
o

m
in

ee
/s

N
o

. r
ep

s.
N

o
te

s

O
ak

le
y 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 L

td
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 R
ow

en
a 

H
ay

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 R

ow
en

a 
H

ay
1

P
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 T
ra

ffi
c 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 O
ut

si
de

 L
on

do
n 

A
dj

ud
ic

at
io

ns
 J

oi
nt

 
C

om
m

itt
ee

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 J

oh
n 

R
aw

so
n

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 A

nd
y 

M
cK

in
la

y
1

N
or

m
al

ly
 C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
B

ui
lt 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

P
ar

kl
an

ds
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 C
ol

in
 H

ay
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 C
ol

in
 H

ay
1

P
at

es
 G

ra
m

m
ar

 S
ch

oo
l 

F
ou

nd
at

io
n

M
r 

Jo
hn

 H
ar

kn
es

s
M

r 
Jo

hn
 H

ar
kn

es
s 

   
   

   
   

   
 

M
r 

Ll
oy

d 
S

ur
ge

no
r

2

P
os

iti
ve

 L
iv

es
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 K
la

ra
 S

ud
bu

ry
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 R
ow

en
a 

H
ay

1
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
S

po
rt

 a
nd

 C
ul

tu
re

P
os

iti
ve

 P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 P
et

er
 J

ef
fr

ie
s

1
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y

P
os

iti
ve

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 A
nd

y 
M

cK
in

la
y

1
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
B

ui
lt 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

P
re

st
bu

ry
 U

ni
te

d 
C

ha
rit

ie
s

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 P

at
 T

ho
rn

to
n

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 P

at
 T

ho
rn

to
n

1
S

ou
th

 W
es

t C
ou

nc
ils

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

te
ve

 J
or

da
n

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

te
ve

 J
or

da
n

1
Le

ad
er

 o
f C

ou
nc

il
S

ou
th

 W
es

t C
ou

nc
ils

' 
E

m
pl

oy
er

s 
P

an
el

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 C

ol
in

 H
ay

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 J

on
 W

al
kl

et
t

1
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s

S
t M

ar
ga

re
ts

 H
al

l U
se

r 
G

ro
up

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 A

nd
re

w
 M

cK
in

la
y

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 A

nd
re

w
 M

cK
in

la
y

1
C

B
C

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

m
us

t b
e 

a 
"s

itt
in

g 
co

un
ci

llo
r

liv
in

g 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f b

en
ef

it"
 o

f S
t M

ar
ga

re
ts

 
H

al
l i

n 
or

de
r 

to
 h

av
e 

vo
tin

g 
rig

ht
s

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

an
dr

a 
H

ol
lid

ay
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 S
an

dr
a 

H
ol

lid
ay

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

im
on

 W
he

el
er

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

im
on

 W
he

el
er

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 L

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
G

ro
up

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

te
ve

 J
or

da
n

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 S

te
ve

 J
or

da
n

1
M

em
be

r 
of

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 (
Le

ad
er

 o
f C

ou
nc

il)
S

up
po

rt
in

g 
P

eo
pl

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 K
la

ra
 S

ud
bu

ry
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 P
et

er
 J

ef
fr

ie
s

1
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
S

er
vi

ce
s

V
ac

an
cy

1
C

om
m

itt
ed

 to
/ e

xp
er

ie
nc

ed
 in

 a
re

as
 o

f 
U

B
IC

O
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 C
ol

in
 H

ay
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 T
im

 H
ar

m
an

 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 C
ol

in
 H

ay
1

M
em

be
r 

O
bs

er
ve

r 
to

 B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 R

ow
en

a 
H

ay
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 R
ow

en
a 

H
ay

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 C

ol
in

 H
ay

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 C

ol
in

 H
ay

W
ha

dd
on

 L
yn

w
or

th
 &

 P
rio

rs
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 P

ro
je

ct
2

S
t M

ar
ks

 &
 H

es
te

rs
 W

ay
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
2

Page 127



Page 128
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

Gambling Act 2005 – Review of Licensing Policy 
Statement of Principles 

Page 1 of 5 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 19 June 2012 

Gambling Act 2005 – Review of Licensing Policy Statement of 
Principles 

 
Accountable member Cabinet Member Housing and Safety - Councillor Peter Jeffries  
Accountable officer Director of Wellbeing and Culture – Sonia Phillips 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary Under section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 the Council must, before each 

successive period of three years, prepare a statement of the principles that 
they propose to apply in exercising their functions under the Gambling Act 
2005 during that period and publish the statement. 
The Council’s current policy statement was adopted by Full Council in 
December 2009.  To comply with the statutory requirements, the current 
policy statement must be reviewed and adopted by December 2012. 

Recommendations It is recommended that Cabinet: - 
1. note the contents of the report and revised draft Statement of 
Principles and RESOLVE to approve the attached revised draft of the 
three year Statement of Principles for the purpose of formal 
consultation with all relevant parties; and  
2. subject to there being no substantive amendments being made 
following consultation, that the draft Statement of Principles be 
recommended to full Council for approval and adoption. 

 
Financial implications There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Contact officer: Sarah Didcote, sarah.didcote@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 26 4125 

Agenda Item 9
Page 129



 

   

Gambling Act 2005 – Review of Licensing Policy 
Statement of Principles 

Page 2 of 5 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

Legal implications  The licensing authority must before each successive period of 3 years 
prepare a statement of principles that it proposes to apply in exercising 
its functions under the Gambling Act 2005 during that period, and must 
publish the statement. 
 
The form of the statement and the procedures to be followed for its 
preparation, consultation and publication must be in accordance with the 
Gambling Act 2005 and subordinate legislation. 
 
Contact officer: Sarah Farooqi, sarah.farooqi@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 
01684  272693 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

No direct HR implications arising from this report. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 26 4355 

Key risks As outlined in Appendix 1 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Communities feel safe and are safe 
Our residents enjoy a strong sense of community and are involved in 
identifying and resolving local issues  

Page 130



 

   

Gambling Act 2005 – Review of Licensing Policy 
Statement of Principles 

Page 3 of 5 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

1. Background 
1.1 Under section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 (“2005 Act”) a licensing authority shall, before each 

successive period of three years, prepare a statement of the principles that they propose to apply 
in exercising their functions under the 2005 Act during that period and publish the statement. 

1.2 The Council’s current policy statement was adopted by Full Council in December 2009.  To 
comply with the statutory requirements, the current policy statement must be reviewed and 
adopted by December 2012. 

1.3 The current policy statement has been reviewed by officers and a draft policy statement is 
attached at Appendix 2.   

1.4 The amendments to the current policy statement have been minimal as a result of the fact that 
legislation, insofar as it relates to the scope of the policy, has largely remained unchanged since 
the adoption of the current policy statement.  The amendments are highlighted in yellow in the 
draft policy statement (shaded grey in printed document). 

2. Consultation  
2.1 The Council is required under section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 to review and republish its 

policy statement every three years. When reviewing its policy statement, the Council is required to 
consult with:- 
• the chief officer of police for the authority’s area, 
• one or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of persons carrying 

on gambling businesses in the authority’s area, and 
• one or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of persons who are 

likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions under this Act. 
2.2 The Council must ensure that it complies with the Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority Policy 

Statement) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006. These regulations govern the form 
statements must take, the procedure to be followed in relation to the preparation, review or 
revision of statements and the publication of statements. 

2.3 These regulations require that a statement is published by being made available for a period of at 
least 4 weeks before the date on which it will come into effect:- 
• on the Authority’s website, and 
• for public inspection in one or more public libraries or other premises in the Borough such as 

the Council Offices. 
2.4 The Council must also advertise the publication of the reviewed Statement of Principles by 

publishing a notice on the Authority’s website and in one or more of the following places:- 
• a local newspaper circulating in the area covered by the statement, 
• a local newsletter, circular, or similar document circulating in the area covered by the 

statement, 
• a public notice board in or near the principal office of the authority, 
• a public notice board on the premises of public libraries in the area covered by the statement. 

Page 131



 

   

Gambling Act 2005 – Review of Licensing Policy 
Statement of Principles 

Page 4 of 5 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

2.5 Furthermore, the Council will carry out the consultation in accordance with the Government’s 
Code of Practice on Consultation which recommends that consultations should last at least 12 
weeks.  

2.6 A list of consultees is listed on page 25 of the draft policy statement. 
3. Statutory Guidance 
3.1 The Gambling Commission has issued guidance to local authorities under section 25 of the 2005 

Act.  The Council is required to have regard to this guidance when discharging its duties under 
the legislation.  The current version of the guidance is May 2009.   

3.2 Attached at Appendix 3 is part 6 of the guidance entitled “Licensing authority Statement of 
Policy” for the information of the committee. 

4. Adoption 
4.1 Delegations permitted under the 2005 Act prescribe that the Licensing Authority Policy Statement 

under section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 are to be the shared responsibility of the full council 
and the executive. 

5. Reasons for recommendations 
5.1 To comply with the Council’s statutory duty under section 349 of the 2005 Act. 
6. Alternative options considered 
6.1 The Council can decide not to review its current policy but it will be failing in its statutory duty in 

doing so.  
 

Report author Contact officer: Louis Krog, louis.krog@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 77 5200 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Draft Licensing Policy Statement of Principles 
3. Part 6 - Guidance to Licensing Authorities 3rd Edition (May 2009) 

Background information 1. Cheltenham Borough Council  Gambling Policy Statement of 
Principles (adopted 14/12/2009) 

2. Gambling Act 2005 
3. Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority Policy Statement) (England 

and Wales) Regulations 2006 
4. Gambling Commission  Guidance to Licensing Authorities 3rd Edition 

(May 2009) 
 

Page 132



 

   
$awuga1ug.doc Page 5 of 5 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1 The Council can decide not 
to review its current policy 
but it will be failing in its 
statutory duty in doing so. 
This could open the 
Council to legal challenge. 

Licensing 
& 
Business 
Support 
Team 
Leader 
 

29/05/12 3 6 18 Adopt 
Policy 

Adopt policy within 
statutory time limits. 

Dec 
2012 

Licensing 
& 
Business 
Support 
Team 
Leader 
 

 

            

            

            

            

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 
 

P
age 133



Page 134
This page is intentionally left blank



 

  1  

CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 
GAMBLING ACT 2005 

 

Gambling Policy 
 
 

Statement 
of 

Principles 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved by Council xxxx 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 135



 

  2  

                                                                               Appendix A 
 

Contents 
Item Page 
Part A  
1. The licensing objectives 3 
2. Introduction 3 
3. Declaration 4 
4. Responsible Authorities 4 
5. Interested parties 4 
6. Exchange of information 5 
7. Enforcement 5 
8. Licensing authority functions 6 
Part B - Premises licences  
1. General Principles 7 
2. Adult Gaming Centres 11 
 3. (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres 11 
4. Casinos 12 
5. Bingo 12 
6. Betting premises 13 
7.Tracks  13 
8. Travelling fairs 15 
9. Provisional Statements 15 
10. Reviews 15 

10.1 Initiation of a Review by a Licensing Authority 
10.2 Application for Review 
10.3 Decision whether to grant an application for a review 
10.4 Carrying out a Review 

16 
16 
16 
17 

Part C - Permits / Temporary and Occasional Use Notices  
1. Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre gaming machine permits 18 
2. (Alcohol) Licensed premises gaming machine permits 18 
3. Prize Gaming Permits  19 
4. Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 20 
5. Temporary Use Notices 20 
6. Occasional Use Notices 21 
7. Further Information 21 
Table of Delegated Functions 22 
 Glossary of Terms  23 
 List of Consultees  25 
 Gaming Machine Categories 26 

 
 This Statement of Principles has been drafted at a time when a number of regulations, Operating / 

Personal Licence conditions, Codes of Practice and guidance are not yet published.  Should 
anything in these impact upon the content of this document it will need to be borne in mind and 
amended at a later stage, bearing in mind resource implications for the authority.  All references to 
the Gambling Commission's Guidance for local authorities refer to the Guidance published in May 
2009. 

Page 136



 

  3  

PART A 
1.  The Licensing Objectives 
In exercising most of their functions under the Gambling Act 2005, licensing authorities must have 
regard to the licensing objectives as set out in section 1 of the Act.  The licensing objectives are: 
• Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or 

disorder or being used to support crime; 
• Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; 
• Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling. 
 
It should be noted that the Gambling Commission has stated: “The requirement in relation to children is 
explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited by gambling”.   
 
This licensing authority is aware that, as per Section 153, in making decisions about premises licences 
and temporary use notices it should aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks 
it: 
• in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission; 
• in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission;  
• reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and 
• in accordance with the authority’s statement of licensing policy. 
 
2.  Introduction 
The Area 
Until the late 1700s, Cheltenham was a small market town that became a fashionable resort after spa 
waters were discovered. Over the years it has attracted major employers and has gained a reputation 
for being an international festival town.  This, together with its architectural heritage, educational 
facilities and quality environment, makes Cheltenham an attractive place to live, work and play. 
 
The borough, which includes 5 parishes, has a population of approximately 114,000 who live in 20 
wards. The borough is mainly urban with some areas of surrounding countryside. It covers an area of 
approximately 4,680 hectares of which 17 % is designated as green belt and 22 % as an area of 
outstanding natural beauty. 
 
Demography 
The population is approximately 114,000, and these figures will continue to rise over the next 20 years.   
 

  

Page 137



 

  4  

At the time of writing, June 2009, the borough has 1 Track Licence, 2 Premises licence for Adult 
Gaming Centres, 1 Bingo Premises Licence, and 16 Betting Office premises licences. 
 
Licensing authorities are required by the Gambling Act 2005 to publish a statement of the principles 
which they proposed to apply when exercising their functions.  This statement must be published at 
least every three years.  The statement must also be reviewed from “time to time” and any amended 
parts re-consulted upon.  The statement must be then re-published. 
 
The Gambling Act requires that the following parties are consulted by Licensing Authorities: 
• The Chief Officer of Police; 
• One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of persons carrying on 

gambling businesses in the authority’s area; 
• One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of persons who are 

likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions under the Gambling Act 2005. 
 
It should be noted that this policy statement will not override the right of any person to make an 
application, make representations about an application, or apply for a review of a licence, as each will 
be considered on its own merits and according to the statutory requirements of the Gambling Act 2005.   
 
3. Declaration 
In preparing its statement of principles the Licensing Authority is required to: 
• Adhere to regulations issued by the Secretary of State under Section 349(4) of The Act; and 
• Have regard to guidance issued to local authorities by the Gambling Commission (Section 25(2) of 

The Act); and 
• Recognise the need to be consistent with the licensing objectives where applicable. 
 
4. Responsible Authorities 
The licensing authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply in exercising its 
powers under Section 157(h) of the Act to designate, in writing, a body which is competent to advise the 
authority about the protection of children from harm.  The principles are: 
• the need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of the licensing authority’s 

area; and 
• the need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, rather than any 

particular vested interest group. 
 
In accordance with the suggestion in the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local authorities, this 
authority designates the Gloucestershire Safeguarding Children Board for this purpose. 
 
A list of “Responsible Authorities” can be found in the glossary of terms in Appendix B to this document. 
Contact details of the Responsible Authorities can be found at the Authority’s website link at 
www.cheltenham.gov.uk/licensing.  
 
5. Interested parties 
Interested parties can make representations about licence applications, or apply for a review of an 
existing licence.  These parties are defined in the Gambling Act 2005 as follows: 
 “For the purposes of this Part a person is an interested party in relation to an application for or in 
respect of a premises licence if, in the opinion of the licensing authority which issues the licence or to 
which the applications is made, the person- 
• lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised activities; 
• has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities; or 
• represents persons who satisfy paragraph (a) or (b). 
 
The licensing authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply in exercising its 
powers under the Gambling Act 2005 to determine whether a person is an interested party.  The 
principles are:   
 
Each case will be decided upon its merits.  This authority will not apply a rigid rule to its decision 
making.  It will consider the examples of considerations provided in the Gambling Commission’s 

Page 138



 

  5  

Guidance for local authorities at 8.14 and 8.15.  It will also consider the Gambling Commission's 
Guidance that "has business interests" should be given the widest possible interpretation and include 
partnerships, charities, faith groups and medical practices. 
 
The Gambling Commission has recommended that the licensing authority states that interested parties 
include trade associations and trade unions, and residents’ and tenants’ associations (Gambling 
Commission Guidance for local authorities 8.17).  This authority will not however generally view these 
bodies as interested parties unless they have a member who can be classed as an interested person 
under the terms of the Gambling Act 2005 i.e. lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be 
affected by the activities being applied for. 
 
Interested parties can be persons who are democratically elected such as councillors and MP’s.  No 
specific evidence of being asked to represent an interested person will be required as long as the 
councillor / MP represents the ward likely to be affected.  Likewise, parish councils likely to be affected, 
will be considered to be interested parties.  Other than these however, this authority will generally 
require written evidence that a person/body (e.g. an advocate / relative) ‘represents’ someone who 
either lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised activities and/or 
has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities.  A letter from one of these 
persons, requesting the representation is sufficient. 
 
If individuals wish to approach councillors to ask them to represent their views then councillors should 
take care that they are not part of the Licensing Committee dealing with the licence application.  If there 
are any doubts then please contact the licensing department on 01242 77 5200. 
 
6. Information exchange 
Section 29 of the Act entitles the Commission to seek information from licensing authorities, and places 
an obligation on authorities to comply with its information requests, providing the information is: 
• art of a register; 
• in the licensing authority’s possession in connection with a provision of the Act. 
 
Premises licences and temporary permissions generated by licensing authorities and operating and 
personal licences issued by the Commission are interdependent functions of the licensing regime 
introduced by the Act. It is essential for both parties to establish a framework by which information and 
knowledge can be exchanged between all parties to the regime. 
 
‘Advice to licensing authorities on information exchange with the Gambling Commission’ provides 
further information about the protocols by which the information exchange is managed, and sets out the 
nature of the returns that are required to forward to the Commission each quarter. The paper is 
available from the Commission’s website at www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk.  
 
7.  Enforcement  
This licensing authority has noted the Gambling Commission's Guidance for local authorities states that; 
Licensing authorities are required by regulation under the Gambling Act 2005 to state the principles to 
be applied by the authority in exercising the functions under Part 15 of the Act with respect to the 
inspection of premises; and the powers under section 346 of the Act to institute criminal proceedings in 
respect of the offences specified. 
 
This licensing authority’s principles are that; it will be guided by the Gambling Commission’s Guidance 
for local authorities and will endeavour to be: 
• Proportionate: regulators should only intervene when necessary: remedies should be appropriate 

to the risk posed, and costs identified and minimised; 
• Accountable:  regulators must be able to justify decisions, and be subject to public scrutiny; 
• Consistent:  rules and standards must be joined up and implemented fairly; 
• Transparent:  regulators should be open, and keep regulations simple and user friendly; and 
• Targeted:  regulation should be focused on the problem, and minimise side effects. 
 
As per the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local authorities this licensing authority will endeavour 
to avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes so far as possible.   

Page 139



 

  6  

 
This licensing authority will also adopt a risk-based inspection programme.  Whilst the Gambling 
Commission's Guidance suggests that the criteria the authority will utilise in this respect are included in 
this statement.  
 
The main enforcement and compliance role for this licensing authority in terms of the Gambling Act 
2005 will be to ensure compliance with the premises licences and other permissions which it authorises.  
The Gambling Commission will be the enforcement body for the operating and personal licences.  
Concerns about manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines will not be dealt with by the licensing 
authority but will be notified to the Gambling Commission.   
 
This licensing authority will also keep itself informed of developments as regards the work of the Better 
Regulation Executive in its consideration of the regulatory functions of local authorities. 
 
Bearing in mind the principle of transparency, this licensing authority’s Corporate Enforcement Policy 
will be available upon request to the Licensing Section at Cheltenham Borough Council, Municipal 
Offices, Promenade, Cheltenham, GL50 9SA.   
 
8. Licensing Authority Functions 
Licensing Authorities are required under the Act to: 
• Be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling activities are to take place by issuing 
• Premises Licences; 
• Issue Provisional Statements;  
• Regulate members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes who wish to undertake certain gaming 

activities via issuing Club Gaming Permits and/or Club Machine Permits;  
• Issue Club Machine Permits to Commercial Clubs;  
• Grant permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming machines at unlicensed Family 

Entertainment Centres;  
• Receive notifications from alcohol licensed premises (under the Licensing Act 2003) for the use of 

two or fewer gaming machines;  
• Issue Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises licensed to sell/supply alcohol for 

consumption on the licensed premises, under the Licensing Act 2003, where there are more than 
two machines;  

• viii)Register small society lotteries below prescribed thresholds;  
• Issue Prize Gaming Permits;  
• Receive and Endorse Temporary Use Notices;  
• Receive Occasional Use Notices;  
• Provide information to the Gambling Commission regarding details of licences issued (see section 

above on ‘information exchange); 
• Maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued under these functions. 
 
It should be noted that local licensing authorities will not be involved in licensing remote gambling at all.  
This will fall to the Gambling Commission via operating licences. 
 
A list of licensable activities licensable by this authority:  
 
Premises Licences; 
• Betting Shops 
• Tracks 
• Adult Gaming Centres 
• Family Entertainment Centres 
• Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres 
• Bingo Halls 
 
Other; 
• Gaming Machine Permits 
• Occasional Use Notices 

Page 140



 

  7  

• Temporary Use Notices 
• Small Society Lotteries 

 
PART B 

PREMISES LICENCES 
 
1. General Principles  
Premises licences will be subject to the requirements set-out in the Gambling Act 2005 and regulations, 
as well as specific mandatory and default conditions which will be detailed in regulations issued by the 
Secretary of State.  Licensing authorities are able to exclude default conditions and also attach others, 
where it is believed to be appropriate. 
 
This licensing authority is aware that in making decisions about premises licences it should aim to 
permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it: 
• in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission; 
• in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission ; 
• reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and 
• in accordance with the authority’s statement of licensing policy. 
 
It is appreciated that as per the Gambling Commission's Guidance for local authorities "moral objections 
to gambling are not a valid reason to reject applications for premises licences" (except as regards any 
'no casino resolution' - see section on Casinos below – page 10) and also that unmet demand is not a 
criterion for a licensing authority. 
 
Definition of “premises” - Premises is defined in the Act as “any place”.  Different premises licences 
cannot apply in respect of a single premises at different times.  However, it is possible for a single 
building to be subject to more than one premises licence, provided they are for different parts of the 
building and the different parts of the building can be reasonably regarded as being different premises.  
Whether different parts of a building can properly be regarded as being separate premises will always 
be a question of fact in the circumstances.  However, the Gambling Commission does not consider that 
areas of a building that are artificially or temporarily separate can be properly regarded as different 
premises.  
 
This licensing authority takes particular note of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local 
authorities which states that: 
• licensing authorities should take particular care in considering applications for multiple licences for 

a building and those relating to a discrete part of a building used for other (non-gambling) 
purposes.  In particular they should be aware that entrances and exits from parts of a building 
covered by one or more licences should be separate and identifiable so that the separation of 
different premises is not compromised and that people do not ‘drift’ into a gambling area.   

 
• licensing authorities should pay particular attention to applications where access to the licensed 

premises is through other premises (which themselves may be licensed or unlicensed).  Clearly, 
there will be specific issues that authorities should consider before granting such applications, for 
example, whether children can gain access; compatibility of the two establishments; and ability to 
comply with the requirements of the Act.   But, in addition an overriding consideration should be 
whether, taken as a whole, the co-location of the licensed premises with other facilities has the 
effect of creating an arrangement that otherwise would, or should, be prohibited under the Act. 

 
It should also be noted that an applicant cannot obtain a full premises licence until the premises in 
which it is proposed to offer the gambling are constructed.  The Gambling Commission has advised that 
reference to "the premises" are to the premises in which gambling may now take place.  Thus a licence 
to use premises for gambling will only be issued in relation to premises that are ready to be used for 
gambling.  This authority agrees with the Gambling Commission that it is a question of fact and degree 
whether premises are finished to a degree that they can be considered for a premises licence.  The 
Gambling Commission emphasises that requiring the building to be complete ensure that the authority 
can, if necessary, inspect it fully, as can other responsible authorities with inspection rights.  
 

Page 141



 

  8  

Location - This licensing authority is aware that demand issues cannot be considered with regard to the 
location of premises but that considerations in terms of the licensing objectives can.  As per the 
Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local authorities, this authority will pay particular attention to the 
protection of children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as 
issues of crime and disorder.  Should any specific policy be decided upon as regards areas where 
gambling premises should not be located, this statement will be updated.  It should be noted that any 
such policy does not preclude any application being made and each application will be decided on its 
merits, with the onus upon the applicant showing how potential concerns can be overcome.   
 
This licensing authority has noted the Gambling Commission's Guidance for local authorities states that; 
In determining applications the licensing authority has a duty to take into consideration all relevant 
matters and not to take into consideration any irrelevant matters, in effect those not related to gambling 
and the licensing objectives. One example of an irrelevant matter would be the likelihood of the 
applicant obtaining planning permission or building regulations approval for their proposal. Licensing 
authorities should bear in mind that a premises licence, once it comes into effect, authorises premises 
to be used for gambling.  
 
Accordingly, a licence to use premises for gambling should only be issued in relation to premises that 
the licensing authority can be satisfied are going to be ready to be used for gambling in the reasonably 
near future, consistent with the scale of building or alterations required before the premises are brought 
into use. This is why the Act allows a potential operator to apply for a provisional statement if 
construction of the premises is not yet complete, or they need alteration, or he does not yet have a right 
to occupy them. 
 
Duplication with other regulatory regimes - In determining applications this licensing authority has a 
duty to take into consideration all relevant matters and not to take into consideration any irrelevant 
matters, in effect those not related to gambling and the licensing objectives. One example of an 
irrelevant matter would be the likelihood of the applicant obtaining planning permission or building 
regulations approval for their proposal. Licensing authorities should bear in mind that a premises 
licence, once it comes into effect, authorises premises to be used for gambling.  
 
Accordingly, a licence to use premises for gambling should only be issued in relation to premises that 
the licensing authority can be satisfied are going to be ready to be used for gambling in the reasonably 
near future, consistent with the scale of building or alterations required before the premises are brought 
into use. This is why the Act allows a potential operator to apply for a provisional statement if 
construction of the premises is not yet complete, or they need alteration, or he does not yet have a right 
to occupy them.  
 
Licensing objectives - Premises licences granted must be reasonably consistent with the licensing 
objectives.  With regard to these objectives, this licensing authority has considered the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance to local authorities and some comments are made below. 
 
Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or 
disorder or being used to support crime - This licensing authority is aware that the Gambling 
Commission will be taking a leading role in preventing gambling from being a source of crime.  The 
Gambling Commission's Guidance does however envisage that licensing authorities should pay 
attention to the proposed location of gambling premises in terms of this licensing objective.  Thus, 
where an area has known high levels of organised crime this authority will consider carefully whether 
gambling premises are suitable to be located there and whether conditions may be suitable such as the 
provision of door supervisors.  This licensing authority is aware of the distinction between disorder and 
nuisance and will consider factors such as whether police assistance was required and how threatening 
the behaviour was to those who could see it, so as to make that distinction.   
 

Page 142



 

  9  

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way - This licensing authority has noted that 
the Gambling Commission has stated that it would generally not expect licensing authorities to become 
concerned with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way as this will be addressed via 
operating and personal licences.  There is however, more of a role with regard to tracks which is 
explained in more detail in the 'tracks' section below – page 11). 
 
Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling - 
This licensing authority has noted the Gambling Commission's Guidance for local authorities states that 
this objective means preventing children from taking part in gambling (as well as restriction of 
advertising so that gambling products are not aimed at or are, particularly attractive to children).  The 
licensing authority will therefore consider, as suggested in the Gambling Commission's Guidance, 
whether specific measures are required at particular premises, with regard to this licensing objective.  
Appropriate measures may include supervision of entrances / machines, segregation of areas etc.  
 
This licensing authority will also make itself aware of the Codes of Practice which the Gambling 
Commission issues as regards this licensing objective, in relation to specific premises such as casinos.   
 
As regards the term “vulnerable persons” it is noted that the Gambling Commission is not seeking to 
offer a definition but states that “it will for regulatory purposes assume that this group includes people 
who gamble more than they want to; people who gambling beyond their means; and people who may 
not be able to make informed or balanced decisions about gambling due to a mental impairment, 
alcohol or drugs.”  This licensing authority will consider this licensing objective on a case by case basis.   
 
Conditions - Any conditions attached to licences will be proportionate and will be: 
• relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling facility; 
• directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for; 
• fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises; and 
• reasonable in all other respects.  
 
Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case by case basis, although there will be a 
number of measures this licensing authority will consider utilising should there be a perceived need, 
such as the use of supervisors, appropriate signage for adult only areas etc.  There are specific 
comments made in this regard under some of the licence types below.  This licensing authority will also 
expect the licence applicant to offer his/her own suggestions as to way in which the licensing objectives 
can be met effectively. 
 
This licensing authority will also consider specific measures which may be required for buildings which 
are subject to multiple premises licences.  Such measures may include the supervision of entrances; 
segregation of gambling from non-gambling areas frequented by children; and the supervision of 
gaming machines in non-adult gambling specific premises in order to pursue the licensing objectives.  
These matters are in accordance with the Gambling Commission's Guidance. 
 
This authority will also ensure that where category C or above machines are on offer in premises to 
which children are admitted: 
• all such machines are located in an area of the premises which is separated from the remainder of 

the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent access other than through a 
designated entrance; 

• only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are located; 
• access to the area where the machines are located is supervised; 
• the area where these machines are located is arranged so that it can be observed by the staff or 

the licence holder; and 
• at the entrance to and inside any such areas there are prominently displayed notices indicating 

that access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18. 
 

These considerations will apply to premises including buildings where multiple premises licences are 
applicable. 
 
This licensing authority is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more than one premises licence, 

Page 143



 

  10  

provided each licence relates to a specified area of the track.  As per the Gambling Commission's 
Guidance, this licensing authority will consider the impact upon the third licensing objective and the 
need to ensure that entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children are excluded from 
gambling areas where they are not permitted to enter. 
 
It is noted that there are conditions which the licensing authority cannot attach to premises licences 
which are: 
• any condition on the premises licence which makes it impossible to comply with an operating 

licence condition;  
• conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of operation; 
• conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required (the Gambling Act  2005 

specifically removes the membership requirement for casino and bingo clubs and this provision 
prevents it being reinstated; and 

• conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winning or prizes. 
 
Door Supervisors - If this licensing authority is concerned that a premises may attract disorder or be 
subject to attempts at unauthorised access (for example, by children and young persons) then it may 
require that the entrances to the premises are controlled by a door supervisor, and is entitled to impose 
a premises licence condition to this effect. 
 
Section 178 of the Gambling Act 2005 sets out a definition of ‘door supervisor’, and provides that where 
a person employed in such a role is required to hold a licence issued by the Security Industry Authority 
(SIA), that requirement will have force as though it were a condition on the premises licence.  
 
The SIA regulates the private security industry in England, Wales and Scotland, and is responsible for 
licensing individuals working within the various industry sectors, by virtue of the Private Security 
Industry Act 2001 (PSIA). The majority of persons employed to work as door supervisors at premises 
licensed for gambling, and carrying out the functions listed under Schedule 2 Part 1 of the PSIA, will 
need to be licensed by the SIA. There are, however, exceptions to this requirement. 
 
The PSIA requires that all contract staff (those employed under a contract for services) carrying out the 
functions set out under Schedule 2 Part 1 of the PSIA require licensing by the SIA. However, certain 
premises also need to have their in-house employees (those employed under a contract of service), 
who carry out these functions, licensed. These premises include those holding a premises licence for 
the supply of alcohol or regulated entertainment under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
This requirement is relaxed when applied to door supervisors at casino and bingo premises. Where 
‘contract’ staff are employed as door supervisors at casino or bingo premises, such staff will need to be 
licensed by the SIA. However, ‘in-house’ employees working as door supervisors at casino and bingo 
premises are exempt from these requirements. 
 
For premises other than casinos and bingo premises, operators and licensing authorities may decide 
that supervision of entrances / machines is appropriate for particular cases but it will need to be decided 
whether these need to be SIA licensed or not.  It will not be automatically assumed that they need to be. 
 
Division of premises and access between premises 
The relevant access provisions for each premises type is as follows: 
Casinos 
• the principal entrance to the premises must be from a street as defined in paragraph 7.23 of the 

Guidance. 
• no entrance to a casino must be from premises that are used wholly or mainly by 
• children and/or young persons 
• no customer must be able to enter a casino directly from any other premises which holds a 

gambling premises licence. 
 
Adult gaming centres 
• no customer must be able to access the premises directly from any other licensed gambling 

premises. 

Page 144



 

  11  

 
Betting shops 
• access must be from a street as defined in paragraph 7.23 or from other premises with a betting 

premises licence 
• no direct access from a betting shop to another premises used for the retail sale of merchandise or 

services. In effect there cannot be an entrance to a betting shop from a shop of any kind and you 
could not have a betting shop at the back of a café – the whole area would have to be licensed. 

 
Tracks 
• no customer should be able to access the premises directly from: 

a casino 
an adult gaming centre. 

 
Bingo premises 
• no customer must be able to access the premises directly from: 

a casino 
an adult gaming centre 
a betting premises, other than a track. 

 
Family entertainment centres 
• no customer must be able to access the premises directly from: 

a casino 
an adult gaming centre 
a betting premises, other than a track.  

 
2. Adult Gaming Centres 
This licensing authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable 
persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the authority 
that there will be sufficient measures to, for example, ensure that under 18 year olds do not have 
access to the premises.   
 
This licensing authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to meet the licensing 
objectives however appropriate measures / licence conditions may cover issues such as: 
 
• Proof of age schemes; 
• CCTV; 
• Supervision of entrances / machine areas; 
• Physical separation of areas; 
• Location of entry; 
• Notices / signage; 
• Specific opening hours; 
• Self-barring schemes; 
• Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare. 
 
This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example measures. 
 
3. (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres: 
This licensing authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable 
persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the authority, 
for example, that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access 
to the adult only gaming machine areas.   
 
This licensing authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to meet the licensing 
objectives however appropriate measures / licence conditions may cover issues such as: 
 
• Proof of age schemes; 
• CCTV; 

Page 145



 

  12  

• Supervision of entrances / machine areas; 
• Physical separation of areas; 
• Location of entry; 
• Notices / signage; 
• Specific opening hours; 
• Self-barring schemes; 
• Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare. 
 
This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example measures. 
 
This licensing authority will, as per the Gambling Commission’s guidance, refer to the Commission’s 
website to see any conditions that apply to operating licences covering the way in which the area 
containing the category C machines should be delineated.  This licensing authority will also make itself 
aware of any mandatory or default conditions on these premises licences, when they have been 
published.   
 
4. Casinos 
There are currently no casinos operating within the Borough. 
 
At present the Licensing Authority has not passed a resolution not to issue casino premises licences 
generally in the District.  However the Licensing Authority reserves the right to review this situation and 
may, at some time in the future, make such a resolution.  Any such resolution will be made by the Full 
Council and this policy document will be updated. 
 
In considering whether or not to pass a resolution relating to casinos The Licensing Authority will take 
into account the licensing objectives and may have regard to any relevant principle or other matter 
 
5. Bingo premises 
The Licensing Authority notes that the Gambling Commission’s Guidance states: 
 
Bingo is not given a statutory definition in the Act other than that it means any version of the game 
irrespective of by what name it is described. It is to have its ordinary and natural meaning. Two types of 
bingo are commonly understood:  
• cash bingo, where the stakes paid make up the cash prizes that are won; 
• prize bingo, where various forms of prizes are won, not directly related to the stakes paid. 

 
Cash bingo is the main type of bingo played in commercial bingo halls. They also offer prize bingo, 
largely as interval games. The distinction between the two versions of the game is abolished for 
commercial operators, and the holder of a bingo operating licence will be able to offer any type of bingo 
game, whether cash or prize. This means that premises with a bingo premises licence, or a casino 
premises licence (where the operator holds a bingo as well as a casino operating licence), will be able 
to offer bingo in all its forms. 
 
Apart from commercial bingo halls, prize bingo is traditionally a game played in arcades, especially 
seaside amusement arcades, or at travelling funfairs. For these operators, prize bingo is being 
subsumed within the allowances for prize gaming in the Act. This means that, subject to limits on 
participation fees and prizes, adult gaming centres, both licensed and unlicensed family entertainment 
centres, and travelling fairs, (or any premises with a prize gaming permit) are able to offer prize gaming, 
which includes prize bingo. In this form of gaming, the nature of the prize must not be determined by 
reference to the number of people playing the game, and the nature or the size of the prize must not be 
determined by reference to the amount paid for or raised by the gaming. See part 27 of this Guidance 
for a fuller discussion of prize gaming. 
 
Licensing authorities need to satisfy themselves that bingo can be played in any bingo premises for 
which they issue a premises licence. This is a relevant consideration where the operator of an existing 
bingo premises applies to vary their licence to exclude an area of the existing premises from its ambit 
and then applies for a new premises licence, or multiple licences, for that or those excluded areas. 
 

Page 146



 

  13  

6. Betting premises 
Betting machines - This licensing authority will, as per the Gambling Commission's Guidance, take into 
account the size of the premises, the number of counter positions available for person-to-person 
transactions, and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons (it 
is an offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the 
number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator wants to offer. 
 
7. Tracks 
This licensing authority is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more than one premises licence, 
provided each licence relates to a specified area of the track.  As per the Gambling Commission's 
Guidance, this licensing authority will especially consider the impact upon the third licensing objective 
(i.e. the protection of children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling) and 
the need to ensure that entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children are excluded 
from gambling areas where they are not permitted to enter. 
 
This authority will therefore expect the premises licence applicant to demonstrate suitable measures to 
ensure that children do not have access to adult only gaming facilities.  It is noted that children and 
young persons will be permitted to enter track areas where facilities for betting are provided on days 
when dog-racing and/or horse racing takes place, but that they are still prevented from entering areas 
where gaming machines (other than category D machines) are provided. 
 
This licensing authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to meet the licensing 
objectives however appropriate measures / licence conditions may cover issues such as: 
 
• Proof of age schemes; 
• CCTV; 
• Supervision of entrances / machine areas; 
• Physical separation of areas; 
• Location of entry; 
• Notices / signage; 
• Specific opening hours; 
• Self-barring schemes; 
• Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare. 
 
This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example measures. 
 
Gaming machines - In consideration of the guidance published by the Commission, a track premises 
licence does not of itself entitle the holder to have gaming machines, because this type of premises 
licence can be held without a holding a operating licence from the Commission. 
 
However, under section 172(9) of the Act, track owners holding both a track premises licence and a 
pool betting operating licence (greyhound tracks only), may site up to four gaming machines within 
categories B2 to D on the track. These should be located in areas from which children are excluded. 
 
Certain tracks will also qualify for an alcohol licence and as such they will be automatically entitled, 
under section 282 of the Act, to two gaming machines of category C or D. This permission is activated 
by notifying the licensing authority and paying the required fee. If a track premises licence holder has 
both an alcohol licence and a pool betting operating licence, then they will be entitled to six gaming 
machines in total. 
 
Betting machines - This licensing authority will, as per the Gambling Commission's Guidance, take into 
account the size of the premises and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children 
and young persons (it is an offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, when 
considering the number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator wants to offer.  It will also 
take note of the Gambling Commission's suggestion that licensing authorities will want to consider 
restricting the number and location of such machines in respect of applications for track betting 
premises licences. 
 

Page 147



 

  14  

Condition on rules being displayed - The Gambling Commission has advised in its Guidance for local 
authorities that “…licensing authorities should attach a condition to track premises licences requiring the 
track operator to ensure that the rules are prominently displayed in or near the betting areas, or that 
other measures are taken to ensure that they are made available to the public.  For example, the rules 
could be printed in the race-card or made available in leaflet form from the track office.”  
 
Applications and plans - Section 151 of the Act requires applicants for premises licences to submit plans 
of the premises with their application. This ensures that licensing authorities have the necessary 
information to make an informed judgement about whether the premises are fit for gambling. The plan 
also informs future premises inspection activity. 
 
Plans for tracks need not be in a particular scale, but should be drawn to scale and should be 
sufficiently detailed to include the information required by regulations.  
 
In the majority of cases, such as greyhound tracks, racecourses, football stadia and cricket grounds, 
defining the extent of boundaries may be assisted by reference to existing plans already submitted to 
obtain other permissions. These could include:  
• the obtaining of a safety certificate under ‘Safety at Sports Ground’ legislation (this 
• applies in respect of sports grounds with capacity to accommodate more than 
• 10,000 spectators); 
• the approval of a racecourse by the Horserace Betting Levy Board; 
• the historic boundaries under previous legislation such as, the approval of tracks under Schedule 3 

of the Betting, Gaming and Lotteries Act 1963. 
 

Some tracks may be situated on agricultural land where the perimeter is not defined by virtue of an 
outer wall or fence, such as point-to-point racetracks. In such instances, where an entry fee is levied, 
track premises licence holders may erect temporary structures to restrict access to premises. 
 
In the rare cases where the outer perimeter cannot be defined, it is likely that the track in question will 
not be specifically designed for the frequent holding of sporting events or races. In such cases betting 
facilities may be better provided through occasional use notices where the boundary premises do not 
need to be defined. 
 
The Commission appreciates that it is sometimes difficult to define the precise location of betting areas 
on tracks. The precise location of where betting facilities are provided is not required to be shown on 
track plans, both by virtue of the fact that betting is permitted anywhere on the premises and because of 
the difficulties associated with pinpointing exact locations for some types of track. Licensing authorities 
should satisfy themselves that the plan indicates the main areas where betting might take place. For 
racecourses in particular, any betting areas subject to the ‘five times rule’ (commonly known as betting 
rings, and discussed later in this section) must be indicated on the plan. 
 
As the plan forms part of the licence document, it also needs to be sufficiently flexible to ensure that a 
relatively small change in the premises layout would not require an operator to submit an application to 
vary the track premises licence. Only a significant change to the track layout would require a licence 
variation. For example, moving a category C gaming machine from one end of a bar that had been 
marked on the plan as a gaming machine area to another may not necessitate a full variation to a tracks 
premises licence, nor would the establishment of a new betting ring at a racetrack, as neither of these 
events have any impact on the purpose of the licence or the conditions attached to it. However, 
relocating category C machines to entirely different parts of a track or relocating an existing betting ring 
protected by the ‘five times rule’ would generally need to be the subject of an application to vary the 
premises licence. 
 
Some tracks extend across the geographical boundaries of licensing authority areas. In such cases 
applications can only be made to licensing authorities in whose area the premises is wholly or partly 
situated, although the Act contains no rules about cases where premises lie across multiple authority 
areas. In such cases, applicants will note this on the application form, and the application can be made 
to any of the authorities that the track extends over. The applicant is then required to notify the other 
licensing authorities covered by the track location about the application (as they would be designated as 

Page 148



 

  15  

responsible authorities and therefore entitled to make representations about the application). The 
Commission expects applicants will apply to the licensing authority in whose area the greater or 
greatest part of the track site is situated, although ultimately the Act does not entitle an authority to 
reject an application because it is responsible for a smaller area of the premises than another authority. 
 
8. Travelling Fairs 
It will fall to this licensing authority to decide whether, where category D machines and / or equal chance 
prize gaming without a permit is to be made available for use at travelling fairs, the statutory 
requirement that the facilities for gambling amount to no more than an ancillary amusement at the fair is 
met. 
 
The licensing authority will also consider whether the applicant falls within the statutory definition of a 
travelling fair. 
 
It has been noted that the 27-day statutory maximum for the land being used as a fair, is per calendar 
year, and that it applies to the piece of land on which the fairs are held, regardless of whether it is the 
same or different travelling fairs occupying the land.  This licensing authority will work with its 
neighbouring authorities to ensure that land which crosses our boundaries is monitored so that the 
statutory limits are not exceeded. 
 
9. Provisional Statements 
The Licensing Authority notes the Guidance for the Gambling Commission which states that; “a licence 
to use premises for gambling should only be issued in relation to premises that the licensing authority 
can be satisfied are going to be ready to be used for gambling in the reasonably near future, consistent 
with the scale of building or alterations required before the premises are brought into use” and that 
“requiring the building to be complete” ensures that the Licensing Authority could, if necessary, inspect it 
fully. 
 
In terms of representations about premises licence applications, following the grant of a provisional 
statement, no further representations from relevant authorities or interested parties can be taken into 
account unless they concern matters which could not have been addressed at the provisional statement 
stage, or they reflect a change in the applicant’s circumstances.  In addition, the authority may refuse 
the premises licence (or grant it on terms different to those attached to the provisional statement) only 
by reference to matters: 
• which could not have been raised by way of representations at the provisional licence stage which, 

in the authority’s opinion, reflect a change in the operator’s  circumstances where the premises 
has not been constructed in accordance with the plan and information submitted with the 
provisional statement application. This must be a substantial change to the plan and licensing 
authorities should discuss any concerns they have with the applicant before making a decision. 

 
Section 210 of the Act (which applies to premises licences and provisional statements) makes it clear 
that a licensing authority must not have regard to whether or not a proposal by the applicant is likely to 
be permitted in accordance with planning or building law. 
 
 
10. Reviews 
A premises licence may be reviewed by the licensing authority of its own volition or following the receipt 
of an application for a review, which is essentially a request by a third party to the licensing authority to 
review a particular licence. Licensing authorities should note that reviews cannot be delegated to an 
officer of the licensing authority – the lowest level of delegation permitted is to a licensing sub-
committee.  
 
10.1 Initiation of review by licensing authority 
 
Section 200 of the Act provides that licensing authorities may initiate a review in relation to a particular 
class of premises licence or in relation to particular premises. Officers may be involved in the initial 
investigations of complaints leading to a review, or may try informal mediation or dispute resolution 
techniques prior to a full-scale review being conducted. Licensing authorities may wish to consider in 

Page 149



 

  16  

their scheme of delegation who initiates reviews, and whether a ‘filter’ system should be implemented to 
prevent unwarranted reviews from being conducted. 
 
In relation to a class of premises, the licensing authority may review the use made of premises and, in 
particular, the arrangements that premises licence holders have made to comply with licence conditions. 
In relation to these general reviews, the authority would most likely be acting as a result of specific 
concerns or complaints about particular types of premises, which would cause them to want, for 
example, to look at the default conditions that apply to that category of licence. 
 
In relation to particular premises, the licensing authority may review any matter connected with the use 
made of the premises if it has reason to suspect that premises licence conditions are not being 
observed, or for any other reason (such as a complaint from a third party) which gives them cause to 
believe that a review may be appropriate.  
 
A formal review would normally be at the end of a process of ensuring compliance by the operator. If the 
operator does not meet the requirements then, after a formal review, the licensing authority may impose 
additional conditions or revoke the licence.  
 
The licensing authority must give notice in writing to the licence holder that it intends to undertake a 
review, and must also publish notice of its intention to carry out the review. Regulations for reviews state 
that the notice should be published in a local newspaper at least once in the ten working days following 
the day on which the application to review was made to the authority, or should be published on the 
licensing authority’s website and remain there for 28 consecutive days starting from eight days after the 
application to review was made. In addition, regulations state that the notice must also be displayed 
outside the premises itself, and remain there for the 28 days referred to above. 
 
10.2 Application for a review 
 
Section 197 of the Act provides that an application for review may be made by a responsible authority or 
an interested party. Such applications must be submitted to the licensing authority in the prescribed 
form and state the reasons why a review is being requested, together with any supporting information 
and documents.  
 
The regulations referred to above require the applicant for a review to provide notice in writing of their 
application to the premises licence holder, and to all responsible authorities, within seven days of 
making their application. Failure to do this will mean that the application process is halted until notice is 
received by all parties. 
 
Representations must be made within 28 days, commencing seven days after the date on which the 
application was received. During these seven days the licensing authority is required to publish notice of 
the application, as per the process set out in the regulations referred to above. 
 
10.3 Decision whether to grant an application for a review 
 
The decision to grant a review must not, and if properly managed will not, amount to prejudging the 
outcome of a review. 
 
Section 199 provides that an authority must grant an application for a review, unless it decides to reject 
the application under section 198 of the Act. An application for a review may be (but need not be) 
rejected if the licensing authority thinks that the grounds on which the review is sought: 
 
• are not relevant to the principles that must be applied by the licensing authority in accordance with 

section 153 - so, if the application raises issues that are not relevant to the Commission 
Guidance/codes of practice, the Licensing Authority Statement of Policy, or the licensing 
objectives, then the licensing authority may reject it. In addition, if the application raises general 
objections to gambling as an activity, that is likely to be irrelevant to the principles in section 153, 
given that a licensing authority is required to permit the use of premises for gambling insofar as it 
thinks that permission is in accordance with the matters set out in that section. Examples that are 

Page 150



 

  17  

likely to be irrelevant include demand for gambling premises, issues relating to planning, public 
safety, and traffic congestion 

• are frivolous 
• are vexatious 
• ‘will certainly not’ cause the authority to revoke or suspend a licence or to remove, amend or 

attach conditions on the premises licence  
• are substantially the same as the grounds cited in a previous application relating to the same 

premises. Here the licensing authority must take into account how much time has passed since the 
earlier application in reaching a judgement about whether it is reasonable to rely on this as a 
reason not to review the licence  

• are substantially the same as representations made at the time the application for a premises 
licence was considered. As with sub-section (e) the licensing authority will need to take into 
account the period of time that has passed since the representations were made, but the 
underlying requirement is that the licensing authority should not review the licence on the basis of 
the same arguments considered on the grant of the premises licence. 

 
Most applications for a review are likely to be the result of a public complaint or a complaint from the 
police. It is important that licensing authorities process applications for review without delay, so that both 
the review applicant and the premises operator know where they stand. 
 
10.4 Carrying out a review 
 
Having given notice of their intention to initiate a review or having determined that a review initiated by a 
third party should go ahead, section 201 of the Act requires the licensing authority to carry out the 
review as soon as possible after the 28 day period for making representations has passed. 
 
The purpose of the review will be to determine whether the licensing authority should take any action in 
relation to the licence. If action is justified, the options are to:  
• add, remove or amend a licence condition imposed by the licensing authority; 
• exclude a default condition imposed by the Secretary of State or Scottish Ministers; 
• (relating to, for example, opening hours) or remove or amend such an exclusion; 
• suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
• revoke the premises licence. 
 
In determining what action, if any, should be taken following a review, the licensing authority must have 
regard to the principles set out in section 153 of the Act, as well as any relevant representations. 
 
In particular, the licensing authority may take action as described above on the grounds that a premises 
licence holder has not provided facilities for gambling at the premises. This is to prevent people from 
applying for licences in a speculative manner without intending to use them. 
 
The licensing authority must hold a hearing, unless the applicant and any person who has made 
representations that have not been withdrawn (that are not vexatious, frivolous or irrelevant) consent to 
the review being conducted without one.  
 
Once the review has been completed, the licensing authority must, as soon as possible, 
notify its decision to: 
• the licence holder 
• the applicant for review (if any) 
• the Commission 
• any person who made representations 
• the chief officer of police or chief constable 
• HM Revenue and Customs. 
 

11. Complaints against Licensed Premises 
The Licensing Authority will investigate complaints against licensed premises in relation to matters 
relating to the licensing objectives for which it has responsibility.  In the first instance, complainants are 

Page 151



 

  18  

encouraged to raise the complaint directly with the licence holder or business concerned to seek a local 
resolution. 
 
Where an interested party has made either a valid representation about licensed premises or a valid 
application for a licence to be reviewed, the Licensing Authority will, where appropriate, seek to arrange 
a conciliation meeting to address and clarify the issues of concern. 
 
This process will not override the right of any interested party to ask the Licensing Authority to consider 
their objections, or for any licence holder to decline to participate in a conciliation meeting. 
 

PART C 
Permits / Temporary & Occasional Use Notice 

 
1. Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre gaming machine permits (Statement of Principles on 
Permits - Schedule 10 paragraph 7) 
 
Premises that do not hold a premises licence but wish to provide gaming machines may apply to the 
Licensing Authority for an Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres permit.  The applicant must show 
that the premises will be wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines available for use (Section 
238 of The Act). 
 
The Act states that a licensing authority may prepare a statement of principles that they propose to 
consider in determining the suitability of an applicant for a permit and in preparing this statement, and/or 
considering applications, it need not (but may) have regard to the licensing objectives and still have 
regard to any relevant issued by the Commission under section 25. 
 
The Guidance also states that "In its Licensing Authority Statement of Policy, a licensing authority may 
include a statement of principles that it proposes to apply when exercising its functions in considering 
applications for permits. In particular it may want to set out the matters that it will take into account in 
determining the suitability of the applicant. Given that the premises will particularly appeal to children 
and young persons, licensing authorities may want to give weight to matters relating to child protection 
issues." 
 
Statement of principles - this Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to show that there are policies 
and procedures in place to protect children from harm.  Harm in this context is not limited to harm from 
gambling but includes wider child protection considerations.  The efficiency of such policies and 
procedures will each be considered on their merits. However, they may include appropriate measures / 
training for staff as regards suspected truant school children on the premises, measures / training 
covering how staff would deal with unsupervised very young children being on the premises, or children 
causing perceived problems on / around the premises.   
 
The Licensing Authority will also expect applicants to demonstrate a full understanding of the maximum 
stakes and prizes of the gambling that is permissible in unlicensed FECs; that the applicant has no 
relevant convictions (those that are set out in Schedule 7 of the Act); and that staff are trained to have a 
full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes. 
 
It should be noted that the licensing authority cannot attach conditions to this type of permit. 
If the operator of a family entertainment centre wants to make category C machines available in addition 
to category D machines, the operator will need to apply for a gaming machine general operating licence 
(Family Entertainment Centre) from the Commission and a premises licence from the licensing authority 
(see part 23 of this Guidance). 
 
2. (Alcohol) Licensed premises gaming machine permits - (Schedule 13 paragraph 4(1)) 
There is provision in the Act for premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption on the premises, to 
automatically have 2 gaming machines, of categories C and/or D.  The premises merely need to notify 
the licensing authority.   
 
The licensing authority can remove the automatic authorisation in respect of any particular premises if: 

Page 152



 

  19  

• provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the licensing objectives; 
• gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of section 282 of the Gambling 

Act (i.e. that written notice has been provided to the licensing authority, that a fee has been 
provided and that any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the 
location and operation of the machine has been complied with);  

• the premises are mainly used for gaming; or 
• an offence under the Gambling Act has been committed on the premises. 
 
If a premises wishes to have more than 2 machines, then it needs to apply for a permit and the licensing 
authority must consider that application based upon the licensing objectives, any guidance issued by 
the Gambling Commission issued under Section 25 of the Gambling Act 2005,  and “such matters as 
they think relevant.”   This licensing authority considers that “such matters” will be decided on a case by 
case basis but generally there will be regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable persons from 
harmed or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the authority that there 
will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only 
gaming machines.  Measures which will satisfy the authority that there will be no access may include 
the adult machines being in sight of the bar, or in the sight of staff who will monitor that the machines 
are not being used by those under 18.  Notices and signage may also be help.  As regards the 
protection of vulnerable persons, applicants may wish to consider the provision of information leaflets / 
helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare. 
 
It is recognised that some alcohol licensed premises may apply for a premises licence for their non-
alcohol licensed areas.  Any such application would most likely need to be applied for, and dealt with as 
an Adult Gaming Centre premises licence. 
 
It should be noted that the licensing authority can decide to grant the application with a smaller number 
of machines and/or a different category of machines than that applied for.  Conditions (other than these) 
cannot be attached. 
 
It should also be noted that the holder of a permit must comply with any Code of Practice issued by the 
Gambling Commission about the location and operation of the machine. 
 
3. Prize Gaming Permits - (Statement of Principles on Permits - Schedule 14 paragraph 8 (3)) 
The Gambling Act 2005 states that a licensing authority may “prepare a statement of principles that they 
propose to apply in exercising their functions under this Schedule” which “may, in particular, specify 
matters that the licensing authority propose to consider in determining the suitability of the applicant for 
a permit”.   
 
This licensing authority has prepared a Statement of Principles which is that the applicant should set out 
the types of gaming that he or she is intending to offer and that the applicant should be able to 
demonstrate:  
• that they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in Regulations;  
• and that the gaming offered is within the law; 
• clear policies that outline the steps to be taken to protect children from harm. 
 
In making its decision on an application for this permit the licensing authority does not need to have 
regard to the licensing objectives but must have regard to any Gambling Commission guidance.   
 
It should be noted that there are conditions in the Gambling Act 2005 by which the permit holder must 
comply, but that the licensing authority cannot attach conditions.  The conditions in the Act are: 
• the limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied with; 
• all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises on which the gaming is 

taking place and on one day; the game must be played and completed on the day the chances are 
allocated; and the result of the game must be made public in the premises on the day that it is 
played;  

• the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out in regulations (if a 
money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-monetary prize); and 

• participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other gambling.  

Page 153



 

  20  

 
4. Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 
Members Clubs and Miners’ welfare institutes (but not Commercial Clubs) may apply for a Club Gaming 
Permit or a Clubs Gaming machines permit.  The Club Gaming Permit will enable the premises to 
provide gaming machines (3 machines of categories B, C or D), equal chance gaming and games of 
chance as set-out in regulations made by the Secretary of State .  A Club Gaming machine permit will 
enable the premises to provide gaming machines (3 machines of categories B, C or D). 
 
Gambling Commission Guidance states: "Members clubs must have at least 25 members and be 
established and conducted “wholly or mainly” for purposes other than gaming, unless the gaming is 
permitted by separate regulations.  It is anticipated that this will cover bridge and whist clubs, which will 
replicate the position under the Gaming Act 1968.  A members’ club must be permanent in nature, not 
established to make commercial profit, and controlled by its members equally.  Examples include 
working men’s clubs, branches of Royal British Legion and clubs with political affiliations." 
  
The Commission Guidance also notes that "licensing authorities may only refuse an application on the 
grounds that: 
• the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or commercial club or miners’ welfare 

institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of permit for which it has applied; 
• the applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or young persons; 
• an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by the applicant while 

providing gaming facilities; 
• a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten years; or 
• an objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police. 
 
There is also a ‘fast-track’ procedure available under the Act for premises which hold a Club Premises 
Certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 (Schedule 12 paragraph 10).  As the Gambling Commission’s 
Guidance for local authorities states: "Under the fast-track procedure there is no opportunity for 
objections to be made by the Commission or the police, and the ground upon which an authority can 
refuse a permit are reduced." and "The grounds on which an application under the process may be 
refused are: 
• that the club is established primarily for gaming, other than gaming prescribed under schedule 12; 
• that in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for other gaming; or 
• that a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the applicant in the last ten years has 

been cancelled." 
 
There are statutory conditions on club gaming permits that no child uses a category B or C machine on 
the premises and that the holder complies with any relevant provision of a code of practice about the 
location and operation of gaming machines. 
 
5. Temporary Use Notices 
There are a number of statutory limits as regards temporary use notices.  Gambling Commission 
Guidance is noted that "The meaning of "premises" in part 8 of the Act is discussed in Part 7 of this 
guidance.  As with "premises", the definition of "a set of premises" will be a question of fact in the 
particular circumstances of each notice that is given.  In the Act "premises" is defined as including "any 
place".  In considering whether a place falls within the definition of "a set of premises", licensing 
authorities will need to look at, amongst other things, the ownership/occupation and control of the 
premises.  
 
This Licensing Authority notes the Guidance for the Gambling Commission which states that; 
Part 9 of the Act sets out the position in relation to temporary use notices. These allow the use of 
premises for gambling where there is no premises licence but where a gambling operator wishes to use 
the premises temporarily for providing facilities for gambling. Premises that might be suitable for a 
temporary use notice include hotels, conference centres and sporting venues. 
 
A temporary use notice may only be granted to a person or company holding a relevant operating 
licence, in effect a non-remote casino operating licence.  
 

Page 154



 

  21  

Regulations state that temporary use notices may only be used to permit the provision of facilities for 
equal chance gaming, where the gaming is intended to produce a single overall winner. However, the 
facilities may not be provided in circumstances where any person participating in the gaming does so by 
means of a gaming machine. Equal chance gaming is gaming which does not involve playing or staking 
against a bank and gives equally favourable chances to all participants. Examples of equal chance 
gaming include games such as backgammon, mah-jong, rummy, kalooki, dominoes, cribbage, bingo 
and poker. 
 
6. Occasional Use Notices: 
The licensing authority has very little discretion as regards these notices aside from ensuring that the 
statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not exceeded.  This licensing authority will though consider 
the definition of a ‘track’ and whether the applicant is permitted to avail him/herself of the notice.   
 
7. Further information 
Further information about the Gambling Act 2005, this Policy Document or the application process can 
be obtained from:- 
 
Licensing Team 
Cheltenham Borough Council 
Municipal Offices 
Promenade 
Cheltenham 
GL50 9SA 

Tel: 01242 775200 
Fax: 01242 264210 
E-mail: licensing@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Website: 
www.cheltenham.gov.uk/licensing  

 
Further information may also be obtained from:- 
 
Gambling Commission 
Victoria Square House 
Victoria Square 
Birmingham 
B2 4BP 
 

Tel: 0121 230 6500 
Email: info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk 
Website: www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk 
Fax: 0121 233 1096 
 

 
Department for Culture Media & Sport 
2-4 Cockspur Street  
London, SW1Y 5DH 

Tel: 020 7211 6200  
General Enquiries 
Open Monday to Friday 9:30 a.m. – 4:30 p.m. 
Email: enquiries@culture.gov.uk 
Website: www.culture.gov.uk 

 
  
    
     
 
  
 

Page 155



 

 22

  
 

TABLE OF DELEGATIONS OF LICENSING FUNCTIONS 
 

MATTER TO BE DEALT 
WITH 

Full 
Council 

Licensing & Regulation Sub-
committee (Licensing Panel) 

Officers 
Licensing policy 
 X   
Policy not to issue casino 
premises licences X   
Fee Setting - when appropriate 

 
 X  

(to be approved by Executive 
Committee) 

Application for premises 
licences  

Where representations have been 
received and not withdrawn 

Where no representations 
received/ representations have 
been withdrawn 

Application for a variation to a 
licence  

Where representations have been 
received and not withdrawn 

Where no representations 
received/ representations have 
been withdrawn 

Application for a transfer of a 
licence  Where representations have been 

received from the Commission 
Where no representations received 
from the Commission 

Application for a provisional 
statement  

Where representations have been 
received and not withdrawn 

Where no representations 
received/ representations have 
been withdrawn 

Request to review a premises 
licence   

X 
(in consultation with the Head of 
Legal Services) 

Review of a premises licence  X  
Application for club gaming 
/club machine permits  

Where representations have been 
received and not withdrawn 

Where no representations 
received/ representations have 
been withdrawn 

Cancellation of club gaming/ 
club machine permits  X  
Applications for other permits   X 
Cancellation of licensed premises 
gaming machine permits   X 
Consideration of temporary 
use notice   X 
Decision to give a counter 
notice to a temporary use 
notice 

 X  

Page 156



 

 23

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 

  
  
Application(s): Application(s) for licences and permits as required by The Gambling Act 2005 and 

defined in section 1.5 of this draft policy or an application for a review of such a 
licence 
 

Code of Practice: Means any relevant code of practice under section 24 of the Gambling Act 2005. 
 

Default Condition: Means a specified condition provided by regulations to be attached to a licence, 
unless excluded by The Licensing Authority. 
 

Interested Party: As defined in Section 158 of The Gambling Act 2005. 
“For the purposes of this Act, a person is an interested party in relation to a 
premises licence if, in the opinion of the Licensing  Authority which issues the 
licence or to which the application is made, the person:- 
 

a) Lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the 
authorised activities; 

b) Has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities; 
c) Represents persons who satisfy a) or b) above.” 

Licences: As defined in The Gambling Act 2005 and section 1.5 of this draft policy. 
 

Licensing Objectives: 
 

As defined in The Gambling Act 2005. 
 

Mandatory Condition: Means a specified condition provided by regulations that are required to be attached 
to a licence. 
 

Notifications: Means notification of temporary and occasional use notices. 
 

Premises: As defined in The Gambling Act 2005, being, 
“Any place, including a vehicle, vessel or moveable structure” 
 

Regulations: Regulations made under the Gambling Act 2005. 
 

Responsible Authority: For the purposes of this Act, the following are responsible authorities in relation to 
premises: 

1. The Licensing Authority in whose area the premises are wholly or mainly 
situated (“Cheltenham Borough Council”); 

2. The Gambling Commission;  
3. Gloucestershire Constabulary; 
4. Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service; 
5. Built Environment Division, Cheltenham Borough Council;  
6. Environmental Health Section, Cheltenham Borough Council; 
7. Gloucestershire Safeguarding Children Board; 

      8. HM Customs and Excise. 
 

The Act: The Gambling Act 2005. 
 

The Borough of 
Cheltenham: 

The area of Gloucestershire administered by Cheltenham Borough Council. 
 

The Licensing 
Authority 

Cheltenham Borough Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority 
The Policy Document Cheltenham Borough Council’s statement of principles. 

Page 157



 

 24

 
Track A horse-race course, dog track or other premises on any part of which a race or 

other sporting event takes place or is intended to take place. 
 

Page 158



 

 25

 
LIST OF CONSULTEES 

Responsible Authorities 
Built Environment Division, Cheltenham Borough Council 
Environmental Health Section, Cheltenham Borough Council 
Gloucestershire Area Child Protection Agency 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service 
The Chief Officer of Police 

Trade Organisations 
Association of British Bookmakers Ltd (ABB) 
ASTRA Games Limited 
Austin Leisure 
British Amusement Catering Trade Association (BACTA) 
The British Association of Leisure Parks, Piers & Attractions Limited (BALPA) 
British Beer and Pub Association 
British Casino Association (BCA) 
Business In Sport and Leisure 
Casino Operators’ Association 
Crown Leisure Limited 
Gala Bingo 
Gamestec Leisure Limited 
Ladbrooks 
Leisure Link 
Paddy Power 
Ral Limited 
Recaf Equipment Limited 
Serendipidy Holdings Limited 
Steeplechase Company (Cheltenham) Limited 
Touch-Tec 
The Bingo Association 
William Hill 

Specialist Licensing Solicitors (National and Local) 
Blake Lapthorn 
Bond Pearce 
Christopher Davidson 
Gosschalks 
Kuit Stewart Levy 
Maitland Walker 
Poppleston Allen 
Woods Whur 

Other Consultees 
Cheltenham Borough Council – Directors 
Cheltenham Borough Council – Strategic Land Use Team 
Cheltenham Borough Council Members 
Cheltenham Business Partnership 
Cheltenham Chamber of Commerce 
Cheltenham Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership 
Cheltenham Strategic Partnership 
Gamblers Anonymous 
Gloucestershire Magistrates Court 
Parish Councils 
Cheltenham Borough Council Licensing Committee 
 
 

Page 159



 

 26

 
 

Machine category Maximum stake 
(from July 2011) 

Maximum prize (from 
July 2011) 

A Unlimited Unlimited 

B1 £2 £4,000 

B2 £100 (in multiples of 
£10) 

£500 

B3 £2 £500 

B3A £1 £500 

B4 £1 £250 

C £1 £70 

D non-money prize (other than crane 
grab machine) 

30p £8 

D non-money prize (crane grab 
machine) 

£1 £50 

D money prize 10p £5 

D combined money and non-money 
prize (other than coin pusher or penny 
falls machines) 

10p £8 (of which no more than 
£5 may be a money prize) 

D combined money and non-money 
prize (coin pusher or penny falls 
machine) 

10p £15 (of which no more 
than £8 may be a money 
prize) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 160



Part 6: Licensing authority Statement of Policy 
 
6.1  Section 349 of the Act requires all licensing authorities to prepare and publish a statement 

of the principles that they propose to apply in exercising their functions under the Act 
during the three-year period to which the policy applies. 

 
6.2  The Licensing Authority Statement of Policy will last for a maximum of three years, but can 

be reviewed and revised by the authority at any time. The statement must be produced 
following consultation with those bodies and persons set out in subsection (3) of section 
349 of the Act. Regulations made by the Secretary of State, or Scottish Ministers in 
Scotland, prescribe the form of statements, and the procedure to be followed in relation to 
them and their publication7. The detail of the regulations is further explained below. An 
order of the Secretary of State means that licensing authorities have to publish their 
second statement by 14 January 2010. 

 
Fundamental principles 
 
6.3  All Licensing Authority Statements of Policy should begin by stating the three licensing 

objectives, which the policy will promote. The statement should also state that the licensing 
authority shall aim to permit the use of premises for gambling as set out in section 153 of 
the Act. 

 
6.4  Licensing Authority Statements of Policy should include a firm commitment to avoid 

duplication with other regulatory regimes so far as possible. For example, a range of 
general duties are imposed on the self-employed, employers and operators of gambling 
premises, both in respect of employees and of the general public, by legislation governing 
health and safety at work and fire safety. Therefore such requirements need not be 
included in the Licensing Authority Statement of Policy. 

 
6.5  In determining its policy, the licensing authority must have regard to this Guidance, and 

give appropriate weight to the views of those it has consulted. In determining what weight 
to give particular representations, the factors to be taken into account will include: 

 who is making the representations (what is their expertise or interest) 
 relevance of the factors to the licensing objectives 
 how many other people have expressed the same or similar views 
 how far the representations relate to matters that the licensing authority should be 

including in its policy statement. 
 
6.6  In relation to premises licensing, licensing authorities can only consider matters within the 

scope of the Guidance, Act and Codes of Practice. Even if there is a large response 
regarding a certain issue, an authority may be unable to deal with the issue under the 
Gambling Act. However the issue may be a matter for other legislation, for example 
planning. 

 
6.7  It will be up to the licensing authority to ensure that it looks at the views of consultees and 

considers carefully whether they should be taken into account and to what extent (having 
regard to the above factors). A licensing authority should always be able to give reasons 
for the decisions it has made following consultation. Having regard to this Guidance will be 
important for consistency, especially where licensing authority boundaries meet.  

 
6.8  As with the Commission, it is expected that local licensing authorities will regulate gambling 

in the public interest. 
 
6.9  While statements of policy may set out a general approach to the exercise of functions 

under the Act, no statement of policy should override the right of any person to make an 

                                                 
7 SI No. 636: The Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority Policy Statement) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006  
SI No. 154: The Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority Policy Statement) (Scotland) Regulations 2006 

6-1 

Page 161



application under the Act and to have that application considered on its merits. Additionally, 
a statement of policy must not undermine the right of any person to make representations 
on an application or to seek a review of a licence where provision has been made for them 
to do so. However if a ‘no-casino’ resolution has been passed by an authority it does not 
have to consider applications for new casino premises licences in its area. 

 
‘Demand’ for gaming premises 

 
6.10  Previous legislation required that the grant of certain gambling permissions should take 

account of whether there is unfulfilled demand for the facilities.  Absence of unmet demand 
is not a criterion for a licensing authority in considering an application for a premises 
licence under the Gambling Act. Each application must be considered on its merits without 
regard to demand.  

 
6.11  The Licensing Authority Statement of Policy should reflect this situation and not comment 

on the need for gambling premises. 
 
6.12  However, the licensing authority may comment on the location of premises in so far as the 

location relates to the licensing objectives. So, for example, a Licensing Authority 
Statement of Policy could, and should, set out the general principles that the licensing 
authority will apply when determining whether the location of proposed gambling premises 
is acceptable (with or without conditions) in light of the licensing objectives. For example, a 
Licensing Authority Statement of Policy might set out that the authority will consider very 
carefully whether applications for premises licences in respect of certain gambling 
premises located very close to a school or a centre for gambling addicts should be granted 
in light of the third licensing objective. Any such policy must, however, come with the 
qualification that each case will be decided on its merits, and will depend to a large extent 
on the type of gambling that it is proposed will be offered on the premises. If an applicant 
for a premises licence can show how licensing objective concerns can be overcome, that 
will have to be taken into account. 

 
Consultation 
 
6.13  Section 349 (3) requires the licensing authority to consult the following on the Licensing 

Authority Statement of Policy or any subsequent revision: 
 in England and Wales, the chief officer of police for the authority’s area 
 in Scotland, the Chief Constable of the police force maintained for the police area 

comprising that area 
 one or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 

persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s area 
 one or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 

persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions 
under this Act. 

 
6.14  The list of persons to be consulted when preparing the Licensing Authority Statement of 

Policy is deliberately wide. This enables licensing authorities to undertake a 
comprehensive consultation exercise with anyone who may be affected by or otherwise 
have an interest in the Licensing Authority Statement of Policy. 

 
6.15  Licensing authorities will develop their own consultation practices but they may like to 

consider the following: 
 consultation with a range of organisations including faith groups, voluntary and 

community organisations working with children and young people, organisations 
working with people who are problem gamblers, medical practices or primary care 
trusts, and advocacy organisations (such as the Citizen’s Advice Bureau and trade 
unions) 

 consultation with other tiers of local government (where they exist) 
 

6-2 

Page 162



 consultation with businesses that are, or will be, holders of a premises licence  
 consultation with the organisations named as responsible authorities in the Act 
 using a variety of consultation methods including meetings with gambling 

businesses in the local authority area and open forums for the public. 
 
6.16 Any written consultation should follow best practice as set out by the Department for 

Business, Enterprise and Regulatory Reform including allowing 12 weeks for responses to 
the consultation8. Consultation documents could be provided on the licensing authority’s 
website. 

 
Form and content of the Licensing Authority Statement of Policy 
 
6.17  Regulations made by the Secretary of State or Scottish Ministers set out requirements as 

to the form and publication of Licensing Authority Statements of Policy and subsequent 
revisions of statements. In addition to the requirements set out by the regulations (below), 
this Guidance sets out certain information that the Commission considers should be 
included in all Licensing Authority Statements of Policy. 

 
6.18  The regulations provide for the form of the statement to be determined by the licensing 

authority subject to the following requirements: bj
 Licensing Authority Statement of Policy must contain an introductory section 

summarising the matters contained within the statement, describing the 
geographical area to which the statement applies, and listing the persons 
consulted in preparing the statement. 

 
6.19  As required by the regulations, the statement should make clear the geographical area that 

it covers. This may be achieved by including a plan of the area covered by the statement. 
 
6.20  The statement should also set out the licensable activities that are covered. 
 
6.21  Statements of principles to be applied by the licensing authority in exercising its functions 

must be contained in four separate sections within the Licensing Authority Statement of 
Policy as set out below: 

1) Licensing Authority Statements of Policy must contain a section that sets out the 
principles to be applied by the authority in designating, in writing, a body which is 
competent to advise the authority about the protection of children from harm. 

 
6.22  Section 157 of the Act sets out the responsible authorities. Within this section, the licensing 

authority has discretion to determine the most appropriate body competent to advise the 
authority about the protection of children from harm. Such a body may, but not necessarily, 
be the Local Safeguarding Children Board in England and Wales, or the Child Protection 
Committee in Scotland. The licensing authority must consider which body best fulfils this 
function and the Licensing Authority Statement of Policy should set out this consideration, 
or the criteria the authority intends to use, in order to designate that body in writing.  

2) Licensing Authority Statements of Policy must contain a section that sets out the 
principles to be applied by the authority to determine whether a person is an 
interested party in relation to a premises licence, or in relation to an application for 
or in respect of a premises licence. 

 
6.23  Section 158 of the Act defines interested parties as persons who: 

(a) live sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised 
 activities 
(b) have business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities or 
(c) represent persons who satisfy paragraph a) or b). 

 

                                                 
8 Further information is available at www.berr.gov.uk 

6-3 

Page 163



6.24  Licensing authorities must consider whether a person is an interested party with regard to 
particular premises on a case by case basis, judging each on its merits. However, an 
authority may have regard to a number of factors when making its decision. These factors 
should be set out in this part of the Licensing Authority Statement of Policy. An authority 
may take into account, for example, the size of the premises and the nature of the activities 
taking place. Larger premises may be considered to affect people over a broader 
geographical area compared with smaller premises offering similar facilities. 

 
6.25  Licensing authorities should include guidance in their Licensing Authority Statements of 

Policy whom they consider comes within the category of those who represent persons 
living close to premises, or have business interests that may be affected by it. For example, 
this category could include trade associations and trade unions and residents’ and tenants’ 
associations. It is expected that the types of organisations that may be considered to have 
business interests will be given a wide interpretation to include, for example, partnerships, 
charities, faith groups and medical practices etc.  

3) Licensing Authority Statements of Policy must contain a section that sets out the 
principles to be applied by the authority in exercising the functions under Sections 
29 and 30 of the Act with respect to the exchange of information between it and the 
Commission, and the functions under section 350 of the Act with respect to the 
exchange of information between it and the other persons listed in Schedule 6 of 
the Act.  

 
6.26  The Act empowers the Commission to seek information from licensing authorities, and 

places an obligation on authorities to comply with information requests. Specifically, section 
29 of the Act entitles the Commission to request information from licensing authorities and 
to set out the manner in which the information is compiled, collated and provided, providing 
it: 

 forms part of a register maintained under the Act  
 is in the possession of the authority in connection with a provision of the Act. 

 
6.27  Section 350 of the Act allows licensing authorities to exchange information with other 

persons or bodies listed in Schedule 6 (1) for use in the exercise of functions under the Act 
as follows: 

 a constable or police force 
 an enforcement officer 
 a licensing authority 
 HMRC 
 the Gambling Appeal Tribunal 
 the Secretary of State 
 Scottish Ministers. 

 
6.28  The licensing authority must set out how it will approach information exchange with other 

regulatory bodies under the Act, and whether it intends to establish any protocols in this 
regard. The statement should also include the authority’s approach to data protection and 
freedom of information. In particular, how information will be protected, whether the 
confidentiality of those making representations will be maintained, what information will be 
shared with other agencies or persons and how information can be accessed by data 
subjects. 

 
6.29  Further information regarding the exchange of information can be found in part 13 of this 

Guidance. 
 
6.30  For the purposes of their Licensing Authority Statement of Policy, licensing authorities  
 should confirm that they will act in accordance with the relevant legislation and Guidance 

from the Commission and will adopt the principles of better regulation. 
4) Licensing Authority Statements of Policy must contain a section that sets out the 
principles to be applied by the authority in exercising the functions under Part 15 of 
 

6-4 

Page 164



the Act with respect to the inspection of premises; and the powers under section 
346 of the Act to institute criminal proceedings in respect of the offences specified 
in that section. 
 

6.31 Licensing authorities are referred to what has been said at paragraphs 5.23 to 5.25 above 
 concerning the Regulators’ Compliance Code.   
 
6.32  Further guidance on licensing authorities’ compliance and enforcement responsibilities is 

available in part 36 of this Guidance. This has been developed following discussions 
between the Commission, the police, licensing authorities and other law-enforcement and 
regulatory agencies to agree respective roles in relation to particular types of gambling and 
licensed premises.  

 
6.33  It is recommended that licensing authorities adopt a risk-based inspection programme. This 

would include targeting high-risk premises which require greater attention, whilst operating 
a lighter touch in respect of low-risk premises, so that resources are more effectively 
concentrated on problem premises. The policy statement should set out the principles to be 
applied by the authority in respect of such a programme and the criteria the authority is 
likely to use to determine the level of risk in respect of premises. 

 
6.34  Many licensing authorities in England and Wales will have general enforcement policies 

which are in accordance with the codes of practice developed with the Crown Prosecution 
Service. Licensing authorities in England and Wales may wish to include in their Licensing 
Authority Statements of Policy that they will apply these codes in the management of 
criminal cases. 

 
6.35  Part 36 of this Guidance covers more detailed issues such as the agreement of protocols 

with the local police and the Commission on enforcement issues. 
 
Other matters to be covered in policy statements 
 
6.36  In addition to these requirements as set out in regulations, a number of other matters 

should be included in Licensing Authority Statements of Policy. 
 

Consideration of applications 
 
6.37  The authority should set out in its statement what factors it may take into account when 

considering applications for premises licences, permits and other permissions and matters 
that it will consider relevant when determining whether to review a licence. This is where 
considerations such as the proximity of gambling premises to schools and vulnerable adult 
centres, or to residential areas where there may be a high concentration of families with 
children, should be detailed. Any such policy must, however, come with the qualification 
that each case will be decided on its merits, so if an applicant can show how they might 
overcome licensing objective concerns, that will have to be taken into account. 

 
Statement regarding casino resolution 

 
6.38  Under section 166(5) of the Gambling Act, any resolution not to issue casino licences must 

be published in the Licensing Authority Statement of Policy. In addition, the Licensing 
Authority Statement of Policy should include details about how the authority has taken or 
will take a decision to pass (or not to pass) a casino resolution.  

 
Statement of principles 

 
6.39  If an authority intends to apply a statement of principles when considering applicant 

suitability for applications for FEC permits under paragraph 7 of Schedule 10, or prize 
gaming permits under paragraph 8 of Schedule 14 of the Act, it is not obliged to include 

 
6-5 

Page 165



 those statements as part of the Licensing Authority Statement of Policy, but may want to 
consider doing so to make them available in one place. 

 
Declaration by licensing authority 

 
6.40  Each Licensing Authority Statement of Policy should include a declaration which sets out 

that in producing the final Licensing Authority Statement of Policy, the authority has had 
regard to the licensing objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the Guidance issued by the 
Commission, and any responses from those consulted on the policy statement. To avoid 
later challenge, it would be sensible if the licensing authority demonstrated how the 
licensing objectives and Commission Guidance have been taken into account when 
drawing up the statement.  

 
6.41  Authorities should note that the regulations and this Guidance do not prevent authorities 

from including any additional information that the authority considers necessary or helpful. 
 
Advertisement of the Licensing Authority Statement of Policy or 
Revisions 
 
6.42  Before publishing a statement or revision, the regulations made by the Secretary of State 

or Scottish Ministers require authorities to publish a notice of their intention to publish a 
statement or revision (this must be done no later than the date on which the statement or 
revision is to be published). The notice must:  

(a) specify the date on which the statement or revision is to be published 
(b) specify the date on which the statement or revision will come into effect 
(c) specify the internet address where the statement or revision will be published and 

the address of the premises at which it may be inspected 
(d) be published on the authority’s website and in/on one or more of the following 

places: 
– a local newspaper circulating in the area covered by the statement 
– a local newsletter, circular, or similar document circulating in the area covered by 

the statement 
– a public notice board in or near the principal office of the authority 
– a public notice board on the premises of public libraries in the area covered by the 

statement. 
 
Publication of the Licensing Authority Statement of Policy or revisions 
 
6.43  The regulations stipulate that the Licensing Authority Statement of Policy or any 

subsequent revision of the statement must be published on the authority’s website and be 
made available at reasonable times for inspection by members of the public either in the 
principal office of the authority, at one or more public libraries in the area covered by the 
statement or in other premises situated in that area. The statement or revision must be 
published at least four weeks before it takes effect. 

 
Review of the Licensing Authority Statement of Policy 
  
6.44  The Licensing Authority Statement of Policy will have effect for three years but the 

licensing authority may review and alter the policy in that period. 
 
6.45  Licensing authorities will need to consider, in the event of a change of policy, whether a  
 review of the statement is necessary. For example, a change in planning policy could lead 

to a review and subsequent revision of a statement (if, for example, a change in planning 
policy led to family entertainment centres (FECs) where previously there were none, the 
statement may then be required to make reference to FECs where it was previously silent). 
Where the statement is reviewed and changes made, authorities must consult on any 
revision.  

6-6 

Page 166



6.46  Authorities should note that where a statement is revised, it is only the revision that needs 
to be published and consulted on. So, for example, an authority may consult separately on 
whether to pass a casino resolution and then subsequently publish the resolution as part of 
the statement. This can be done without any need to review and reopen consultation on 
the main body of the statement. Any revisions must be published and advertised in the 
same way as a new statement. 

 
6.47  Regulations provide for the form and content of revisions to the Licensing Authority 

Statement of Policy to be determined by the licensing authority, subject to the following 
requirements: 

 revisions to Licensing Authority Statements of Policy must include an 
introductory section at or near the beginning, summarising the matters dealt 
with in the statement and listing the persons consulted in preparing the 
revision. 

  
6.48  Where the revision deals with any of the matters below, these must be presented in 

separate sections: 
1) the principles to be applied by the authority in exercising the powers under 
section 157(h) of the Act to designate, in writing, a body which is competent to 
advise the authority about the protection of children from harm  
 

2) the principles to be applied by the authority in exercising the powers under 
section 158 of the Act, to determine whether a person is an interested party in 
relation to a premises licence, or an application for or in respect of a premises 
licence 
 

3) the principles to be applied by the authority in exercising its functions under 
sections 29 and 30 of the Act with respect to the exchange of information between it 
and the Gambling Commission, and the functions under section 350 of the Act with 
respect to the exchange of information between it and the other persons listed in 
Schedule 6 to the Act or 
 

4) the principles to be applied by the authority in exercising the functions under Part 
15 of the Act with respect to the inspection of premises; and the powers under 
section 346 of the Act to institute criminal proceedings in respect of the offences 
specified in that section. 

 
Additional information to be made available 
 
6.49  In order to ensure that applicants and persons who wish to make representations have the 

necessary information to be able to do so, the information set out below should be made 
available by licensing authorities as part of their communications strategy. 

 
6.50 It should be noted that, unlike the Licensing Act, the Gambling Act does not include as a 

specific licensing objective the prevention of public nuisance. There is however other 
relevant legislation which deals with public nuisance. It would be helpful if licensing 
authorities could explain that objections to new premises or requests for a review should be 
based on the licensing objectives of the Gambling Act. 

 
6.51 It is open to licensing authorities to include any of this information in their Licensing 

Authority Statement of Policy. However, authorities might think it more appropriate to make 
it available in another form, such as on the authority website.  

 
Registers 
 

6.52 Section 156 of the Act requires licensing authorities to maintain a register of the premises 
licences that it has issued. The register must be made available, at any reasonable time, to 
the public who may request copies of the entries. Authorities should ensure that 

 
6-7 

Page 167



 information regarding the location of the registers (ie on the website, in the council offices 
etc), when they can be viewed, and the cost of obtaining copies is made available to the 
public. 

 
Fees 

 
6.53  Authorities should ensure that information regarding the fees to be charged, including the 

level of fees, for applications for premises licences and other permissions under the Act is 
available to the public. 

 
6.54  Separate guidance relating to the calculation of fees and accounting procedures has been 

produced by the Secretary of State available from the Department for Culture, Media and 
Sport website (www.culture.gov.uk). In Scotland, all of the equivalent fees will be set 
centrally by Scottish Ministers9. 

 
Applications 

 
6.55  Authorities should ensure that information is available on how to make applications for 

licences and other permissions under the Act. In particular, it would be helpful if authorities 
ensure that a full list of responsible authorities and their appropriate contact details, is 
readily available. Application forms, where appropriate, should also be made available. 
Authorities should note that there will be no prescribed application forms for family 
entertainment centre, prize gaming or licensed premises gaming machine permits. As 
such, the authority will need to make clear how applications for these permits should be 
made and in what form. Additionally, authorities will need to ensure that information 
regarding making representations, and applying for a review of a premises licence, is also 
made available. 

 
Delegation 

 
6.56  Information should be provided as to how functions are delegated under the Act (ie 

whether decisions are to be taken by a licensing officer, licensing sub-committee or full 
committee etc). A table setting out the scheme of delegation required by the Act may be 
the most appropriate method for this and is located in part 4 of this Guidance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
9 Gambling Act 2005 (Premises Licence Fees) (Scotland) Regulations 2007; Gambling Act 2005 (Fees) (Scotland) Regulations 2007; 
Gambling Act 2005 (Fees No.2) (Scotland) Regulations 2007; Gambling Act 2005 (Fees No.3) (Scotland) Regulations 2007 and 
Gambling Act 2005 (Fees No.4) (Scotland) Regulations 2007. 
 

6-8 
 

Page 168



 

   

The Public Fundraising Regulatory Association 
(PFRA) 

Page 1 of 7 Last updated 31 May 2012 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 19 June 2012 

Regulating Direct Debit “Face to Face” Fundraising in Cheltenham 
 

Accountable member  Cabinet Member Housing and Safety - Councillor Peter Jeffries  
Accountable officer Director of Culture and Wellbeing – Sonia Phillips 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary There are currently no statutory provisions in place for local authorities to 

formally regulate or licence direct debit face to face fundraising. 
The Public Fundraising Regulatory Association (“PFRA”) is the charity-led 
self-regulatory membership body for all types of face to face fundraising.  
The PFRA regulates face to face fundraising through Site Management 
Agreements with local authorities.   
Cabinet is asked to approve such a scheme in Cheltenham and further to 
approve the Site Management Agreement. 

Recommendations That Cabinet RESOLVE to: 
1) Approve the adoption of the scheme for Cheltenham; and 
2) Approve the Site Management Agreement attached at Appendix 

2; and 
3) Delegate authority to the Director of Culture and Wellbeing to 

sign the Site Management Agreement on behalf of the Council. 
 
Financial implications There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Contact officer: Sarah Didcote, sarah.didcote@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 26 4125 

Agenda Item 10
Page 169



 

   

The Public Fundraising Regulatory Association 
(PFRA) 

Page 2 of 7 Last updated 31 May 2012 
 

Legal implications Traditional charity street collectors who collect money typically in a tin or 
box are controlled by permits issued by the Licensing Section under 
provision laid down in The Police, Factories Etc (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1916. This form of fundraising described in the report which collects 
Direct Debit information amounting to a promise of money has raised 
questions over whether funds collected amount to money for the purpose of 
the 1916 Act and therefore whether this activity can be controlled using 
permits issued under the Act. 
 
This has lead to a situation where it is difficult to control this type of activity. 
A voluntary agreement with the PFRA has been devised as a means of 
trying to control the level of fundraising activity and the conduct of the 
collectors. It should be noted however that this is voluntary agreement 
rather than a legal agreement and therefore the provisions are not legally 
binding upon the PFRA or the fundraisers. 
 
The Local Government Act 2000 section 2 gives every local authority power 
to do anything, to include the power to enter into agreements or 
arrangements, which they consider is likely to achieve any one or more of 
the following objects: 
• the promotion or improvement of the economic well-being of their area, 
• the promotion or improvement of the social well-being of their area, and 
• the promotion or improvement of the environmental well-being of their 
area. 
 
Entering into this Agreement may promote the economic and environmental 
well-being of the Town Centre. 
 
Contact officer: Sarah Farooqi, sarah.farooqi@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 
01684  272693 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no HR implications arising from this report. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 26 4355 

Key risks As outlined in Appendix 1 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

 Attract more visitors and investors to Cheltenham 

Page 170



 

   

The Public Fundraising Regulatory Association 
(PFRA) 

Page 3 of 7 Last updated 31 May 2012 
 

1. Background 
1.1 There are currently no statutory provisions in place for local authorities to formally regulate or 

licence direct debit face to face fundraising (sometimes referred to as “chuggers”). 
1.2 This has rendered the Council unable to formally control this form of fundraising activity in the 

borough.  Strictly speaking, the Council does not have any official power to restrict face to face 
fundraisers from visiting Cheltenham or ability to prescribe the location or conditions under which 
they may operate within the borough. 

2. Direct Debit Face to Face Fundraising 
2.1 This form of fundraising is normally undertaken by individuals who approach members of the 

public with a request to make a regular donation to a particular charity by way of a monthly direct 
debit.  

2.2 These individuals are clearly identified through the tabards they wear identifying the charity they 
are collecting for. 

3. Council’s Current Approach 
3.1 The Council benefits from a good working relationship with face to face fundraising agencies and 

organisations.  This type of fundraising activity has been informally managed by the Council 
through a diary booking system to ensure that they do not clash with other charitable collectors 
such as street collectors (charity buckets).  In 2011, the Council diarised 189 visits by face to face 
fundraisers to visit Cheltenham. 

3.2 The Council’s current system works well in terms of ensuring fair access for all types of charitable 
collections.  However, as a result of the fact that there are currently no statutory provisions in 
place to formally prohibit face to face fundraisers from visiting Cheltenham, the Council’s current 
system is limited in terms of effectiveness to properly regulate face to face fundraising. 

3.3 For example, the Council is unable to formally deal with complaints from members of the public 
and/or local businesses relating to face to face fundraisers.  Furthermore, face to face fundraising 
agencies are unrestricted in terms of where they can fundraise and can choose to visit 
Cheltenham despite the Council’s request not to. 

3.4 In order to control face to face fundraising more effectively in Cheltenham, officers have 
approached the Public Fundraising Regulatory Association (“PFRA” hereafter) to draw up a draft 
Site Management Agreement (“SMA” hereafter) for Cheltenham.   

3.5 The SMA will stipulate the conditions under which face to face fundraisers can visit Cheltenham 
and will be discussed in more detail at paragraph 6 of this report. 

4. The Public Fundraising Regulatory Association (PFRA) 
4.1 The PFRA is the charity-led, self-regulatory membership body for all types of face to face 

fundraising.   
4.2 It currently has 95% of the organisations, both charity and fundraising agency members, currently 

involved in all types of face to face fundraising activity signed up to the self-regulatory scheme.  A 
full list of members is available on the PFRA’s website at 
http://www.pfra.org.uk/control_and_regulation/who_we_are/members/.  

 

Page 171



 

   

The Public Fundraising Regulatory Association 
(PFRA) 

Page 4 of 7 Last updated 31 May 2012 
 

4.3 The PFRA has a dual role in regulating face to face fundraising; 
1) Professional standards – by enforcing the Institute of Fundraising’s Face to Face Activity 

Code of Fundraising Practice, running a mystery shopping programme, and ensuring our 
members complete an accreditation process.  

2) Ensuring Fair Allocation of Fundraising – via a fair and equitable site allocation 
programme and work with local councils to negotiate ‘site management agreements’ (SMAs) 
that contain guarantees about the locations and times that fundraising can take place.  

5. Site Management Agreement (SMA) 
5.1 Althought the Council is effectively unable to restrict face to face fundraisers from visiting 

Cheltenham, the Council can manage access, location, times and numbers through an agreed 
SMA. 

5.2 A typical SMA will: 
• Delineate the location in which fundraisers may work.  
• Specify which days of the week fundraisers may attend.  
• Specify how many fundraisers may attend.  
• Include various other criteria and stipulations, such as whether or not bags may be left on the 

pavement, or whether a non-fundraising team leader is allowed to be present. 
5.3 Officers in conjunction with the PFRA have drawn up a draft SMA for Members to consider.  A 

draft copy of the SMA is attached at Appendix 2. 
5.4 The draft SMA for Cheltenham proposes; 

1) That face to face fundraising activity be restricted to the pedestrianised area of the High Street 
between Pittville Street and Winchcombe Street. 

2) The maximum permitted capacity would be 6 fundraisers. 
3) Where fundraisers are found to be working outside of the agreed locations, they must comply 

with requests made by Council officers and reposition themselves correctly or as directed on-
site. 

4) Only one charity will be permitted a day. 
5) Fundraising will only be permitted on Tuesdays, Thursdays and Fridays, between the hours of 

9am and 7pm. 
6) In addition, the Council has discretion to notify the PFRA of any “Exclusion Dates” which are 

extra dates on which the Council can restrict fundraising if there are special events etc. where 
the Council considers it necessary to not permit fundraising.  

5.5 In addition to the SMA, fundraisers will be expected to also adhere to the Face-to-Face Activity 
Code of Fundraising Practice (Appendix 3), the PFRA/Institute of Fundraising abridged code of 
practice (Appendix 4), and any other rules promulgated by the PFRA. 

5.6 This SMA will be reviewed 6 months after it is signed, and then once every 12 months, if 
necessary, or earlier if there is just cause to do so.  There is no cost for the Council to sign up to a 
SMA. 

Page 172



 

   

The Public Fundraising Regulatory Association 
(PFRA) 

Page 5 of 7 Last updated 31 May 2012 
 

5.7 There will be a lead time of up to 8 weeks before the SMA will take effect in Cheltenham.  This is 
to account for the PFRA’s bidding/allocation cycle.   

5.8 A number of other towns have already adopted the scheme and SMA’s. These include 
Manchester, Nottingham, Leeds, Gloucester and Glasgow. Feedback from these towns and cities 
have been positive in terms of the effect the scheme has had in their areas.    

6. Benefits of a SMA 
6.1 A SMA will bring a number of benefits to the Council; 

1) It will enable to the Council to better control this type of fundraising activity in the borough. 
2) The PFRA will be soley responsible for dealing with all complaints resulting from face to face 

fundraising whether the complaint be from a Council Officer, town centre manager, a member 
of the public or local businesses.  

3) The PFRA will be responsible for maintaining a diary management system which will minimise 
the administration currently undertaken by officers.  

4) The PFRA will monitor member organisations, through a programme of random spot-checks 
and other mechanisms, to ensure fundraisers’ adherence to the code of practice and SMA, 
from time to time. 

5) Should fundraisers breach the terms of the SMA the PFRA offers a single point of contact for 
the local authority to rectify this. They can usually ensure SMA breaches are put right within 
the hour and if necessary, impose penalties and sanctions on member organisations. 

7. Penalties Imposed by the PFRA 
7.1 The PFRA enforces its rules through financial penalties.  Transgressions of the rules attract 

penalty points (of 20, 50 or 100 points), which will be converted into a monetary fine of £1 per 
point once a 1,000 point threshold is reached. 

8. Reasons for recommendations 
8.1 To ensure that the Council is better able to control face to face fundraising in the borough. 

9. Alternative options considered 
9.1 Members can decide not to support this scheme but this is not a desirable option for the reasons 

outlined in this report. 
 

Report author Contact officer: Louis Krog, louis.krog@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 775200 

Page 173



 

   

The Public Fundraising Regulatory Association 
(PFRA) 

Page 6 of 7 Last updated 31 May 2012 
 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Draft Site Management Agreement (SMA) 
3. Face to Face Activity Code of Fundraising Practice 
4. PFRA/Institute of Fundraising abridged code of practice 

Background information 1. Service Records 
 

Page 174



 

   
$xool3n3p.doc Page 7 of 7 Last updated 31 May 2012 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1 The Council will be unable 
to effectively control this 
form of fundraising which 
could have an adverse 
effect on the Council’s 
reputation. 

Senior 
Licensing 
Officer 

19 Jun 
2012 

2 2 4 Accept Adopt the PFRA 
scheme and 
accompanying SMA. 

TBC Licensing 
& 
Business 
Support 
Team 
Leader 

 

            

            

            

            

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 

P
age 175



Page 176
This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Dedicated to Quality, Integrity and Transparency in Public Fundraising 
 

Unit 11 Europoint, 5-11 Lavington Street, Southwark, London SE1 0NZ 
www.pfra.org.uk 

Site Management Agreement between 
PFRA and Cheltenham Borough Council 
 
The purpose and spirit of this voluntary Site Management Agreement (SMA) is to 
facilitate face-to-face fundraising in Cheltenham town centre and provide balance 
between the rights of charities or not-for-profit organisations to fundraise and the 
rights of the public to go about their business without the impression of undue 
inconvenience. For the avoidance of doubt, this document does not constitute a legal 
contract. 
 
Once this agreement is in place it should minimise the administration for all 
concerned, providing just one channel for information and support, as nominated 
‘gatekeepers’ only have to deal with one organisation, the PFRA, instead of dealing 
with each individual charity and fundraising organisation separately. 
 
 
Statement of Conformity 
1) All fundraisers will abide at all times by the Institute of Fundraising Face-to-Face 

Activity Code of Fundraising Practice, the PFRA / Institute of Fundraising 
abridged code of practice (Appendix 1), and any rules promulgated by the PFRA 
from time to time. 

 
 
Access Details 
Sites and team sizes 
1) Sites may be used as follows, as shown in the map at Appendix 2: 
 

High St: 
Pedestrianised area between Pittville St and Winchcombe St 
Capacity: maximum of 6 fundraisers 

 
2) Where fundraisers are found to be working outside of the agreed locations, they 

must comply with requests made by Local Authority Officers and reposition 
themselves correctly or as directed on-site. Failure to do so may result in the 
imposition of penalties or sanctions according to rules promulgated by the PFRA.  

 
3) Only one charity will be present on any one day. 

 
 

Page 177



 
 

Dedicated to Quality, Integrity and Transparency in Public Fundraising 
 

Unit 11 Europoint, 5-11 Lavington Street, Southwark, London SE1 0NZ 
www.pfra.org.uk 

 
Frequency 
4) Fundraising will only be permitted on Tuesdays, Thursdays and Fridays, between 

the hours of 9am and 7pm.  
 
5) Exclusion Dates etc are to be announced by the Council (e.g specific event days) 

and must be pre booked as part of the PFRA Diary Management System. Any 
exclusion dates to give a minimum of 4 weeks notice to the PFRA from date of 
diary delivery. 

 
Other Conditions 
6) Fundraisers should be positioned in such a way as to offer an adequate ‘comfort 

zone’ to those users of the public highway who do not wish to engage and should 
endeavour at all times not to impede the egress of any member of the public. In 
furtherance of this, it is desirable that a minimum footway channel of 1.8 metres 
be maintained between fundraisers and the kerb / shop frontage / bollards where 
it is reasonable to do so.  

 
7) Fundraisers are at no point to be within 3-metres of any shop entrance or, where 

permitted, within 6-metres of the frontage of any licensed market/street trader. 
Every effort must be expended to maintain a reasonable distance of 3-metres 
between fundraisers and any other legitimate street activities (e.g. Big Issue 
sellers, buskers, newspaper stands, promotional activities and market 
researching). 

 
8) All fundraisers must wear official tabards or other official distinctive clothing to 

enable shoppers and other pedestrians to identify them from a distance. All 
fundraisers must wear official identity cards clearly visible on the upper body with 
personal details and photograph of the fundraiser in accordance with the activity 
being undertaken at the time.  

 
 
Information Required 
Nominated Gatekeeper 
1) The nominated gatekeeper for Cheltenham Borough Council is the Senior 

Licensing Officer and his/her contact details are 01242 775200, 
licensing@cheltenham.gov.uk.   

 
 
 

Page 178



 
 

Dedicated to Quality, Integrity and Transparency in Public Fundraising 
 

Unit 11 Europoint, 5-11 Lavington Street, Southwark, London SE1 0NZ 
www.pfra.org.uk 

Required Information 
2) The PFRA Allocations Officer will maintain and manage the diary schedule. 

Diary/Schedule information will include: contact details for the agency (if 
applicable); and charity being fundraised for.  

 
3) Copies of the diary are to be made available to the following persons every four 

weeks: 
 
Senior Licensing Officer, Cheltenham Borough Council 
email: licensing@cheltenham.gov.uk 
 
Cheltenham Town Centre Manager 
e-mail: manager@cheltenhambp.org.uk  
 

4) These contact details shall be updated as and when necessary. 
 

Transition and continuity 
5) Should the nominated gatekeeper move on or responsibilities otherwise change, 

the gatekeeper will inform his/her successor of the detail of this agreement, the 
relationship with the PFRA, arrangements for the regulation of face-to-face 
fundraising, and provide the PFRA with contact details for the successor. 

 
 
Complaint Management  
1) The PFRA will log, mange and monitor all complaints relating to fundraisers and 

will inform the Council of complaints received on an annual basis, if requested. 
The Council and town centre manager will provide the PFRA with real time 
notification of individual complaints. Where the collection agencies themselves 
receive complaints it is expected that they will provide information to the PFRA 
including information about the identities of any individual collector the subject of 
a complaint and of the action taken (if any) by the collection agency. 

 
 
Working Together 
1) The local authority agrees to work with the PFRA to raise awareness regarding 

this site management scheme where appropriate. 
 
2) The PFRA will monitor member organisations, through a programme of random 

spot-checks and other mechanisms, to ensure fundraisers’ adherence to the code 
of practice and Site Management Agreements, from time to time.  

Page 179



 
 

Dedicated to Quality, Integrity and Transparency in Public Fundraising 
 

Unit 11 Europoint, 5-11 Lavington Street, Southwark, London SE1 0NZ 
www.pfra.org.uk 

 
3) Cheltenham Borough Council will be notified of the results of any spot checks 

carried out.  
 
4) This SMA will be reviewed 6 months after it is signed, and then once every 12 

months, if necessary, or earlier if there is just cause to do so. All amendments will 
be agreed in writing before becoming effective. Either party can withdraw from 
this agreement, giving 3 months’ notice in writing. 

 
5) Depending on when this agreement is signed, in relation to the PFRA’s 

bidding/allocation cycle, there will be a lead-time of up to 8 weeks before the 
agreement can be fully implemented. 

 
 
Signed For and On Behalf Of PFRA:  

 
 Dr Toby Ganley, Head of Policy 

Date:  

  
Signed For and On Behalf Of Cheltenham 
Borough Council:  

Print name:  

Job title:  

Dated:  

Page 180



 
 

Dedicated to Quality, Integrity and Transparency in Public Fundraising 
 

Unit 11 Europoint, 5-11 Lavington Street, Southwark, London SE1 0NZ 
www.pfra.org.uk 

Appendix 1 – Abridged Code of Practice  
1) We always tell potential donors clearly that we are paid to speak with them, and 

that we are not volunteers - if this is the case - and we explain the basis on which 
we are paid. 

 
2) We always carry and display ID so that any potential donor can verify who we 

are, whom we are working for and on whose behalf we are fundraising. 
 
3) We always represent our charity or Not for Profit Organisation (NPO) at the time, 

in the place, and in the manner that has been previously agreed both with the 
charity / NPO and with the relevant site owner or Local Authority, and as directed 
by our team leader or other responsible agency personnel. 

 
4) We always explain to a donor how the Charity or NPO will communicate with 

them after subscribing, and if they are likely to receive a follow up phone call we 
inform them of this. 

 
5) We always ensure that forms with personal details provided by donors are 

handled at all stages in a secure manner. 
 
6) We always end a conversation in a polite and respectful manner as soon as we 

are asked to. 
 
7) We always ensure, wherever possible, that if a member of the public has a 

complaint, a full and accurate record of the complaint and the complainant's 
contact details are taken so that action can be taken promptly and appropriately.  
We will also offer the complainant contact details for a person in authority who 
can respond to their concerns. 

 
8) We never say or do anything that could pressurise or harass people and we do 

not use manipulative techniques. 
 
9) We never confuse or mislead the public and we never say, do or display anything 

for which we have not been given permission by the charity or NPO 
 
10) We never behave whilst on duty in any way that might bring the charity / NPO or 

our employer into disrepute. 
 
 

Page 181



 
 

Dedicated to Quality, Integrity and Transparency in Public Fundraising 
 

Unit 11 Europoint, 5-11 Lavington Street, Southwark, London SE1 0NZ 
www.pfra.org.uk 

Appendix 2 
Plan showing the area(s) where fundraising is to be permitted: 
[insert map] 
 
 

Page 182



 
 

Dedicated to Quality, Integrity and Transparency in Public Fundraising 
 

Unit 11 Europoint, 5-11 Lavington Street, Southwark, London SE1 0NZ 
www.pfra.org.uk 

Appendix 3 
Know your rights - The Direct Debit Guarantee 
Direct Debit is one of the safest ways of making charitable donations. Organisations 
using the Direct Debit Scheme go through a careful vetting process before they're 
authorised, and are closely monitored by the banking industry. The efficiency and 
security of the Scheme is monitored and protected by your own bank or building 
society. 
 
The Direct Debit Scheme applies to all Direct Debits. It protects you in the rare event 
that anything goes wrong.  
 
 
The Direct Debit Guarantee 
• The Guarantee is offered by all banks and building societies that accept 

instructions to pay Direct Debits.  
• If there are any changes to the amount, date or frequency of your Direct Debit 

the organisation will notify you (normally 10 working days) in advance of your 
account being debited or as otherwise agreed. If you request the organisation 
to collect a payment, confirmation of the amount and date will be given to you 
at the time of the request.  

• If an error is made in the payment of your Direct Debit, by the organisation or 
your bank or building society, you are entitled to a full and immediate refund 
of the amount paid from your bank or building society.  
o If you receive a refund you are not entitled to, you must pay it back 

when the organisation asks you to.  
• You can cancel a Direct Debit at any time by simply contacting your bank or 

building society. Written confirmation may be required. Please also notify the 
organisation.  

 

Page 183



Page 184
This page is intentionally left blank



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!1!

!

Face"to"Face!Activity!
Code!of!Fundraising!Practice!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!

December!2009!
!

Check"list:!key!questions!to!ask!!
 Has!sufficient!planning!and!research!taken!place?!(3.0)!
 Are!other!Codes!consulted!where!necessary?!(2.0,!5.2)!
 Is!the!activity!compliant!with!the!law?!(5.1,!6.3,!8.0)!
 Are!all!parties!aware!of!their!responsibilities?!(2.1,!2.2)!
 Could!the!activity!bring!the!fundraising!organisation!or!provider!into!disrepute?!(3.0)!
 Could!the!activity!confuse!or!obstruct!the!public?!(3.0)!
 Have!the!access!management!requirements!been!checked?!(5.1)!
 Has!the!PFRA!been!contacted!to!establish!who!is!responsible!for!managing!the!site?!(6.1,!6.2)!
 Is!the!project!manager!satisfied!that!access!for!the!approaches!has!been!agreed!by!the!relevant!

access!authority/ies?!(6.1,!6.3)!
 Is!a!Site!Agreement!in!place?!(6.2)!
 Are!there!are!any!Cold!Calling!Control!Zones!in!the!area?!(6.3)!
 Is!the!relationship!between!the!provider!and!fundraising!organisation!and!scope!of!specific!roles!

clear?!(2.2,!4.1,!5.2)!
 Are!appropriate!contracts!in!place?!(5.2,!8.0)!
 Have!suitable!agents/fundraisers!been!recruited?!(5.2)!
 Is!a!satisfactory!payment!structure!in!place?!(5.2)!
 Do!professional!fundraisers!abide!by!the!relevant!regulations?!(5.2,!8.0)!
 Has!training!been!provided!in!person!and!did!it!involve!the!fundraising!organisation?!(5.3,!5.3.1)!
 Has!the!fundraising!organisation!briefed!the!fundraisers/agents?!(5.3.2)!
 Has!a!briefing!manual!been!agreed!with!the!fundraising!organisation?!(5.3.2)!
 Is!information!about!the!cause!clear!and!agreed!with!the!fundraising!organisation?!(4.1)!
 Has!the!importance!of!the!longevity!of!the!gift!been!stressed!to!all!agents/fundraisers?!(5.3.2)!
 Do!agents!inform!supporters!of!potential!future!donation!requests?!(5.3.2)!
 Has!the!fundraising!organisation!approved!the!materials!for!use!in!the!approach?!(5.3.1)!
 Does!the!activity!comply!with!data!protection!regulations?!(5.2)!
 Has!the!ownership!of!copyright!and!databases!been!agreed?!(8.0)!
 Is!all!personal!information!returned!to!the!project!manner!promptly!and!securely?!(7.0)!
 Has!a!process!for!administering!collected!information!been!agreed?!(7.0)!
 Is!there!an!agreed!process!for!addressing!questions!and!complaints?!(7.0)!
!

Page 185



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!2!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

!

1.0! The!Codes!of!Fundraising!Practice!Explained!
2.0! Face"to"Face!Activity!Code!Introduction!
3.0! Considering!Face"to"Face!Activity!
4.0!! Conduct!of!Fundraisers/Agents! !
5.0! Planning!a!Face"to"Face!Campaign!
6.0!! !Identification!and!Management!of!Operating!Locations!
7.0!! !After!the!Face"to"Face!Activity!has!Taken!Place!
8.0!! Key!Legal!Points!
9.0!! Appendices!

!

!

1.0!The!Codes!of!Fundraising!Practice!Explained!

!
The!Institute!of!Fundraising's!Codes!of!
Fundraising!Practice!are!structured! in!
order! to! highlight!what! is!mandatory!
at! law,!what!the!Institute!regards!as!a!
mandatory! requirement! for! its!
members!and!what!constitutes!advice!
on!best!practice.!
!
In!this!Code!a!phrase!where!the!word:!!
!
MUST! is! in! bold! indicates! a!
requirement!that!is!mandatory!at!law.!!
!
OUGHT! in! bold! indicates! a!
requirement! that! is! mandatory! for!
members! and! affiliated! organisations!
of!the!Institute.!
!
SHOULD! in!bold! indicates!a!course!of!
action! that! is! recommended! as! best!
practice.!
!
Organisations! engaged! in! fundraising!
SHOULD! join! the! Fundraising!
Standards! Board! and! SHOULD! follow!
their!complaints!procedure.!!
!
This! Code! of! Fundraising! Practice! is!
intended!to!address!fundraising!!

!
activity! throughout! the! UK.! Legal!
requirements! can! vary! between!
different! jurisdictions! (England! &!
Wales;!Northern!Ireland;!Scotland).!!
!
In! this!Code,!MUST*! in!bold! indicates!
a! legal! requirement! within! one!
jurisdiction!but!not!in!others.!!
!
The! Institute! recommends! that!
organisations! adhere! to! the! most!
rigorous! interpretation! of! the! law!
applicable!to!an!activity.!
!
Users!should!be!aware!that!this!Code!
addresses!the!law!as!it!stands!at!the!
date!of!publication!throughout!the!UK.!!
!
Reviews!of!the!law!relating!to!
fundraising!and!fundraising!activities,!
governance!and!charitable!status!are!
ongoing!in!Scotland,!England!and!
Wales.!!!
!
This!Code!will!be!revised!to!take!into!
account!any!developments!or!changes!
in!the!law!that!may!result!from!these!
initiatives.

!

Page 186



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!3!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

!
THEYMENT!OF!FUNDRAISERS!

2.0!Introduction!
!
Face"to"Face!activity!is!the!commonly!used!term!for!both!the!personal!solicitation!in!
public!places!of!committed!gifts!by!direct!debits!and/or!standing!orders,!and!for!all!
other! forms! of! personal! engagement! in! such! places! where! that! engagement! is!
designed!to!initiate!a!lasting!relationship!with!a!given!fundraising!organisation.!!
!
Face"to"Face!activity!can!provide!an!effective!means!by!which!members!of!the!public!
can! demonstrate! their! committed! support,!whether! financially! or! otherwise,! to! a!
wide! range! of! charities! and! other! voluntary! organisations.! Not! all! Face"to"Face!
activity!results!in!a!request!for!money;!it!may!simply!seek!to!record!belief!in!a!cause!
or!support!for!a!campaign.!A!request!for!money!may!follow!at!a!later!date.!!
!
Undertaken!within!the!parameters!of!this!Code!of!Fundraising!Practice,!Face"to"Face!
activity!can!enable!charities!and!other!voluntary!organisations!to!communicate!with!
existing! and! potential! supporters! in! an! effective! and! sensitive! manner! without!
causing!public!nuisance!or!disturbance.!
!
This!Code!of!Fundraising!Practice!concerns!itself!specifically!with!unsolicited!personal!
approaches! to! members! of! the! public! for! support! to! fundraising! organisations!
however!and!wherever!that!is!undertaken.!!!
!

! Due!to!the!necessarily!broad!definition!of! ‘Face"to"Face’,!some!Face"to"Face!
activity!may!apparently!or!actually!overlap!with!other!established!fundraising!
methods! (for! instance! lotteries,!Payroll!Giving!etc.),! therefore!care!SHOULD!
be! taken! when! planning! a! campaign! to! cross! reference! with! other! Codes!
which! may! be! applicable! such! as! the! House"to"House! Collections! Code! of!
Fundraising!Practice.!!

!

2.1!Definitions!

There!are!a!number!of!different!individuals!and!organisations!potentially!involved!in!
planning! and! managing! Face"to"Face! activities.! Each! will! have! different! roles! and!
responsibilities! in!the!appropriate!conduct!of!the!activity.!Therefore,! it! is! important!
at! the! outset! of! the! Code! of! Practice! to! have! clarity! of! the! definition! of! these!
individual!roles!and!organisations.!!
!

Face"to"Face!Activity!
This! describes! both! the! personal! solicitation! of! committed! gifts! by! direct! debits!
and/or!standing!orders!in!public!places!and!all!other!forms!of!personal!engagement!
in! such! places! designed! to! initiate! a! lasting! relationship!with! a! given! fundraising!
organisation.! For! the! purpose! of! this! Code,! it! does! not! include! pre"arranged!
meetings!such!as!with!potential!legators.!!
!

Page 187



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!4!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

! Care! SHOULD! be! taken!when! visiting! certain! places! such! as! businesses! or!
other! places! of! work! –! see! the! ‘House"to"House! Collections’! Code! of!
Fundraising!Practice.!!

!
Face"to"Face!Engagement!
This!specifically!describes!a!situation!whereby!a!personal!engagement! takes!place,!
initiated! in! order! to! begin! a! lasting! relationship! with! the! given! fundraising!
organisation.! Together! with! Face"to"Face! fundraising,! it! falls! within! ‘Face"to"Face!
activity’.!!
!
Face"to"Face!Fundraising!
This!specifically!describes!the!personal!solicitation!of!committed!gifts!by!direct!debits!
and/or!standing!orders! in!public!places.!Together!with!Face"to"Face!engagement,! it!
falls!within!‘Face"to"Face!activity’.!!
!
Fundraising!Organisation!! !
A! fundraising! organisation! is! a! charity! or! other! not"for"profit! making! body! that!
benefits!from!the!fundraising!activity.!
!
Organiser!
The!organiser!has!overall! responsibility! for! the!campaign.!An!organiser!might!be!a!
fundraising! organisation! or! professional! fundraising! organisation,! or! an! individual!
from!such!an!organisation.!!
!
Provider!!! !
This!is!an!organisation!that!implements!the!fundraising!activity.!!Sometimes!this!may!
also!be!the!fundraising!organisation! itself! (when! it!will!usually!be!referred!to!as!an!
“In"House”)!but!it!is!usually!a!professional!fundraising!organisation.!!!
!
Public!Place!

England!and!Wales!
!
This!is!any!place!where!members!of!the!public!generally!go!even!if!they!have!no!legal!
right!to!do!so!or!any!place!where!they!are!invited!to!go.!For!the!purpose!of!this!Code!
it! should!be! treated!as! including!such! spaces!as!station! forecourts,! shopping!malls!
and!supermarket!car!parks.!
!
It!does!not!include!any!place!to!which!members!of!the!public!are!permitted!to!have!
access!only!if!any!payment!or!ticket!required!as!a!condition!of!access!has!been!made!
or!purchased;!or!any!place! to!which!members!of! the!public!are!permitted! to!have!
access!only!by!virtue!of!permission!given!for!the!purposes!of!the!activity!in!question.!!
!
The! definition! of! ‘public! place’! in! England! and! Wales! is! due! to! change! with! the!
introduction! of! new! public! collection! regulations! under! the! Charities!Act! 2006.! In!
England!and!Wales!a!public!place!will!be:!

o any!highway;!and!

Page 188



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!5!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

o any! other! place! to! which,! at! any! time! when! the! appeal! is! made,!
members!of!the!public!have,!or!are!permitted!to!have,!access!(other!
than!on!payment!or!with!a!ticket!and!other!than!by!way!of!permission!
granted! for! the! specific! appeal)! and! which! either! is! not! within! a!
building,! or,! if!within! a! building,! is! an! area! to!which! the!public! are!
generally!admitted!within!any!station,!airport!or!shopping!precinct!or!
any!other!similar!place.!

Scotland!
Any! place! (whether! a! thoroughfare! or! not)! to!which! the! public! have! unrestricted!
access!and!includes:!

a) the!door!ways!or!entrances!of!premises!abutting!on!any!such!place;!and!
b) any!common!passage,!close,!court,!stair,!garden!or!yard!pertinent!to!any!

tenement!or!group!of!separately!owned!houses.!!
!
The!definition!of!public!place!will! change! in! Scotland!when! the!Public!Benevolent!
Collections!provisions!contained! in!the!Charities!and!Trustee! Investment! (Scotland)!
Act!2005!are!commenced.!
!

UK!
!

! Organisers!SHOULD!verify!whether!the!new!definition!and/or!regulations!are!
in!place.!!

!
2.2!Individual!Role!Descriptions!

!
This! Code! uses! the! following! definitions! for! individual! roles.! In! some! cases! an!
individual!may!have!more!than!one!role.!The!scale!and!form!of!Face"to"Face!activity!
that!a!fundraising!organisation!plans!to!conduct!will!determine!the!extent!to!which!
different!people!play!each!of!these!different!roles.!However:!
!

! the!key!tasks!OUGHT!to!be! identifiable!within!specific! individuals'!roles!and!
responsibilities.!

!
Agent!
A!person!who!enters! into!a!dialogue!with!a!member!of! the!public!with! the!aim!of!
engaging!them! in!a!cause!or!belief,!with!a!view!to! initiating!any! form!of! long!term!
relationship!other!than!an!immediate!financial!one!(see!‘Fundraiser’!below).!!
!
Fundraiser!
For! the!purpose!of! this!Code,! ‘fundraiser’! refers!only! to! those!people! that!make!a!
direct!solicitation!of!money!or!property.!!
!
Professional!Fundraiser!
See!definition!in!Section!8.!
!
Fundraiser/Agent!Manager!! !

Page 189



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!6!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

The!person!within!the!fundraising!organisation!who!has!responsibility!for!the!overall!
activity.! They! commission! the! activity,! agree! the! campaign! budget! and! monitor!
progress!against!budgets!and!objectives! including! the! stewardship!of!new,! regular!
donors!or!supporters!to!ensure!long!term!support.!!
!
Campaign!Manager!! !
The! person! within! the! fundraising! organisation! who! on! a! day"to"day! basis! is!
managing! the! activity,! e.g.! who! holds! information! on! site! usage,! responds! to!
enquiries/complaints.!!
!
Project!Manager!! !
The!person!within!the!Provider!who!has!day"to"day!responsibility!for!the!delivery!of!
the!activity,!e.g.!who!is!responsible!for!access!to!sites,!briefing!of!fundraisers/agents,!
responds!to!enquiries/complaints.!!
!
Team!Leader! !
The!person!within!the!Provider!or!the! fundraising!organisation!who!has! immediate!
and! on"site! supervision! of! the! activity! (e.g.! manages! the! team,! ensures! sites! are!
appropriately!and!safely!used,!ensures!appropriate!conduct!of! fundraisers/agents);!
or!the!person!within!the!Provider!or!the!fundraising!organisation!who!supervises!the!
activity!for!door–to"door!but!may!not!be!on!site.!!

! !

3.0!!Considering!Face"to"Face!Activity!

! Before! embarking! on! a! Face"to"Face! campaign,! fundraising! organisations!
SHOULD!consider!the!following:!!

!
o the!length!and!long"term!objectives!of!the!campaign;!!!
o what! internal! resources! can! the! organisation! devote! to! this! form! of!

fundraising?! In! order! to! be! effective,! Face"to"Face! activity! requires! an!
investment! of! time! and! resources! by! the! fundraising! organisation.! The!
activity!requires!a!campaign!manager!and,!depending!on!the!scale!of!the!
activity,!it!may!become!a!substantial!part!of!their!role;!!

o who!are! the! stakeholders!within! the! fundraising!organisation!who!need!
to! be! engaged! or! informed! about! this! activity?! It! can! be! high! profile,!
which! may! attract! media! attention.! The! stakeholders! may! include!
trustees,!local!volunteers,!service!providers,!other!fundraising!staff,!public!
relations!practitioners!and!'help"line'!and!general!reception!staff;!

o will!the!fundraising!organisation!conduct!the!Face"to"Face!activity!itself!or!
will! it!use!an!agency!to!conduct! it!on! its!behalf?! If!using!a!Provider,!the!
fundraising! organisation! SHOULD! refer! to! the! Institute! of! Fundraising’s!
Best!Practice!for!Fundraising!Contracts!Code!of!Fundraising!Practice;!and!

o the!impact!of!the!activity!on!members!of!the!public!and!other!legitimate!
activities!that!take!place!in!public!places.!!!

!
!

Page 190



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!7!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

!

4.0!Conduct!of!Fundraisers/Agents!
! !

4.1!Conduct!of!Approaches!!
!

! Fundraising!organisations!OUGHT:!
!

o to! undertake! Face"to"Face! activity! in! such! a! manner! that! neither! the!
fundraising!organisation!nor!the!provider!is!brought!into!disrepute;!and!

o to!never!deliberately! confuse,!mislead!or!obstruct! the! public! –! see! the!
Accountability!and!Transparency!Code!of!Fundraising!Practice.!

!

! In!conducting!Face"to"Face!activity!fundraising!organisations!SHOULD:!
!

o give!potential!donors!clear! information!about! the!cause!and! fundraising!
organisation!they!are!being!asked!to!support!and,!where!appropriate,!the!
need! for! funds! and! the! importance! of! the! long! term! nature! of! that!
support;!

o ensure! that! the! name! of! the! fundraising! organisation! is! prominently!
displayed!on!the!agents’/fundraisers’!person;!and!

o never!use!communication!mediums!(printed,!visual!or!verbal)!other!than!
those!agreed!previously!with!the!fundraising!organisation.!

!
All!of!the!above!apply!to!approaching!groups!of!people!as!well!as!individuals.!
!

5.0!Planning!a!Face"to"Face!Campaign!
!

5.1!General!
!

! As! with! other! street! activities! such! as! public! collections,! ultimately! the!
organiser!OUGHT!to!always!check!the!access!management!requirements!with!
the! relevant! local! authority(/ies)! beforehand! and! comply! with! those!
requirements!where!reasonable!and!applicable.!!
!

! Fundraising! organisations! and! providers! MUST! ensure! that! they! are!
compliant!with!the!law.!

!
5.2!Recruitment!and!Payment!of!Fundraisers/Agents!

!

! The! project! manager! of! the! activity! SHOULD! be! responsible! for! the!
recruitment,!training!and!adequate!supervision!of!all!fundraisers/agents.!!!
!

! To! ensure! public! trust! and! confidence! in! the! security! of! personal! data,!
fundraisers!handling!financial!information!and/or!sensitive!data!OUGHT!to!be!
strongly!scrutinised!to!ensure!their!suitability!for!such!important!tasks.!

Page 191



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!8!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

!
There! are! different! requirements! for! people! under! 18,! under! the! Working! Time!
Regulations.!
!

! The! project! manager! of! the! activity! OUGHT! to! ensure! that! the!
agents’/fundraisers’! recruitment! process! identifies! and! eliminates!potential!
recruits! with! a! criminal! record! indicating! unsuitability,! subject! to! Data!
Protection!regulations!and!Human!Rights!legislation.!!

!
In!practice,!a!declaration!on!application!forms!and!interview!will!suffice.!!
!

! Where!remunerated,!fundraisers/agents!MUST!be!legally!entitled!to!work! in!
the!United!Kingdom,!within!the!terms!of!their!work!status.!
!

! If! volunteers! are! used,! Providers! and! fundraising! organisations! OUGHT! to!
comply!with!the!Volunteer!Fundraising!Code!of!Fundraising!Practice.!
!

! The!project!manager!of!the!activity!OUGHT!to!be!clear!about!the!relationship!
between! the! Provider! and! the! fundraising! organisation! during! the!
recruitment!and!training!process,!if!the!Provider!and!fundraising!organisation!
are!different!organisations.!!
!

This! is! especially! important! in! the! context! of! “In"House”! operations! where! a!
fundraising! organisation! may! be! its! own! ‘Provider’.! In! certain! cases,!
agents/fundraisers! may! not! be! employed! by! the! fundraising! organisation! but!
through!an!agency!in!what!is!sometimes!called!an!“arm’s"length”!relationship.!!
!

! Fundraising!organisations!OUGHT! to!be!aware! that! the!perception! that! the!
agents/fundraisers! are! actually! working! for! the! fundraising! organisation!
rather! than! the! agency! can! raise! problems! in! terms! of! management! and!
maintenance!of!morale.!!
!

! The! project! manager! of! the! activity! SHOULD! ensure,! where! paid,! all!
fundraisers/agents!are!contracted!with!appropriate!contracts!in!place.!
!!

! These! SHOULD! include! a! clause! stipulating! compliance! with! this! Code! of!
Fundraising!Practice.!!!
!

! Then,! where! all! fundraisers/agents! are! employed! by! the! fundraising!
organisation,! the! organiser! MUST! be! responsible! for! ensuring! that! the!
fundraisers/agents! are! remunerated!within! any!minimum!wage! regulations!
that!are!applicable!and!work!within!hours!as!permitted!by!the!Working!Time!
Regulations.!!!!
!

The!Institute!of!Fundraising!does!not!recommend!the!payment!of!fundraisers/agents!
on!a!commission"only!basis!in!most!circumstances!but!recognises!there!is!a!range!of!

Page 192



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!9!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

different! ways! of! structuring! remuneration,! including! 'performance"related'!
methods.!!
!

! The! fundraising! organisation! OUGHT! to! be! satisfied! that! an! appropriate!
payment!structure!is!in!place!that!safeguards!the!income!it!will!receive!from!
the!fundraising!activity.!!

!
See!the!Payment!of!Fundraisers!Code!of!Fundraising!Practice!for!further!information.!
!

England!and!Wales!
!

! The! Institute! of! Fundraising! recognises! that! transparency! to! the! public! is!
paramount! (see! the! Accountability! and! Transparency! Code! of! Fundraising!
Practice)! and! notes! that! in! England! and!Wales! Professional! Fundraisers! as!
well! as!officers,!employees!and! trustees!of! a! charitable! institution! (if!paid)!
MUST*! comply! with! certain! transparency! requirements! set! out! in! the!
Charities!Act!1992.!!They!MUST*!make!a!statement!specifying:!

!
o the!institution!or!institutions!for!which!they!are!raising!funds;!!
o if!there!is!more!than!one!institution,!the!proportions!in!which!they!are!to!

benefit;!and!
o if! they! are! Professional! Fundraisers,! the! method! by! which! their!

remuneration! is! determined! and! the! “notifiable! amount”! of! that!
remuneration! (this! will! be! the! remuneration! of! the! professional!
fundraising! organisation! if! the! fundraiser! is! employed! by! such! an!
organisation);!or!!

o if!they!are!paid!officers,!employees!or!trustees!of!the!institution!acting!as!
collectors! in!a!public!charitable!collection,! the! fact! that! they!hold! those!
positions!and!that!they!are!receiving!remuneration!(where!applicable).!A!
public! charitable! collection! is! a! charitable! appeal!which! is!made! in! any!
public! place! or! by! means! of! visits! to! houses! or! business! premises! (or!
both).!A!charitable!appeal!is!an!appeal!to!members!of!the!public!for!them!
to! give!money! or! other! property! or! involves! offering! to! sell! or! supply!
goods!or!services!or!exposing!goods!for!sale.!For!these!purposes,!a!public!
place!is!defined!as!under!the!Charities!Act!2006!(see!definitions).!!

!
The!notifiable!amount! is! the!actual!amount! if!known!at! the! time!or! the!estimated!
amount! calculated! as! accurately! as!possible.! ! Further! information! and! guidance! is!
available!from!the!Office!of!the!Third!Sector!website.!!!
!

! This!guidance!may!be!subject!to!change!so!clarification!from!the!Office!of!the!
Third!Sector!and/or!professional!legal!advice!SHOULD!be!sought.!!
!

! Such!a!statement!MUST*!be!made!at!the!time!of!the!solicitation!and!so,! in!
practice,!before!a!donor!has!authorised!an!agreement!to!donate.!!

Page 193



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!10!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

!
Scotland!

!

! In!Scotland,!the!Charities!and!Benevolent!Fundraising!(Scotland)!Regulations!
2009! set! out! what! professional! and! benevolent! fundraisers!MUST*! state!
regarding!their!remuneration.!!

!
Further!information!about!the!detail!of!these!statements!is!available!in!Section!8.0.!!

!
Northern!Ireland!

!

In!Northern!Ireland,!the!new!Charity!Act!will!introduce!new!controls!on!professional!
fundraisers!and!commercial!participators,!similar!to!those!in!England!and!Wales.!
!

UK!
!

! Managers! of! fundraisers/agents! that! are! not! professional! fundraisers! (e.g.!
those! not! occupied! in! soliciting! “money! or! other! property”,! such! as! those!
involved! in!data!capture!or!other!engagement!strategies)!SHOULD!carefully!
consider!the!benefits!of!absolute!clarity!in!making!an!appropriate!statement!
if!they!are!paid!to!solicit!and/or!collect!information.!!
!

! There!is!a!growing!public!awareness!that!disclosures!will!be!given!and!careful!
thought! SHOULD! be! given! to! the! potential! effect! on! the! fundraising!
organisation’s!brand!of!a!failure!to!do!so,!even!where!not!legally!required.!!!
!

Further!information!about!the!sorts!of!statement!that!could!be!made!is!available!on!
the!Office!of!the!Third!Sector!website!(see!9.2).!!
!

5.3!General!Training!and!Professionalism!
!

! Fundraising! organisations! OUGHT! NOT! to! undertake! Face"to"Face! activity!
without! a! prior,! structured! training! and! briefing! programme! for! all!
fundraisers/agents.!

! Training!OUGHT!to!be!refreshed!and!appraised!at!regular!intervals.
!
! 5.3.1!Basic!Training!!
!

! Fundraising!organisations!OUGHT! to! ensure! that! all! fundraisers/agents! are!
properly!trained!before!engaging! in!any!personal!approaches.!Basic!training!
needs!to!specify!how!to!make!approaches!that!comply!with!the!law.!!

!

! Training! OUGHT! to! be! provided! in! person! by! an! authorised! and! suitable!
appointee! and! OUGHT! to! include! involvement! from! the! fundraising!

Page 194



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!11!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

organisation.!
!
It! is! good! practice! to! monitor,! benchmark! and! improve! such! training! at! regular!
intervals.!!
!

! Precise!content!of!training!sessions!will!vary.!!However,!as!a!minimum,!basic!
training!OUGHT!to!include:!

!

o an! awareness! of! the! Charities! Act! 1992,! the! Charitable! Institutions!
(FundRaising)! Regulations! 1994,! Charities! and! Trustee! Investment!
(Scotland)! Act! 2005! and! the! Charities! and! Benevolent! Fundraising!
(Scotland)!Regulations!2009;!

o the! importance!of!providing! clear!written,!or! verbal! information! to! the!
public!about!possible!follow"up!communications;!

o emphasis! on! the! charitable,! benevolent! or! philanthropic! nature! of! the!
solicitation;!

o emphasis!on!the!non"aggressive!nature!of!all!approaches;!
o the! importance! of! making! an! appropriate! and! legally! compliant!

solicitation! statement! (see! the!Office! of! the! Third! Sector’s! and!OSCR’s!
guidance!for!further!information);!

o the! importance!of!only!carrying!out! the!Face"to"Face!activity!within! the!
time! and! location! agreed! with! the! project! manager! and! any! relevant!
access!authority;!

o the!importance!of!visible!ID!badges!and!branding;!
o matters!of!personal!security;!
o the! importance! of! appropriate! positioning,! body! language! and! physical!

presence!at!the!activity!location;!
o procedures!to!avoid!obstruction,!congestion!and!nuisance!to!the!public;!
o procedures! to! ensure! that! potential! supporters! are! not! placed! under!

inappropriate!pressure!to!give!their!support!;!
o the! need! to! employ! all! best! efforts! not! to! approach! members! of! the!

public!under!the!age!of!18!years!for!the!solicitation!of!committed!gifts;!
o procedures! to!ensure! that!appropriate!common! sense!and!courtesy!are!

applied!when!considering!approaching!particular! individuals!such!as! the!
elderly,! differently"abled! etc.,! taking! into! consideration! their! possible!
personal!circumstances!(e.g.!anxiety,!communication!difficulties)!and!the!
physical! circumstances! of! the! interaction! (dark! or! noisy! environments!
etc.);!

o knowledge!and!understanding!of!Data!Protection!principles!governing!the!
collection!of!personal!data! from! supporters,!particularly! relating! to! the!
disclosure!of! 'Sensitive!Personal!Data'!by!a! supporter!e.g.! their!medical!
history.!See!the!Data!Protection!Code!of!Fundraising!Practice;!

o knowledge!and!procedures!of!the!complaints!procedure!associated!with!
the!activity!and!the!role!of!the!Fundraising!Standards!Board;!

o an!immediate!agreement!to!terminate!the!approach!in!a!polite!manner!at!
any!stage!during!the!course!of!the!approach,!when!asked!to!do!so;!

Page 195



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!12!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

o clarification! that! on"going! training! will! be! provided! to! all!
fundraisers/agents! together! with! an! agreed! programme! of! regular!
appraisal!and!briefing!updates.!

5.3.2!Briefing!for!Charity!Campaigns!
!

! Fundraising! organisations! OUGHT! to! brief! all! fundraisers/agents! properly!
before!they!engage!in!any!personal!approaches.!!

!

! The!fundraising!organisation!associated!with!the!proposed!approach!OUGHT!
to!approve!the!materials!for!use!in!the!approach.!!

!

The!type!of!briefing!will!vary!in!different!contexts.!!!
!

! However,! as! a!minimum! requirement,! the! project!manager! and! campaign!
manager! of! the! Face"to"Face! activity! OUGHT! to! ensure! that! briefing!
procedures!are!properly!documented! in!a!briefing!manual!agreed!with! the!
fundraising!organisation,!which!includes:!!

!
o the! name! and,! where! different,! the! name! and! contact! details! of! ! the!

fundraising! organisation(s)! that! will! benefit! from! the! approach! and!
contact!details!of!the!organisation(s)!making!the!approach;!

o an! explanation! of! the! objects! and/or! mission! of! the! fundraising!
organisation;!

o if!fundraising,!why!the!money!is!needed!(taking!care!as!to!whether!or!not!
such!a!statement!creates!restricted!funds);!

o information!about!clarity!of!approach!and!instruction!as!to!the!tone,!style!
and!content!of!the!approach;!

o details!of!all! support!and!administrative! literature! connected!with!each!
approach;!

o details! of! the! administrative! procedures! to! be! maintained! during! and!
following!the!Face"to"Face!approach;!

o an!explanation!of!how!supporters’!details!will!be!used!and!emphasis!that!
supporters!have! to!be! informed!of!how! their!details!will!be!used!at! the!
time!of!data!capture;!

o recognition! that! the! fundraiser/agent!will! not! disclose! any! information!
relating!to!the!fundraising!organisation!other!than!that!previously!agreed!
with!the!fundraising!organisation!and!contained!within!the!context!of!the!
briefing!given!immediately!prior!to!the!Face"to"Face!activity;!

o details!of! the!complaints!procedure!associated!with! the!activity!and! the!
role!of!the!Fundraising!Standards!Board,!where!appropriate;!and!

o details!of!the!key!contact!directly!responsible!for!the!Face"to"Face!activity!
within! the! fundraising! organisation! conducting! it! and/or! the! agency!
(which!is!usually!the!campaign!manager).!!

!
It! is! good! practice! for! the! fundraising! organisation’s! staff! to! provide! some! initial!

Page 196



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!13!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

training!and!refresher!training!at!regular!intervals!throughout!the!campaign.!!
!

! The! importance! of! the! longevity! of! any! gift! or! commitment!OUGHT! to! be!
stressed!to!all!fundraisers/agents.!!
!

! In! cases!where! the! primary! aim! of! the! Face"to"Face! activity! is! to! secure! a!
form! of! non"financial! commitment,! but! there! is! a! possibility! that! the!
fundraising! organisation! will! subsequently! ask! for! a! financial! commitment!
from!anyone!with!whom!a!relationship!has!been!established!(i.e.!‘engaged’),!
then!all!agents!MUST:!
!

o be!made!aware!of!this!fact!at!the!briefing!session;!and!
o during! the! initial! Face"to"Face! activity,! inform! the! individual! being!

engaged!of!the!possibility!of!a!subsequent!financial!commitment!request!
from!the!fundraising!organisation!in!the!future.!!

!

6.0 Identification!and!Management!of!Operating!
Locations!!

!
6.1.!Identifying!Appropriate!Sites!

!

Throughout! the! UK,! different! governing! bodies! have! statutory! and! non"statutory!
requirements.! In!most! instances,! the! local! authority!will!be! the! relevant! statutory!
body! governing! a! public! place! and! the! police! have! responsibility! for! public!
protection.! For! example,! in! Northern! Ireland! the! Northern! Ireland! Police! Service!
licenses!sites!and!the!Metropolitan!Police!Service!is!the!relevant!authority!in!its!area!
of!operation.!!
!

In!some!cases,!local!authorities!may!delegate!site!allocation!to!the!Public!Fundraising!
Regulatory!Association!(PFRA).!!!
!

! To! clarify! who! is! responsible! for! managing! the! site,! organisers!OUGHT! to!
contact!the!PFRA.!!

!
Organisers!may!then!be!directed!to!the!local!authority!or!the!police!if!the!PFRA!does!
not!have!responsibility!for!the!site!in!question.!!

!

! If!the!PFRA!has!responsibility!for!the!sites!in!question,!organisers!of!Face"to"
Face!activity!SHOULD!refer!to!the!PFRA’s!site!allocation!booking!system.!!
!

! Fundraising!organisations!and!professional!fundraising!organisations!engaged!
in! Face"to"Face! activity! SHOULD! consider! becoming!members! of! the! PFRA!
(see!9.1).!

!

! No!Face"to"Face!activity!OUGHT!to!be!carried!out!unless!the!project!manager!

Page 197



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!14!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

is!satisfied! that!access! for! the!approaches!has!been!agreed!by! the! relevant!
access!authority/ies!(local!authority,!town!centre!manager!or!the!police).!!!
!

! This!SHOULD!include!formal!approval!from!all!appropriate!access!authorities!
which!in!most!cases!will!be!the!local!authority!and!the!police.!!

!
6.2!Accessing!Sites!in!Streets!and!Places!of!General!Public!Access!

!

! Where!possible,!a!Site!Agreement!OUGHT!to!be! in!place!between!the!Face"
to"Face!activity!organisers!and!relevant!access!authority.!!

!
This! seeks! to! establish! a! code! of! conduct! that! allows! the! agents! to! approach!
members!of!the!public!without!inconveniencing!them.!!!
!

! Organisers!SHOULD!contact!the!PFRA!and!obtain!details!of!any!relevant!Site!
Agreement.!!
!

! Where!no!PFRA!Site!Agreement!exists,!or!for!non"PFRA!members,!organisers!
SHOULD! contact! the! relevant! access! authority! directly! and! follow! the!
guidance!below.!!

!

! A!Site!Agreement!SHOULD!state:!
!

o the! named! identity,! title! and! authority! of! a! key! contact! within! the!
appropriate! access! authority! and,! where! possible,! to! have! written!
notification!from!them;!

o the!location!of!sites!proposed!to!be!used!for!the!fundraising!activity;!
o dates!and!times!when!approaches!will!be!made;!
o the!types!of!solicitation!that!will!be!made! (for!direct!debits!or! for!other!

forms!of!engagement);!
o the!name!and!contact!details!of!the!organisation!undertaking!the!activity;!
o the! name! and! contact! details! of! the! project! manager! within! the!

organisation;!and!
o the!name!and!contact!details!of! the! fundraising!organisation(s)! that!will!

benefit!from!the!activity.!!
!

! The! project! manager! SHOULD! maintain! a! written! record! of! all! relevant!
communications!including!the!date,!time,!name,!authority!and!contact!details!
of!correspondent(s)!together!with!a!note!of!the!outcome!of!each!contact.!

!

! The! project! manager! SHOULD! confirm! the! agreement! with! the! relevant!
contact,! in! writing,! at! the! earliest! opportunity! and! before! the!
commencement!of!any!Face"to"Face!activity.!

!

! The! project! manager! SHOULD! ascertain! whether! the! local! police! require!

Page 198



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!15!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

notification!of!Face"to"Face!activity!and!abide!by!this!policy,!if!requested.!!
!

6.3!Accessing!Appropriate!Operating!Sites!for!House"to"House!Activity!
!

! The! project! manager! of! the! Face"to"Face! activity! MUST! comply! with!
appropriate!and!relevant!legislation.!!

!
In! England! and! Wales,! unless! the! fundraising! organisation! holds! a! National!
Exemption!Order,!a!local!authority!licence!is!required!if!the!fundraising!organisation!
or! agency! is! soliciting! a! commitment! to!donate! at! the! point! of! interaction.! If! the!
initial!visitation! is!only! to!deposit!promotional! literature!and! secure!permission! to!
return! at! a! later! date! to! effect! a! solicitation,! then! a! licence! is! not! required.! ! In!
Scotland,! a! licence! from! the! local! authority! is! not! needed! for! Face"to"Face!
fundraising! although! this! may! change! with! the! introduction! of! the! new! public!
benevolent!fundraising!regulations.!!
!

! Until! then,! local! authorities! OUGHT! to! be! informed! of! any! Face"to"Face!
activity!being!carried!out!in!the!area.!!

!

! Wherever! possible,! project! managers! SHOULD! ensure! that! only! one!
unsolicited!approach!is!made!to!a!particular!dwelling!on!behalf!of!a!particular!
fundraising!organisation!in!a!six!month!period.!!
!

! Fundraisers!wishing! to! carry!out! cold! calling! in!a!Cold!Calling!Control! Zone!
(CCCZ)!OUGHT!first!to!establish!whether!fundraising!is!permitted!in!the!zone.!!
!

! If!it!is!not!then!they!SHOULD!seek!further!information!from!the!local!Trading!
Standards! Service! so! that! they! can! assess! whether! the! zone! has! been!
established! in!accordance!with! the! spirit!of! the!Trading!Standards! Institute!
guidance!on!CCCZs!and!in!particular!whether:!

!
o a!proportionate!approach!has!been!taken!to!implementing!measures!to!

benefit!consumers;!
o the!creation!of!the!zone!complies!with!the!requirement!that!there!be!

intervention!only!where!there!is!a!clear!case!for!protection!of!consumers;!
and!

o the!zone!is!tightly!targeted,!has!the!agreement!of!local!people!and!is!
based!on!local!need!and!the!needs!of!vulnerable!communities!

!

! If!a!zone!has!been!created!legitimately,!following!the!Trading!Standards!
Institute’s!guidance,!fundraisers!OUGHT!NOT!to!cold!call.!!

!

! If!a!zone!does!not!meet!the!requirements!above!or!fundraisers!are!unable!to!
obtain!the!information,!the!fundraisers!SHOULD!assess!the!risks!of!carrying!
out!cold!calling!within!the!zone.!In!particular,!they!SHOULD!consider:!

Page 199



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!16!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

!
o the!reputational!risk!arising!from!flouting!local!wishes.!There!may!be!

adverse!press!comment!as!well!as!animosity!from!residents!and!
complaints!to!the!local!Trading!Standards!Service!and!the!Fundraising!
Standards!Board;!

o many!residents!may!believe!that!the!zone!is!enforceable!and!has!legal!
basis;!

o whether!and!how!approaches!should!be!made!to!houses!which!display!a!
‘no!cold!callers’!sticker;!

o how!they!will!justify!the!fundraising!organisation’s!position;!and!
o whether!the!benefit!to!the!fundraising!organisation!is!likely!to!outweigh!

the!detriment!
!

! Fundraisers!SHOULD!ensure!that!their!organisation’s!board!or!those!with!the!
appropriate!delegated!authority!have!approved!a!policy!on!this!matter!before!
carrying!out!cold!calling!in!a!CCCZ.!

!
See!also!the!House"to"House!Collections!Code!of!Fundraising!Practice.!
!

7.0 After!the!Face"to"Face!Activity!has!Taken!
Place!

!

! All!personal! information!MUST!be! collated! and! returned! to! the!project!
manager! in! a!prompt! and! secure!manner! as! agreed!by! the! fundraising!
organisation!and!in!compliance!with!Data!Protection!law.!!

!

! The!project!manager!OUGHT! to!agree!with! the! fundraising!organisation!
an! appropriate! mechanism! for! the! administration! of! collected!
information! and! the! apportionment! of! responsibilities! associated! with!
them.!

!

! The!project!manager!OUGHT! to!agree!with! the! fundraising!organisation!
an! appropriate! mechanism! for! addressing! questions! and! complaints!
associated! with! all! aspects! of! the! activity,! and! this! OUGHT! to! be!
maintained!in!writing.!

!

! The! fundraising! organisation! OUGHT! to! transmit! promptly! complaints!
that!it!receives!connected!with!the!activity!undertaken!in!its!name!to!the!
project!manager!and!vice!versa.!

!

8.0 Key!Legal!Points!
!

! Organisers!MUST!check!whether!the!new!laws!are!in!force!before!
proceeding!with!the!activity.!

Page 200



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!17!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

!
England!and!Wales!

!
This!revision!of!the!Code!is!based!on!the!current!law!in!the!UK!in!May!2008.!
Significant!changes!will!occur!when!the!Public!Collections!provisions!of!the!Charities!
Act!2006!are!implemented,!which!is!not!expected!before!2010.!!
!

! Where! the! fundraising! activity! is! undertaken! by! professional! fundraising!
organisations! on! behalf! of! fundraising! organisations,! the! professional!
fundraising! organisation! MUST*! ensure! that! it! complies! in! full! with! the!
requirements!of!Part!II!of!the!Charities!Act!1992.!See!Section!5.2!for!further!
information!on!the!fundraising!statement.!!
!

! There! MUST*! be! a! contract! between! the! professional! fundraising!
organisation!and!the!fundraising!organisation.!!

!
In! England! and! Wales,! a! professional! fundraiser! is! any! person! (apart! from! the!
charitable! institution!or!a!company!connected!with!such!an! institution)!who!carries!
on!a!fundraising!business!for!gain!which!is!wholly!or!primarily!engaged!in!soliciting!or!
otherwise! procuring! money! or! other! property! for! charitable,! philanthropic! or!
benevolent!purposes;!or!any!other!person!who!solicits! for! reward!money!or!other!
property!apart!from:!

!
o any!charitable!institution!or!connected!company;!
o any! officer,! employee! or! trustee! of! a! charity! or! connected! company;!

acting! in!his! capacity! as! such.! !Note,!however,! that! although! excluded!
from!the!definition,!these!people!are!now!required!to!make!statements!
as!if!they!were!professional!fundraisers;!

o any!charity!trustee;!
o any!public!charitable!collector!–!other!than!promoters;!
o people!who!solicit!funds!on!TV!or!radio;!or!
o any!commercial!participator.!!

!
In!addition,!the!definition!of!a!professional!fundraiser!in!England!and!Wales!does!not!
apply!to!a!fundraiser!who!does!not!carry!on!a!fundraising!business!if!the!fundraiser!
receives! £1,000! or! less! by! way! of! remuneration! in! connection! with! a! particular!
venture!or!£10!per!day!or!£1,000!or!less!per!year.!!
!

Scotland!
!
Scottish!law!also!requires!there!to!be!a!written!agreement!between!the!fundraising!
organisation!and!professional!fundraiser.!!
!

! Fundraising!organisations!MUST*!make!sure! they!comply!with! the! law!as! it!
stands! at! the! time! of! the! campaign.! ! The! Office! of! the! Scottish! Charity!
Regulator!(OSCR)!can!provide!more!information.!!The!Institute!of!Fundraising!

Page 201



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!18!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

also!has!a!Code!of!Fundraising!Practice!for!fundraising!in!Scotland!which!will!
be!updated!when!appropriate.!

!

! Professional! fundraisers! (or! their!employees)!as!well!as!officers,!employees!
and!trustees!of!a!charitable!institution!MUST*!make!a!statement!specifying:!
!
o the!institution!or!institutions!for!which!they!are!raising!funds!and!if!there!

is!more!than!institution,!the!proportions!in!which!they!are!to!benefit;!or!
o if! they! are! raising! funds! for! general! charitable,! benevolent! and!

philanthropic!purposes! (rather! than!a!particular!body),!an! indication!of!
this! fact! and! the! details! of! how! the! distribution! of! funds! will! be!
determined;!and:!

o if! they! are! professional! fundraisers! (or! their! employees),! details! of!
whether! they! are! to! receive! remuneration! (if! the! solicitation! is! being!
conducted! orally,! the! professional! fundraisers! (or! their! employees)!
MUST*! also! indicate! that! the! information! contained! within! the!
statements!is!also!available!in!writing);!and!

o if!they!are!paid!officers,!employees!or!trustees!of!the!institution,!the!fact!
that!they!are!receiving!remuneration.!!

!
Northern!Ireland!

!
Northern! Ireland!presently!has!no!equivalent!regulation!of!professional! fundraisers!
or!commercial!participators!nor!requirement!for!written!agreements.!However,!the!
new! Charity! Act! will! introduce! new! controls! on! professional! fundraisers! and!
commercial!participators!which!will! include!a!requirement!for!a!written!agreement,!
clarification!of!key!information!relating!to!the!collection!and!its!purposes.!!The!aim!is!
to! increase!accountability!and!provide!greater! transparency! for!donors!and!will!be!
similar!to!the!Regulations!in!England!and!Wales!and!Scotland.!!
!

UK!
!

! For!further!information,!see!the!Best!Practice!for!Fundraising!Contracts!Code!
of!Fundraising!Practice.!

!

! All!activity!MUST!conform!with!Data!Protection!law.!See!the!Data!Protection!
Code!of!Fundraising!Practice.!

!

! The!fundraising!organisation!MUST!seek!to!clarify!the!ownership!of!copyright!
with!respect!to!all!materials!and!databases!connected!with!the!activity,!prior!
to!instigating!that!activity.!

!

! The!Provider!of!the!activity!SHOULD!be!mindful!of!its!potential!liabilities!with!
respect!to!fundraisers/agents!employed!by! it!or!by!others!who!are!engaged!
in!the!Face"to"Face!activity!on!its!behalf.!
!

Page 202



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!19!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

!
!
!

!

9.0 Appendices!
!

9.1 The!Role!of!the!PFRA!
!
The! Public! Fundraising! Regulatory! Association! (PFRA)! is! a!UK"wide! self"regulatory!
body! for!organisations! involved! in! Face"to"Face! activity! in!public! places,! (whether!
they!be!charities!commissioning! the!activities! (“Users”)!or!Professional!Fundraising!
Organisations! (PFOs)! providing! appropriate! services! (“Providers”).! It! exists! to!
promote!best!practice!in!the!execution!of!Face"to"Face.!!
!

In!addition!it!seeks,!where!permitted!by!law!or!local!authority!agreement,!to!allocate!
effective! operating! sites! and! opportunities! among! its! members! on! an! equitable!
basis.! It!also!operates!an!‘overlap!avoidance’!scheme!for!door"to"door!practitioners!
(those! involving! an! ongoing! commitment,! rather! than! traditional! house"to"house!
collections).!!!

9.2 Useful!Contacts!
!

! Charity!Commission!
www.charity"commission.gov.uk!

! Fundraising!Standards!Board!!
www.frsb.org.uk!

! Institute!of!Fundraising!!
www.institute"of"fundraising.org.uk!

! Office!of!Fair!Trading!!
www.oft.gov.uk!

! Office!of!the!Scottish!Charity!Register!!
www.oscr.org.uk!

! Office!of!the!Third!Sector!!
www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/third_sector!

! PFRA!!
www.pfra.org.uk!!

! Trading!Standards!Institute!!
www.tradingstandards.gov.uk!

! Working!Time!Regulations!
www.berr.gov.uk

9.3!Working!Party!
!

! Milly!Ahmed,!Gift!
! Mick!Aldridge,!PFRA!

Page 203



The!Institute!of!Fundraising!is!a!charity!registered!in!England!and!Wales!(No!1079573)!and!Scotland!(No!
SC038971),!and!a!company!limited!by!guarantee!(No!3870883).!VAT!registration!number!547!8930!96.!!
!
!

Page!20!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

FA
CE

"T
O
"F
A
CE

!A
CT

IV
IT
Y!

! Chris!Ashworth,!Oxfam!

! Alice!Carter,!British!Red!Cross!
! Morag!Flemming,!Quarriers!
! Nick!Henry,!Concern!Worldwide!
! Caroline!Howe,!Institute!of!Fundraising!
! Ben!McNaught,!Shelter!
! Megan!Pacey,!Institute!of!Fundraising!
! Sharon!Rasmussen,!Dialogue!Direct!
! Judith!Rich!OBE!(Chair)!
! Rupert!Tappin,!Future!Fundraising!
! Claire!Thomas,!VSO!
! Kathryn!Toner,!Cancer!Research!UK!

!
!

Institute!of!Fundraising!Code!Working!Parties!provide!advice!and!make!
recommendations!to!the!Institute’s!Standards!Committee!in!the!process!of!Code!

development.!
!

This!Code!was!updated!in!December!2009.!!

Page 204



Appendix 1 – Abridged Code of Practice  
1) We always tell potential donors clearly that we are paid to speak with them, and 

that we are not volunteers - if this is the case - and we explain the basis on which 
we are paid. 

 
2) We always carry and display ID so that any potential donor can verify who we 

are, whom we are working for and on whose behalf we are fundraising. 
 
3) We always represent our charity or Not for Profit Organisation (NPO) at the time, 

in the place, and in the manner that has been previously agreed both with the 
charity / NPO and with the relevant site owner or Local Authority, and as directed 
by our team leader or other responsible agency personnel. 

 
4) We always explain to a donor how the Charity or NPO will communicate with 

them after subscribing, and if they are likely to receive a follow up phone call we 
inform them of this. 

 
5) We always ensure that forms with personal details provided by donors are 

handled at all stages in a secure manner. 
 
6) We always end a conversation in a polite and respectful manner as soon as we 

are asked to. 
 
7) We always ensure, wherever possible, that if a member of the public has a 

complaint, a full and accurate record of the complaint and the complainant's 
contact details are taken so that action can be taken promptly and appropriately.  
We will also offer the complainant contact details for a person in authority who 
can respond to their concerns. 

 
8) We never say or do anything that could pressurise or harass people and we do 

not use manipulative techniques. 
 
9) We never confuse or mislead the public and we never say, do or display anything 

for which we have not been given permission by the charity or NPO 
 
10) We never behave whilst on duty in any way that might bring the charity / NPO or 

our employer into disrepute. 
 

Page 205



Page 206
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

Licensing of Rickshaws in Cheltenham Page 1 of 9 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 19 June 2012 

Licensing of Rickshaws in Cheltenham 
 

Accountable member Cabinet Member Housing and Safety - Councillor Peter Jeffries 
Accountable officer Director of Wellbeing & Culture – Sonia Phillips 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary The Council has been approached with a request to licence rickshaws in 

the borough. A rickshaw is potentially licensable as a Hackney Carriage. 
The Council’s current Licensing Policy, Guidance and Conditions for Private 
Hire and Taxis impose restrictions on the licensing of Hackney Carriages. A 
rickshaw would not meet these criteria. 
Cabinet is asked to consider whether in principle it agrees to the potential 
licensing of these types of vehicles and their drivers and, if so, to approve a 
draft policy, procedure and conditions for consultation. 

Recommendations 1. That Cabinet approve in principle the licensing of these types of 
vehicles and their drivers. 

2. Subject to recommendation 1 above, approve the draft policy for 
consultation at Appendix 2. 

3. That subject to recommendation 1 that the approval in principle of 
the licensing of these types of vehicles and their drivers be 
subject to an initial trial period, if Members consider this to be 
necessary. 

 
Financial implications There are no financial implications arising from this report. The number of 

additional licences issued in the first year is not expected to have a 
significant effect on existing budgets. 
Contact officer: Sarah Didcote, sarah.didcote@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 26 4125 

Agenda Item 11
Page 207



 

   

Licensing of Rickshaws in Cheltenham Page 2 of 9 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

Legal implications The legal implications are contained in the body of the report. If Cabinet 
approves in principle the licensing of these types of vehicles and their 
drivers an application would have to be submitted to the Licensing 
Department. Each application will then have to be considered on its own 
merits. 
Contact officer: Sarah Farooqi, sarah.farooqi@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 
01684  272693 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no HR implications arising from this report. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 26 4355 

Key risks As outlined in Appendix 1 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Carbon emissions are reduced and Cheltenham is able to adapt to the 
impacts of climate change 
Cheltenham has improved access and travel options 
Unemployed people are able to access employment and training 
Attract more visitors and investors to Cheltenham  

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

Rickshaws offer an environmentally friendly alternative form of public 
transport 

Page 208



 

   

Licensing of Rickshaws in Cheltenham Page 3 of 9 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

1. Background 
1.1 Rickshaws (sometimes referred to as pedicabs) are pedal-powered cycles (typically with three or 

four wheels) used for the purpose of carrying fare paying passengers. Within this country they are 
a relatively new form of public transport and prominently feature in the London street scene. 
Outside London such vehicles are classified as hackney carriages (taxis) and are licensed as 
such. 

1.2 Within the borough, rickshaws have never been licensed by the Council. 
2. Legislative Framework 
2.1 The Council has the discretion under the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and the Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 to licence rickshaws as hackney carriages.  
The power to licence rickshaws as hackney carriages has been subject to some debate but the 
position was clarified in the Court of Appeal (R v Cambridge City Council ex parte Lane – 13 July 
1998).  

2.2 Section 38 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 explains the definition of a hackney carriage as 
being “Every wheeled carriage, whatever may be its form or construction, used in standing or 
plying for hire in any street within the prescribed distance”. 

2.3 Furthermore the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 permits the Council to 
impose conditions on the grant of a hackney carriage vehicle licence.  

3. Policy Implications  
3.1 The Council has a strict policy regarding the type and specification of vehicles, which may be 

licensed as hackney carriage vehicles.  
3.2 Rickshaws would not meet this criterion. The Council can depart from its adopted policies if it 

considers there to be strong reasons for doing so. It is therefore possible for a rickshaw to be 
licensed. 

3.3 As with Hackney Carriages, to ensure basic standards of fitness, certain requirements and 
conditions may need to be applied to any licence. A draft policy has been drawn up for 
consideration by Members. This policy is attached at Appendix 2.   

4. Issues to Consider 
4.1 The licensing of rickshaws in the borough would present a range of new and relevant issues, both 

negative and positive, for the Council to consider having no experience of such a service 
previously.   

4.2 Positive Considerations 
4.2.1 Rickshaws offer an alternative and environmentally friendly form of public transport very much in 

keeping with the Council’s priority of reducing carbon emissions in the borough. 
4.2.2 Operated on certain routes rickshaws may attract tourists wishing to use such a novel form of 

transport.  Promoting Cheltenham as a tourist destination is also a Council priority and rickshaws 
could promote that priority. 

4.2.3 At certain times getting from one point to another in a rickshaw may well be quicker than in a car, 
especially during the busy summer season hour.  Furthermore, taxi’s in town are at times 
reluctant to accept short fares (for example from the Promenade to Montpellier) and rickshaws 

Page 209



 

   

Licensing of Rickshaws in Cheltenham Page 4 of 9 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

may offer a pragmatic solution to this problem. 
4.2.4 Rickshaws are unlikely to compete with existing licensed hackney carriages.  The majority of their 

journeys will be for short distances and within a defined area of operation. 
4.2.5 The licensing of rickshaws could help to enhance the Council’s priority of reducing 

unemployment, by creating local jobs and providing another avenue for local businesses to 
advertise. 

4.3 Negative Considerations   
4.3.1 Fare Charges - The Council sets maximum Hackney Carriage fares and has a policy that all 

Hackney Carriage vehicles are fitted with taximeters.   
Theoretically it is possible to fit a meter on a rickshaw, however this is considered impractical, as 
it would require a battery and waterproof enclosure, be expensive and inappropriate. Furthermore 
battery failure or loss of charge would require regular re-setting of the calendar control system.   
Finally, a rickshaw is unlikely to ever go fast enough to allow charging by distance. 
Members will note however that an alternative solution has been offered in draft policy. 

4.3.2 Fare Refusal - A hackney carriage driver cannot refuse to take a fare within the district unless he 
has a reasonable excuse. If the driver is tired, or the distance considered too far, then there is the 
possibility that prospective passengers may not see this as a reasonable excuse.  The Council 
will be obliged to investigate any complaints in this regard and take the appropriate action. 
To alleviate the potential problem of drivers growing tired, it is proposed in the draft policy that the 
area of operation of rickshaws be limited. 

4.3.3 Accessibility - The Council’s current policy restricts the licensing of new hackney carriages to 
vehicles that are fully accessible by people with disability. Clearly rickshaws are not constructed 
to be wheelchair accessible neither would it be practical for them to be so.  This will not enhance 
the Council’s ability to offer more choices for people with disabilities in relation to public transport 
but neither would it detract as the current options available will be unaffected by any decision in 
relation to this report.   

4.3.4 Also relevant to the issue of wheelchair accessibility and compliance with equalities legislation. 
Under the Government’s current proposals at some point between 2010 and 2020 all hackney 
carriage vehicles in the borough must be wheelchair accessible. At this stage rickshaws do not 
appear to be exempt from this legislation.  However, if the requirement to have a 100% 
wheelchair accessible fleet comes into force, the Council will be required to review its licensing 
policy in relation to rickshaws to comply with any new statutory regulations. 

4.3.5 Taxi Ranks - Due to the town centre’s layout and existing traffic management and flow 
arrangements, there would be insufficient highways infrastructure in place at present to 
accommodate multiple ranks for rickshaws.  Although by consultation and changes to existing 
arrangements it may be possible to overcome the issue in the medium/long term. 
Furthermore, the Council is permitted to control the number of hackney carriage vehicles, which 
use a particular taxi rank. However the legislation does not specifically indicate that the Council 
may appoint taxi ranks for specific types of hackney carriage vehicles. This may create difficulties 
if the Council attempt to appoint taxis ranks exclusively for the use of rickshaws. Any 
amendments to current taxi ranks or the introduction of a new rank is subject to statutory 
advertising and a period of time must be allowed for objections. 

4.3.6 Safety – Rickshaws provide limited protection to passengers and driver. All makes/models of 

Page 210



 

   

Licensing of Rickshaws in Cheltenham Page 5 of 9 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

motor vehicles normally undergo rigorous testing regimes and receive European approval before 
they are approved for use as a motor vehicle. Officers are not aware of any formal recognised 
safety standard for specifically rickshaws and it is a concern that the level of impact protection is 
negligible. 

4.3.7 On the point of safety, Members must bear in mind that the ultimate aim of the licensing regime is 
public protection and safety and Members must be satisfied that public protection is not 
compromised by the introduction of such a licensing scheme. 

4.3.8 Traffic Flow and Management - The Council recognise that rickshaws can present unique 
challenges with regards to traffic flow, highway access, obstruction and safety.   
This is particularly relevant in Cheltenham town centre where: 
a) a number of one way systems are in operation, 
b) a significant section of the town centre being pedestrainised with limited vehicular access, and  
c) on street parking combined with bus stops narrow the width of the road which can cause 
obstruction and difficulties with traffic flow. 

4.3.8 In light of the above, Members may consider it appropriate to initially agree a trial period for the 
new licensing scheme. 

5. Draft Policy – Proposals 
5.1 Members are asked to also approve the draft policy for consultation attached at Appendix 2.   
5.2 Although all the proposals are contained in the draft document, Member’s attention is drawn in 

particular to the proposals below; 
5.2.1 A requirement for drivers to provide evidence of having achieved Level 3 of The National 

Standards for Cycle Training using a rickshaw and must be able to provide certified documentary 
evidence of this achievement. 

 
5.2.2 Level 3 Competence for all cycling trips - This level trains drivers to make journeys in a variety of 

traffic conditions competently, confidently and consistently. Cyclists reaching the Level 3 standard 
will be able to deal with all types of road conditions and more complex situations. The course 
covers dealing with hazards, making 'on-the-move' risk assessments and planning routes for 
safer cycling. 

 
5.2.3 The Council considers it appropriate to only licence purpose built tricycle rickshaws fitted with at 

least 2 passenger seats and of a design, which has the driver in the front or forward position and 
the passengers seated to the rear. 

 
5.2.4 It is not considered practical to licence mechanically propelled (to whatever extent) rickshaws in 

town.  This is due to complication relating to parking, access and traffic flow.  
 
5.2.5 With regards to fares, it is considered that the most simple and effective method of regulating the 

fares for rickshaws would be to set a single maximum fare for each half hour or part thereof for 
each hiring. 

 
5.2.6 This would introduce a fare structure different from the Council’s current adopted fares for 

Hackney Carriage.  The Council can exercise discretion to adopt such a fare structure subject to it 
following the statutory procedure for adopting the fare structure.  There will be a financial 
implication for doing so as the proposed fees will have to be approved, advertised and adopted 
but the cost will be recouped through licence fees.   

Page 211



 

   

Licensing of Rickshaws in Cheltenham Page 6 of 9 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

 
5.2.7 For the reasons stipulated in the policy, it is proposed that the area of operation for licensed 

rickshaws be limited to the core commercial area of the town and Evesham Road up to Walnut 
Close for access to Pittville Park.  A copy of the plan outlining the core commercial area is 
attached at Appendix 3. 

 
5.2.8 Driver Code of Conduct for in respect of rickshaws is attached at Appendix A of the draft policy. 
 
5.2.9 Conditions attached the grant of a rickshaw hackney carriage licence is attached at Appendix B 

of the draft policy. 
 
5.2.10 A copy of the “certificate of fitness compliance sheet” referred to in the draft policy is attached at 

Appendix 4. 
 
5.3 It is not proposed in the draft policy that rickshaw drivers be required, initially, to pass a 

knowledge test.  The current knowledge test is not suitable for rickshaw drivers, largely due to the 
fact that they will be restricted to operate within a limited area and will be subject to different 
licence conditions.   

5.4 However, if Members decide to approve the scheme subject to a successful trial, it will become 
necessary for the Council to introduce a special knowledge test.  Alternatively, if Members 
consider a trial period to be unnecessary the scheme can be approved subject to the creation of a 
specific knowledge test. 

5.5 Furthermore, in the event where Members may not wish to extend the scheme, it would be 
considered unreasonable to require drivers to complete a recognised NVQ qualification. This is 
largely due to the length of time it would take to obtain the NVQ and the possible financial burden 
on drivers to do so.  However the requirement to obtain a NVQ could be imposed and applied 
retrospectively. 

5.6 The vehicle and driver licences issued in respect of rickshaw hackney carriages will have effect in 
respect of rickshaws only and will not be transferable to be used for motor vehicles.   
Licence Fees 

5.7 It is proposed that the following fees apply; 
 
5.7.1 Driver Licence – Adopt the current fee for taxi driver’s which is currently £90 for a one year 

licence or £215 for a three year licence.  The Council is only entitled to charge for the cost of 
issuing a driver’s licence and the proposed application procedure for rickshaw drivers will not 
differ from the current procedure for licensing other taxi drivers and so the cost should remain the 
same. 

5.7.2 Vehicle Licences – The Council is entitled to charge for enforcement, inspection and other costs 
associated with the issue of a vehicle licence but always on a cost neutral basis.  It is not 
proposed that the application and ongoing admin procedures for rickshaw vehicles will 
substantially differ from the current procedure for licensing other taxi vehicles and so the cost 
should remain the same which is currently £200 which includes the cost of the licence plate. 

6. Consultation 
6.1 If Members are minded to approve the draft policy, it will be necessary to consult with a number of 

key stakeholders. 
6.2 Formal consultation will be undertaken with the stakeholders to gain a wider view on the 

proposals in particular with reference to the impact, both positive and negative, licensing 

Page 212



 

   

Licensing of Rickshaws in Cheltenham Page 7 of 9 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

rickshaws will have.  These stakeholders are: 
• Gloucestershire Highway 
• Gloucestershire Constabulary 
• Integrated Transport 
• Town Centre Manager  
• Hackney Carriage Trade 
• Licensing Committee  

6.3 It is not considered necessary to consult for the normal 12 weeks on this occasion.  It is proposed 
that the consultation will run for 4 weeks. 

6.4 A further report will be submitted to Cabinet following the consultation period to consider the 
outcome of the consultation. 

6.5 Final adoption of the draft policy will be a Full Council function. 
7. Equality Impact Assessment  
7.1 There is a requirement on the Council to consider equalities as part of its decision making 

process and the effect decisions will have on different groups in the community. 
7.2 To this end, the Council currently has a policy in place to restrict the issue of new hackney 

carriage licences to vehicles that are fully accessible by people with disability.  
7.3 The Council, in deciding to licence rickshaws, will deviate from this policy since rickshaws are not, 

for example, constructed to be wheelchair accessible neither would it be practical for them to be 
so.   

7.4 If Members are to approve the licensing of rickshaws, clearly then people with disabilities will be 
unable to use this form of public transport.  Nevertheless, it is not considered that this will 
adversely impact on people with disability’s access to public transport mainly because the current 
public transport options available for this group of people will not be affected by such a decision. 

8. Reasons for recommendations 
8.1 To seek Member agreement to issue licences in respect of rickshaws. 

9. Alternative options considered 
9.1 Members can decide that the licensing of rickshaws is not something that it considers appropriate 

for Cheltenham.  

Report author Contact officer: Louis Krog, louis.krog@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 77 5004 

Page 213



 

   

Licensing of Rickshaws in Cheltenham Page 8 of 9 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Draft Policy, Procedure and Conditions for Licensing Rickshaws 
3. Map of “Core Commercial Area” 
4. Proposed Certificate of Fitness Compliance Sheet 

Background information 1. Service Records 
 

Page 214



 

   
$ypxfzqnu.doc Page 9 of 9 Last updated 08 June 2012 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 If Cabinet approves the 
licensing of rickshaws there is 
a risk that the Council will be 
unable to effectively control this 
form of licensing unless it also 
adopts an appropriate policy. 

Licensing 
& 
Business 
Support 
Team 
Leader 
 

19/6/12 2 3 9 Accept Adoption of the appropriate 
policy 

TBC Licensing 
& 
Business 
Support 
Team 
Leader 
 

 

            
            
            
            
Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being negligible and 5 critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 
 

P
age 215



Page 216
This page is intentionally left blank



 

Document Version 1 (April 2012) 1

  
 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
 

Policy, Procedure and Conditions for Licensing 
Rickshaws 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All enquiries should be directed to:-  
Licensing Section 
Municipal Offices  
Promenade  
CHELTENHAM 
GL50 9SA  
Tel: 01242 775200 
E-mail: licensing@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Website: www.cheltenham.gov.uk/licensing  
 
 
 

This policy was adopted by Cheltenham Borough Council on xxxx. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 217



 

Document Version 1 (April 2012) 2

Index 
 

 Page 

1. Procedure for Licensing Rickshaws  

2. Policy  

3. Conditions   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 218



 

Document Version 1 (April 2012) 3

Introduction 
It is an established fact (R v Cambridge City Council [1999] R.T.R. 182) that non-
motorised vehicles are to be licensed as Hackney Carriages.  For the purpose of this 
policy therefore, rickshaws will be understood to mean Hackney Carriages and riders 
as Hackney Carriage drivers. 
 
The Council has the responsibility to regulate and control all drivers and vehicles 
used for carrying passengers for hire and/or reward within the borough under the 
provisions of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  This policy will provide guidance to applicants 
and other interested parties, officers and Members on the approach the Council will 
take when licensing rickshaws. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt, this policy has been set and adopted in addition to the 
Council’s general Licensing Policy, Guidance and Conditions for Private Hire and 
Taxis. Unless otherwise stated, the scope and provisions of this policy has no 
bearing on the Council’s general policy and vice versa.  
 
Definitions 
 

”The 1847 Act”   The Town Police Clauses Act 1847 
 
“The 1976 Act”   The Local Government  

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
 

“The Council”  Cheltenham Borough Council 
 
“The Borough”  The Borough of Cheltenham 
 
“The Licence”  a licence granted in respect of a  

Rickshaw Hackney Carriage granted 
pursuant to Section 37 of the Act of 
1847 
 

“Rickshaw Hackney Carriage” a vehicle in respect of which there is a 
licence in force under Section 37 of the 
Act of 1847 

 
“Rickshaw Rider”   a driver licensed by the Local Authority 

to be in charge of a licensed rickshaw 
and which there is a licence in force 
under Section 46 of the Act of 1847 

 
 
“Vehicle licence number” the number allocated by the Council to a 

licence granted for a hackney carriage 
 
 
“Vehicle plate” the plate provided by the Council for 

affixing to a hackney carriage pursuant 
to Section 38 of the Act of 1847 

 

Page 219



 

Document Version 1 (April 2012) 4

“Core Commercial Area” The said area as outlined in the 
“Cheltenham Borough Local Plan” 
adopted July 2006 

 
References to the male gender shall be construed as including reference to the 
female gender where appropriate. 
 
References to “rickshaw” shall be construed to also include Pedicabs or any other 
non-motorised vehicles. 
 
All other words and phrases in these conditions shall bear the meanings ascribed to 
them (if any) in the 1976 Act and the 1847 Act. 
 
All obligations contained in the Licence Conditions are to be construed as the 
obligations of the Licence. 

 

1. Procedure for Licensing Rickshaws 
 
1.1 The Council has a statutory duty to regulate Hackney Carriages and Hackney 

Carriage Drivers in the interest of public safety and protection. To this end, the 
Council will adopt the following procedures for licensing rickshaws and rickshaw 
riders. 

 
1.2 Non-motorised vehicles will be subject to the same statutory provisions as 

motorised vehicles which includes the Council’s Hackney Carriage byelaws. 
 

Riders 
 
1.3 To apply for a licence, the applicant must be over 18 years of age, be a fit and 

proper person as defined by section 59(1)(a) of the 1976 Act, hold a full original 
DVLA driving licence for a period of no less than 12 months and be proficient in 
English. 

 
1.4 In addition, the applicant must provide the Council with the following documents 

when making a first application:-  
 

a) Licence application form completed in full; 
b) The appropriate fee; 
c) A full original DVLA driving licence (or equivalent driver’s licence) that has 
been issued for at least 12 months; 
d) A passport sized, colour photograph which must be clear and concise, with 
no face or head covering; 
e) CRB enhanced disclosure application form and fee; 
g) Documentation regarding applicant's right to work in UK (if applicable); 
h) Medical certificate (In accordance with DVLA Group 2 driver standard for 
medical fitness of Hackney and Private Hire drivers & by a practitioner who has 
access to the applicant’s medical history); 
i) Provide evidence of having achieved Level 3 of The National Standards for 
Cycle Training using a rickshaw and must be able to provide certified 
documentary evidence of this achievement.  

 
1.5 If convictions or charges are revealed, the Council will make a decision as to 

their relevance in reference to its adopted policy on the Relevance of 

Page 220



 

Document Version 1 (April 2012) 5

Convictions (from the Council’s general policy available at 
www.cheltenham.gov.uk/licensing). The Council may require further information 
from the Police or Crown Prosecution Service prior to making a decision.  

 
1.6 Applicants who have previous criminal convictions, cautions, fixed penalty 

notices or charges pending will be interviewed and details of that interview may 
be included in any report which is referred to the Licensing Committee. 

 
1.7 If the information received is deemed relevant the licence may be refused.  
 
1.8 Failure to disclose any previous convictions, cautions fixed penalty notices or 

pending charges maybe construed as an attempt to deceive and appropriate 
and proportionate action will be taken. 

 
1.9 All riders will be issued with 2 driver badges detailing the licence number, expiry 

date and a photograph of the licence holder. One badge must be worn at all 
times when the rider is working and be clearly visible and the other must be 
displayed inside the rickshaw in a prominent position so that it can be clearly 
seen by passengers. 

 
Renewal Applications 

 
1.10 Holders of existing licences must apply to renew their licence in the month 

preceding the expiry date and ideally should be submitted as early as possible 
prior to the expiry of the previous licence. The Council has no duty to notify 
riders that their licence is due for renewal, but as a courtesy and part of the 
Council’s customer service will send reminders generally four to six weeks in 
advance of the expiry of the licence. 

 
1.11 Upon renewal, the applicant will be required to produce the following:- 
 
 a) Completed renewal application form completed in full; 
 b) Current valid DVLA Driving Licence; 
 c) DVLA mandate form completed in black; 
 d) Correctly completed enhanced CRB form and fee;  
 e) Medical certificate (In accordance with DVLA Group 2 driver standard for 

medical fitness of Hackney and Private Hire drivers & by a practitioner who has 
access to the applicant’s medical history); 

 f) The appropriate fee; 
 g) A passport sized, colour photographs which must be clear and concise, with 

no face or head covering. 
 
1.12 All riders will be issued with 2 driver badges detailing the licence number, expiry 

date and a photograph of the licence holder. One badge must be worn at all 
times when the rider is working and be clearly visible and the other must be 
displayed inside the rickshaw in a prominent position so that it can be clearly 
seen by passengers. 

 
Rickshaw Vehicles 

 
1.13 The applicant must provide the Council with the following documents when 

making a first application:- 
 
 a) Licence application form completed in full; 

Page 221



 

Document Version 1 (April 2012) 6

b) Policy of public liability insurance which covers use for hire and reward with 
passenger risks of no less than £5 million (The insurance certificate must have 
effect for the duration of the licence); 
c) Signed and completed certificate of fitness compliance sheet. 

 
1.14 All vehicles will be issued with a window badge outlining the vehicle licence 

number, the vehicle licence expiry date, vehicle make, model and number of 
passengers permitted to be conveyed in the vehicle. The window badge must 
be displayed inside the vehicle in a visible position to passengers. 

 
Renewal Applications 

 
1.15 Holders of existing licences must apply to renew their licence in the month 

preceding the expiry date and ideally should be submitted as early as possible 
prior to the expiry of the previous licence. The Council has no duty to notify 
licence holders that their licence is due for renewal, but as a courtesy and part 
of the Council’s customer service will send reminders generally four to six 
weeks in advance of the expiry of the licence. 

 
1.16 Upon renewal, the applicant will be required to produce the following:- 
   
 a) Licence application form completed in full; 

b) Policy of public liability insurance which covers use for hire and reward with 
passenger risks of no less than £5 million (The insurance certificate must have 
effect for the duration of the licence); 
c) Signed and completed certificate of fitness compliance sheet. 
 

1.17 All vehicles will be issued with a window badge outlining the vehicle licence 
number, the vehicle licence expiry date, vehicle make, model and number of 
passengers permitted to be conveyed in the vehicle. The window badge must 
be displayed inside the vehicle in a visible position to passengers. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 222



 

Document Version 1 (April 2012) 7

2. Policy 
 

General  
 
2.1 Each application will be determined on individual merits. 
 

Vehicle Types to be Licensed  
 
2.2 The Council recognise that Rickshaw Hackney Carriages can present unique 

challenges with regards to traffic flow, highway access, obstruction and safety.   
 

This is particularly relevant in Cheltenham town centre where: 
 

a) a number of one way systems are in operation, 
b) a significant section of the town centre being pedestrainised with limited 
vehicular access, and  
c) on street parking combined with bus stops narrow the width of the road 
which can cause obstruction and difficulties with traffic flow. 

 
Mechanically propelled vehicles will present difficulty for the Council, in 
reference to the above, and as a result, the Council considers it appropriate to 
only licence purpose built cycle rickshaws fitted with at least 2 passenger seats 
and of a design, which has the rider in the front or forward position and the 
passengers seated to the rear. 
 

2.3 All Rickshaw Hackney Carriages must:- 
 

a) Display a vehicle plate which must be securely attached to the exterior of 
the rear of the vehicle in a prominent position; 

b) Be capable of carrying a minimum of 2 adult passengers in safety and 
comfort; 

c) Have sufficient roof and weather covering to be kept water-tight; 
d) At all times comply with the safety standards contained in this policy; 
e) Be fitted with operational lap belts, one for each passenger; 
f) Be fitted with operational and adequate lights; 
g) Display at all times, in a prominent position, the adopted fare card, 
h) Display window badge. 

 
Safety 

 
2.4 All Rickshaw Hackney Carriages must comply at all times with the following 

safety standards:- 
 

a)  BS EN 14766:2005 Mountain-bicycles - Safety requirements and test 
methods or equivalent; 

b)  Pedal Cycle (Construction and Use) Regulations 1983; 
c)  Pedal Bicycle (Safety) Regulations 2003; 
d)  Road Vehicle Lighting Regulations 1989. 

  
Advertising 
 

2.5 Advertising will not be permitted on the Rickshaw Hackney Carriages without 
the prior written consent of the Council. 

 

Page 223



 

Document Version 1 (April 2012) 8

Fares 
 
2.6 Theoretically it is possible to fit a meter on a rickshaw, however this is 

considered impractical, as it would require a battery and waterproof enclosure, 
be expensive and inappropriate. Furthermore battery failure or loss of charge 
would require regular re-setting of the calendar control system.  Finally, a 
rickshaw is unlikely to ever go fast enough to allow charging by distance.  

 
2.7 As a result, the Council considered the most simple and effective method of 

regulating the fares for Rickshaw Hackney Carriages would be to set a single 
maximum fare for each half hour or part thereof for each hiring.  

 
2.8 The maximum fares will be set by the Council in accordance with the statutory 

procedure prescribed by section 65 of the 1976 Act. 
 

Area of Operation 
 
2.9 Rickshaw Hackney Carriages can stand or ply for hire on any street with a 

prescribed district and must undertake any request for a journey. However, it 
would be unrealistic to expect rickshaws to undertake such journeys due to the 
physical demands on the rider. There must nonetheless be assurances that the 
passengers will be safely delivered to their destination with no risk that they 
may be ejected by the rider who becomes tired or fatigued. Consideration 
needs to be given to control of the areas of operation for Rickshaw Hackney 
Carriages in the borough. 

 
2.10 To this end the Council considers it appropriate that the area of operation for 

Rickshaw Hackney Carriages be limited to the core commercial area of the 
town and Evesham Road up to Walnut Close for access to Pittville Park. 

 
2.11 Rickshaw Hackney Carriages will only be permitted to operate on-street within 

the areas defined at paragraph 2.10 above.  Access to pedestrainised areas 
and/or cycle lanes or routes will not be permitted.   

 
2.12 Rickshaw Hackney Carriages will not be permitted to operate from designated 

hackney carriage ranks used by motorised hackney carriages. 
 
2.13 For reasons mentioned in this policy, the Council will permit Rickshaw Hackney 

Carriages to operate from the cobbled area on the corner of Crescent Terrace 
and the outer Promenade. However, this area is limited in space and the 
Council would expect Rickshaw Hackney Carriages to move to other areas 
within the area of operation if the cobbled area is full to avoid obstruction of the 
highway. 
 

Duration of Licences 
  

Drivers 
 
2.14 The Council will issue driver’s licences for a period of 1 or 3 years. 
 
 Vehicles 
 
2.15 The Council will issue vehicle licences for a period of up to 1 year. 
 

Inspection of the Vehicle 

Page 224



 

Document Version 1 (April 2012) 9

 
2.16 Prior to a licence being granted to the intended Rickshaw Hackney Carriages 

must be inspected by officers of the Council.  
 
2.17 Rickshaw Hackney Carriages will also require to be inspected annually by an 

officer of the Council. An inspection will include, but will not be limited to, the 
following: 

 
a) Front and rear brakes; 
b) Front and rear lights; 
c) Operation of lap belts; 
d) Condition of tyres, wheels, spokes; 
e) Reflectors; 
f) Quick release mechanisms; 
g) Condition of external body work. 

 
 Reporting Accidents 
 
2.18 The rider must notify the Council of any accident or incident within 72 hours. 

3. Conditions 
 
3.1 Driver Code of Conduct for in respect of Rickshaws is attached at Appendix A. 
 
3.2 Conditions attached the grant of a Rickshaw Hackney Carriage licence is 

attached at Appendix B. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 225



Appendix A 

Document Version 1 (April 2012) 10

  
Code of Conduct for Cheltenham Borough Council Rickshaw Riders 
 
 
I (insert name) ................................................................... hereby certify that in the course of my 
activities as a rickshaw rider I will: 
 
1) Ensure the safety of my passengers, other road users and myself at all times and take all 

measures to avoid accidents and incidents. 
 
2) Abide by the rules as set out in The Highway Code at all times. 
 
3) At no time be under the influence of alcohol or any drugs, including prescription drugs that may 

affect my judgement. 
 
4) Ensure that my passengers are offered the safety belt or lap belt before all journeys. 
 
5) Charge a standard fare for all journeys which will be for the hire of the vehicle (not per 

passenger) and agree that fare with passengers prior to embarking on a journey and not to 
charge or demand more. 

 
6) Ensure that all items belonging to passengers are stowed away and that scarves, coats or any 

other items are safely contained within the rickshaws. 
 
7) Not solicit or tout for business. 
 
8) Not overload the rickshaw.  I will only take the number of passengers specified on the licence 

plate. 
 
9) Be courteous and considerate to other road users, pedestrians, passengers and other persons 

at all times. 
 
10) Not cause an obstruction to other vehicles or pedestrians especially around fire exits from 

buildings, e.g. theatres and licensed premises. 
 
11) Wear my hackney carriage driver’s badge (ID badge) at all times whilst working. 
 
12) Carry out safety checks of brakes, steering, tyres, pedals, lights and the rickshaw in general 

before the commencement of work each day. 
 
13) Assist any other rickshaw rider if they are experiencing difficulties. 
 
14) Not become involved in racing of any kind. 
 
15) Hand in any lost property to the Police station on Lansdown Road, Cheltenham. 
 
16) Ensure that my passengers arrive at their destination safely and that I will take particular care of 

the vulnerable. 
 

Page 226



Appendix A 

Document Version 1 (April 2012) 11

17) Not smoke or use a mobile phone whilst riding or allow passengers to smoke during any 
journey. 

 
18) Not ride in pedestrian areas, cycle lanes or routes or on the pavement. 
 
19) Not to operate in any area outside the designated area for operation. 

 
20) Not use ranks designated for motorised Hackney Carriages. 

 
21) Not take any action that might damage the reputation of the industry or licensing authority. 

 
22) Report and document any accident or incident within 72 hours to the licensing authority. 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: …….....…..……..... Company: …….....………………… Date: …..........…….... 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 227



Appendix B 

Document Version 1 (April 2012) 12

RICKSHAW HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE LICENCE CONDITIONS 
 
1) The rickshaw must at all times comply with the requirements of the BS EN 14766:2005 

Mountain-bicycles - Safety requirements and test methods or equivalent, the Pedal Cycle 
(Construction and Use) Regulations 1983, the Pedal Bicycle (Safety) Regulations 2003 and the 
Road Vehicle Lighting Regulations 1989. 

 
2) The rickshaw will be so constructed that it has a minimum of three wheels, one at the front and 

at least two at the rear. 
 
3) The rickshaw must be fitted with a minimum of one front position light and a minimum of two 

rear position lamps and two rear retro reflectors. 
 
4) The steering wheel when turned to full lock will not affect the stability of the rickshaw when 

turning. 
 
5) Tyres must comply with the following requirements:- 
 

• tread pattern clearly visible over the whole tread area 
• no exposed cords 
• the load ratings of all tyres must be suitable for a rickshaw when fully loaded. 

 
6) Any electrical installations to the rickshaw must be adequately insulated, protected from 

passengers and any battery fitted must be of the type that does not leak. 
 
7) A rickshaw must not exceed 1250mm in width (excluding rear view mirror) or 2650mm in length. 
 
8) There must be at least one mirror fitted to the offside of the rickshaw in order to monitor other 

road users.  A nearside mirror is also permitted. 
 
9) The floor covering of the passenger compartment must be of a non-slip material which can be 

easily cleaned.  Any holds or handles to aid passenger access or egress should be clearly 
identified with high visibility yellow markings. 

 
10) Any canopy or roof, when fitted, must remain fixed in position until required to be raised or 

lowered which will be achieved by means of a locking mechanism to secure the canopy or roof 
when raised or lowered and must remain water-tight. 

 
11) The rear seat dimensions must be adequate to accommodate one or two adult passengers 

based on a width of 450mm per passenger and shall be forward facing. 
 
12) Visibility from the passenger compartment must not be restricted by the design of the rickshaw.  

If the canopy or roof restricts vision then clear panels should be fitted to aid vision. 
 
13) Every rickshaw licensed by Cheltenham Borough Council shall be fitted with seatbelts or lap 

belts which will be adequate to retain the passenger in the vehicle and must bear an EC or BSI 
mark. 

 
14) The rider’s controls and the surrounding area of the controls must be so designed that the rider 

has adequate room.  The rider must be able to easily reach and quickly operate the controls 
and give hand signals when required.  The position of the rider’s seat must not be such that it 
restricts access or egress to the passenger compartment. 

 
15) A written receipt will be given to each paying passenger and a copy kept by the licensed 

rider/proprietor.  A chart explaining the fares shall be displayed in full view of any passengers. 
 

Page 228



Appendix B 

Document Version 1 (April 2012) 13

16) The certificate of insurance must be displayed within the view of any passengers and should 
remain so when roof or canopy is lowered. 

 
17) All rickshaw shall be required to be fitted with an audible warning instrument (bell) complying 

with the Pedal Cycles (Safety) Regulations 2003. 
 
18) Rickshaws and all their fittings must be maintained to standards that meet these conditions of 

licence throughout the validity of the licence.  They must be kept clean and in good order at all 
times and will be subject to tests and inspections.  Any rickshaw found to be not properly 
maintained may have its licence suspended until such time as it is re-presented for inspection 
having had the defect(s) rectified.  All testing will be carried out by CYTECH qualified 
technicians. 

 
19) Suitable advertisements may be allowed on the exterior or interior of rickshaws subject to the 

approval of Cheltenham Borough Council.  In addition they may display signs or notices which 
indicate professional skills or qualifications of the driver which enhance the rickshaw service to 
the public. 

 
20) The materials used to form the passenger seats should be waterproof so that they will not 

absorb or retain water and should be constructed of a suitable fire resistant material to BS 5852 
Part 1, 1979 or equivalent. 

 
21) The rickshaw shall be of a design which has the rider to the front and passengers seated to the 

rear. 
 
22) Rickshaws licensed by Cheltenham Borough Council will only operate within the specified area 

as outlined in the Council’s adopted policy. 
 
23) Rickshaws will only operate on-street within the areas defined above.  Access to pedestrainised 

areas and/or cycle lanes or routes will not be permitted.  
 
24) Rickshaws are not permitted to operate from designated hackney carriage ranks used by 

motorised hackney carriages. 
 
26) The rickshaw shall not display any other signs or notices except those detailed above or 

approved by the Council. 
 
27) The rickshaw shall not be a licensed hackney carriage of any other Council. 
 
28) The licensed proprietor shall immediately notify the Council of the name and address of any 

other proprietor or person concerned in the keeping, employing or letting for hire of the licensed 
vehicle. 

 
29) Upon a change of proprietor, the Council shall be notified within 14 days of such change by the 

licensed proprietor (which expression includes both Companies and Partnerships). 
 
30) The Council's Licensing Section shall be notified within 72 hours of the following:- 
 a) any accident or incident affecting the safety, performance or appearance of the licensed 

vehicle or the comfort or convenience of passengers, 
 b) any alteration in the design or construction of the vehicle which may affect its general 

condition or suitability for use as a rickshaw. 
 
31) The licensed proprietor of a rickshaw shall permit the inspection of all documents relating to the 

licensed vehicle at all reasonable times and by prior arrangement by authorised Officers of the 
Council or Police Officers. 

 
32) Every vehicle shall display a licence plate, supplied by the Council, externally on the rear of the 

vehicle.  The licence plate issued by the Council should be securely fixed to the rear of the 

Page 229



Appendix B 

Document Version 1 (April 2012) 14

vehicle so that it is clearly visible.  The licence plate will remain the property of the Council and 
must be returned to the Council immediately upon a change of vehicle or when requested upon 
the suspension, revocation or expiry of a vehicle licence. 

 
33) Licensed vehicles must display a sign, supplied by the Council, inside the vehicle in a visible 

position to passengers, displaying the Council's details and the plate number of the vehicle.  
The sign will remain the property of the Council and must be returned to the Council when 
requested upon the suspension, revocation or expiry of a vehicle licence. 

 
34) A hackney carriage driver’s badge (ID badge) must be displayed inside the rickshaw when the 

rider is working, within the view of any passengers and should remain so when roof or canopy is 
lowered. 

 
 

Page 230



 Page 231



Page 232
This page is intentionally left blank



 
RICKSHAW - Certificate of Fitness Compliance 

CYCLE DEALERSHIP                                                             ACT Membership No. 

Make: Model: Year manufacture: Licence Plate No: 
(Renewals only) 

Test date: Time: Examiner: Cytech Level 3:   Y/N 
Name and address of rickshaw Proprietor: 

 

    Pass/Fail 
     (√) (X) 
1 Tyres Tread pattern clearly visible over the whole tread area 

No exposed cords 
The load ratings of all tyres suitable for the pedicab when fully 
loaded 

 

2 Seat belts All seat belts must conform to legal requirements and be operational  
3 Vehicle 

Bodywork 
The structure must be in a sound condition with no signs of 
excessive corrosion or damage which may cause injury to 
passengers 

 

4 Mirrors All mirrors must be securely mounted and not cracked, broken or 
corroded so as to distort any view to the rear.  Where a mirror is 
intended to be adjustable it must be capable of being adjusted 

 

5 Road test The rickshaw must be capable of manoeuvring safely and ‘handles’ 
correctly without any undue drift or pull etc. 

 
6 External 

Bodywork 
The paintwork shall be clean, consistent and uniform over the whole 
vehicle.  The paintwork shall be of a professional standard.  All 
fitments shall be intact and free from any damage, stains or 
corrosion of any kind 

 

7 Seats and 
upholstery 

There must be no sharp edges which would be likely to cause 
injury/damage.  Seat coverings must be sound, intact, fitted snugly to 
seats and clean 

 

8 Floor The floor must be in sound condition.  If furnished with rubber mats 
they must be clean and in an undamaged condition.  The floor 
coverings must not be so worn as to cause danger to passengers 

 

9 Hood The hood shall be intact, clean and free from holes, tears, stains or 
any other damage 

 
10 Internal Licence 

Plate 
Shall be displayed in such a position as to be easily seen by 
passengers 

 
11 External 

Licence Plate 
Shall be securely fixed to the vehicle in such a position as to be 
clearly visible from the rear of the vehicle 

 
12 Safety 

Standards 
The rickshaw complies with: 
- BS EN 14766:2005 Mountain-bicycles - Safety requirements and 
test methods or equivalent; 
- Pedal Cycle (Construction and Use) Regulations 1983;  
- Pedal Bicycle (Safety) Regulations 2003;  
- Road Vehicle Lighting Regulations 1989. 
 

 

 Pass Fail ACCREDITED CYCLE SHOP STAMP 
 
 
 
 
SIGNITURE OF EXAMINER: 

 

 
Immediately after completion of this report, it shall be forwarded to: Cheltenham Borough Council, Licensing Section, 

Municipal Offices Promenade Cheltenham GL50 9SA 

Page 233



Page 234
This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	5 Financial Outturn 2011/12 and quarterly budget monitoring to May 2012-
	2012_06_19_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 2 Summary Outturn Position GF 2011.12
	2012_06_19_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 3 pages 1-6 Service level outturn 2011-12
	2012_06_19_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 3 pages 7-8 Programmed Maintenance 2011-12
	2012_06_19_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 4 Capital Charges
	2012_06_19_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 5 Interest and Investment Charges
	2012_06_19_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 6 Significant variances 11-12
	2012_06_19_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 7 -Carry forward requests 2011-12
	2012_06_19_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 8 Use of balances and reserves
	2012_06_19_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 9 2011-12 Treasury outturn
	2012_06_19_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 10 Movement on earmarked reserves and general balances
	2012_06_19_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 11 GF Capital Programme
	2012_06_19_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 12  Section 106 receipts
	2012_06_19_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 13 Council Tax & NNDR Collection
	2012_06_19_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 14 Sundry Debt Collection
	2012_06_19_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 15-17 HRA Outturn
	2012_06_!9_CAB_Financialoutturn_Appendix 18 Prudential Indicators Outturn Report 11-12

	6 Annual Performance report
	2012_06_19_CAB_Annual_Performance_Report_Appendix_2
	2012_06_19_CAB_Annual_Performance_Report_Appendix_3

	7 Right to Buy - Scheme Changes and Agreement to Retain Receipts
	2012_06_19_CAB_Right_to_buy_Agreement

	8 Appointments to Outside bodies
	2012_06_19_CAB_Outside body appointments 2012-14 nominations

	9 Gambling Act 2005 Œ Review of Licensing Policy Statement of Principles
	2012_06_19_CAB_Gambling_Policy_Report_Appendix_2
	2012_06_19_CAB_Gambling_Policy_Appendix_3

	10 Regulating Direct Debit ﬁFace to Faceﬂ Fundraising in Cheltenham
	2012_06_19_PFRA_Report_Appendix 2
	2012_06_19_PFRA_Report_Appendix 3
	2012_06_19_PFRA_Report_Appendix 4

	11 Licensing of Rickshaws in Cheltenham
	2012_06_19_CAB_Rickshaw_Report_Appendix 2
	2012_06_19_CAB_Rickshaw_Report_Appendix 3
	2012_06_19_CAB_Rickshaw_Report_Appendix 4


